IMPACTS OF NEW ENERGY TECHNOLOGY, USING GENERALIZED INPUT-OUTPUT ANALYSIS

bу

James E. Just

February, 1973

A Report of the

ENERGY ANALYSIS AND PLANNING GROUP

School of Engineering

Massachusetts Institute of Technology

Cambridge, Massachusetts

REPORT No. 73-1

The Massachusetts Institute of Technology has undertaken a program of research on Energy Analysis and Planning. The overall goals of this program are to develop concepts, information, and analytical tools that relate energy supply and demand, the economy and the environment in a manner useful to managers and policy makers in government and the energy industries. The work reported here is the second formal output of this effort.

Further research at refining this model and also developing other models relating to the overall goals of the program is underway.

> David C. Mhite Ford Professor of Engineering

IMPACTS OF NEW ENERGY TECHNOLOGY - USING GENERALIZED INPUT-OUTPUT ANALYSIS

ΒY

James Edward Just

Submitted to the Department of Electrical Engineering on 1973, January 17 in partial fulfullment of the requirements for the Degree of Doctor of Philosophy

APSTRACT

Traditional input-output analysis was modified to include air pollution emissions, employment, and other accessory variables. Engineering studies of high and low BTU coal gasification and the gas turbine topping cycle were then utilized to incorporate these new technologies into the 1980 input-output table that was projected by the Bureau of Labor Statistics. These two techniques are shown to be able to correct many previous objections to input-output analysis and to have applicability to a wide variety of practical problems.

A series of 1985 projections featuring high, medium and low growth of energy consumption (both with and without the new technologies) were also made. Economic and environmental impacts were then calculated for these alternative futures. The major conclusions are:

- 1. Total investment in general and capital good industries in particular (primarily turbogenerator manufacturers, boiler makers, and construction equipment manufacturers) are quite sensitive to energy use growth rates (especially electricity).
- 2. Introduction of high Btu coal gasification will aggravate the demand for investment funds and introduction of the second generation gas turbine topping cycle (with or without low Btu coal gasification) will decrease the demand. These technologies will have their major impacts on the industries listed above.
- 3. Slight changes in the overall growth rates of total personal consumption expenditures and government spending result in large fluctuations in total investment.

- 4. If high energy growth continues and if investment is to remain within its historical limits as a percentage of GNP, energy investment will become a larger and larger part of total investment.
- 5. While interest rates are assumed to be the balancing mechanism between supply of and demand for investment funds, the very act of saving more money (which is induced by higher interest rates) means that less can be spend on consumption goods. This in turn lessens the demand for investment funds because the growth rates of consumption sectors are lower. This indirect effect of interest rates on investment has been little studied but may be guite important.

The policy implications of these results are also discussed.

THESIS SUPERVISOR: David C. White TITLE: Ford Professor of Engineering

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS.

I would like to express my sincere thanks to Prof. David White for supervising this research and to Prof. Robert Solow and Prof. Fred Schweppe for their guidance and assistance. Both professionally and personally, I have enjoyed my association with them. So many other people have helped me that it is impossible to thank them individually. However I must express my appreciation of the special assistance given to me by Miss Nancy Stauffer, Dr. Anne Carter, Rudyard Istvan, Samual Dolinar, and the members of the staff of the Office of Business Economics (now the Bureau of Economic Analysis), and Interagency Growth Project and the Institute of Gas Technology. Special thanks should also go to Mrs. Pam Sullivan for the long job of typing this report.

My research has been supported by the MITPE Corporation, the National Science Foundation (Contract #GI-34936) and Massachusetts Institute of Technology Ford Professorial Funds. Their support was greatly appreciated.

I would like to dedicate this report to my mother who has patiently waited many years for her son to finish his education.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Abstract			2
Acknowledg	ements		4
Table of C	ontent	5	5
List of Fi	gures		8
Convention	s		13
Chapter 1	Summa	ry and Organization	15
	1.1	Introduction	15
	1.2	Generalized Input-Output Theory	17
	1.3	Summary of Results	30
	1.4	Conclusions	47
	1.5	Organization	50
Chapter 2	Metho izeo	dology: New Technologies and General- d Input-Output Analysis	5 7
	2.1	What is Input-Output Analysis?	57
	2.2	Technological Coefficients	60
	2.3	Capital Coefficients	68
	2.4	Uses of the Coefficients	73
	2.5	Overview of the Generalized Input- Output Model	74
	2.6	Methodology in the Generalized Input- Output Model	7 9
	2.7	New Technology Coefficients	87
Chapter 3	Impact Tech	ts of Capital Expenditures for New Energy mologies	95
	3.1	Summary of the Impacts	95
	3.2	Impacts of Capital Expenditures for High BTU Coal Gasification	115
	3.3	Low BTU Coal Gasification	122
	3.4	The Gas Turbine Topping Cycle (COGAS Cycle)	123
	3.5	Nuclear Steam Generation	129

•

	6	
Chapter 4	Impacts of the Technology Plant Operations and Energy Price Rises	133
	4.1 Overview of Chapter	133
	4.2 Impacts of New Technology Operations	134
	4.3 Price Changes	147
Chapter 5	1985 Projections	159
	5.1 Scope	159
	5.2 Procedure	159
	5.3 Issues	169
	5.4 Projections	171
	5.5 Sensitivity of Investment	173
Chapter 6	Conclusions and Recommendations	184
	6.1 Conclusions	184
	6.2 Implications for Energy Policy	187
	6.3 Further Pesearch Suggestions	187
	6.4 Suggestions for Policy Studies	190
References		194
Appendix A	Data Sources	200
Appendix B	Some New En erg y Technologies	203
	B.1 Gas from Coal	203
	B.2 Hygas-Electrothermal	205
	B.3 Low BTU Coal Gasification	211
	B.4 The Gas Turbine Topping Cycle	214
Appendix C	Derivation of HYGAS Capital Investment Coefficients	221
Appendix D	Derivation of Hygas Technical Coefficients	244
Appendix E	Derivation of Capital Coefficients for Second Generation Texaco Low BTU Coal Gasification Process	253
Appendix F	Derivation of Second Generation Low BTU Coal Gasification Technical Coefficients	260
Appendix G	Derivation of Capital Coefficients for the Second Generation Gas Turbine Topping Cycl	266

Appendix	Н	Derivation of Technical Coefficients for the Second Generation Has Turbine Topping Cycle	279
Appendix	I	Analytical Convergence Procedure for 1985 Projections	283
Appendix	J	Detailed Figures	286
Biographi	cal	Notes	299

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure No.	Title	Page
1.1	Basic Input-Output Relationships	19
1.2	Two-Period Dynamic Input-Output Model	23
1.3	Quasi-Dynamic Projection Model	25
1.4	Energy-Oriented Generalized Input-Output Model	26
1.5	New Technologies Investigated	32
1.6	Major Iso-Energy Impacts of new Technologies (Capital Investment)	34
1.7	Major Iso-Energy Impacts of new Technologies (Operation)	36
1.8	Effects of Fuel Price Changes	40
1.9	1980-1985 Modifications	42
1.10	1985 New Technology Modifications	43
1.11	Balanced 1985 Projections	46
1.12	Generalized Input-Output Model Sectors	52
1.13	Final Demand Sectors	56
2.1	Eight Sector Input-Output Table for 1958	58
2.2	Components of Pipeline Gas Price	62
2.3	Hypothetical Ten-Sector Economy	63
2.4	Components of Pipeline Gas Price-Preliminary Assignment of Sectors	64
2.5	Components of Pipeline Gas Price-Final Assign- ment of Sectors	66
2.6	Technological Coefficients for Coal Gasifica- tion	67
2.7	Investment Breakdown for Pipeline Gas Plant	69
2.8	Pipeline Gas Investment Summary	71
2,9	Lignite Grinding & Drying Equipment Summary	72
2.10	Energy-Oriented Generalized Input-Output Model	75
2.11	Sources of Input-Output Data	77
2.12	Outputs of Generalized Input-Output Model and Data Sources	78

		9
Figure No.	Title	Page
3.1	1970 Gross National Product	96
3.2	New Plant and Equipment Expenditures	98
3.3	Electric Construction Expenditures	<u>9</u> 9
3.4	Gas Utility Industry Construction Expendi- tures	100
3.5	Plans for Capital Spending	101
3.6	New Technology Plant Sizes and Costs	103
3.7	Summary of Detailed Comparisons	104
3.8a	Comparison of 1980 Total Investment with \$10 billion Investments in new Technology	106
3.8b	Outputs Required to Support Equal Capital Investments in New Technology	109
3.9	Expenditures for 5 Trillion BTU/Day Capacity of Each New Technology	112
3.10	Outputs Required to Support Investment in Equal Capacities of new Technologies	113
3.11	High BTU Coal Gasification Scenarios	117
3.12	Major Impacts of High ETU Gas Scenarios	119
3.13	Coal Reserves of the United States by States	120
3.14	Low BTU Coal Gasification Scenarios	124
3.15	Major Impacts of Low BTU Gas Scenarios	125
3.16	Gas Turbine Topping Cycle Scenarios	127
3.17	Major Impacts of Gas Turbine Scenarios	128
3.18	Nuclear Generation Scenarios	130
3.19	Major Impacts of Nuclear Scenarios	131
4.1	Selected Figures for the Energy Supply Ind- ustries	135
4.2	Coast of Electricity	137
4.3a	Classification of Gas Operating Expenses	138
4. 3b	Composite Gas Income Accounts	139
4.4	Generation Cost vs. Average Customer Cost	141
4.5	\$10 Billion Energy Purchases	141
4.6	Outputs Required to Support \$10 Billion of Energy Purchases for New Technologies	142

		10
Figure No.	Title	Page
4.7	Outputs Required to Support Purchases of 5 Trillion BTU/Day	145
4.8	Significant Price Rises Caused by Coal	151
4.9	Significant Price Rises Caused by Crude Oil	152
4.10	Significant Price Rises Caused by Oil	153
4.11	Significant Price Rises Caused by Matural Gas	154
4.12	Significant Price Rises Caused by Electricity	155
4.13	Significant Price Rises Caused by All Fnergy Fuels	156
5.1	1980-1985 Modifications	160
5.2	Istvan's Electric Utility Information	161
5.3	1985 Initial Final Demand Projection	163
5.4	Quasi-Dynamic Projection Model	165
5.5	1985 New Technology Modifications	167
5.6	Balanced 1985 Projection Procedure	168
5.7	Basic Unscaled 1985 Projection	172
5.8	Basic Scaled 1985 Projection	172
5.9	Changes in Pequired Investment	174
5.10	Balanced 1985 Projections	175
5.11	Sensitivity of Total Outputs to Unit Changes Final Demand	in 176
5.12	Sensitivity of Total Outputs to Percentage Changes in Final Demands	1 79
5.13	Investment Sensitivity to Changes in Final Energy Demand	183
6.1	Model Development	189
6.2	Dynamic Generalized Input Output Model	191
B.1	Selected Worldwide Natural Gas Highlights	204
B.2	FPC Natural Gas Estimates	206
В.З	Hygas Electrothermal Process	207
B.4	Hygas Oxygen Process	210
B.5	Texaco Partial Oxidation Process	213

		11
Figure No.	Title	Page
B.6	Cost of One Million BTU of Synthesis Gas	215
B.7	Waste Heat Recovery COGAS System	217
B.8	Proposed COGAS Power Systems	218
B.9	Cost Summary for Electric Power Stations	220
C.1	Hygas Investment Summary	223
C.2	Escalated Investments for Hygas Process	224
C.3	Plant Utility Supply for Hydas	225
C.4-11	Hygas Equipment Summary	226
C.12	Conventional Coal Generation Capital Vector	235
C.13	Expenditures for Pollution Control Equipment	237
C.14	Breakdown of Pollution Control Equipment	238
C.15	Cost Allocation for Various Equipment	240
C.16	Revised Investment Summary	241
C.17	Hygas Capital Expenditure Coefficients	243
D.1	Operating Expenses for Hygas Process	245
D.2	Labor Requirements for Hygas Process	246
D.3	By-products of Hygas Process	247
D.4	Summary of Annual Material Requirements	248
D.5	Process and Feedwater Requirements	249
D.6	Cooling Water Summary	250
D.7	Hygas Technological Coefficients	252
E.1	"Add on" Estimation Technique Illustration	254
E.2	Low BTU Gas Process Equipment	255
E.3	Comparison of Low BTU Coal Gasification Processes	256
E.4	Modal Allocation of Transportation Costs	258
E.5	Low BTU Gas Capital Coefficients	259
F.1	Operating Costs for Low BTU Gas Process	261
F.2	Comparison of Material Balances	262
F.3	Distribution of Labor Charges	263
F.4	Breakdown of Total Maintenance Costs	263
F.5	Low BTU Coal Gasification Technological Coef- ficients	- 265

		12
Figure No.	Title	'age
G.1-8	COGAS Equipment Summary	267
G.9	COGAS Capital Cost Summary	275
G.10	Labor Margins on FPC Capital Accounts	276
G.11	COGAS Capital Coefficients	278
H.1	COGAS Technological Coefficients	280
H.2	Technological Coefficients for Combined COGAS and Low BTU Coal Gasification	292
J.1	Comparison of Unscaled 1985 Total Final Demands	s 287
J.2	Comparison of Balanced 1985 Total Final Demands	; 2.89
J.3	Comparison of Unscaled 1985 Total Outputs	291
J.4	Comparison of Balanced 1985 Total Outputs	293
J.5	Comparison of Gross Investment and Total Output (1980)	295
J.6	Comparison of 1980 Investment (GPDI) Impacts with Total Output (1980)	297

CONVENTIONS

A - capital letters (underlined) represent vectors or matrices [a_{ij}], [b_j], - Matrix A (or vector <u>B</u>) is composed of elements
 a_{ij} (or b_j) A_{ij}, b_j - elements of matrix <u>A</u> (or vector <u>B</u>) are subscripted lower-case letters a, ,c - constants are non-subscripted lower-case letters \underline{A}^{T} - transpose of matrix or vector \underline{A} \underline{A}^{-1} - inverse of matrix \underline{A} (assumed to be square) Equation Numbers γ 1.1, 3.9 - Number before decimal point and Figure Numbers figure figu number with chapter. Footnotes - Within Text - Numbered sequentially throughout report; used for informational purposes only. Footnotes - within Figures - Numbered beginning with 1 with each figure. [39], [2], etc. refer to books listed under References. Special Symbols and Letters: N - number of sectors in economy \underline{A} - N X N matrix of technological coefficients \underline{C} - N x N matrix of capital coefficients \underline{Y} - N X 11 total final demand vector $\underline{Y}, \underline{Z} = N \times 1$ investment component of final demand (GPDI) Y^{F} - N x 1 non-investment component of final demand, includes PCE exports, and government spending X - N x 1 total output vector MCF - thousands of cubic feet MBTU - thousands of BTU MMBTU - millions of BTU

PCE - Personal Consumption Expenditures GPDI - Gross Private Domestic Investment PDE - Producers Durable Equipment

.

Chapter 1 Summary and Organization

1.1 Introduction

"The breakdown did not come all at once -- not like the cataclysmic nightfall that blacked out New York and most of the Northeast in 1965 -- but it was no less eerie. House lights went out: furnaces sputtered and cooled: auto traffic jammed up at darkened intersections. Dog races were canceled because the electric rabbits would no longer run. Factories shifted to a four-day week, then a three day week, laying off 1.6 million employees. Only the most essential services operated full time -- hospitals, water and sewage plants -- and nobody knew how long they could continue."

> Time, June 12, 1972.n. 49 [15] describing events during Britain's two month coal strike.

Americans use nearly twice as much electric power per capita as the British, and hence the potential for disaster is even greater than that described above. Advances in technology can help to ward off such consequences, but before embracing new technology as a cure-all for these problems, it is important to examine the impacts of such technologies.

The research described here explores only three new technologies that could have significant commercial application by 1985. These technologies are:

- (1) High Btu coal gasification,
- (2) Low Btu coal gasification, and
- (3) Gas turbine topping cycle (combined gas and steam cycle).

The techniques developed during the research are applicable to any possible new technologies, and provide broad but detailed looks at the United States, 15 to 20 years hence. The techniques are based on a generalized¹ form of input-output (1/0) analysis and thus can focus on the myriad interactions between the many sectors of the projected future economy.

As such, the techniques should be a useful tool for policy-makers who must decide what actions to take if there is an "energy crisis". Such possible applications will be discussed at the end of this chapter. One contribution of the techniques is that engineering studies can be used to incorporate new technologies into the I/O framework. Since engineering studies can handle relative price changes and other variables, this capability alleviates the problem of simplistic I/O projections that ignore price changes and facilitates the development of dynamic economic models in which technology depends on relative prices, energy availability, etc.

The research utilized a projection of the 1980 economy prepared by the Interagency Growth Project of the Bureau of Labor Statistics [48]. These projections were incorporated into a model that contained environmental variables and new technology representations that had been derived from basic engineering studies. The research focused on the economic impacts of investing in these highly capital intensive technologies and of day-to-day operation of such plants. An attempt was made to calculate the effects of fuel-switching and conservation policies caused by the high prices of these new energy sources but the attempt failed because of the lack of industrial price elasticity data. Finally a dynamic model was used to make a series of 1985 projections. These projections involved different rates of energy use growth and were performed with and without the new technologies.

^{1. &}quot;Generalized" refers to the inclusion of non-economic variables such as sulfur dioxide emissions or employment within the I/O framework and to the use of engineering studies to update projections of the technological structure of the economy.

The major results document the sensitivity of total capital investment to changes in the energy use growth rate and to the adoption of new energy technology. They also illustrate that very small changes in the overall growth rate of personal consumption or government expenditures can restrain total investment to within its historical limits as a percentage of GNP. The significance of these results is that the people of the U.S. can sustain the huge investment demands created by rapid energy demand growth by reducing the growth rate of personal consumption and government spending by less than 0.1% per year through 1985. Overall GNP growth rate remains unchanged, because the sum of the growth rates in investment and non-investment goods is a constant.

The next section (1.2) of this chapter briefly describes the generalized I/O model, while the following sections (1.3)and 1.4) summarize the results. The last section (1.5) outlines the organization of the report.

1.2 Generalized Input-Output Theory

1.2.1 Static Input-Output Models

Input-output (I/0) analysis is the study of interrelations between sectors² of the economy. It seeks to answer such questions as "If GNP grows by 4% per year, how will the outputs of each sector grow given that consumer's preferences and technology will change?" To perform such analysis it is first necessary to characterize the flow of goods and services between sectors. This is done with the aid of the interindustry flow table that is prepared periodically as part of the governments Census of Business.

² Sectors can be agricultural, industrial, commercial or service groups. Households and Government are also considered sectors.

A very simple example of a flow table for a hypothetical three sector economy is presented in Figure 1.1. Each entry in the table represents dollars of sales from sectors on the left to sectors along the top. Thus each row i can be read as sales by sector i to other sectors and each column j can be read as purchases by sector j from other sectors. Let $\underline{D} = [d_{ij}]$ by the 3 x 3 flow matrix enclosed in double lines. The entries under Final Demand (the 3 x 1 vector $\underline{Y} = [y_i]$) are the sales from each sector to private and public final consumers such as Households and Government 3 . The entries under Value Added (the 1 x 3 vector $V = [v_i]$ represent purchases of labor, depreciation changes, and profit for each sector. Note that the sum of the Value Added components and the sum of the Final Demand components are both equal to the Gross National Product (GNP) of this economy. This is true by definition of the accounting identifies. The entries under Total Output (the 3 x 1 vector $\underline{X} = [x_i]$) are the total sales of each sector either to other sectors or to Final Demand. Thus $x_i = \frac{3}{\sum} d_{ij} + y_i$ j=1

The objective of I/O analysis is to predict how Total Output X responds to changes in Final Demand Y or to changes in technology. The first step in this analysis forms the technological coefficient matrix $\underline{\Lambda}$ that represents input purchases required per dollar of output of each sector. This is easily calculated by dividing each column of purchases in the flow matrix D by the total output of that sector. Thus

$$\underline{A} = [a_{ij}] = [\frac{d_{ij}}{x_j}]$$

³ Actual I/O tables include investment purchase, net exports and inventory change in Final Demand. For introductory purposes it is better to ignore these.

Hypothetical Flow Table (in Dollars)

	10		••••••			
om	Sec tor	1	2	3	Final Demand <u>Y</u>	Total Output <u>X</u>
L	Agriculture	4	8	-	8	20
2	Industry	4	4	2	30	40
3	Energy & Services	-	8	2	10	20
	Value Added <u>V</u>	12	20	1 6	48	
	(Labor etc.)				GNP	
	Total Inputs	20	40	20		
	$\frac{X}{Y} = [x_i] = \text{Total Output Vector}$ $\frac{X}{Y} = [x_i] = \text{Total Output Vector}$ where $x_i = \text{total dollar sales by sector i}$ $\frac{Y}{Y} = [y_i] = \text{Final Demand Vector}$ where $y_i = \text{dollar sales to Final Demand by sector}$ $\frac{A}{Y} = [a_{ij}] = [\frac{d_{ij}}{x_j}] = \text{Technological Coefficient Matrix}$					
	<u>~</u> (~ij)	$\left[\frac{1}{x_j}\right]$	-] =	Techno	logical Coeff	ficient Matrix

Technological Coefficient Matrix (in Dollars)

	Sector	1	2	3	
1	Agriculture	.20	.20	-	
2	Industry	.20	.10	.10	
3	Energy & Services	-	.20	.10	

¹ Economists often use x_{ij} to represent the flows and x_i to represent total output. The above notation was thought to be less confusing.

The technological coefficient matrix for the three sector economy is also shown in Figure 1.1. The output of each sector that is consumed by other sectors, excluding Final Demand, can be expressed as the matrix product $\underline{A} \times \underline{X}$. The resulting vector is known as total immediate output since Total Output is obviously the sum of the immediate output and Final Demand,

$$\underline{X} = \underline{\Lambda} \ \underline{X} + \underline{Y} \tag{1.1}$$

This expression is easily solved for Total Output as a function of Final Demand.

$$X = (I - A)^{-1} Y$$
 (1.2)

The objective of I/O analysis has been achieved if it can be assumed that the inverse $(I-A)^{-1}$, which can be derived from Census data for a particular year and a particular GNP and Final Demand, applies for other years and other Final Demands. Technological change can be handled by modifying the technological coefficient matrix <u>A</u> to correspond to the change.

The I/O framework can also be used to calculate equilibrium relative price levels for all goods. The assumptions behind this derivation are usually that companies set prices to cover the cost of material, labor, and some nominal profit and that the relative price of labor is equal to one. Value added is the economic term that describes the labor costs, depreciation, business taxes, and profits that make up the difference between the selling price of a good and the cost of materials that went into it.

Let $\underline{V} = [v_i]$ where $v_i = v_i$ added per unit sold of the ith sector.

The per unit price p_i of the ith good can be expressed as $p_i = v_i + N_{\substack{i \\ j=1}}^{N} a_{ij} p_j$

Changing to vector notation, the per unit price vector $\underline{P} = [p_i]$ is

$$\underline{P} = \underline{V} + \underline{A}^{\mathsf{T}}\underline{P} \tag{1.3}$$

Solving for prices in terms of value added $\underline{P} = (\underline{I} - \underline{A}^{\mathsf{T}})^{-1} \underline{V} \qquad (1.4)$

This equation makes it very simple to calculate the long term price effects on other commodities of changes in the capital or labor requirements of any one sector. Note that they tell nothing about how rapidly these price changes would propagate through the economy, nor do they indicate how consumers or other industries might react to such price changes. Thus the above equation can be used to explore the price sensitivities of various industries to changes in value added, but it cannot by itself be used to predict the response of the system to these price changes.

1.2.2 Dynamic Input-Output Models

There are many possible formulations of dynamic inputoutput models, but the essential concepts can be presented with a simple two-period example for times t_0 and t_1 . Assume that the same technological coefficient matrix <u>A</u> applies for both periods.

Two conceptual changes are required to modify the static theory of the previous section. First, total final demand \underline{Y} must now consist of \underline{Y}^F = final demand purchases by households and governments and \underline{Y}^I = capital investment purchases by all sectors of the economy:

$$\underline{Y} = \underline{Y}^{F} + \underline{Y}^{I}$$

Second, the capital matrix <u>C</u> must be defined as <u>C</u> = $[c_{ij}]$ where c_{ij} is the marginal capital purchase from sector i by sector j required to expand the capacity of sector j by one dollar of output. Thus if <u>X</u>₁ were the total output in period \mathbf{t}_c and <u>X</u>₁ the total output in period \mathbf{t}_1 , the total new investment required is <u>C</u> (<u>X</u>₁ - <u>X</u>₀). By defining <u>C</u> in terms of marginal capital requirements, difficult problems of defining and measuring capital stocks are avoided.

These relationships are summarized in Figure 1.2. The objective of the model is to find for period $t_1 = total$ output (\underline{X}_1) and total final demand (\underline{Y}_1) given the total output in period $t_0 = (\underline{X}_0)$ and the non-investment final demand in period $t_1 = (\underline{Y}_1^F)$. The model assumes that sectors always operate at 100% capacity so that output can only be increased by capital investment.⁴ The basic equations for this model are:

$$\underline{X}_{1} = (\underline{I} - \underline{A})^{-1} \underline{Y}_{1} = (\underline{I} - \underline{A})^{-1} (\underline{Y}_{1}^{F} + \underline{Y}_{1}^{I})$$
(1.5)
$$\underline{Y}_{1}^{I} = \underline{C} (\underline{X}_{1} - \underline{X}_{0})$$
(1.6)

These equations can easily be solved for total output (X_1) and total final demand (Y_1) :

$$\underline{X}_{1} = (\underline{I} - \underline{A} - \underline{C})^{-1} (\underline{Y}_{1}^{F} - \underline{C} \underline{X}_{0})$$
(1.7)

$$\underline{f}_{1} = \underline{Y}_{1}^{+} + \underline{C} (\underline{X}_{1} - \underline{X}_{0})$$
(1.8)

These equations are easily used to calculate the effect on investment \underline{Y}^{I} and total output \underline{X} of changes in the growth rates of individual components of \underline{Y}^{F} . Various methods are available to assure that total GNP

⁴ Slack variables can be used to modify this assumption but such considerations are not important at this stage.

<u>Two-Period Dynamic Input-Output Model</u>

Given:
$$\underline{X}_{0} = [x_{10}]$$
 where x_{10} = total output of sector i in
period t_{0}
 Y_{1}^{F} = final demand purchases by households and govern-
ment in period t_{1}
 $\underline{C} = [c_{1j}]$ = marginal capital purchases from sector i
by sector j required to increase sector j's output
by one dollar.
 \underline{A} = technical coefficient matrix for both periods t_{0}
and t_{1}
Find: \underline{Y}_{1} = total final demand = $\underline{Y}_{1}^{F} + \underline{Y}_{1}^{I}$, where \underline{Y}_{1}^{I} = invest-
ment purchases in period t_{1}
 \underline{X}_{1} = total output in period t_{1}
Solve: $\underline{X}_{1} = (\underline{I} - \underline{A})^{-1} \ \underline{Y}_{1} = (\underline{I} - \underline{A})^{-1} \ (\underline{Y}_{1}^{F} + \underline{Y}_{1}^{I})$
 $\underline{Y}_{1}^{I} = \underline{C} \ (\underline{X}_{1} - \underline{X}_{0})$
Results:
 $x_{1} = (\underline{I} - \underline{A})^{-1} \ (\underline{Y}_{1}^{F} - \underline{C} - \underline{X}_{1})$

$$\frac{\mathbf{x}_{1}}{\mathbf{Y}_{1}} = \left(\underline{\mathbf{I}} - \underline{\mathbf{A}} - \underline{\mathbf{C}}\right)^{-1} \left(\underline{\mathbf{Y}}_{1}^{\mathsf{F}} - \underline{\mathbf{C}} \ \underline{\mathbf{x}}_{0}\right)$$
$$\frac{\mathbf{Y}_{1}}{\mathbf{Y}_{1}} = \mathbf{Y}_{1}^{\mathsf{F}} + \underline{\mathbf{C}} \left(\underline{\mathbf{x}}_{1} - \underline{\mathbf{x}}_{0}\right)$$

FIGURE1.2

where $GNP^5 = |\underline{Y}_1^F + \underline{Y}_1^I| = |\underline{Y}_1| = \sum_{i=1}^{N} \underline{Y}_i$

and N = numbers of sectors in model.

does not exceed certain limits, but these will be discussed in later chapters. It should also be noted that, whereas the technical coefficient matrix (<u>A</u>) was derived from basic Census data, the capital matrix (<u>C</u>) must be estimated from capital flow data or from engineering data. There are problems with both sources of data that do not arise with technical coefficient calculations. These will be discussed in later chapters.

The model that was actually used for the 1985 projections utilizes the two period analysis described above with the further constraint that the 1985 GNP equal \$1.34 trillion⁶ (1958 dollars). The model is pictorially described in Figure 1.3. Given an initial projection of the 1985 final demand, one iterates around the loop until a final demand vector is obtained with the proper GNP. Convergence can be guaranteed by modifying the scaling factor.

1.2.3 Generalized Input-Output Model

The generalized input-output model used in this study is illustrated in Figure 1.4. It is referred to as "generalized" because

⁵ The magnitude signs represent the vector norm formed by arithmetic addition of the vector elements. They do not represent absolute value signs

⁶ This GNP represents a 4.4% per year growth rate from the BLS projection of the 1980 GNP. It was calculated by excluding any contribution from BEA sectors 84, 85, and 86 (Government Industry, Rest of the World Industry, and the Household Industry respectively). These dummy sectors were excluded because they do not interact with other sectors; they only contribute to GNP.



➡ Equals

| | | | | | |

 $\Sigma_i Y_i =$ \$ 1.34 trillion. 1 Scaling factor is chosen so that $GNP = |\underline{Y}| =$

1.3

LL

<u>م</u>

⊃ c

►----

L



1

MODEL PROPERTIES

- Highly Interconnected Economy ._.
- Quasi-Static Technology Change 5.
- 110 Sectors (Industries) . ന
- Linear 4.
- National 5.

1.4 ш $\boldsymbol{\alpha}$ Þ ശ н Ц

ENERGY-ORIENTED GENERALIZED INPUT-OUTPUT MODEL

- (1) many non-economic variables such as water usage and SO₂ emissions are included in the framework and
- (2) new technologies can be incorporated in it.

The non-economic quantities are referred to as accessory variables and are summarized in the bottom half of Figure 1.4. These are the outputs of the model. They are assumed to be proportional to total output of each sector. For example, let S be the total emissions of SO_2 (or any other accessary variable) by the 1980 economy and let $\underline{E} = [e_k]$ be the vector of coefficients for SO_2 emissions per dollar of total output.

In other words, e_k is the SO_2 emitted per dollar of output of the k-th industry. If <u>X</u> is the total output vector, then the total SO_2 emissions S is the inner product of <u>X</u> and <u>E</u> or

$$S = \underline{E}^{T} \underline{X} = \underline{X}^{T} \underline{E}$$
(1.9)

Similar relationships hold for the other accessory variables.

The boxes in the upper half of Figure 1.4 represent the various means of interacting with the model. These boxes are used to specify the alternative future being investigated. This scenario can include changes in technology and in composition of GNP. Limited price changes can also be handled.

A final demand vector is constructed to represent the conditions of the scenario and the technological and capital coefficients modified to include the amount and kind of new technology that is specified. Once these changes are made, the total outputs (\underline{X}) are calculated in the usual way: $\underline{X} = (\underline{I} - \underline{A})^{-1} \underline{Y}$. The values of the accessory variables are then obtained by simple multiplication as indicated above.

The sectors actually used in the research are summare ized at the end of this chapter in Figure 1.12 and the components of final demand in Figure 1.13. The sectors were chosen to provide at least the 83 order BEA aggregation scheme with further breakdown of major energy supplying, energy consuming, or polluting industries.

1.2.4 Derivation of New Technology Representations

The derivation of technological and capital coefficients for a new technology begins with the engineering cost study. While coefficients derived from an engineering study of an actual operating commercial plant are quite accurate, those derived from a pilot plant study are subject to some uncertainty because of potential problems associated with scaling up plant size. Coefficients based on costs projected from laboratory scale models may be quite uncertain, especially with respect to total capital cost of building such a plant. Attempting to derive coefficients for a process that has not yet been proven feasible in the laboratory (e.g. fusion) can lead to nonsense. There are many "cost" studies of processes that have never been made to work. In addition, economic impact projections based on laboratory feasibility studies are unrealistic because of the long development periods involved (especially in the energy field). For example after two decades, reactors still product only 1% of total electric power. The technologies studied here fall between the laboratory and pilot plant stage so there is some uncertainty about the actual numbers but sensitivity analysis can usually handle this problem.

Another significant characteristic of new technology engineering studies is that the costs are calculated using certain estimation schemes. These estimates detail major cost items like fuel or reactor vessels and then calculate other costs like overhead or piping as percentages of the major cost items. The result is that the larger technical and capital coefficients are more accurate than the smaller ones. While this is a disadvantage of the overall coefficients it is an advantage when calculating economic impacts because the larger impacts are caused by the larger coefficients.

The technological coefficients are derived from the engineering studies by assigning all projected operating costs (purchased material and labor) to the I/O sectors that produced the commodity. These figures were divided by the total yearly output of the proposed plant to convert the dollar flows into new technology coefficients.⁷ A similar procedure was followed for deriving the capital coefficients from the construction cost estimates.

There were a few problems of classification (i.e. which sector produced a certain item like piping), but these were solved by adopting certain conventions. These conventions will be discussed later.

The new technologies were incorporated into the I/O framework using the following scheme. Suppose the old technological process for sector i (e.g. natural gas production) is represented by the technical coefficient vector \underline{A}_i and capital coefficient vector \underline{C}_i^8 . Next let the new technological

⁷ Since I/O tables are in terms of producer costs, transportation and trade markups must be removed from the engineering estimates before converting to **c**oefficients.

⁸ Thus the whole technological coefficient matrix could be represented as the partitioned matrix $\underline{A} = [\underline{A}_1 : \underline{A}_2 : \ldots : \underline{A}_n]$. A similar partition holds for the capital coefficient matrix.

process (e.g. high BTU coal gasification) be \underline{A}_{N} and \underline{C}_{N} . If the new technology is expected to take over a fraction g of the total production of sector i and a fraction h of total capital investment by sector i then the new technical coefficients are

$$\underline{A}_{i}^{t} = (1-g) \underline{A}_{i} + g\underline{A}_{N} \qquad (1.10)$$

where g = fraction of total production supplied by new
 technology and the new technical coefficients
 are

$$\underline{C'}_{i} = (1-h) \underline{C}_{i} + h \underline{C}_{N}$$
(1.11)

where h = fraction of total investment made up of new
 technology

These coefficient column vectors then replace the old ones in the technical and capital coefficient matrices.

1.3 Summary of Results

1.3.1 Impacts of Capital Spending for New Energy Technologies

The new technologies investigated are

- (1) High Btu coal gasification (the Institute of Gas Technology electrothermal Hygas process)
- (2) Low Btu coal gasification (the 1980 Texaco partial oxidation process with hot carbonate scrubbing) and
- (3) Gas turbine topping cycle or combined gas and steam cycle electric generation plant (the 1980 United Aircraft high temperature gas turbine and waste heat boiler steam cycle). This last technology will be referred to as a COGAS plant.

The salient characteristics of these processes are summarized in Figure 1.5. In this and subsequent sections the new technology impacts will be compared to that of a nuclear steam electric generation plant. Nuclear plants were chosen for comparison because they represent a current new technology that is unlikely to change much by 1985. In addition, most readers will be familiar with its capital intensive nature and the projected high growth of nuclear power in the next fifteen years.

This section summarizes the economic impact of capital expenditures for these new technologies. The next two sections will look at impacts from actual operation of the new plants and at price changes caused by higher priced energy.

It is only meaningful to compare plants of approximately the same output capacity, so five trillion BTU/day was selected as the nominal size. This corresponds to approximately 10 high Btu gas plants or 40 low Btu gas plants. Since electricity is a secondary form of energy, 40,000 MW was chosen as the appropriate comparison size because 40,000 MM of COGAS plants requires five trillion Btu/day input energy (in the form of low Btu gas). Consequently 40,000 MW was also used as the comparison size for nuclear plants.

The economic impacts were calculated in a two step process. First the capital coefficients of each new technology and the plant comparison sizes (converted to dollars) were multiplied to obtain a vector (\underline{N}) representing the total investment in each new process, broken down by sectors from which the purchases will be made. Second, the investment vector (\underline{N}) for some particular technology was multiplied by the 1980 inverse coefficients to obtain the vector of total outputs (\underline{X}) caused by that new technology's investment, i.e.

$$\underline{X}_{N} = (\underline{I} - \underline{A})^{-1} \underline{N}$$
(1.12)

New Technologies Investigated

High BTU Coal Gasification (1000 RTU/SCF)

Process:	Electrothermal Hydrogasification
	(Hynas)
Data Source:	Electrothermal Hygas Process -
	Escalated Costs [42]
Originator:	Institute of Gas Technology
Efficiency:	71.7%
Nominal Plant Size:	500 Million SCF/day (90%, load factor)
Nominal Cost:	Plant - \$310-354 million
	Gas -54.8-72.4¢/10 ⁶ Btu

Low BTU Coal Gasification (173 BTU/SCF)

Process:	1980 Texaco Partial Oxidation
	(Hot Carbonate Scrubbing)
Data Source:	Technological and Economic Feasibility
	of Advanced Power Cycles [38]
Originator:	United Aircraft
Efficiency:	87%
Nominal Plant Size:	842 million SCF/day (70% load factor)
Nominal Cost:	Plant -\$27.5 million ²
	Gas - 17.6¢/10 ⁶ Btu

Gas Turbine Topping Cvcle (Combined Gas and Steam Cycle or COGAS)

Process:	1980 High Inlet Temperature (2800°F)
	Turbine with Waste Heat Boiler Steam
	Cycle (Using Low Btu Gas)
Data Source:	Technological and Economic Feasibility
	of Advanced Power Cycles [381
Originator:	United Aircraft
Efficiency:	54.5 ^{%1}
Nominal Plant Size:	1000MW (70% load factor)
Nominal Cost:	Plant - \$94 million
	Electricity – 5.3 mills/kwhr

FIGURE1.5

¹ Only the efficiency of the COGAS cycle. Overall efficiency is obtained by multiplying the two efficiencies.

² Includes working capital.

³ All dollar figures are in 1970 dollars.

These total outputs are the economic impacts of investment in each technology. Figure 1.6 compares the major impacted industries of each new technology to the projected 1980 total output of that industry and to the impact caused by projected total 1980 investment⁹, i.e. if \underline{Y}^{I} is the total 1980 investment, the outputs or impacts \underline{X}^{I} caused by it are $\underline{X}^{I} = (\underline{I}-\underline{A})^{-1} \underline{Y}^{I}$. This latter impact is referred to as investment-related output in the figure.

Low BTU coal gasification has the smallest economic impact of any of the new technologies. This happens primarily because of the comparatively small investment required for processing coal into a low grade gas. Because this gas cannot be shipped long distances very economically¹⁰, it must be consumed near its manufacturing point. One of the best utilizations of the low BTU gas is in the COGAS plant which can take advantage of its high volume, high temperature flow. Thus to calculate the probable total impact of low BTU coal gasification, the two columns in Figure 1.6 for it and the COGAS plant should be added. The resulting numbers are much closer to those for the other two technologies.

¹⁰ It is uneconomical to ship for two reasons: (1) a given diameter pipeline has only one-fifth the energy carrying capacity of natural gas (1000Btu/SCF) when used with low Btu gas (179Btu/SCF); (2) a significant percentage of the total energy content of low Btu gas is in the form of heat which would be lost in a pipeline.

⁹ The impacts of total investment are included because most sectors produce several kinds of products, only a few of which are capital investment goods, e.g. both turbogenerators and outboard motor remote controls are made by the same sector. Since these products often cannot be disaggregated and since they are usually manufactured on different machines, a better measure of the total output of capital goods (productive capacity) is the output sold directly or indirectly to the investment component of final demand. Hence both total output and investment-related output are included in Figure 1.6.

MAJOR INPUSTRIAL OUTPUTS¹ REQUIPED TO DEVELOP 5 TRILLION BTU/DAY² FIGURF 1.6

¢

PROCESS	
ΝFW	
FACH	
USING	
CAPACITY	

Ī

	Projected 1980	Investment	Hiah Btu	Low Rtu		Nuclear
Sector	Total Output	Related ₄ Outputs	Coal Gasification	Coal Gasification	r og a s	Steam Generation
nbing and	1 1 7 5 0	L V C O	700	156	205	1680
iler Makers)	70/11	1420	(5.4% 9.6%)5	(),1,1,0,0%)	(2,1%,3,7%)	(11.4%.20.5%)
ines and						
bines	5457	1844	92	ę	639	1418
rbogenerators)			(1.7%,4.9%)	(5%, 2%)	(11.7%, 34.7%)	(26.0%,79.9%)
eral Industrial						
hinery	10,9223	6041	310	68	68	320
mps, fans)			(2.8'',5.1'')	(D.8°, 1.5°)	(n.8″.1.5″)	(2.9%.5.3%)
ctrical						
us try	16691	8900	142	52	393	404
ipment			(.9°,.1.6″)	(3%,6%)	(2.3%,4.4%)	(2.4%,4.5%)
hine						
đ	5036	1454	18	2 2	41	98
ducts			(.4.1.2")	$(.17^{\circ\prime}3^{\circ\prime})$	(.8°. 2.8°)	(1.9%,6.7%)
n and						
[]	5321	2198	33	20	37	100
ndries			(.67%.1/5%)	(%6. , %7.)	(.7%.1.7%)	(2.9%,4.5%)

 $\frac{1}{A}$ All outputs in millions of 1958 dollars. calculated from $\chi_{N} = (\underline{1} - \Lambda)^{-1} \frac{\gamma_{N}}{M}$ where γ_{N} is the investment.

²5 trillion Btu/day is the equivalent of 10 500 million SCF/day high ^Rtu gas plants or 10 100,000 bbl/day oil refineries or 40 1000MW electric plants.

³See Figure 1.5 for definitions of processes.

 4 Output (\underline{x}^{I}) required to support projected 1980 total investment \underline{y}^{I} , or $\underline{x}^{T} = (I - A)^{-1} \underline{y}^{I}$

⁵The first figure is the percentage of Total Output, the second figure is the percentage of Investment-Related Output.
The numbers presented in Figure 1.6 represent the minimum probable impact of these technologies because they do not take into account any expansion of the transportation (pipelines or transmission lines), distribution, or administration systems. Nor do they include the effects of increased manufacturing capacity required to supply the equipment for the new technologies. This investment would be over and above that indicated in Figure 1.6. In particular, the boiler-makers and turbogenerator manufacturers would have to expand significantly from their 1980 levels to meet the new technology demands. How much they would actually have to expand depends upon whether the new technology represents evolution and replacement of old technology or new markets. This will be discussed further in the section on the integrated 1985 projections.

1.3.2 Impacts of Operating the New Technologies

Operating impacts were calculated for the three new technologies, and nuclear plants were again used as the reference. The three new technologies were:

(1) high Btu coal gasification and

- (2) low Btu coal gasification
- (3) combined COGAS and low Btu goal gasification plant.

This last combination was chosen because it represents the most likely utilization of both processes.

Impacts are again defined as the industrial outputs required to support the direct and indirect requirements of five trillion Btu/day operation of each new technology. Figure 1.7 summarizes the major impacts and compares them to the projected 1980 total output of each sector.

As would be expected the most significant impact is on the coal mining industry. What may be surprising is that the largest other impact of the two new technologies is less than

FIGURE 1.7

MAJOR INDUSTRIAL OUTPUTS¹ REQUIRED TO SUPPORT 5 TRILLION BTU/DAY² OPERATION OF EACH NEW TECHNOLOGY³

Sector	Projected Total 1980 Outputs	High B tu Coal Gasification	Low Btu Coal Gasification	COGAS	Nuclear Steam Generation
Coal Mining	4329	321	374	386	9
Industrial Chemicals (Nuclear Fuel Reprocessing)	34030	16	13	18	985
Maintenance Repair Con- struction	35137	33	33	136	193
Construction & Mining Equip- ment (conveyors & grinders)	7798	13	13	14	2
Stone & Clay Mining	3839	25	1	2	5
Water & Sanitary Services	692 8	20	9	15	6
Mineral Mining	2205	1	1	1	36

¹All Outputs in millions of 1958 dollars, calculated from $\underline{X}_{N} = (\underline{I} - \underline{A})^{1} \underline{Y}_{N}$ where \underline{Y}_{N} is the vector of energy purchases.

²5 trillion Btu/day is the equivalent of 10 500 million SCF/day high Btu gas plants or 10 100,000 bbl/day oil refineries or 40 1000 MW electric generation plants.

 3 See Figure 1.5 for definitions of processes.

1% of the total outputs of the affected industry. For industries not shown in the figure, the impacts were even less. Obviously COGAS electricity generation and coal gasification are relatively isolated sectors of the economy. Their major influence arises from their huge investment requirements as described in the last section.

For nuclear generation, the major affected industry is nuclear fuel reprocessing, which resides in the Industrial Chemicals sector (BEA 27.01). The fact that nuclear fuel reprocessing must be treated like the typical Industrial Chemical product causes a problem because it has considerably different input requirements from the typical industrial chemical. However, since it could not be broken out as a separate industry, it had to be assigned to the Industrial Chemical sector, and treated as a typical chemical. It could not be broken out because it is not a standard sub-industry and separate technical coefficients for it are not available. This assignment results in such obvious anomalies as nuclear steam generation having a large impact on mineral mining. While part of this impact represents legitimate purchases of uranium ore, most of these purchases are the result of treating nuclear fuel reprocessing like a typical industrial chemical. This illustrates the need for care in interpreting the results of an I/O simulation.

1.3.3 Price Changes

It is quite easy to calculate how some particular price change, e.g. doubling the price of oil. will affect other prices in the economy if it is assumed that such price changes are passed onto the customer. This theory was derived in section 1.2. However, in a highly competitive situation, e.g. between plastics, fiberglass, and aluminium. such price increases may

be absorbed because of fear of losing market share. Also there is no data on the time it takes such price changes to propagate through the economy, so the best that can be done is to assume the changes will be complete within two or three years.

The most important criticism of possible price change calculations is that there is no data indicating how any sectors other than Households (personal consumption expenditures) respond to such price changes.¹¹ Without this information the price change calculation is almost useless. The information that would be required for a complete characterization of the long term effects of any price changes would be a matrix for each sector that described how the technological coefficients for that sector would be modified by a change in the price of any commodity (both elasticities and crosselasticities would be needed for each sector for each product and between products). This is an impossible task but, if the more restrictive question of how industries would respond to fuel price changes is asked, then some answers could be derived (assuming that the data is available). It should be possible to obtain elasticities and cross-elasticities for fuels for each sector that would allow one to predict how the technological coefficient would change with different fuel prices.

Since total fuel costs make up only a few percent of the selling price of the average good sales of most products other than fuels would be only slightly affected by changes in fuel prices. Those few sectors, like basic metals and perhaps plastics, that are fuel price sensitive could be investigated

¹¹ A Cornell Study [8] does have time responses and an industrial price elasticity for fuel price changes but the aggregation level (i.e. all industries lumped together) is too great for their results to be useful in this study.

further. This procedure would result in an adequate representation of industrial fuel-price elastic effects. Unfortunately this data is not now available.

However, because Households consume large quantities of oil, gas, and electricity, it is useful to calculate how these purchases might change with fuel price increases. Therefore the price changes resulting from doubling the value added¹² of each of the four energy sectors was calculated. Next, using the University of Maryland's [2] long term price elasticities for Household purchases of these energy sectors, the long term declines in Household consumption were calculated. Figure 1.8 summarizes these results. Note that each row in the figure was calculated separately from all others. The long term price elasticities are still the subject of much discussion [4, 8, 12, 34]

These elasticities are important for policy purposes because they indicate how effective price uses are for curtailing growth in energy demand. When better data becomes available, this type of research may be more fruitful.

1.3.3 1985 Projections

The final exercise projected a series of five alternative 1985 futures involving various energy use growth rates, both with and without new technologies. These will be referred to as the Low, Medium, High, High plus Hygas, and High plus Hygas plus Gas Turbine futures, and are defined below.

¹² Value Added is defined as the labor, depreciation, business taxes, and profits of each sector. The seemingly strange procedure of doubling value added was chosen because pollution controls typically affect labor and capital (depreciation) charges, not material requirements. Thus it makes most sense to double these quantities and test the price sensitivity of the fuel sectors to this change.

FIGURE 1.8

EFFECTS OF DOUBLING VALUE ADDED FOP EVEPGY INDUSTRIES ON PERSONAL CONSUMPTION OF FUELS

Modified ¹ Energy Sector	Relative Price Increase ²	Long-term Price Elasticity ³	Long-term Change in Personal Consumption of Fuel	Personal Consumption of Percentage of Total Consumption
Coal	71.3%	222	-15.8%	2.3%
Refined Oil	28.9%	094	- 2.7%	40.2%
Natural Gas	60.7%	0.0	0.0%	25.4%
Electricity	78/6%	214	-16.8% ⁵	25.9%

- ¹Each row is associated with a different case that entails doubling the value added of the indicated industry only.
- ²This number multiplied by the actual dollar price of the energy source gives it new dollar price increase.
- ³Calculated using the University of Maryland's long-term personal-consumption price-elasticities for each fuel.
- ⁴Industry (including electric utilities and commercial establishments) and government are the other consuming sectors besides households (personal consumption).
- ⁵If Halvorsen's [22] residential price elasticity (-1.1) is used, this number becomes -89.4% The Cornell report [8] gives similar results.

All of the projections used the 1980 technical coefficient matrix with some modifications of the energy sectors. The investment component of final demand was recalculated for each projection using the 1975 Battelle capital matrix modified slightly for the new technologies. The initial final demand projection for each alternative differed <u>only</u> in the amount of oil, natural gas, and electricity purchases.

The medium energy use growth rate future assumes a continuation of the 1970-80 final demand growth patterns and no change in industrial technology from 1980.

The high energy use future reflects a 4% higher final demand (than the Medium future) for oil, natural gas, and electricity and increased industrial consumption (reflected in slight increases in the energy rows of the technical coefficient matrix). These changes assume increased air conditioning and electric heat, worse gasoline mileage and longer yearly driving distances. All of these projections assume that there will <u>not</u> be a supply limitation on natural gas and that the same domestic to foreign crude and natural gas ratios apply in 1985 that held in 1980.

The low energy use future involved 6% lower final demand (than the Medium future) for oil, natural gas, and electricity and better conversion efficiency for electricity conversion and transportation. Figure 1.9 summarizes these assumptions. Two alternative high energy growth futures were also investigated. The High plus Hygas future included the introduction of high BTU coal gasification (Hygas) while the High plus Hygas plus Gas Turbine future included Hygas and the gas turbine topping cycle (supported by low BTU coal gasification). These technology modifications are described in Figure 1.10.

F I G U R E 1.9 1980-1985 Modifications

		Medium energy	HIGH ENErgy
Technical	Standard 1980 (BLS)	Standard 1980 (BLS)	Standard 1980 (BLS)
Coefficients	coefficients used except	coefficients used except	coefficients used except
	(1) 1980 electric util-	(1) 1980 electric util-	(1) 1980 electric utility
	ity vector of Istvan	ity of Istvan [27] sub-	vector of Istvan [27]
	[27] substituted for	stituted for 62.01	substituted for 68.01
	68.01	column	column
	<pre>(2) Electric conversion</pre>		(2) Industrial electric
	efficiency increased by		and qas usage increased
	1.4% for all fuels!		6.75 43
	(3) Conversion efficien-		((3) Industrial usage of
	cy of buses, trolleys,		plastics [28] and rubber
	and taxis		[32] increased 4.5%4
	(65.02) increased by		
	1% for oil ²		
[nitia]	Projection of 1980 final	Projection of 1980 final	Projection of 1980 final
final 5	demand (104 order with 5	demand at 1970-30 growth	demand at 1970-80 growth
Demand	components) at 1970-80	rate of invididual	rate of individual ele-
	growth rate of individual	elements	ments except
	elements, except	Tautot twost accoloulated	(1) consumption of oil,
	<pre>(1) consumption of oil,</pre>	(roo tot)	gas, and electricity
	electricity, and gas		increased 4%6
	reduced 6%5		
	Investment recalculated		Investment recalculated
	(see text)		(see text)

¹Technical coefficients reduced by 4° while envineering efficiency changed from 34% to 35,4°. 2 Technical coefficients reduced by 4% while enqineering efficiency changed from 25% to 26% .

 3 Technical coefficients of all industries increased by 6.75 lpha for electricity which is half of the projected 1970-80 rate of channe.

⁴Technical coefficients of all industries increased by 4.5° for plastics and rubber. which is half of the projected 1970-80 rate of change.

 5 Final demand for electricity, gas and oil reduced by 6^{lpha} corresponding to more efficient cars. appliances, and furnaces.

 6 Final demand for electricity, gas, and oil increased by a^lpha corresponding to more travel, air conditioning and second homes.

FIGURE 1.10

1985 NEW TECHNOLOGY MODIFICATIONS

	Capital	Operating
Hygas (Coal Gasification) ¹	25% of new capacity (gas) additions will be in form of coal gasification.	5% of natural gas demand supplied by coal gasification
Gas Turbine Topping Cycle (combined with Low Btu coal gasifi- cation) ²	50% of fossil gener- ation (15% of total generation) capac- ity additions will be added in form of gas turbine topping cycle.	38% of fossil gener- ation (23% of total generation) will be by gas turbine topp- ing cycle.

¹ High + Hygas Future: High Future is modified by the above addition of High BTU coal gasification (the IGT Hygas process).

High + Hygas + Gas Turbine Future: High Future is modified by the addition of both new technologies indicated above. Note that low BTU coal gasification is used in conjunction with the gas turbine.

The projection procedure aimed at a GNP of \$1.34 trillion (1958 dollars)¹³ in 1985 for all five alternative futures. This was accomplished with a three-part balancing process using the model of Figure 1.3.

First, the investment requirements for each of the initial final demand projections were calculated and added to the final demand vectors. This resulted in significantly different values of total GNP (between \$1.29 and \$1.43 trillion) because the alternative investments were quite sensitive to the rate of energy growth and to the introduction of new technology.

Second, these final demands were scaled (by a constant factor applied to purchases of each sector) so that they summed to the proper GNP. The required investments were recalculated with the result that the new GNP's were now less than \$1.34 trillion because the investment was not as great as in the initial projection. This occurred because the scaling procedure changed the 1980-85 growth rates for each industry and consequently the required investment changed also.

Third, some linear combination of the scaled and initial projections for each future was chosen so that when investment was recalculated and added to final demand the total had the proper GNP. The proper combination or weighting factor could be calculated analytically and eliminated any convergence problems. This resulted in a balanced projection for each future.

The major assumption in this procedure was that all sectors had the same income elasticity so that a constant scaling factor could be applied to all purchases of final demand. This is a bad assumption for such industries as food and kindred products, but since the conclusions of this study are based on a differential analysis of the various projections

¹³ This GNP represents a 4.4% growth rate from the projected 1980 GNP.

and not on the absolute numbers involved, this assumption is not a major problem.

The salient points of the various balanced 1985 projections are summarized in Figure 1.11. As is indicated in Figure 1.11. total investment becomes a larger percentage of the 1985 GNP as energy use increases from low to high. The introduction of high Btu coal gasification further increases investment while the introduction of the gas turbine topping cycle (with or without low Btu coal gasification) decreases it. The output of coal mining is seen to increase dramatically with the introduction of coal gasification. The three illustrated capital producing industries (Plumbing, etc.) respond to different energy use growth rates more than total investment as a whole. Total employment is approximately constant, but there is no indication of how the required skills might change. Certainly more people will be employed in construction and in the capital goods industries for the higher energy growth rate scenarios. Air pollution and steel usage behave as expected. The large decrease in water usage caused by the introduction of the gas turbine topping cycle results from the fact that the gas turbines are air cooled and that the conversion efficiency is higher than the standard generation plant.

The most important fact concerning these balanced-projections is not found in Figure 1.11. The non-investment components of the balanced final demand projections were within 0.3% of the initial projections. In other words, only a very slight change in personal consumption and government expenditures was enough to balance the investment demands of the rapidly growing energy sectors. It seems unlikely that most sectors would notice a difference in sales of 0.3% over a five year period.

FIGURE 1.11

BALANCED 1985 PROJECTIONS

(1958 dollars)

	(195	a doilars	;)	High	High +
				Pluc	
	Low	Medium	High	Hygas	Gas Turbine
GNP (billions)	\$1340.8	\$1343.0	\$1339.0	\$1340.9	\$1341 0
PCE (% of GNP)	70.2%	70.0%	69.6%	69.3	69.4%
Investment (%)	16.6	16.8	17.5	17.7	17.5
Government (%)	13.8	13.8	13.5	13.6	13.6
Total Output					
(billions)				2	
Coal Mining	\$ 5.0	\$ 5.1	\$ 5.2	\$ 6.5	\$ 6.6
Plumbing, Structural					
Metals	18.2	18.5	19.3	10.0	19.7
Engines & Turbines	7.5	7.6	7.9	2.0	۶.0
Lonstruction Equip-	11 1	11 5	10 5	10.0	10.0
ment	11.1	11.5	12.5	12.9	12.6
Private Employment					
(millions)	99.2	99.2	99.2	99.2	99.2
Air Pollution					
(million tons)	10.0	10 0	50.0	50.0	
Particulates	48.0	49.0	50.0	50.2	50.1
SOo	91.7 75-2	92.2	92.3	92.3	92.1
50Z	122 7	123 0	12/ 9	12/ 9	124.2
NO	30 4	31 8	32 6	32 6	32 5
	50.1	51.0	52.0	52.0	52.5
Steel Usage	104.0	105 0	100.1	100 0	100 0
(million tons)	194.0	195.0	198.1	199.6	198.6
Water Usage					
(trillion gallons)					
Gross	278.1	280.6	286.7	291.2	266.5
Cooling	126.0	128.3	134.3	137.8	117.8
Energy Use					
(1013 BTU)	2/ 0	25.2	26.0	20 5	20 5
011	43 0	20.0 17 9	44 5	ΔΛ Δ	
Gas	46.1	46.7	48.5	48.5	48.2
Electricity	33.0	33.8	34.9	34.8	34.8

If most sectors were growing at the same 4.4% per year that GNP is projected to grow at, a decrease of 0.3% in sales would decrease the growth rate to 4.35%, hardly a significant change.

1.4 Conclusions

The major conclusions of this study are the following:

- Total investment in general and capital good industries in particular (primarily turbogenerator manufacturers, boiler makers, and construction equipment manufacturers) are quite sensitive to energy use growth rates (especially electricity).
- 2. Introduction of high Btu coal gasification will aggravate the demand for investment funds and introduction of the second generation gas turbine topping cycle (with or without low Btu coal gasification) will decrease the demand. These technologies will have their major impacts on the industries listed above.
- 3. Slight changes in the overall growth rates of total personal consumption expenditures and government spending result in large fluctuations in total investment.
- 4. If high energy growth continues and if investment is to remain within its historical limits as a percentage of GNP, energy investment will become a larger and larger part of total investment.
- 5. While interest rates are assumed to be the balancing mechanism between supply of and demand for investment funds, the very act of saving more money (which is induced by higher interest rates) means that less can be spent on consumption goods. This in turn

lessens the demand for investment funds because the growth rates of consumption sectors are lower. This indirect effect of interest rates on investment has been little studied but may be quite important.

The policy implications of these results are quite import-Different sectors of the economy respond differently to ant. changes in the interest rate. Housing construction seems to be particularly sensitive to interest rates. Knowledge in advance of what investment demands are likely to be provides additional information for planning government spending and taxes. Certainly more work on consumer and industrial response to interest rate changes needs to be performed. There are also questions of whether enough skilled construction labor will be available to build all of the new required energy facilities. Manpower training programs can be developed if the need for such labor can be predicted long enough in advance. The generalized I/Ω model is, in fact, applicable to all of the above questions, either in pointing out the need for policy or in analyzing the effects of new policy. While the major government policy variable represented in the generalized input output framework is government spending (broken down by sectors), the outputs provide insights into the possible effects of other types of policy decisions like Manpower training.

The input-output models are not generally used the way standard simulation models are. While they can be used to make point predictions of future events, their major use is in comparative analysis. The basic model provides what might be called Nominal Futures against which the modified futures (changes in technology or final demand) can be compared. This comparative analysis often results in conclusions that are not as sensitive to particular assumptions as point predictions would be. Of course, sensitivity sutdies are still an important point of any research.

It is the ability to incorporate engineering studies into the generalized input-output framework that negates many previous objections to input-output analysis. Engineering studies can be used to determine how technology is likely to change if relative price changes or if some fuel becomes unavailable or how technology may improve with time. More work is needed to improve technology forecasting but the potential payoff is great.

Three areas stand out now as both important from the policy decision point of view and as areas where generalized input-output analysis can provide some unique capabilities. Obviously more techniques than just input-output would be needed to answer the whole guestion, but input-eutput will play the central integrating role in these studies. These areas are:

> (1) Impacts of Capital Expenditures for Environmental Quality. There is a question of whether the 1975 air quality standards could be met (especially by the electric utilities) even if the technology were now available because of capacity constraints on the production of such equipment. What is the best that can be done environmentally at reasonable cost? This study would require knowledge of the production capacity of the many sectors of the economy, and the various options (like fuel switching or SO₂ control) available to meet the different levels of emissions standards. The study could be performed at the national level but regional studies would be more useful. This would entail obtaining all of the above information in regional form and the use of regional I/O tables which are now available [36].

- (2) Impacts of Multiple Investment Programs (e.g. Energy and Pollution Controls). Both the government and industry have goals which entail large investment programs as in the industries attempts to meet energy demand and the government attempts to control pollution. Generalized input-output analysis is valuable for examining the combined impacts of these various programs on different sectors of the economy. This is another form of bottleneck analysis and requires information similar to that described above.
- (3) Impacts of Alternative Methods of Meeting Oil and Gas Demand. Two extreme cases are possible: (a) the U.S. can rely on a massive oil and gas import program to meet its growing energy needs or (b) the U.S. can stimulate oil and gas development internally. The economy, in terms of employment and sizes of various industries, will be quite different in these two cases. A first approximation to answering these questions could be obtained by ignoring the effects of any price changes in oil or gas products and focusing on the different final demands and industrial structures that might result.

These are important questions and the techniques developed in this study can help to answer parts of them. More research is needed to expand the applications of generalized inputoutput analysis, but hopefully this report has shown that there is a value to such research.

1.5 Organization

The methodology of transforming engineering data into the I/O format and using it as described in Chapter 2. The results begin in Chapter 2 where impacts of capital expenditures for the new technologies are calculated. Operating and price impacts

are then presented in Chapter 4. These results are then integrated in Chapter 5, where a series of high, medium, and low energy growth futures are projected for 1985. Final conclusions and recommendations are made in Chapter 6. The Appendices contain detailed derivations of the new technology coefficients, background information on the economy, energy use, and the environment and a summary of data sources for the model. The model itself is fully documented in Peference [28].

TGURE 1.12	IT-DUIPUT MODEL SECTORS	INDUSTRY NAME	Standard 104 Industries	Livestock & livestock products	Other agricultural products	Forestry & fishery products	Agriculural, jorestry * fishery services Iron & ferroallov ores mining	Nonferrous metal ores mining	Coal mining	Crude petroleum & natural gas	Stone & clay mining & quarrying	Chemicals & fertilizer mineral mining	New construction	Maintenance ? repair construction	Ordnance & accessories	Food & kindred products	Grain milling	Tobacco manufactures	<pre>Broad & narrow fabrics, yarn & thread mills</pre>	Miscellaneous textile goods & floor coverings	Appare I	Miscellaneous fabricated textile products	Lumber & wood products. except containers	Mooden containers	Household furniture	Other furniture & fixtures	Pulp mills	Paper & allied products except containers & boxes	Paperboard containers 🎙 boxes	Printing % publishing	Industrial chemicals	Fertilizers	Agricultural and miscellaneous chemicals
	GENERALIZED INP	BEA CLASSIFICATION (ISP)		1.0	2.0		5.0	6.0	7.0	8.0	0.6	10.0	11.0	12.0	13.0	14.01-13, 14.18-32	14.14-14.17	15.0	16.0	17.0	18.0	19.0	20.0	21.0	22.0	23.0	24.01	24.02-24.07	25	26	27.01	27.02	27.03-17.04
		SECTOR NUMBER			00	50	t IJ	9	7	ω,	ი (10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	0 0 1 7	610	20	21	2.2	23	24	25	26	27	28	29	30	31

JUSTRY NAME	stics % synthetic materials	ugs, cleaning & toilet preparations	nts & allied products	roleum refining & related industries	/ing mixtures & blocks	shalt telts & coagings	bber & miscellaneous plastic products these traster & trainitated losthese readinate	TUTET LANNING ~ INCUSTING TEACHET PROGUCUS	JUWEAR A OTHER LEATHER PROAUCTS	iss a diass produces Dent hydraulin		me & clay products	mary iron & steel manufacturing	on <i>R</i> isteel foundries	on and steel forgings	imary nonferrous metals manufacturing	cellaneous non-ferrous metals	containers	iting, plumbing ? fabricated structural metal products	iting equipment except electric	ew machine products, bolts, nuts, etc. & metal stamping	ner fabricated metal products	jines & turbines	°m machinerv and equipment	ıstruction, mininq, oil field machinery. equipment	terials handling machinery & equipment	talworking machinery & equipment	cial industry machinery % equipment •	ieral industrial machinery & equipment	chine shop products	rice, computing & accounting machines ص	vice industry machines	rigeration machinery Artric transmission & distribution aquinment %	lectrical industrial apparatus
INI	Ы	ב ו ה	ר ה היים ביים	e d c	ה ה ב	AsA	5 (¥ _	יי עו			ר. בי ל	s S t	ь Б	Ιr	I L	ير م	Ē	Че	9 He	Нe	SC	0 t I	й Ш	ы Ц	Col	נט 2.	e X	Spe	6ei	Ma	ίμ Ο (Ι	S C C	л ц С	ູ່ຍ
BEA CLASSIFICATION (ISP)	28.0	29.J	50.07	31.01	31.02	31.()3 22.0	32.0		04°C	36.01	36.13	36.02-36.12,36.14-36-25	37.01	37.02	37.03-37.04	38.01-38.04	38.05-38.14	39.0	40.01-40.02,40.04-40.05	40.03	41.01	42.0	43.0	44.0	45.0	46.0	47.0	48.0	49.0	50.0		52.01-52.02,52.04-52.05	52.U3 53 D	• • •
SECTOR NUMBER	32	() (() () () () () () () () () () () () () (4 L	35	010	\ \ \	ο Ω ο Ω	n () <	- - -	75	43	44	45	46	47	48	49	50	51	52	53	54	55	56	57	58	59	60	61	62	63	60 4 r	00 99	5

			es			54
INDUSTRY NAME	Household appliances Electric lighting & wiring equipment Radio, television & communication equipment Electronic components & accessories Miscellaneous electric machinery, equipment & supplies	Motor ventcies & equipment Aircraft & parts Other transportation equipment Professional, scientific & controlling instruments & supplies	Ortical, ophthalmic, & bhotographic equipment & suppli Miscellaneous manufacturing Pailroad transportation Local, suburban & interurban highway passenger trans.	Truck transportation Water transportation Air transportation Miscellaneous transportation Communications except radio % television broadcasting Radio % TV broadcasting	Electric utilities Gas utilities Mater & sanitary services Wholesale trade Retail trade Finance & insurance Real estate & rental Hotels & lodring places: personal & repair services, except automobile repair Business services Research & development	Automobile repair & services Amusements Medical, education services & nonprofit organizations
BEA CLASSIFICATION (ISP)	54.0 55.0 56.0 58.0 58.0	. 59.0 60.0 61.0 62.0	63.0 64.0 65.01 65.02,79.01	65.03 65.04 65.05 65.05 66.0 67.0	68.01,78.02,79.02 68.03 68.03 69.01 70.0 7.10 72.0 73.0 74.0	75.0 76.0 77.0
SECTOR NUMBER	67 68 710 71	73 74 75	76 78 79	8888 83 84 85 85 85 85 85 85 85 85 85 85 85 85 85	00000000000000000000000000000000000000	9 6 08 7

INDUSTRY NAME Federal government enterprises State & local government enterprises Imports	business travel, entertainment & ditus Office supplies Scrap, used & secondhand goods	Dummy Industries	Fossil steam generation Nuclear steam generation Hydro-generation Other generation Transmission Distribution General administrative services Personal automobile use Space conditioning	New Technologies	Coal Gasification Gas-turbine-tonping cycle
BEA CLASSIFICATION (ISP) 78.0 79.0 80.0	81.0 82.0 83.0 84-86 (not included)		These sectors do not have ISP classification		
SECTOR NUMBER 99 100 101	103		105 106 1110 1111 113		114 115

FIGURE 1.13

FINAL DEMAND SECTOR

Sector Number	BEA (ISP) Classification	Sector Name
1 (105) ¹	96.60	Personal Consumption Expenditures (PCE)
2 (106)	96.70, 96.80	Gross Private Domestic Investment (GPDI)
3 (107)	96.90	Net Exports
4 (108)	97.10, 97.20	Federal Government Purchases
5 (109)	98.60-98.90	State and Local Government Purch- ases
6 (110)	99.02	Total Final Demand

¹ These numbers apply if final demand components are listed sequentially after the main 104 industries.

- Chapter 2 Methodology: New Technologies and Generalized Input-Output Analysis
 - 2.1 What is Input-Output Analysis?
 - 2.1.1 Methods of Representing Economic Activity

Ever since the first two cavemen got together to barter berries for meat, man has been interested in representing economic activity in some form or another. The type of representation that he has used depended upon the question he wanted to answer. For example, the forecast macroeconomic variables of GNP growth and interest rate provide a good barometer of average stock market behavior. Or the microeconomic theory of the firm and general equilibrium help to explain Adam Smith's Invisible Hand whereby the maximum social "good" is attained by individuals pursuing their own interests. Purpose determines the usefulness of any of these representation techniques.

2.1.2 Input-Output Analysis

The object of input-output analysis is to represent in detail the interactions between the various industries and services that make up the U.S. economy. This form of representation is quite useful for forecasting industrial demand in a manner consistent with growth of the economy as a whole. It is also very useful in policy planning studies at the federal or regional level, where decision makers much be cognizant of the detailed impacts of alternative programs.

The heart of input-output analysis is the interindustry flow table that traces the flow of goods between sectors of the economy on their way to the final consumer. Figure 2.1 contains an 8-sector flow table for the U.S. economy in 1958.

FIGURE 2.1

Eight Sector Input-Output Table^a for 1958 (millions of 1947 dollars)

				Sec	tor ^b				Final	Gross domestic
Sector	-	5	3	4	5	9	٢	8	demand	output
1 Motoriale	8 565	8.069	8.843	3.045	1,124	276	230	3,464	3,994	37,608
1. Matchals	1 505	6.996	6.895	3,530	3,383	365	219	2,946	19,269	45,100
	80	39	5	429	5,694	7	376	327	39,348	46,322
3. CONSULUCIUM 4. Transportation of & utilities	666	1.048	120	9.143	4,460	228	210	2,226	22,625	41,059
4. I raispoi tauon eq. ex unines	4 773	4 488	8.325	2.729	29,671	1,733	5,757	14,756	137,571	209,404
5. Services & u alls.	0110	36	640	1.234	165	821	60	6,717	- 653	11,199
o. Mining	506	6	180	-	2,352		18,091	26,529	8,327	55,992
/. Agriculture, etc.	5 3 1 5	1 895	2.993	1.071	13,941	434	6,096	46,338	82,996	161,080
	14 097	225 66	18.320	19.877	148.614	7,344	24,923	57,777		313,475
value auueu Total inputs	37,608	45,100	46,322	41,059	209,404	11,199	55,992	161,080	313,475	921,240

* Each entry tells the volume of sales by the sector named at the left to the sector numbered at the top.

^b The sector numbers across the top correspond to the sectors numbered and named in the table.

Source: Carter [6], p. 7

Obviously with only 8 sectors in the whole economy, industries must be highly aggregated. Much more detailed tables have been prepared: the Bureau of Labor Statistics has gone as high as 450 sectors, while the standard Office of Business Economics tables are published at 365 order.

From a national income or GNP point of view, a decline of \$100 million in automobile production combined with offsetting increases of \$50 million each in bicycle production and mass transit usage produces no net charge. Obviously the affected industries do not consider the situations equivalent. This is the gap that input-output analysis fills. As the economy becomes more complex and as economic interdependencies grow, input-output analysis becomes more important. Fortunately this coincides with many recent developments that extend the usefulness and timeliness of input-output data. Traditionally the time lags involved in the preparation of the tables from census data forced economists to rely on tables that were five or more years old. The use of annual surveys (not censuses) to update the tables has brought current data one step closer. In addition, the Interagency Growth Project of the federal government has begun to project input-output tables ten to fifteen years into the future to show what the economy may look like then. [48, 49, 50, 51]. See Yan [55] for an excellent introduction to I/O analysis.

This report documents the first use of input-output analysis as a tool for new technology assessment. Using data from engineering studies, such new industries as coal gasification or such new technologies as the gas turbine topping cycle were directly incorporated into the I/O framework. The basic economic information in the flow tables was also augmented with a variety of environmental indicators, such as SO_2 emissions and water usage. To perform this task, input-output representations of both the capital and operating requirements of the new industries or processes had to be developed. The next section describes this process in detail.

2.2 Technological Coefficients

2.2.1 Historical Derivation

Referring to Figure 2.1, the question can be asked: "What would be the input requirements for each industry if each industry produced only one unit of output?" In other words, what is the fractional input requirement per unit of output for each industry¹⁴? This is a very simple calculation that only involves dividing each entry in a column by the total output of the industry that column rep-So far all the operations and the data have direct resents. ties to basic census data and cannot really be disputed. The leap between input-output data and input-output analysis involves the assumption that the same fixed proportions of input requirements that held during the Census also hold at other levels of output. It is this linear, fixed-proportions assumption that allows What-if types of questions to be answered. Other assumptions involving the relationship between inputs and outputs could be made, but this linear one is simple and has some empirical validity. For some industries such as farming, where the output is determined as much by the weather as by other material inputs, this assumption may not be very good, but nevertheless, it is used.

It is important to notice that in deriving the input requirement coefficients, the process went from flows to coefficients. In attempting to project new technology's impacts on the economy, the opposite approach must be used. That is, the input requirements are first determined and then future flows are calculated. The next section discusses the actual derivation of the coefficients.

¹⁴ Economists refer to these input requirements per unit output for each industry as technological coefficients. This terminology will be adopted throughout the rest of the text.

2.2.2 Derivation of Technological Coefficients for New Technologies

The process of deriving technological coefficients for new technologies is best explained using an example. The example we shall use is taken from a report by the Institute of Gas Technology (IGT) [42]. This report describes a 500 billion BTU/day gasification process that operates via hydrogasification and electrothermal gasification of lignite. This particular report specifies an MHD power cycle as the primary energy producer to run the plant. Other reports in the IGT series have specified other power cycles [43]. This example was used because of its ready availability. Its use does not imply that it is or is not the most likely future gasification process.

Figure 2.2 describes the components of the price of pipeline quality gas from such a process. Figure 2.3 lists 10 sectors in our hypothetical economy (not including the households or value-added sector). The construction of technical coefficients for coal gasification involves transforming the pie chart of Figure 2.2 into a chart where all purchases are from one of the eleven sectors in the model. Obviously, these eleven sectors are being used for illustrative purposes only. The model actually used in this study had 110 sectors, with manufacturing especially broken up into much more detail. (See Figure 1.11).

A first pass at this process appears in Figure 2.4. Supplies are assumed to be 15% of Maintenance and Insurance 10% of Local Taxes. In this figure, all purchased commodities or services are assigned to the sector that manufactures or supplies them. Retail trade is ignored in this round. For example, catalysts and chemicals are assumed to be purchased directly from the chemical manufacturing sector even though they may have been purchased from a local distributor.

COMPONENTS OF PIPELINE GAS PRICE



Source: Tsaros [42], p. 67

FIGURE 2.3

HYPOTHETICAL TEN-SECTOR ECONOMY

Number	Sector Name
1	Agriculture, Forestry, and Fishing
2	Mining
3	Construction
4	Nondurable Manufacturing (Food Processing, Textiles, etc.)
5	Chemicals, Petroleum Refining
6	Durable Manufacturing
7	Transportation, Communications, Utilities
8	Wholesale and Retail Trade
9	Finance, Insurance, Real Estate
10	Other Services
11	Value Added
	a. Labor (wages, salaries)
	b. Investors (interest and dividends)
	c. Capital Depreciation
	d. Government (state, local, Federal taxes)



The convention followed in input-output analysis is that wholesale and retail trade do not purchase any goods for resale. Instead, the purchaser is shown as having bought any particular good directly from the manufacturer at the producer's price (i.e., what the manufacturer receives from a wholesale buyer) and paying the trade margin or markup directly to the wholesale and retail trade sector. Thus any transaction is recorded as two separate entries, one to the manufacturing sector and one to the trade sector.

Transportation charges are handled similarly to trade margins. The purchaser is shown as paying the transportation charges directly to the transportation sector. Figure 2.5 applies these concepts to the IGT example. Here 25% of the price of lignite is assumed to be transportation charges. No trade margin for lignite purchases is included because the company is assumed to buy directly from the mine. Supplies and catalysts and chemicals are assumed to have a 30% trade margin and a 10% transportation margin.

All that remains now is to collect and sum all corresponding items. This result is displayed in Figure 2.6.

What we have referred to as technological coefficients in this paper and in the I/O literature might more properly be called operating input coefficients. Technological coefficients is clearly a misnomer since only in the crudest sense could these coefficients be said to represent the technology of the industry. There certainly is no danger of revealing trade secrets from this approach. The operating input coefficients are much more analogous to the ingredients list in a cooking recipe. By combining all of these inputs in some artful way, a car, transistor, etc., results.



	GASIFICATION
2.6	FOR COAL
FIGURE	COEFFICIENTS
	TECHNOLOGICAL

Industry Number	Sector Name	Technological Coefficient
1	Agriculture, Forestry, and Fishing	0.0
2	Mining	0.2459
e	Construction	0.0
4	Nondurable Manufacturing (Food Processing, Textiles, etc.)	0.0
2	Chemicals, Petroleum Refining	0.0092
9	Durable Manufacturing	0.0097
7	Transportation, Communications, Utilities	0.0851
8	Wholesale and Retail Trade	0.0095
6	Finance, Insurance, Real Estate	0.0095
10	Other Services	0.0
11	Value Added	0.6311

Especially when dealing with new technologies such as coal gasification, there are many competing processes that perform the same function or yield the same product. In developing the technological coefficients to represent such technology, it is important to make sure that the coefficients are representative of all the processes or if this cannot be done, to be sure that any conclusions from such a study are not sensitive to the exact process chosen.

2.3 Capital Coefficients

2.3.1 Historical Development

Capital coefficients describes the capital equipment purchases necessary to build a new plant for some industry. There are a number of problems associated with attempting to derive capital coefficients from historical data, not the least of which is the rapidly inflating cost of capital equipment. Does one look at replacement cost or original cost? Does human capital, such as knowledge in an engineer's head, or patent rights (such as Xerox or Polaroid hold) enter into the numbers? Does one look at the best new technology or the average technology for any given process?

Fortunately these questions do not arise when one is concerned with the economic impacts of building new technology from scratch at one point in time. The next section discusses this.

2.3.2 Capital Coefficients for New Technology

The process involved in deriving capital coefficients is quite similar to that for the technological coefficients. The basic starting point is the engineering design study. We shall continue using the IGT coal gasification example. Figure 2.7



INVESTMENT BREAKDOWN FOR PIPELINE GAS PLANT

Source: Tsaros [42] p.65 F I

2.7

ш

∝

ก ย illustrates the type of pie chart obtained from the engineering study. This is not very informative for our purposes, but Figure 2.8, taken from the same source, provides a breakdown of equipment and installation costs for the various parts of the process. The numbers in parentheses are the fraction of total fixed investment that each entry represents before trade and transportation margins are taken out. The engineering study contains many more detailed tables than this. For example, Figure 2.9 gives a detailed description of the equipment required for the lignite drying section of the plant. The basic strategy for the derivation of capital coefficients then is to assign each piece of equipment to its producing industry; remove the transportation and trade margins; allocate construction, insurance, engineering, interest, etc., charges; and divide the total purchases from each section by the total cost of the plant. The procedure yields a vector whose elements sum to 1.0 and which can be used to allocate each dollar spent on coal gasification plants to the respective industry of origin.

From this basic percentage capital distribution vector, the capital coefficient vector can be found by multiplying by the capital/output ratio that describes the dollars of capital investment in plant per dollar of product output from the plant. This is calculated easily by dividing the capital cost of a new plant by the value of its yearly output.

These are the procedures that were followed to derive capital and technological coefficients for all the various new energy technologies that are discussed later. Detailed derivations of the coefficients and the assumptions behind them are found in the Appendices.
F I G U R E 2.8 INVESTMENT SUMMARY

500 Billion BTU/Day Pipeline Gas from Lignite

		Bare Cost	Fraction	
Section	Process Equipment, S	Installed, §	of Total	
Lignite Storage and Peclaiming	1.710.000 (.007) ⁵	3.420.000	(.015)	
Lignite Grinding and Drying	5,864,000 (.026)	11.728.000	(120)	
Slurry Preparation	1,652,700 (.007)	4 958 000	(.022)	
Hydroqasification	35,681,700,(.156)	68,887,000	(302)	
Prepurification I	$4,767,200^{1}(.021)$	8,340,000	(1037)	
CO Shift	1,913,5005(.008)	3,587,000	(.016)	
Prepurification II	4,130,000,(.018)	7,888,000	(.035)	
Methanation, Drying	4,117,500 ⁴ (.018)	6,706,000	(.029)	
Offsite Equipment	(.337)	86,144,000	(.378)	
Subtotal, Bare Cost		201,658,000	(.884)	
Contractor's Overhead & Profit		15,588,000	('UGR)	
Subtotal		217,146,000	(.952)	
Interest During Construction		10,862,000	(.048)	
Total Fixed Investment		228,108,000	(1.000)	
Working Capital		7,085,000	(.031)	
Total Capital Investment		235,193,000	(1.031)	
¹ Includes \$121	,500 tower packing (.0005)			
² Includes \$240	,000 initial catalyst char	ge (.001)		
³ Includes \$372	,000 tower packing plus in	itial zinc oxide	and carbon (.002)	-
~				

71

 $\mathsf{S}_{\mathsf{N}\mathsf{u}\mathsf{m}\mathsf{b}\mathsf{e}\mathsf{r}\mathsf{s}}$ in parentheses are fractions of total fixed investment

⁴Includes \$1,811,000 initial catalyst charge (.00^R)

Fauj nmen t	Describtion		Total Equipment
Crusher Faad Honnar	600-ton capacity hopper, ½ hr. residence time 35 ft x 35 ft x 20 ft x ½ in thick:	39,000 (2) ¹	78,000
	60 ⁰ slope of bottom cone		
Grinder-Dryer Feed Hopper	600-ton capacity feed hopper, ½ hr resi- dence time, 35 ft x 35 ft x 20 ft x ½ in. with 6-60 ⁰ cones	45,000 (2)	000,06
Crusher	Precrusher hammer mill to crush 5 in x 0 mined lignite to 1½ in. size; 1159 tons per hour capacity, 500 hp motor	50,000 (2)	100,000
Grinder-Dryer	Williams 100-in: roller mill dryer to grind and dry 1.5 in. lignite at 35% moisture to -10 + 100 size at 13% moisture, 189 tons per hour of feed to give 135 tons per hour of product	433,000 (12)	5,196,000
Crushed Lig- nite Conveyor	Tube conveyor, 30-in tube, 48-in. belt, 500 ft/min. 100 hp motor-dŕiven, 1135 tons per hour feeds G-202	50,000 (2)	100,000
Grinder-Dryer Distribution Conveyor	48-in. belt, 300 ft c-c, 450 ft/min with 6 tripping stations, 100 hp motor-driven, includes tripper	90,000 (2)	180,000
Ground Lignite Convevor	Tube conveyor, 16-in. tube, 24 in. belt 500 ft/min. 40 ft rise 100 c-c, 50-hp motor driven. 269 tons per hour	20,000 (6)	120,000
		Total \$	22 5,864,000
1 N.:.	nbar of unite required		

Number of units required

LIGNITE GRINDING AND DRYING EQUIPMENT SUMMARY 2.9 FIGURE

2.4 Uses of the Coefficients

Given \underline{A}_N , the new process's technical coefficient vector and \underline{K}_N , the percentage capital distribution vector,¹⁵ there are a number of useful calculations that can be made. For example, the economic impact of c dollars worth of production using the new process can be found without modifying the original technical coefficient matrix <u>A</u>, assuming that the new process results in additional purchases from all sectors and is not a replacement for another process. If this is the case, then the additional sales by each sector \underline{X}_A can be found by treating the purchases of c dollars worth of the new process as a final demand vector, c \underline{A}_N . Thus

$$\underline{X}_{A} = c \left(\underline{I} - \underline{A}\right)^{-1} \underline{A}_{N}$$
(2.1)

Similarly the economic impacts of d dollars of capital expenditures for new process equipment can be found by

$$\underline{X}_{B} = d \left(\underline{I} - \underline{A}\right)^{-1} \underline{K}_{N}$$
 (2.2)

if the new process does not replace an old process (e.g. Polaroid prints).

Since most new technology does replace some older process, a different methodology is required to calculate economic impacts for these cases. Assume that the old process occurs in sector i in the technology coefficient matrix <u>A</u> and the capital matrix <u>C</u> and let $\underline{A_i}$ and $\underline{C_i}$ be the respective column vectors for this process. A new process rarely replaces an old one completely instantaneously. If g is the fraction

¹⁵ This vector was defined in the previous section. The capital vector for the new technology will be designated \underline{C}_{N} . ¹⁶ See footnote 10 for the definitions of \underline{A}_{i} and \underline{C}_{i} .

of total output for sector i produced using the new technology, then the composite new technology coefficient vector $\underline{A'}_i$ can be expressed as $\underline{A'}_i = (1 - g) \underline{A}_i + g \underline{A}_N$. Similarly if h is the fraction of additional capital investment by sector i in new technology equipment, then the composite capital vector $\underline{C'}_i$ can be expressed as

$$\underline{C'}_{i} = (1 - h) \underline{C}_{i} + h \underline{C}_{N}$$
(2.3)

The new composite technical and capital coefficient vectors replace the old ones in their respective matrices. These matrices can then be used as they would be normally. The above process of combining new and old technologies is representative of what Carter [6] refers to as "imbedded technology". It is also possible to introduce a new technology as a completely new industry and add it to the capital and technical coeffical matrices as sector N + 1, when N is the original number of sectors. This was not done for two reasons. First, most new processes are replacements for older processes and hence the problem of relative weights must be addressed whether it is represented as a separate sector or combined with another sector. Second, in compiling historical I/O tables, the Commerce Department relies on the Standard Industrial Classification scheme, and this scheme forces new industries into old classifications until the industry becomes large enough to justify a revision in the For these reasons, the two above methods of calscheme. culating impacts and incorporating new technologies were used rather than adding new sectors.

2.5 Overview of the Generalized Input-Output Model

The generalized input-output model is diagrammed in Figure 2.10. The core of the model is the I/O framework that contains final demands and technological coefficients for 1963



- Highly Interconnected Economy
- Quasi-Static Technology Change 5.
 - 110 Sectors (Industries) . ന
- Linear 4
- National <u>с</u>.

2.10 ш œ \supset G **ب**م

ENERGY-ORIENTED GENERALIZED INPUT-OUTPUT MODEL

(actual), 1970 (projected) and 1980 (projected).¹⁷ There are also capital coefficients for 1958 and 1975. Figure 2.11 summarizes the data sources for this I/O information and for the long-term residential price elasticities.

The boxes below the horizontal line of Figure 2.10 represent the non-economic outputs available from the model. Section 1.2^{3} described how these accessory variables are assumed to be proportional to the total output vector (X). Each set of accessory coefficients (used to convert the total output into values of accessory variables) can be considered a separate module of information. The mere separation of these modules adds several major advantages to the model, the most important being its ease of update: any one module can be updated without affecting the rest of the model. The second advantage is that it allows for expansion possibilities, enabling the central model to interact with any number of other models. Because of the separation each module could easily be a part of an entirely separate model, acting as the interface between the I/O model and a second model (e.g. a separate model could predict pollution coefficients which would in turn be used by the I/O model). There are many potential applications of this approach.

Another advantage of the accessory coefficient approach is that it allows the accessory variables to be treated like other variables in I/O. Thus each industry can be characterized in a particular year by its technological coefficient column (\underline{A}_i) , its capital coefficient column (\underline{C}_i) , and by a column vector of its accessory coefficients (which can be expanded to include any variables that are proportional to the total output X). This is a very flexible scheme. Figure 2.12

¹⁷ The 1970 coefficients are projected and not actual because there was no Census-derived I/O table for that year.

FIGURE 2.11

SOURCES OF INPUT-OUTPUT DATA^1

Item	Source <u>Reference</u>	Description
FINAL DEMAN	DS	104 x 6 Final Demand Vectors
1963 1970	[49] [52] ²	Actual 4% unemployment basic projection by Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS)
1980	[51] ²	4% unemployment basic projection by Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS)
TECHNOLOGIC/ (Basi	AL COEFFICIENTS c)	104 x 104 Technological Coefficient Matrix
1963 1970 1980	[49] [52]2 [51] ²	Actual Projected by BLS Projected by BLS
CAPITAL COEF	FICIENTS	104 x 104 capital coefficient matrix
1958 1975	[21] ³ [21] ³	Battelle Memorial Institute projections
ELASTICITIE	S [2]	University of Maryland Long-term Personal Consumption Expenditure Price Elasticities
NEW TECHNOL	.OGIES	
High BT Coal Ga	U [42, 43] sification	Institute of Gas Technology Hygas Process
Low BTU Coal Ga	[39] sification	1980 Texaco Process
Gas Tur bine Topping	[3 9] Cycle	1980 United Aircraft Combined Gas & Steam Cycle
	¹ All sourc ² Originall sectors (³ Originall	es and modifications are documented in [28] y had 83 sectors but disaggregated to 104 see [28]) y had 112 sectors but aggregated to 104
	sectors (see [28])

FIGURE 2.12

OUTPUTS OF GENERALIZED INPUT-OUTPUT MODEL AND DATA SOURCES

Item	Reference	Source
Final Demand by Sector	-	See Figure 2.11
Total Output by Sector	-	Calculated
Air Pollution Emissions	[25]	International Research and Technology
SO ₂ CO NO _X Particulato Hydrocarboi	es ns	
Energy Usage	[38]	Battelle Memorial Institute (Reardon)
Coal		
Crude Petro	bleum	
Refined Pe	troleum	
Natural Gas	5	
Electricity	/	
Steel Usage	[44, 47]	Censuses of Manufactures and Mining
Employment	[51, 52]	Bureau of Labor Statistics
Water Usage	[46, 47, 54]	Censuses of Manufactures and Mining
Gross (inc reci Cooling	luding irculation)	Water Resources Council

summarizes the outputs of the model and the basic data sources used to construct the accessory coefficients.

The only special convention used involved the calculation of electricity consumption on the basis of 3412 BTU/kwhr, which is the thermodynamic equivalent and does not include any thermal losses associated with the generation of electricity. All such thermal losses are attributed to the electrical utility sector. This convention is discussed more in References 28, 29 and 37. It has the advantage of assigning the thermal losses to the sector that actually causes them and which gets credit for any efficiency increases. It has the disadvantage of making the total electrical utility number (since waste heat is twice as large as the total useful electrical energy).

The only other energy related criticism of the I/O data is that the projected 1970 and 1980 I/O tables imply more natural gas will be used than any other authority in projecting. Whether this was done purposely or not is unclear. Reference 28 discusses this further.

2.6 Methodology in the Generalized Input-Output Model

This section and section 2.7 discuss problems with the generalized I/O model and with the derivation of new technology coefficients. The problems are summarized and various recommendations made to correct them. These two sections can be skipped without loss of subject continuity.

2.6.1 Problem Areas

Overall, the two major deficiencies of the model used in this study are the lacks of both dynamic behavior and regional impacts. In other words, it would have been very

nice to tie final demand dynamically to the income generated via the value added coefficients as well as to be able to represent state or regional effects in the model. Of course this defect is a defect of the particular implementation used for this report and not a defect in the generalized inputoutput methodology itself.

There are two methods of representing pollution within the input-output framework. Leontief is responsible for both of the representations. He seems to be inclined toward representing pollution within the matrix as a separate anti-pollution industry or set of industries, such that other sectors of the economy, desiring to eliminate a certain amount of pollution from their output, purchase pollution abatement from the antipollution industries. There is some economy of effort in this approach since there are relatively few types of pollution abatement processes for all industries and these could be adequately represented by several anti-pollution industries. This would enable one merely to calculate the desired reduction in pollution and have each industry purchase that amount from the various anti-pollution industries.

Conceptually we prefer the actual modification of the technical coefficients for each industry to represent pollution abatement activity. After all, there is no antipollution industry and the individual decision unit within the input-output framework is the factory or plant and it decides whether to install pollution abatement equipment. Thus, by resorting to the anti-pollution industry artifice, one distorts the actual industry structure. Actual emissions of pollutants can easily be represented by a set of emission coefficients. This coefficient approach is easily generalized to handle outputs other than pollution.

The general coefficient approach assumes linearity of pollution or whatever with a rising level of industry sales and it assumes a homogeneity of the industry's product and processes. For example, the paper industry can produce paper by any of four different methods and the pollution impact of each of these four methods is quite different. Or, as another example, fuels used by an industry have a different pollution impact depending upon whether they are used for heat or as a processing material. The conclusion of all of this is that the finer the scale of representation of industries within the economy, the easier it is to use the general coefficient approach. Best of all would be to represent the economy or represent each industry as a weighted sum of the various technological processes used by that industry to produce its output. For example, within the input-output table the paper industry would be represented as a single set of technology coefficients which would be a weighted sum of the process coefficients for each of the methods of making paper. It would be extremely easy to carry the definition of process to an extreme; for example, the difference between plastic and paper cartons as packing material could be viewed as a different process. Thus it is important that process be defined in a reasonable manner and also that within the input-output table itself that each process not be represented. The reason for representing processes is to allow one to calculate technology coefficients for a particular industry. It is not necessary that this level of detail be carried over into the entire input-output table. This methodology can be looked upon almost as a subroutine for generating industrial coefficients. This will result in vast savings in computational time.

This general coefficient approach also assumes that the dollar flow of goods is proportional to the product flow or material flow of goods. This is definitely not true in some cases. If one compares the actual Btu flow of coal to various sectors of the economy with the corresponding dollar flows,

one immediately discovers that there are significant differences in the implicit prices paid for coal. Part of this variation is due to the economies of large-scale purchasing. Part of it is also due to differential transportation or production costs. This is especially true for coal shipment, where the value of the coal FOB the mine is about \$4.54, while the average rail charge to transport the coal to its final destination is about \$3.01 or two-thirds of the actual value of the coal itself. Since the input-output table is constructed in purchaser prices, theoretically the different transportation charges should not enter into this problem, but in fact because of the way the input-output tables are constructed by the Commerce Department such differences do remain. This type of problem can be handled with some extra work if it is true that within each block (that is for each sale from one industry to another industry) all changes in dollar flows in that particular cell are proportional to changes in the actual material flow. Of course there are many cases in which this is not true. For example, the steel industry's sales to the boiler manufacturers can change dramatically merely because of a change in the grade of steel being purchased rather than because of any change in the quantity of steel being purchased. However, for energy flows this is typically not the case. (Unless the electric utility industry switches from burning #6 distillate to burning gasoline or from bituminous to lignite).

All in all, the input-output table can be made quite suitable for tracing energy flows in the economy if the problem of secondary products and transfers are handled judiciously. A transfer or secondary product does not represent an actual transfer of goods. Instead it is an accounting convention to move all secondary production of a particular good to the proper primary sector for distribution. Since the Commerce Department does publish both primary and secondary matrices, this problem can be dealt with.

The consumption side of the input-output table is not particularly well represented in a static scheme such as the one used for this report. Dynamic models have been developed that tie final demand to the income produced via the other added coefficients of the model. But even this tying of aggregate consumption to aggregate income is not really an adequate representation of the consumption function. What are needed are better behavioral models of why people buy certain commodities: what function is fulfilled by the service rendered by these goods. This is particularly important for purposes of projection of energy consumption because the production of an air-conditioner or the production of an automobile does not require nearly as much energy as the use by the consumer of either of these goods. Much more sophisticated relationships will be needed than simple multiple regressions of automobile usage or air-conditioner usage versus past data. At the very least one must look at market saturation mechanisms and the income elasticities of such demands.

It is also extremely important in such endeavors to tie the concept of transportation or comfort to an overall quality of life index. This is important because even though air-conditioners, for example, are heavy energy users, it may be that people have come to regard them almost as necessities rather than luxuries. In making nolicy statements about how energy demands can be reduced one must be especially concerned about performing such reductions at minimum damage to the quality of life in the nation. This is not to say that the efficiency of air-conditioners cannot be increased significantly: one must be very careful of the capital costs associated with such increases in efficiency. It will also be important to learn whether people respond more to changes in the price of energy or to changes in the capital cost of energy-using equipment.

The methodology discussed in this report is quite capable of adaptation to regional modeling efforts. If and when such research can be done, and there are extremely large computational and data gathering problems involved in such models, the payoffs could be quite significant. It is not completely necessary that one have a multiple region input-output model that can be used for predicting trade flows, for example, between regions. Merely having state input-output tables will enable one to answer many significant questions. For example, the impact of the 1975 air quality standards on electrical utilities will vary quite a bit from region to region because of the availability or lack of low sulfur fuels and the particular fuel mix within the region.

To assess the overall usefulness of the generalized input-output methodology, one must be able to relate the usefulness of the outputs to the accuracy thereof and the effort involved in getting that accuracy. The data gathering aspects of input-output analysis are very difficult. The advantage of going to such lengths to gather the data is that one immediately has the ability to perform integrated forecasts. For example, one will not have to predict electric energy usage, steel usage, the number of colored television sets separately. The United States is one economy. Information about one segment of it has a bearing on all segments of it. Therefore, by studying the interrelationships between industries, one can automatically achieve simultaneously better relationships and forecasts for all industries involved. In-depth industry analysis should enable one to predict technical coefficients five, ten and perhaps fifteen years into the future. This, of course, ignores sudden changes in taste or consumer preferences, as that which led to the decline of the returnable bottle for soda manufacturers and to the spectacular rise of the throwaway bottle and can.

This is not really a technology change within the industry, but must be represented as such in the input-output table. Carter [6] refers to all such changes as structural changes. Such changes in fact reflect not only changes in technology but changes in product mix and in such preference items as throwaway bottles. Barring such small perversities, however, the prospect is quite good of doing relatively detailed forecasts of the future. This should be of immense help to both policy planners and industrial leaders combined. Thus the conclusion is that such models and data gathering efforts are indeed worthwhile.

2.6.2 Recommendations

If the following recommendations were implemented, the interpretation attached to any particular entry in the inputoutput table would be much more accurate and the use of the input-output framework for forecasting purposes would be much simpler. We therefore recommend that:

1. The treatment of services within the input-output table should be detailed much more than it currently is. The current method of distributing purchases of services is to allocate them to sectors on the basis of number of employees within a particular industrial sector. This process could be significantly improved with more work. Perhaps the institution of a census of services would be worthwhile. Certainly this sector of the economy is not dealt with very well at all and, since services now make up 50% of private GNP, further documentation of service industries is definitely in order.

- 2. The Commerce Department, which publishes both the censuses and the national input-output tables every five years, should begin to make changes in their procedures such that the published inputoutput tables are designed with forecasting in mind. The original efforts of publishing the inputoutput tables were more designed for representing "the actual formation of Gross National Product within the economy." There are many instances where values are imputed to services such as owner-occupied dwellings or consumer credit agencies and no such transactions actually occur there. To the extent that such imputations are welldocumented, then they are quite usable, but the current lack of documentation leaves many people in the dark as to the exact interpretation of numbers within the table. More attention should be focused on actual material or dollar flows between sectors, than on such artificial transactions as imputations of values or transfers of secondary products.
- 3. It would be extremely useful if for certain rows of the matrix, in particular energy rows and major material rows such as steel, separate material flow rows corresponding to the dollar flows in the input-output table were published by the Department of Commerce. The census generates much data along these lines, both in terms of dollar flows and material flows, and it would be very good if these flows were integrated with one another.
- 4. More in-depth industry analyses should be made in the sense of defining technology coefficient vectors for each of the various processes used by the industry and then forming the actual set of technology coefficients used in the input-output

table by some weighted combinations of these process vectors. The Interagency Growth Project does sponsor many such in-depth industry analyses, but these studies are rarely if ever published and are typically for internal consumption only. Such publications would be invaluable in the updating of forecasts using the input-output table. Many more studies of consumption behavior must be made using new and different approaches to the

- made using new and different approaches to the problem. For example, opinion polls to determine the uses to which people put energy and how they would rank various possible uses of energy, e.g. air-conditioning versus toasters.
- 6. More documentation must be put out by the Commerce Department on the entire process of deriving the national input-output tables.
- 7. The Commerce Department could improve its representation of activities or functions within the consumer sector by the use of more dummy industries similar to the real estate sector in the present table. Such dummy industries could for example provide a better representation of personal automobile transportation and space conditioning.
- 2.7 New Technology Coefficients

2.7.1 Problem Areas

5.

The problems faced in deriving capital and operating coefficients for new technologies are distinctly different from those of constructing an input-output table from census data. With census data, one has to allocate the usage of goods and services between various sectors until the total approximates that of a control total. The interlocking arrange-

ments of rows and columns for each industry make this task somewhat easier, although practitioners may say more difficult. When dealing with a new technology, however, there are no control totals. The cost of a new plant can be estimated and that cost used as a control total but in no sense is this cost a hard number. The situation is no better for operating costs. Estimated engineering efficiencies, such as pounds of coal per Kwhr, can be remarkably illusory. Probably the most notable example of this in the current study occurred in the IGT use of cost estimates for an MHD power cycle. This technology still does not exist and could not be bought at the moment for any amount of money. Another example was a cost study for the Kellogg molten carbonate high BTU gasification system. Costs were generated for a process that cannot be made to work at the present time because no material exists that can withstand the corrosion of the pressurized hot carbonate.

How can such mistakes happen? Ignorance, pure ignorance! When an engineer is forced to come up with a cost estimate for a new plant, he immediately looks around for a recently constructed "similar" plant. If the plant happens to involve new technology, there will be no similar plants in existence. Then he must resort to some of the standard estimation schemes that work fairly well for old technology plants. There are a number of these procedures. The more accurate ones (used for competitive bidding on plant construction) are very expensive to use and require much information. The very detailed actual construction type of estimate is never used in the first stages of contemplating a new technology. Instead the desired volume of product is used to determine the physical scale of the project. Appropriate sizes of equipment are fitted to the basic process steps and the costs are estimated from the size of these individual equipment pieces. From this basic equipment cost, total installed costs are estimated by

allowing certain percentages of equipment costs for piping, structures, contingencies, etc. This is an extremely crude estimating method but it is adequate for routine process plants. Since the engineer doing the costing does not know of any problems that can arise with the new technology, he usually assumes there will be none or, at most, increases his contingency factor somewhat.

The engineer is not being diabolical in this procedure, but does the best he can with the very limited knowledge that he has. There may be an element of duplicity involved if the costs of the resulting product determine whether additional funding will be forthcoming from the government or private sources. No construction company in the world would contract to build this new plant at the above price, of course. Suppose, for example, there there were an unforeseen corrosion problem and, hence, all vessels must be constructed out of a special alloy that was twice as expensive at the standard grade (not an unheard-of occurance). Factors like this are the cause of the price rises that occur over the research and development life of a product. Changes in interest rates and inflation (of construction wages in particular) exacerbate the situation.

The fact that there is a working model of a process does help the estimation schemes. They provide information about types of problems that do occur and a small amount of information about problems that do not occur. However, estimations are usually made for full size plants on the basis of laboratory models, pilot plants, or demonstration plants. Whenever a plant is scaled up there is the possibility of an emergent problem. For example, fluidized beds which work fine on a small scale tend to develop bubbles when scaled up. These bubbles substantially reduce the yields from such a process. Of course, once a full-scale plant is developed, the new technology is no longer so new and cost estimates can be made much more accurately.

What are the implications of all this for attempts to incorporate new technology into future-oriented input-output tables? The practical situation is really not as grim as indicated in the previous paragraphs. The major reason for this is that before a new technology can have any economic influence and hence enter the input-output flow matrix, the technology must be proven commercially. Businessmen like uncertainty even less than input-output economists, because they have money riding on the betting wheel of technology. Hence by the time there might be a significant impact the technology will be proven enough that good capital and operating coefficients can be derived. This assumes, of course, that one has access to the required information. There is a great deal of sensitivity about costs of new technologies, especially if a private organization is involved. For example, the IGT Hygas demonstration plant preliminary engineering design report is completed and contains detailed cost data, but it is confidential material. We were fortunately allowed to examine a copy of the report, from which all cost information had been expunged, but were not allowed to reference or quote from the report. The IGT process is 10 years away from commercial reality but enough information exists now and more will become available in the next few years to predict fairly accurately $(\pm 25\%)$ what the capital and operating coefficients will be, in terms of current dollars.

What may happen, of course, is that another coal gasification process may prove to be cheaper. Already the Hygas oxygen process seems to be cheaper than the electrothermal process. To do accurate predictions of the future then may require that the mix between the various processes be foreseen properly. This is a more difficult job than assessing the capital and operating coefficients of each process. On

this problem there is little to say except that, by the time commercial feasibility is proven, the economics will have sorted themselves out enough to allow better prediction of this process mix. Such information does not exist now although some processes are dropping by the wayside. To predict which, if any, of the survivors will be the big winner is too much to ask at this point. Fortunately the technical and capital coefficients for the various processes may not differ by that much, even though the technologies are quite different. This depends on particular circumstances.

2.7.2 Recommendations

The following recommendations would enable engineering data to be incorporated to I/O tables more easily:

- 1. More documentation should be provided by the Department of Commerce on the actual construction of their official national input-output table. In particular, the prorating of inputs of services on the basis of number of employees and the construction of control totals for each industry should be documented.
- 2. A standard methodology should be developed to handle confusing classification items like piping or instrumentation or confusing situations like the construction component of installing a boiler. Is this component assigned to construction or value added? Some research needs to be done on what the process industry terminology and costing procedures mean by certain words or concepts, e.g. "bare cost," "contingency cost," "engineering, design, and construction cost."

- 3. A more satisfactory method of handling secondary products should be developed than that of transferring the product to its primary industry. These transfers distort the input structure of various industries unless the I/O table is first purified or only the primary matrix is used. For certain purposes it would be better not to transfer any products at all, rather than distort actual industrial behavior.
- 4. The treatment of special items like computer and photocopying leasing or the imputation of values to consumer credit should be explicitly explained. A major revision of the Standard Industrial Classification Manual would be a great boon to such research. BEA Industry 37 (Iron and Steel Production) is particularly bad.
- 5. Certain standard "modules" for construction of piping systems or insulation for the operation of typical consumer billing departments should be published. What is needed is detailed percentage breakdowns (by input-output sector) of many trivial construction or operating items. This is much more useful than total construction vectors for typical electrical utilities.

The following recommendations should make new technology studies much more meaningful and useful:

 Research on dynamic input-output models should be initiated and these models should concentrate on state-space types of dynamic models, as well as the simpler Leontief dynamic inverse approach. The focus here should be on developing actual simulation models of flows of goods and services through the economy and on detailed representations of industries within the economy. Regional input-output models should be developed with energy as their primary focus and the flow of materials in general as a major component of the focus. A complete multi-regional inputoutput model is not completely necessary in this context, since the purpose of the work is not so much to predict inter-regional flows of goods and services but more to predict impacts within a region of new technology, pollution, etc.

- 3. Water pollution coefficients should be developed to go into the input-output framework along the same lines as the air pollution coefficients do. This could be implemented as a two-stage process with a crude set of coefficients such as that developed by the Harvard Economic Research Project or by International Research and Technology for the report to the Population Commission and a second stage in which individual industries were studied in detail to determine the pollution per dollar impacts of that industry. Theoretical engineering work also needs to be done to define the limits of applicability of the linearity assumptions of pollution and total output of a particular industry. More complicated models can be included within the input-output framework if more complicated models are justified by increased accuracy.
 - 4.

2.

Research is needed on the projection of inputoutput tables in constant dollars. It is known, for example, that the so-called double deflation scheme that involves simultaneous deflation of the inputs and outputs of an industry can lead to nonsense in certain cases. It is important to know what impact this has, if any, on projections in constant dollars.

- 5. Much more engineering data should be integrated into the input-output tables. This is very analogous to the in-depth industry studies recommended previously.
- 6. An explicit study of the use of input-output analysis for forecasting of energy demand should be made using the most recent energy flow data that is available. Oak Ridge National Laboratory is in the process of preparing a 365-order energy flow table for 1963. When this study is published it should enable one to do much better energy use forecasting.
- 7. The time structure of investments for the energy industries, e.g. the investment profile over time of a typical nuclear generation plant, should be studied. This corresponds to the economic concept of a lag structure. Such a study is quite important if dynamic models are going to be used.

- Chapter 3 Impacts of Capital Expenditures for New Energy Technologies
 - 3.1 Summary of the Impacts
 - 3.1.1 GNP and Investment Perspective

The energy-producing industries are extremely capital intensive. Attempts have been made to estimate the total capital value associated with these and other industries, but this is an extremely difficult task and people have generally had more success in calculating the incremental investments necessary to produce some change in the capacity of an industry. To the extent that such numbers are meaningful electric utilities, for example, have a capital to output ratio of 5.3 (the highest of any sector) while the industrial average is .8. When, for example, a major investor such as the electric utility industry switches from a less capital intensive technology to a more capital intensive technology as in the switch from fossil to nuclear steam generation plants, the economy receives an extra added amount of investment over and above what would normally be predicted for a particular increase in demand.

In order to put the remarks of this chapter in perspective, it is necessary to look at how investment fits into the GNP figures and how investment by the various energyproducing industries fits into the national investment figures. A breakdown of Gross National Product by major compenents is given in Figure 3.1. As can be seen from this figure, personal consumption figures make up approximately 63% of GNP while government expenditures eat up another 22% of GNP. Thus, investment makes up slightly less than 14% of GNP in 1970. The importance of this investment component of GNP is easily misjudged by the size of it: 14 percent of GNP is still over \$135 billion. Not only are entire industries completely

FIGURE 3.1

1970 GROSS NATIONAL PRODUCT OR EXPENDITURES 1

	Dollars	% of Subaccount	% of	% of Total
Personal Consumption Expenditures	DUTTATS	Jubaccount	ACCOUNT	IULAI
Services				
Transportation	17.9	6.8	2.9	1.8
Housing	91.2	34.7	14.8	9.3
Household operation	$\frac{36.1}{2}$	$\frac{13.7}{13.7}$	5.8	3.7
	263.5	100.0	42.6	26.9
Non-durable goods	22.0	0 6	2 7	• •
Gasoline and oil	22.9	8.0	3./ 21 A	2.3
Clothing and choos	52 6	49.7	21.4	13.3
TOTAI	$\frac{52.0}{264.7}$	$\frac{19.0}{100.0}$	42 9	27 1
Durable goods	204.7	100.0	42.5	2/.1
Furniture and household				
equipment	37.4	42.2	6.0	3.8
Automobiles and parts	37.1	41.8	6.0	3.8
TOTAL	88.6	100.0	14.3	9.0
	<i></i>			
IUIAL goods and services	<u>615.8</u>		100.0	63.2
Government purchases of goods				
and services				
State and local	122.2		55.6	12.5
Federal	97.2		44.3	9.9
TOTAL	<u>219.4</u>		100.0	22.5
<u>Net exports</u>	3.6			0.3
Gross private domestic investment				
Change in business inventories	2.8		2.0	0.2
Fixed investment				
Residential structures	<u> </u>	<u> </u>		• •
NONTARM	29.7	22.4	21.9	3.0
IUIAL . Nonrecidential	30.4	22.9	22.4	3.1
Producers' durable				
equinment	65 4	49 3	48 3	67
Structures	36.8	27.7	27.1	3.7
TOTAL nonresidential	102.1	77.0	75.4	10.4
TOTAL fixed investment	132.5	100.0	97.9	13.6
TOTAL gross private domestic				
investment	135.3		100.0	13.8
	074 1			100 0
IUIAL	9/4.1			100.0

¹Subaccounts do not add to totals because "miscellaneous" categories are missing.

Source: Economic Report of the President 1971, [10]

dependent on the investment component of GNP, but also it is investment that enables the economy to grow in the future. It is primarily because of the growth properties of business investment that this component of GNP is so important. Excluding home insurance from the investment figure the remaining non-residential investment amounts to 10.5 percent of GNP. Two-thirds of this amount comprises business purchases of durable equipment, the remaining one-third is made up of purchases of structures.

Figure 3.2 provides us with a more detailed picture of purchases of new plants and equipment. In 1970, total purchases of new plant and equipment were almost \$80 billion. Separating out the sectors that produce energy such as petroleum, electricity, gas utilities, and the mining industries (of which coal is a significant part), it is apparent that over 25 percent of the new plant and equipment purchases are made by energy-producing sectors of the economy.

Capital investment can be shown in even more detail. Figure 3.3 provides a breakdown of capital expenditures by type and by year for the electric utility industry. This exponential increase in construction expenditures coincides with the acceleration in the rate of growth of electricity. The electric utility industry is comprised of more than just massive power stations and tie lines. In 1971, generation accounted for only 56% of all investment, while transmission accounted for 15%, distribution for 23% and administrative building approximately 5% of all electric utility investment expenditures. Figure 3.4 provides a similar breakdown for the gas utility industry.

To further illustrate that we are not experiencing a transient problem that will go away shortly, Figure 3.5 reproduces the latest capital expenditure survey of McGraw-Hill for the period 1972 through 1975. It is obvious from

FIGURE 3.2

1970 NEW PLANT AND EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES (current dollars)

		°' of	% of	°∕ of
	Dollars	Subaccount	Account	Total
Manufacturing Industries				
Durable goods industries				
Primary Metals	3.24	20.5	10.1	4.0
Electrical machinery &	0 07	14 0	- 7 1	0 0
equipment	2.27	14.3	/.1	2.8 1 2
Machinery except electrical	3.4/	21.9	10.8	4.5
Stope clay & glass	2.43	6.2	7.0	1 2
Other durables	3 41	21.5	10.6	4.2
	<u>0.11</u>	100 0	<u> </u>	10 0
TOTAL	15.80	100.0	49.4	41.0
Nondurable goods industries	• • •		•	2 5
Food, including beverage	2.84	1/.5	8.8	3.5
Textile	.56	3.4 10.2	1./	2.0
Paper Chomical	3 11	21 3	19.7	4 3
Petroleum	5.62	34.7	17.5	7.0
Rubber	.94	5.8	2.9	1.1
Other nondurables	1.11	6.8	3.4	1.3
TOTAL	31.95		100.0	40.0
Public Utilities				
Electric	10.65	81.0	22.2	13.3
Gas and other	2.49	18.9	5.2	3.1
TOTAL	13.14	100.0	77.5	16.4
Other				• •
Mining	1.89	5.4	3.9	2.3
Railroad	1.78	5.1	3.1	2.2
Air Transportation	3.03	0.7 3.5	2.5	15
Communication	10.10	29 1	21 1	12.6
Commercial and other	16.59	47.9	34.7	20.8
	24 62	100 0	72 A	13 1
TUTAL	54.02	100.0	16.4	т Ј. Т
TOTAL	47.76		100.0	59.9
TOTAL All industries	<u>79.71</u>			100.0

Source: Economic Report of the President, 1971 [10].

ELECTRIC CONSTRUCTION EXPENDITURES INVESTOR-OWNED ELECTRIC UTILITIES (including Hawaii since 1960) By Type of Utility Plant - 1945-1970



Source: Edison Electric Institute Statistical Year Book 1970, [14]



Source: Gas Facts 1971, [1], n. 179

FIGURE 3.5

PLANS FOR CAPITAL SPENDING (Billions of Dollars)

				P	relimian	ry
INDUSTRY	<u>Actual</u>	Planned	<u>% Chang</u> e	<u>1973</u>	<u>1974</u>	<u>1975</u>
Iron & Steel	\$ 1.70	\$ 1.58	- 7%	\$1.98	\$2.46	\$2.66
Nonferrous Metals	1.08	1.24	15	1.35	1.51	1.39
Electrical Machinery	2.14	2.20	3	2.38	2.50	2.55
Machinery	2.80	3.37	20	3.68	3,76	3.72
Autos, Trucks & Parts	1.51	1.69	12	1.71	1.97	1.85
Aerospace	.38	. 32	-16	. 39	. 37	.36
Other Transportation						
Equipment	.24	. 33	37	. 42	. 37	. 36
Fabricated Metals	1.25	1.61	29	1.40	1.48	1.52
Instruments	.67	.78	17	.78	.84	.88
Stone, Clay & Glass	.85	1.23	45	1.21	1.23	1.25
Other Durables	1.53	1.89	24	1.76	1.74	1.80
TOTAL DURABLES	14.15	16.24	15	17.06	18.23	18.34
Chemicals	3.44	3.65	6	3.80	3.99	3.91
Paper & Pulp	1.25	1.66	33	1.48	1.60	1.55
Rubber	.84	1.06	26	1.10	1.20	1.25
Petroleum	5.85	6.61	13	7.34	7.78	7.70
Food & Beverages	2.69	3.05	13	3.32	3.36	3.33
Textiles	.61	.71	16	.62	.64	.64
Other Nondurables	1.15	1.52	32	1.35	1.40	1.43
TOTAL NONDURABLES	15.83	18.26	15	19.01	19.97	19.81
ALL MANUFACTURING	29.98	34.50	15	36.07	38.20	38.15
Mining	2.16	2.84	31	2.94	2.96	2.91
Railroads	1.67	1.79	7	1.95	2.09	2.07
Airlines	1.88	2.76	47	2.01	2.03	1.75
Other Transportation	1.38	1.94	41	1.78	1.94	2.06
Communications	10.77	11.63	8	12.79	13.94	15.19
Electric Utilities	12.86	14.27	11	15.70	16.01	16.97
Gas Utilities	2.44	2.81	15	2.67	2.83	2.55
Commercial ¹	18.05	20.40	13	20.60	21.01	21.01
ALL BUSINESS	81.19	92.94	14	96.51	101.01	102.66

Figures based on large chain, mail order and department stores, insurance companies, banks and other commercial businesses.
Source: [33]. looking at this table that the trends, especially in the energy-producing sectors of the economy, are continuing. Also notice that all capital expenditures in all sectors of the economy, with the possible exception of iron and steel are increasing more rapidly than GNP is expected to increase.

3.1.2 Comparison of the Energy Technology Investment

<u>The word "impacts" as used in this and following chap-</u> ters will mean the total sales (both direct and indirect) of each sector required to support some level of specified activity. E.g. the impacts of capital purchases \underline{M} are the total sales (\underline{X}_m) required to meet these purchases or $\underline{X}_m = (\underline{I}-\underline{A})^{-1} \underline{M}$.

The comparisons that are made in this chapter use gross private domestic investment (GPDI) as the reference. GPDI is composed of both residential and non-residential building construction and equipment purchases and comprises about 16% of GNP in total value. On a sector by sector purchase basis, the variation is much greater. For example, GPDI represents 70% of new construction and 0% of mineral mining purchases by final demand.

Appendix I contains comparisons of GPDI and total output for each sector and also comparisons of GPDI impacts and total output for each sector. $^{18}\,$

The costs and plant sizes used in this chapter are summarized in Figure 3.6. Three very detailed comparison tables based on these costs are presented in this section. Figure 3.7 summarizes what each of these comparisons will illustrate. The first table (Figure 3.8a) compares \$10 billion worth of investment in each of the new technologies to the total projected

¹⁸ GPDI impacts are the total sales by each sector (\underline{X}^{I}) required to meet the GPDI component of final demand (\underline{Y}^{I}) or $\underline{X}^{I} = (\underline{I} - \underline{A})^{-1} \underline{Y}^{I}$.

FIGURE 3.6

NEW TECHNOLOGY PLANT SIZES AND COSTS (millions of current dollars)

Technology	Nominal <u>Plant Size</u>	Nominal <u>Plant Cost</u>
High BTU Coal Gasification (IGT Hygas Process)	500 Billion BTU/day	Base Cost \$304.8 Pollution Equipment 50.0 Total Cost 354.8 (274.2 in 1958 dollars)
Low BTU Coal Gasification (1980 Texaco process)	842 million SCF/ day (147 Billion BTU/ day)	Total Cost \$27.5 (\$21.3 in 1958 dollars)
Gas Turbine Topping Cycle (1980 Combined Cycle)	1000 MW	Total Cost \$94.0 (\$72.6 in 1958 dollars)
Nuclear (Pressurized Water Reactor)	1000 MW	Total Cost \$240 (\$205.8 in 1958 dollars)

FIGURE 3.7

SUMMARY OF DETAILED COMPARISONS

Exhibit 1 (Figure 3.8a): Iso-Dollar Comparison

1980 Gross Private Domestic Investment (GPDI)

vs.

\$10 Billion Investment in Each New Technology

Exhibit 2 (Figure 3.9b): Iso-Dollar Impact¹ Comparison

Impact¹ of 1980 GPDI

Vs.

Impact¹ of \$10 Billion Investment in Each New Technology

Exhibit 3 (Figure 3.10): Iso-BTU Impact¹ Comparison

Impact¹ of 1980 GPDI

vs.

Impact¹ of Five Trillion BTU/Day Capacity Addition² of Each new Technology

I Impacts refer to total sales (direct plus indirect) by each sector required to support purchase of given investment.

² 5 Trillion BTU/day equals 10 Hygas plants, or 43 Low BTU gas plants, or 41,000 MW of electric generation.

1980 GPDI. The second table compares the impacts of these \$10 billion purchases with that of the total GPDI (impacts include direct plus indirect purchases of goods and services). The third table compares the impacts of equal energy capacity investments (instead of equal dollar investments) in each of the new technologies to that of total 1980 GPDI. Investment is calculated to provide 500 trillion BTU/day capacity of high or low BTU gas and to provide 41,000 MW of electrical output.¹⁹ The 41,000 MW of electrical generation can be fueled by 500 trillion BTU/day of low BTU gas (assuming the gas turbine topping cycle is used). Nuclear investment impact is also calculated at 41,000 MW capacity.

Figure 3.8a describes the actual investments made for the new technologies at \$10 billion each and compares it to the 1980 projected GPDI. Here the differences between Value Added components and variations in the details of equipment provided in the engineering estimates are obvious. These purchases were derived by multiplying the capital coefficients by \$10 billion so that it should be obvious that the Value Added coefficients varies from .35182 to $.09911^{20}$ All of the equipment lists for

The percentage capital coefficients were actually used. See section 2.3.2 for a description of the difference.

¹⁹ Equal capacities are calculated on the basis of equal total yearly outputs, which take into account the load factors associated with each technology. Hygas plants (at 90% load factor and 500 billion ETU/day/plant) processes about 160 trillion BTU/year. The low BTU gas plants (at 70% load factor and 100 million BTU/minute/plant) process about 37 trillion BTU/ year. Thus approximately 4.3 low BTU gas plants or the equivalent in terms of yearly energy output to a Hygas plant. Since this given size low BTU gas plant can power a 945 MW second generation COGAS plant [39, p. 101], 4100 MW of COGAS plants are the equivalent of one Hygas plant.

F I G U R E 3.8a Comparison of 1980 Total Investment (GPDI) with \$10 Billion Investments In New Energy Technology1

	I G9255 INVESTMENT	5877H	2 LCW ETU GAS	COMPINED CVCLE	5 SUCLEDR
		•			c c
I LIVESICCK & FRECLETS	000 862	، د ن و		، د • •)
2 CINCK FARM FRCOLCIS	729.000		1.470	2 G	، د د
S FUHESTRY & FISHERY PROF	13.000	، د د			ی د د
4 FARM. FIREST. FISH SERV	13.000	20	י ני נ		3
D FERKUUS WETAL MINING	53.000		ן יייי יייי		י נ י נ
D NENFERACUS PETAL PINING	34,500				ى ر •
A CALMINING ANT ATT PEL CA	6 53 CCC			0.0	
A STURE & CLAY VINING	50° 000		22.360	0.0	0.0
10 PINERAL WINING	0.0	0°0	0°0	2 •0	ບ ບ
LI NEW CUNSTRUCTION	74.746.000	3427.77C	0.0	2036,990	Z178.0C0
12 MALAT & PECATE CONST	0.0	0.0	C. E3C	0.00	ບ 1 ບ
LA UKUNANCE, ACCESSCRIES	1 00. 000	0	•••	000	ບ ບໍ
14 FULU & KINCRED FRICUCTS	0.0	ບ ບ			ບ ເ ບັບ
LU GRAIN MILLING		5 L		ے د ع د	יר ייר ייר
LO IUBACCO MANUTACIURE 17 Earli - Vara Impe VIIIA	121-000	ں د ن د ن د	C. C50		
			C.730		
	729.000		1.870	0.0	•••
JU MISC FAR TEXTILE PRESUCT	45.000	0.0	C. C50	0.0	0.0
ZI LUMBER & WCCC PRCDS	129.000	C. C	186.390	0.0	U • U
22 WCLUEN CONTRINESS	18.000	0°0	C• C	0.0	0°0
23 HULSCHULD FURNITURE	351.000	0.0	u • u	0.0	ບ ບ
24 CTHEN FURN & FINTURES	2565.000	0.0	4.360	1.880	18.170
25 PULP MILLS	0.0	5 C			
ZO PAPER O ALLIEU PRUDU 13 radio / retatero enver				יר ביי ביי	ی ر د
2. FAFER CUNTRICT FLACS					
VE INDUCTOR IN COLLISION		71-100	2.630		
su FrkTLLIZERS	0.0		C • 360	0.0	
JI AGK & PISC CHEMICALS	0.0	0.0	5.600	0 • 0	U
32 PLASTICS & SYNTH NT9L	277.000	0 •0	0.0	0.0	1.360
33 LHUGS, CLAC, TCILET PREP	405.000	υ • υ	0.0	0°C	ວ•0
54 PAINIS 5 PRCDUCTS	15.000	2°0	071°E	0.00	5 5
3.5 FETRULEUM REFINING	0.0	ບ ເ ວັ	54.160	0.0	•••
JC PAVING MIXICHES			22.4210		ບ ເ ບໍ່ເ
ST PSTALL THLIGG CURITSCO	262,000				
34 IFATHER TANING PRCC	12.000	0.0			
CCTWEAR & LEATHER FROD	115.000	0.0	C • C 5 0	0.0	
41 GLASS & GLASS PECCS	66.000	0.0	C. 67C	0°0	0.0
+2 CEMENT. HYDRAULIC	0.0	0.0	8.350	0.0	U 0
4.5 []MC		C. C.	1.250	0.0	0.0
44 STUNE & CLAT PACUS				26.21	
45 FRIMAKT STEEL 44 14: N.S. STEEL FLUNDETCS	0.0		242.470		5 U
47 INLA & STEEL FLAGINGS	0.0	0	5.650		י י י
4.0 PRIMARY NON-FER METAL	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
4 PISC ACA-FER METALS	1.79.000	0.0	357.27C	2 • 2	
DU PLIAL CONTAINERS	175.000	0.0	0.0	0.0	U • U
5. PLOMBINGESTRUCTURAL VEYA	1490,000		1003.094 5 737	14C•375	1925.CEC
STREAS SWELL STARTING	70.000		14.470	- C	
-					
¹ See Figure 3.7	for details	of comparis	:on.		
F I G U R E 3.8a (continued)

AUCLEAR 5 141.410 156.2610 215.6710 215.6710 215.6710 215.6710 25.670 25.6000 25.6000 25.6000 25.6000 25.6000 25.60000 25.600000000000000000000000000000000 4 CZWRINEC CYCLE

 1524

 1534

 1534

 1534

 1545

 1546

 1546

 1546

 1546

 1546

 1546

 1547

 1546

 1547

 1547

 1547

 1547

 1547

 1547

 1547

 1547

 1547

 1547

 1547

 1547

 1547

 1547

 1547

 1547

 1547

 1547

 1547

 1547

 1547

 1547

 1547

 1547

 1547

 1547

 1547

 1547

 1547

 1547

 1547

 1547

 1547

 1547

 1547

 1547

 1547

 1547

 1547

 <t C.C 0.C 7277.664 2 DH PTL GAS 96.520 6.650 6.650 6.650 6.650 6.650 6.650 6.650 6.730 6.730 6.730 6.730 6.730 6.730 6.730 6.730 6.670 1.450 1.450 6.670 1.450 1.450 6.670 1.450 6.670 1.450 6.670 1.450 6.670 1.450 6.670 1.450 6.670 1.255 1.450 1.450 6.670 1.450 6.670 1.450 6.670 1.450 6.670 1.450 6.670 1.450 6.670 1.450 6.670 1.450 6.670 1.255 1.255 1.250 1 245.99 268.140 72.75 5ΔΩ FYGΔS INEALSEANI SUCAD

 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 5
 / Constructions for the second s GFFICE SUPPLIES Schap. Seconthang Coons Jum BLSINCSS TRAVEL . GIFTS LINCK FAR NETAL DECCS Chulwes S TLARINGS 10000

the new technologies were very good on major items, like boilers and turbines, and very poor on small items, like lunch room equipment and adding machines. The conclusion of this is that one must be very careful about drawing inferences from small differences in coefficients or dollar flows. The standard engineering estimation schemes that were used in costing these plants cover the cost of many small items, like telephones, by increasing the cost estimates of the big items like turbines or by some simple percentage add-on figure for miscellaneous equipment. Since, by definition, major impacts are not made by minor items, there is no great loss if these items "fall through the cracks."

Figure 3.8b compares the effects of equal capital expenditures (\$10 billion) for each of the three new technologies that we have discussed and, in addition, for nuclear steam electric generation (a conventional pressurized water reactor is used). All comparisons are in millions of 1958 dollars and represent direct plus indirect effects of capital expenditures. There are several things to notice about these figures. First the zero under New Construction (section 11) for Low BTU Gas occurs because of the way the capital coefficients were derived for this technology. In essence, all expenditures that normally would have gone to New Construction were disaggregated into concrete, steel, etc. and assigned directly to the sector that supplies such commodities to New Construction. The zero is of little significance. Second, the total output resulting from each of these technologies varies from \$14.1 billion to \$20.3 billion for an initial expenditure of \$10 billion. Part of this variation is true and part is spurious. Low BTU Gas Plants represent the low of \$14.1 billion. Because construction items were assigned directly to the supplying industry, rather than going through sector 11, the value-added component of New Construction (about 36% of total construction) is missing from the total. This would add perhaps \$1 billion to the total. For High BTU Gas Plants the total of \$20.3 billion is probably too high because of the convention followed of assigning labor costs to New Construction rather than to Value-Added. This

F I G U R E 3.8b Outputs required to support equal capital investments in new technologies¹

	1 1980 GROSS I NV ESTMEN I	2 HIGH BTU GAS	3 LOW BTU GAS	4 Gas turbine cycle	5 NUCLEAR STEAM
1 LIVESTOCK & PRODICTS	1245-114	34.710	CU2 80	38 000	0.04.90
2 CTHER FARM PRODUCTS	2352.267	60.700	42.700	45 - 200	47.600
3 FCRESTRY & FISHERY PROD	596.802	22.800	21.533	14.200	15.400
4 FARM, FOREST, FISH SERV	196.546	6.400	5.000	4.900	5.100
5 FERRCUS PETAL MINING	908.453	72.600	66.900	43.300	53.800
6 NUNFEROLS METAL MINING	829.229	62.000	61.103	47.600	50.400
A LEAL MINING R CUIDE OTH AND NATHRAL CA	557.817	95.400	31.000	25.400	28.300
O CHOUR ULL AND NHUREL GA	1 7 20. 501	91°200	1	64.000	13.500
IO MINERAL MINING	250.456	13_300	6 400	000 • 20	000°°24
11 NEW CONSTRUCTION	74246.330	3427.830	3 . 000	9000°1	2178.000
12 MAINT & REPAIR CONST	2018.491	84.100	75.300	63.300	68.700
<pre>13 CRDNANCE, ACCESSCRIES</pre>	514.234	6.800	5.000	6.433	6.133
14 FJOD & KINDRED PRJDUCTS	1596.358	72.400	61.430	60.500	60.600
IS GRAIN MILLING	354.786	13.200	11.700	10.900	11.200
13 FARDICU MANUFACILKES 13 FARDIC VARNETHRE MILLS	205-61	30 700	2.700	2.60)	2.600
THE MENT OF A THE COUNCIL		001 000		24.200	0.6.52
19 APPAREL	1123.331	12.600	11.900	10-300	15.500
20 MISC FAB TEXTILE PRODUCT	301.085	5.900	5-000	002 0 0 1	10.000
21 LLMBER & WOOD PRCDS	6901.891	301.100	289.400	184.607	001-002
22 WCDDEN CCNTAINERS	510.69	4.000	2.800	2.400	2,900
23 HOUSEHOLD FURNITURE	980.092	22.900	4.900	13.300	15.37
24 CTHER FURN & FIXTURES	3031.101	22.100	7.800	14.300	33.000
25 FULP MILLS	323.972	12.600	1 C. 400	10.700	10.800
26 PAPER & ALLIEU PRUDS 37 DADED CONTAINEDS DAVES	3679.293	156.933	125.033	134.673	136.400
21 PAPER CUNIAINERS, BUALS	1400.102		44.600	51.600	52.200
20 FRINING & FUDLISHING 20 INDUSTRIAL CHEMICALS	3304.084 4535 850	165.165	191.400	168.233	186.239
27 INUUSIFIAL CHEMICALS 20 FERTILI7ERS	2020 • 2224 215 × 202	201.200	152,000	134.800	138.800
31 AGR & MISC CHEMICALS	244-232	1.00C	0.400 27 7 7 0	000.6	5.300
32 PLASTICS & SYNTH MTRL	3524.737	108-400		UU-2 + 5 5 0 0 5 0 0	36.300
33 CRUGS, CLNG, TOILET PREP	1015.727	27.930	24-700		007-68
34 PAINTS & PRODUCTS	1081.208	47.900	26.700	33.600	35, 800
35 PETRCLEUM REFINING	2851.601	144.700	15C.500	104.200	109-400
36 PAVING MIXIURES	241.670	11.13	24.300	6.8))	7.200
AR RURRER & DIACTIC DOCHS	243. 145 5232 515	11.000	5.000	6.700	7.200
39 I FATHER TANNING PROD		1 700		127.233	127.630
40 FCUTWEAR & LEATHER PROD	174.455	1.900	1.400	1 - 400	1.600
41 GLASS & GLASS PRCUS	1156.933	42.530	26.200	26.4.2	35 000
42 CEMENT, HYDPAULIC	1280.672	62.600	69.400	41.800	200°17
4.3 LIME	174.346	11.100	12.203	6.933	CC8-1
44 STUNE & ULAT PRUUS AR DELMADY STEEL	1045.166	354.700	537.800	251.000	234.700
43 PRIMARI SIEEL 46 IRAN E STEEL EDUNDIES	12092.387	1066.000	976.800	616.000	791.399
47 IRUN & STEFL FURGINGS	800 50C	119-1JU		125.200	121.600
48 PRIMARY NON-FER METAL	2678.872	217.200	213 000	005.16	50.430
49 MISC NJN-FER METALS	9161.438	635.900	750-009	164.603	178.700
50 METAL CCNTAINERS	362.656	9.600	6.500	008-106	521.500
51 PLUMBINGESTRUCTURAL META	8246.813	2880.900	1726-230	004 + 0 CDA - CAC 1	1.100
52 FEATING EQUIP EXC ELEC	931.823	5 3. 500	21.200	28.500	35, 200
53 SCREWS & METAL STAMPINGS	2450.377	106.600	85.300	110.500	105.600

199

See Figure 3.7 for details of comparison

1 **--**1

FIGURE 3.8b (continued)

		-	~	٣	4	5
	19	BO GROSS INVESTMENT	HIGH BTU GAS	LOW BTU GAS	GAS TURBINE CYCLE	NUC LEAR STEAM
54	CTHER FAB METAL PRODS	5416.906	518.70C	246.400	434.300	332.70C
. 5	ENGINES & TURBINES	1844.124	336.900	38.40 3	2182.2)	1722.630
56	FARM MACHINERY & EQUIP	3800.325	18.400	1 2. 80 0	33.100	30.100
57	CCNSTRUCTIONEMINING EQUI	4242.563	215.80C	123.200	79.700	73.500
58	MATERIAL HNDLG MACH	1962.979	122.830	181.100	28.600	50.400
59	METALWORKING MACH	4998.625	92.200	65.200	104.000	94.600
60	SPECIAL INDUSTRY MACH	4295.875	29.700	19.533	16.903	249.5) 3
61	GENERAL INDUSTRY MACH	6040.668	1130.699	981.600	304.600	388.500
62	MACHINE SHOP PROCUCIS	1454.148	66.130	52.000	139.600	119.100
63	OFFICE COMP MACH	14845.250	56.530	62.233	001.11	63.800
64	SERVICE INDUSTRY MACH	1785.515	176.900	88.900	8.000	34.630
65	REFRIG MACHINERY	3875.425	900.99	15.400	54.)))	63.933
66	ELECTRICAL INDUSTRY	8900.211	517.000	569.800	1342 • 800	490.80C
67	HCUSEHOLD APPLIANCES	1729.170	57.100	2* 900	35.700	38.300
68	ELEC LIGHTING EQUIP	2489.535	113.530	105.600	19.030	159.200
69	RADIO, TV & CCMM EQUIP	9918.234	39.300	75.500	48.800	36.400
7.0	FLEC COMP & ACCESS	8150.855	93.50C	91.700	116.1))	83.870
11	ELEC MACH EQP & SUPPLIES	1283. 581	27.200	23.000	60.000	52.10C
72	MCTOR VEHICLES & EQUIP	23308.406	102.500	76.200	137.200	128.500
73	AIRCRAFT & PARTS	4635.531	44.533	32+333	44.630	43.600
74	CIHER TRANSPORT EQUIP	4957.394	36.900	25.500	37.100	36.800
75	SCIENTIFIC & CONTROL INS	3593.236	121.700	36.000	53.3)	139.433
76	ΟΡΤΙCAL & PHCTJ EQUIP	4436.969	25.300	25.200	23.100	25.030
77	MISC MANUFACTURING	1891.696	45.000	38.700	36.500	39.130
78	RAILROAD TRANSPORTATION	4777.672	198.CUC	181.000	138.333	151.700
79	LCCAL PASSENCER TRANSPOR	378.335	17.500	15.600	15.200	14.900
80	TRUCK TRANSPCRTATION	5657.574	243.1JC	223.200	167.733	177.630
81	WATER TRANSPORTATION	524.238	93.900	63.700	02.300	63.23C
82	AIR TRANSPORTATION	763.482	33.300	25.100	29.500	28.700
83	MISC TRANSPURTATION	248.760	12.433	12.00	CCC • 6	9.500
84	CEMMUNICATIONS EXC RADET	4907.117	175.800	172.500	148.500	163.900
68	RADIC & TV PROADCASTING	419.160	23.000	2 5. 630	24.8))	28.133
85	ELECTRIC UTILITIES	4464.074	251.730	217.000	141.500	198.87C
87	GAS LTILITIES	2810-033	172.500	156.800	117.800	131.100
33 33	WATER & SAULTARY SERV	625.264	31.3))	28.33	23.122	24.900
8	WHOLESALE TRADE	20424.211	918.80C	730.000	725.500	745.699
90	RETAIL TRADE	14032.719	427.130	308.300	340.100	356.8))
16	FINANCE AND INSURANCE	4295.273	334.200	273.100	245+500	313.600
26	REAL ESTATE & RENTAL	192.5166	202.202	222.000	198.600	216.800
רי היי	HJIEL, PERS & REPAIR SER	471-874 14151 500	43•7J)	36.9))	34.67)	37.4)3
5 C	BUSINESS SERVICES	000 TCT 41	114.644	1003-500	840.199	951.000
5 A	ALTO BEDATE STOLET	1873.964	10-100	5.800	11.100	11.133
0 r 7 3	AND CHARTER CONVICT	404 1 C 20 T			000	69.130
- a	MEDICAL & FRICATION SERV	495,789			18,400	20.200
	FED COVE PUTERDRIVES	102-4201	44 - 40 J	60° 700 600 600 600 600 600 600 600 600 600		(((,)))
1001	CIVIENTENDEN CONTENTERPR	776.073	0000	3 4 400		40 • IOC
	IMPORTS	1.15-16.219	460.230	100°-100 100°-100		30.810
102	PUSINESS TRAVEL. GIFTS	2857.332	133.230	118-100	116 70.1	403.600
103	CFFICE SUPPLIES	625.309	C(4.(f	000-82	27.5.1	
104	SURAP, SECONDHANE GOUDS	000.099-	0.0	0.0	0.0	0°0
105	TCIAL GUTPUT	418798.313	20345.132	14103.156	16213.645	5.55 16975.855
						\ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \

difference could subtract \$1.5 billion from the total. The conventions followed in deriving the capital coefficients are described much more fully in the Appendices.

It is more meaningful to compare capital expenditures for equal energy capacity investments in the new technologies. Figure 3.9 summarizes the total capital expenditures required for equal capacity expansions of five trillion BTU/ day (the size of 10 Hygas plants). The impacts of these expenditures are described in Figure 3.10.

The most obvious point about these figures is the difference in size of the total impacts. On the surface, there is a range of over a factor of ten (\$1.278 billion to \$13.973 billion). This is a little bit like comparing apples and oranges though. For a true comparison with nuclear generation the capital costs of the low BTU gas plant and the gas turbine topping cycle should be added. The resulting \$6 billion cost reduces the price range to a factor of two, which is still considerably above the ratio of 1.25 which currently exists between conventional fossil and nuclear plants. Nuclear plants cost so much for two reasons. (1) The pressure vessel and reactor core cost much more than the corresponding boiler for a fossil fired plant. (2) Because of: the radioactivity involved, everything must be of very high quality, which means inspected, x-rayed, etc. All of this costs much money, and typically a valve for a nuclear plant will cost 2-3 times as much as one for a fossil steam plant. The high BTU gas plant cannot be compared directly to the electric plants since different forms of energy are involved. What is striking about such a comparison though is the difference in capital involved for energy in gaseous versus electric form. Note that this has only slight bearing on the actual cost differences between the energy forms because the price of raw fuel, transportation, etc., are ignored. An even more striking difference appears between the capital

EXPENDITURES FOR 5 TRILLION BTU/DAY CAPACITY OF EACH NEW TECHNOLOGY

Hygas	Low Gas	Gas Turbine	Nuclear
1970	1970	1970	1968
500 BB/ dav ²	147 BB/ dav	1000 MW	1000 MW
\$354.8	\$27.5	\$94.0	\$24.0
10	43	41	41
\$3548	\$1182	\$3854	\$9840
\$2741	\$913	\$2978	\$8374
	Hygas 1970 500 BB/ day ² \$354.8 10 \$3548 \$2741	Hygas Low Gas 1970 1970 500 BB/ day2 147 BB/ day \$254.8 \$27.5 10 43 \$3548 \$1182 \$2741 \$913	HygasLow GasGas Turbine197019701970500 BB/ day2147 BB/ day1000 MW\$254.8\$27.5\$94.0104341\$3548\$1182\$3854\$2741\$913\$2978

- ²BB/day = Billions of BTU/day
- ³Deflated by total non-residential GPDI deflator for appropriate year

¹See footnote 19

F I G U R E 3.10 Outputs required to support investment in equal capacities of mem technologies¹ (5 Trillion BTUs/Pay)

.

	•		•		
	1 1980 gross investmen?	Z HIGH BTU GAS	3 LOW BTU GAS	4 Gas turbine cycle	5 NUCLEAR STEAM
1 LIVESTOCK & PRODUCTS	1245。114	9.514	2.602	8.197	23.542
2 CTHER FARM PRODUCTS	2352.267	16.643	3.871	13.232	39.182
3 FORESTRY & FISHERY PRO	DD 596.802	6.252	1.949	4.157	12.677
4 FARM, FOREST, FISH SEF	RV 196.546	1.755	0.453	1 - 4 3 4	4.198
5 FERROUS PETAL MINING	908.453	19.906	6 . 064	12.676	44.285
6 NUNFERROUS METAL MININ	NG 829.229	17.030	5,539	13.934	41.487
P CCAL MINING	118-166	201-52 22 25 155	2.810	1.430	29°2°23
O CTONE C LIL AND NAIUKAL	GA 1873.433	20°071	8° 87 0	20°1,99	16.6.00
TO MINEDAL MINING	1679,261 250,454	240.22		222061	
11 NEW CONSTRUCTION	000 97676	878 0E0		57797 505 211	0 C 0 C 0 C 1
12 MAINT & REPAIR CONST	2018-491	23.055	6-826	770.211 18.53]	176.550
13 DRUNANCE, ACCESSORIES	514.234	1.864	0.453	1.874	5-021
14 FCOD & KINDRED PRODUCI	rs 1596.358	19.851	5.566	17-711	49.883
I5 GRAIN MILLING	354.786	3.619	1.061	3.191	9.219
I6 TJBACCO MANUFACTURES	79.502	0.823	0.245	0.761	2.140
17 FABRIC, YARN, THRD MILLS	S 1752.846	8.418	2.293	7.084	21.320
18 MISC. TEXTILE GODDS	1055.147	4.826	1.296	4.420	12.759
19 APPAREL	1123.331	3.455	1.079	3.015	8.890
20 MISC FAB TEXTILE PRJDU	UCT 301.085	1.618	0.453	1.376	4.363
21 LUMBER & WOOD PRCDS	6901.891	82.559	26.234	54.040	164.712
ZZ WUUEN CLNIAINERS	93.019	1.001	C. 254	0.703	2.387
23 HOUSEHULD FURNILLKE	761°1255	512.0	0.444	3.893	12.594
24 LINCK FURN & FLAIURES	101.1000	00,00		4.180	27.164
23 FULT MILLS 26 DADER & ALLIEN DRANS	217.525	5000 AA	0.443	3.132	668890
27 DADED CINITALNEDC. BOVE			4 40 • T T	504.40	112.218
28 DEINTING 5 DIRITCHENG	201-0041 030	12.040	4.040	501•51 552 35	42.968
29 INDUSTRIAL CHEMICALS	4575.859	71, 618	0.0011	20 441	112.5211
A) FERTILIZERS	215.492	21041	1 2 4 1 7	104.46	114.233
31 AGR & MISC CHEMICALS	1044.232	13-764	3.418	101010	10101 2000
32 PLASTICS & SYNTH MTRL	3524.737	29.722	8.322	26.436	73 475
33 DRUGS, CLNG, TOILET PR	REP 1015.727	7.650	2.239	6.001	17.780
34 PAINTS & PRODUCTS	1091.208	13.134	2.420	9.836	29.469
35 PETROLEUM REFINING	2851.601	39.675	13.643	30.503	90°053
36 PAVING MIXIURES	241.670	3.044	2.176	166-1	5.927
37 BSPHALI FELIS, CLAIING 38 BUBBED 5 DIACTIC DRADE	2) 243. (45	3.016	0.453	1.961	5.927
39 LEATHER TANNING FROD	85.020	0-464	F 10°01	31.237	105.034
40 FOOTWEAR & LEATHER PRC	00 174.455	0.521	0-127		1.511
41 GLASS & GLASS PRCDS	1156.903	11.653	2.375	7.728	71.01
42 CEMENT, HYDRAULIC	1233.672	17.164	6.291	12.237	33.745
43 LIME	174.346	3.044	1.196	2.020	6.421
44 STONE & CLAY PROES	7045.766	97.255	48.752	73.478	193.193
45 PRIMARY STEEL	12092.581	292.286	88.547	180.328	651.440
40 IKUN & SIEEL FUUNUKIES	126-1617	32.821	20.025	36.651	100.395
41 IKUN 6 STEEL FURGINGS 2.8 SOTMADY NUM-EGO METAL	8J4.744	11.5/1	3.173	16.774	41.487
40 PLIMPAN MUN-FER METALS	2010+012	400°20	1 9. 390	49°649	147.097
SO METAL CONTAINERS	362.656	0 L 7 C	144.10	148.653	429.272
51 PLUMBINGESTRUCTURAL ME	TA 8246.813	789.914	0° 38 9	1.874	5.844
52 HEATING EQUIP FXC ELEC	931.823	14-669	0001	100 1 100	120.0001
53 SCREWS & METAL STAMPIN	165 2450.317	29.229	7.732	0.348 37.348	28.915 86.025
			1		1 3 4 9 00

FIGURE 3.10 (continued)

5 NUCLEAR STEAM 1,273.862 1,273.862 6,2,5717 6,2,5717 6,2,5717 6,2,5717 6,2,5717 6,2,5717 6,2,376 6,2,5717 6,2,376 6,2,3776 7,3776 7,4776 7,4776 7,4776 7,4776 7,4776 7,4776 7,4776 7,4776 7,4776 7,4776 7,4776 7,4776 7,4776 7,4776 7,4776 7,4776 7,4766 7,4776 7,4766 7,4776777 7,4776777 7,47767777777777777777777777 4 GAS TURBINE CYCLE $\begin{array}{c} 127.1\\ 638.817\\ 638.817\\ 23.334.0\\ 23.334.0\\ 23.334.0\\ 23.334.0\\ 22.344.0\\ 22.344.0\\ 22.344.0\\ 22.344.0\\ 22.344.0\\ 22.344.0\\ 22.344.0\\ 22.344.0\\ 22.344.0\\ 22.344.0\\ 22.344.0\\ 23.342.0\\ 23.342.0\\ 24.0330\\$ 117.594 34.163 8.050 0.0 4746.379 3 LOW BTU GAS 1.974 1.822 4.206 3.318 3.318 3.215 10.776 2.538 1278,456 2 HIGH BTU GAS 142.22 142.22 142.25 142.25 142.25 155.145 155.145 155.245 155.245 155.245 155.245 155.245 155.245 155.245 155.245 155.25 155. 10.693 126.182 36.522 8.363 0.0 5578.398 1980 GROSS INVESTMENI -MEDICAL & EDUCATION SERV FED GUVT ENTERPRISES STATE&LOCAL GOVT ENTERPP CHARTER STRAVEL, GIFTS CFFICE SUPPLIES SCRAP, SECONDHAND GUODS TOTAL DUTPUT AUTC REPAIR & SERVICE **APUSEMENTS** MP JRTS

involved in low BTU gas production and that for high BTU gas production. Here it must also be remembered that even though both are gaseous fuels, they are vastly different in properties and that low BTU gas is not economical to transport very far. Also the differences in capital costs are softened somewhat by differences in efficiencies so that the high BTU plant has a lower fuel cost. It is definitely true though that the high BTU gas will cost more, perhaps twice as much.

> 3.2 Impacts of Capital Expenditures for High BTU Coal Gasification

There are three parameters that determine the magnitude of the economic impact of capital spending for coal gasification. These factors are (1) how much is spent per plant, (2) how many plants must be built, and (3) how rapidly these plants must be built. Of course, a fourth factor would be the regional density of such plants that would determine the local impacts of such capital expenditures. A fifth factor which could be considered is that of the feedback effect of growth in a particular sector of the economy. The impact of this last factor is best illustrated with two examples. First, the expansion of electric generation facilities typically requires the concomitant expansion of transmission facilities if not distribution and administrative facilities. Second, industries which supply products to the growing industry (for example, coal mining in the case of electric generation) must expand their capacity in order to be able to supply the increased needs of the growing sector. In this chapter the impacts of the rate of capital spending in coal gasification or in the other new technologies will not be discussed. Because so-called economic acceleration effects and the feedback effects of growth are being ignored, the numbers which follow must be regarded as the minimum economic impacts of these expenditures. To properly

deal with these impacts, one needs a dynamic input-output model. The next chapter will discuss dynamic model simulations and results. Because a national aggregate model was used, local and regional effects were washed out. We will attempt to indicate what some of the regional impacts will be by looking at the probable location of many of these plants utilizing new energy technology.

The cost of a high BTU coal gasification plant by the time the technology becomes commercially available is very difficult to predict. Because the figures are in constant dollars, inflation is not a problem but there are still many technological uncertainties involved in the processes.

For this report the capital costs derived in Appendix D will be used. Thus, a new high BTU coal gasification plant utilizing the IGT electrothermal hydrogasification process is expected to cost \$354.8 billion dollars in 1970. This cost is expected to escalate by 5 to 10 percent for each year of delay beyond 1971. This price deflates to \$274.2 million in 1958 prices. If one allows for a 20 percent contingency factor as some people at IGT have recommended, then the cost of the plant in 1958 dollars is \$329.0 billion. The more optimistic and lower figure will be used here.

To find the number of plants required per year, it was assumed that commercialization of high BTU coal gasification would not take place until 1980. This is certainly true for the Hygas process. The gasification plant that El Paso plans to have in production for 1976 may start a snowballing of new plants but presumably most of the industry will wait to see how El Paso fares before jumping into plant construction. The FPC estimates that 1.4 trillion cubic feet of synthetic gas will be supplied in 1985 and that 13.7 trillion cubic feet must be obtained from presently unknown sources. [18, p. 5]. These estimates form the basis for the two high BTU coal gasification scenarios summarized in Figure 3.11. The low estimate implies

HIGH BTU COAL GASIFICATION SCENARIOS

Low Capacity: Enough investment in Hygas process to meet FPC estimate of 1.4 trillion cu. ft of synthetic gas from coal in 1985

> Total Investment¹: \$2,340 million (8.5 plants) Yearly Investment: \$468 million (1.7 plants)

High Capacity: Enough investment in Hygas process to meet FPC estimate of 13.7 trillion cu. ft. of unfilled demand for gas in 1985

> Total Investment: \$22,889 million (83.5 plants) Yearly Investment: \$4,578 million (16.7 plants)

¹All figures in 1958 dollars

that almost nine 500,000 MCF/day high BTU gas plants must be constructed between 1980 and 1985. Assuming that these come on line at the rate of 1.75 per year and that the time distirbution of the plant investment is uniform, Figure 3.12 describes the economic impacts (the Low Capacity column) and compares this to the impact of the total 1980 GPDI. The most significant impact is in sector 51, plumbing and structural metal products (produces boilers and pressure vessels) where 1.6% of the total investment is for high BTU gas plants. This is hardly a significant result, but then 1.75 plants per year represents less than \$600 million (1958 dollars) out of a total GPDI of \$184 billion and a total GNP of \$1.155 trillion.

Column 3 presents data for the high capacity future. In this future, it becomes national policy not to depend on overseas sources for natural gas. If high BTU coal gasification is to make up the gap between domestic production and consumption, over 85 of the standard 500,000 MCF plants must be constructed between 1980 and 1985. This amounts to over 17 plants per year. Under this crash program, sector 51 (Plumbing and Structural Metal) again gets the most impact (16%). In fact the crunch is somewhat worse than appears here because most of the impact occurs among boiler makers and pressure vessel manufacturers, which amount to about 15% of the total sector. Thus these sub-industries might have to expand by almost 100% if such a crash program were undertaken.

The other way, of course, for this difficulty to arise is if all of the new energy technologies expand moderately fast. Since all of these technologies require large inputs from sector 51, the combined impact could be quite significant.

To get some idea of the regional impacts, estimated reserves by state are provided in Figure 3.13. It can be readily seen North Dakota, Montana, Wyoming, and many of the Rocky Mountain States have substantial coal deposits. Much

MAJOR¹ IMPACTS² OF LOW AND HIGH CAPACITY SCENARIOS FOR HIGH BTU COAL GASIFICATION (millions of 1958 dollars)

		1980 GPDI	Low	High
	Sector		<u>Capacity</u>	Capacity
5	Ferrous Metal Mining	908	\$ 3.4	\$ 31 (3 74)
6	Non Ferrous Metal Mining	829	29	
7	Coal Mining	558	4 6	25 (3.5%) 15 (8 0%)
11	New Construction	74246	164 5	1600 (2.0%)
44	Stone & Clay Products	7045	17 0	166 (2.2%)
45	Primary Steel	12092	51 0	100(2.4%)
48	Primary Non-Ferrous		51.0	300 (4.1%)
	Metals	2679	10 /	102 (2 04)
49	Misc. Non-ferrous		10.4	102 (3.0%)
	Metals	9161	30 5	200 (2 28)
51	Plumbing & Structural		50.5	299 (3.3%)
	Metals	8247	138 2	1252 (16 19)
54	Other Fabricated Metals	5417	21 0	1333 (10.4%) 200 / 0 Ed
55	Engines & Turbines	1844	16 2	244 (4.5%) 150 (0.6%)
61	General Ind. Machinery	6040	51 2	100(0.0%)
64	Service Ind. Machinery	1786	J4.J 0 E	551(0.0%)
66	Electrical Ind. Machinery	8900	2/ 9	03(4.0%)
81	Water Transportation	524	24.0	243(2.7%)
89	Wholesale Trade	20424	4.5	44(8.4%)
90	Retail Trade	14033	44.1 20 E	431(2.1%)
91 91	Finance and Insurance	4295	20.5	200 (1.4%)
94	Rusiness Services	14151	10.U 27 A	157(3.7%)
101	Imports	10506	3/.4 22 1	300 (2.0%)
TOT	ruhot co	10000	22.1	210 (2.1%)

¹Major is defined as over \$160 million or over 3% of GPDI impact for High Capacity Scenario. ²Impacts defined as total sales (X^I), required to

²Impacts defined as total sales $(\underline{X}^{I})_{I}$ required to support given level of investment \underline{Y}^{I} or $\underline{X}^{I} = (\underline{1}-\underline{A})^{-1}$

COAL RESERVES OF THE UNITED STATES BY STATES (MILLIONS OF TONS)

			Fst. total Remaining re-	Est. total Remaining re-
			sources in	sources in
			the ground	the ground
	Bituminou	s	0-3,000 ft.	0-6,000 ft
	Coal	Total	overburden	overburden
Alabama	13,518	13,538	33,538	39,538
Alaska	19,415	1 30, 089	260,089	265,089
Arkansas	1,640	2,420	6,420	6,420
Colorado	62,389	80,715	226,715	371,715
Georgia	18	18	78	78
Illinois	139,756	139,756	239,756	239,756
Indiana	34,779	34,779	56,779	56,779
Iowa	6,519	6,519	20,519	20,519
Kansas	18,686	18,686	22,686	22,686
Kentucky	65,952	65,952	117,952	117,952
Maryland	1,172	1,172	1,572	1,572
Michigan	205	205	705	705
Missouri	23,359	23,359	23,359	2 3, 359
Montan a	2,299	221,701	378,701	378,701
New Mexico	10,760	61,479	88,479	109,479
N. Carolina	a 110	110	130	135
N. Dakota	0	350,680	530,680	530,680
Ohio	41,864	41,864	43,864	43,864
Ok laho ma	3,299	3,299	23,299	33,299
Oregon	48	332	432	432
Pennsylvan [.]	ia 57,533	69,650	79,650	79,650
S. Dakota	ŋ	2,031	3,031	3,031
Tennessee	2,652	2,652	4,652	4,652
Texas	6,048	12,926	26,926	26,926
Utah	3 2,100	32,250	80,250	115,250
Virginia	9,710	10,045	13,045	13,145
Washington	1,867	6,183	36,183	51,183
W. Virginia	a 1C2,034	102,034	102,034	102,034
Wyoming	12,699	120,710	445,710	545,710
Other State	es <u>6</u> 18	4,721	5,721	5,721
TOTAL	671,049	1,559,875	2,872,955	3,210,060

Source: 1970 Keystone Coal Industry Manual [30] p, 303.

of this is low-sulfur coal and readily strip mineable. Illinois, Iowa, Missouri, and parts of Kansas and Oklahoma also have significant coal deposits. And of course there are the old strip mining states of Pennsylvania, Ohio, West Virginia, and Kentucky. Much of the current activity for coal gasification pilot plants is centered in North Dakota and Illinois. Because of the increasingly strict sulfur regulations on power plant emissions, eastern coals which are relatively high sulfur content are in danger of losing their market. The eastern coal companies are deparately looking for new markets and new desulfurization methods. The East then will be a prime target for both high BTU and low BTU coal gasification methods. Because of the proximity to significant energy use centers, low BTU coal gasification may be more economical in the East than in the West where transmission distances are longer. The only economical way to open up the vast western reserves of low-sulfur coal may be a high BTU coal gasification method. Transportation costs for these high-volume low heating value coals (70% of F.O.B. mine value for bituminous) would be very high while transportation cost for pipeline gas are much less. Thus, not only will high BTU goal gasification be used to supplement our dwindling natural gas supplies, but it may also prove to be the most economical method of transporting the low-sulfur western coal to the east and midwest load centers.

The problems of constructing and operating the three hundred and fifty million dollar plant in relatively unpopulated North Dakota, for example, can easily be imagined. Construction labor would undoubtedly have to be imported for this task which is going to significantly raise the cost of such a plant. If the importation of construction labor was indeed required, the local economic effects would be lessened since much of the laborer's money would be channeled out of the area to his home. Since equipment purchases are already made outside of the local area, the combined effect is to significantly reduce the amount of money injected into the local economy. Roughly one third to one quarter of total cost of the plants represents equipment cost. Another 10-14% consists of interest charges. Thus if construction used a local labor pool, 50-60% of the total plant cost would be circulated in the community. Because of the distribution effect, every billion dollars of construction activity employs about 46,700 workers in the construction industry but about 102,700 in all industries (about 3/4 of which would be located in the proximity of the construction site). The average trade margin for personal consumption expenditures is 21.6% and the value added fraction for retail trade is .733. Thus in current dollars every Hygas Plant constructed at \$354.8 million could result in (\$354.8 x .5 x .75 x 1.216 x .733) \$118.6 million of GNP generation in the vicinity of the plant.

The local effects of the operation of the plant will be discussed in Chapter 4.

3.3 Low BTU Coal Gasification

Low BTU coal gasification cannot be used to supply synthetic gas over very long distances. Because of its low heat content (typically 150 to 200 BTU/SCF as compared to natural gas at 1000 BTU/SCF, the effective diameter or carrying capacity of the pipeline is diminished by a factor of between five and seven. This is just not an economical way to ship gas. However, because of the ease of cleaning up hydrogen sulfide from relatively concentrated gas volumes as compared with cleaning SO₂ from stack gases in relatively dilute volumes, low BTU coal gasification definitely has a place. A very natural place for it is in the electric utility industry where the low BTU, highvolume gas will mesh very nicely with new gas turbine electric generation techniques.

To illustrate the economic impacts in more detail, the two scenarios of figure 3.14 concentrate the projected low BTU gas market share on the coal-using sector of the electric utility unit. Figure 3.15 illustrates the impact of the two different market shares for the low BTU gas. The second column of Figure 3.15 represents a 5% market share of the coal-using electric generation plants in 1985. Such a market share corresponds to the addition of 3.6 plants every year. Column three represents a 20% market share for the low BTU gas. This market share corresponds to the addition of slightly over 14 plants per year between 1980 and 1985. Considering the 1975 emission standards for electric generation plants, this may be a very conservative projection of the coal-using electric utility market share. For example, Commonwealth Edison is currently installing a first-generation low efficiency Lurgi gasification plant on an experimental basis to help it to meet the 1975 SO₂ emission standards. Growth in coal-fired plants alone could require 12 plants per year but because of the low cost of these plants (only \$27.5 million per plant in current dollars), even the high capacity scenario has almost no economic impact.

3.4 The Gas Turbine Topping Cycle (COGAS Cycle)

Assuming that the gas turbine technology develops as expected and at somewhat close to the predicted prices, the combined gas-steam cycle for electric power generation look extremely attractive. This is especially true when used in conjunction with a low BTU coal gasification plant because the gas turbines allow one to extract much of the sensible heat contained in the low BTU gas as well as the chemical energy.

12.3

LOW BTU COAL GASIFICATION SCENARIOS

Low	Capacity:	Enough investment to have 5% share of 1985 coal-burning electric utility market (which FPC estimates is 13.86 quadrillion BTU or 370 low BTU gas plants)				
		Total Investment ¹ : \$393 million (18.5 plants) ² Yearly Investment ¹ : \$78.6 million (3.65 plants)				
High	Capacity:	Enough investment to have 20% share of 1985 coal-burning electric utility market				
		Total Investment ¹ : \$1572 million (74 plants) Yearly Investment ¹ : \$314.4 million (14.6 plants)				

¹All investments in 1958 dollars. ²Plant sizes are described in Figure 3.6 MAJOR¹ IMPACTS² OF LOW AND HIGH CAPACITY SCENARIOS³ FOR LOW BTU COAL GASIFICATION (millions of 1958 dollars)

	Sector	1980 <u>GPDI</u> 4	Low <u>Capacity</u>	High Capacity
45	Prima r y Steel	12092	7.5	29.9 (0.25%)
51	Plumbing & Structural Metal Prods.	8247	13.2	52.8 (0.64%)
61	General Industrial Machinery	6041	7.5	30.0 (0.50%)
94	Business Services	14151	7.7	30.7 (0.22%)

¹Major means any impact over \$30 million or over 0.5% of the GPDI impact for each sector by the High Capacity scenario.
²Impacts refers to total sales of each sector required to sustain the indicated level of investment.
³For definitions of scenarios see Figure 3.14.

⁴Gross Private Domestic Investment

The two scenarios for COGAS are summarized in Figure 3.16 while Figure 3.17 illustrates the economic impact of the capital expenditures for these numbers of gas turbine topping cycle plants. The figures in column 2 assume that gas turbine topping cycle power stations capture 6% of all electric generation capacity growth between 1980 and 1985. The FPC estimates that 184,000 MW of fossil and 140,000 MW of nuclear generation will be added between these years. This amounts to approximately 4 COGAS plants of one thousand megawatt capacity coming on line per year. Column 3 presents similar figures under the assumption that 25% of all growth between '80 and '85 will be captured by the gas turbine topping cycle type of station. This later fraction may be quite high, however at this point in time, the economics of the topping cycle look extremely attractive and it has the additional advantage of being very low in thermal pollution, (because of the increased efficiency and because the gas turbine part of the power cycle is air cooled).

The major impact for this case occurs in Engines and Turbines (sector 55). This is to be expected considering the nature of the gas turbine topping cycle plant. The small impact on the boiler makers reflects the fact that much of the power is generated in the topping cycle and the waste heat boiler is of much simpler construction than a typical modern supercritical, water-wall, once-through boiler. If the gasturbine in this plant had been assigned to Aircraft and Parts (sector 73, because it may be a modified aircraft engine) instead of to Engines and Turbines, the impact would have been even less significant percentage-wise because of the larger size of sector 73. Even though turbines for electric generation base load are a new product for the Aircraft industry, the significance is lost because of the aggregation level of the input-output table. Even at 110 order this problem

GAS TURBINE TOPPING CYCLE (COGAS) SCENARIOS

Low Capacity: Enough investment to make up 6% of expected (FPC estimated) growth in electric generation capacity between 1980 and 1985. Total expected growth of 324,000 MW of which 140,000 MW will be nuclear. Total Investment¹: \$1489 million (20.5 plants)²

Yearly Investment: \$298 million (4.1 plants)

- High Capacity: Enough investment to make up 25% of expected growth in electric generation capacity between 1980 and 1985.
 - Total Investment: \$5957 million (82 plants) Yearly Investment: \$1191 million (16.4 plants)

¹All investments in 1958 dollars. ²Plant sizes are described in Figure 3.6.

MAJOR¹ IMPACTS² OF THE LOW AND HIGH CAPACITY SCENARIOS FOR COGAS (GAS TURBINE TOPPING CYCLE)

	Sector	1980 ₃ GPDI ³ (millions c	Low <u>Capacity</u> of 1958 dollars)	Hi <u>Cap</u> a	igh acity
11	New Construction	74246	59.6	239	(0.32%)
44	Stone & Clay Products	7046	7.3	29	(0.42%)
45	Primary Steel	12092	18.0	72	(0.60%)
49	Misc. Non-Ferrous				, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
	Metals	9161	14.9	59	(0.65%)
51	Plumbing & Structural				
	Metal Products	8247	30.5	122	(1.48%)
54	Other Fabricated				· · ·
	Metal Products	5417	12.7	51	(0.94%)
55	Engines & Turbines	1844	63.9	256	(13.86%)
61	General Industrial				· · · · ·
	Machinery	6041	8.9	36	(0.59%)
62	Machine Shop Prods	1454	4.1	16	(1.12%)
66	Electrical Industry				
	Equip.	8900	39.3	157	(1.77%)
81	Water Transportation	524	1.8	7.3	(1.39%)
89	Wholesale Trade	20424	21.2	85.0	(0.42%)
90	Retail Trade	14033	9.9	39.8	(0.28%)
91	Finance and Insurance	4295	7.2	28.7	(0.67%)
94	Business Services	14151	24.6	98.4	(0.70%)
101	Imports	10506	11.8	47.0	(0.45%)

¹Major refers to impacts over 24 million or over 1% of GPDI impact on each sector by High Capacity scenario. ²Impacts refer to the total sales of each sector required to sustain the indicated level of investment. ³Gross Private Domestic Investment. of lack of detail exists because the major impacts of the new technologies occurs on one particular subindustry of a larger sector. Thus the impact gets "averaged down."

Regional impacts of the construction of gas turbine topping cycle generation plants are very similar to those for the construction of the various coal gasification plants. The differences are that while the gas turbine topping cycle plants will tend to be associated with the low BTU gasification plants, they are very natural candidates for construction anywhere in the country because of the increased efficiency of these plants.

3.5 Nuclear Steam Generation

Figure 3.18 describes the scenarios for the addition of nuclear capacity, while Figure 3.19 illustrates the results of these scenarios. The FPC estimates that 140,000 MW of nuclear generation will be added between 1980 and 1985. Low expenditures refer to 7,000 MW per year being added (25% of projected), while high refers to 28,000 MW being added (100%of projected). As the chart indicates, there are likely to be capacity constraints in several industries such as Plumbing and Structural Metal Products (sector 51 which manufactures pressure vessels), and Engines and Turbines (sector 55 which manufactures turbogenerators). This could be especially pronounced because all of the new technologies that we have discussed impact on these two industries. The combined effect will be quite large if the industries grow as expected. It must be remembered that part of the reason that nuclear generation plants are so expensive is that assemblies (especially the pressure vessel) must be tested quite extensively for leaks. This particular capability is not possessed by many manufacturers so the resulting "crunch" could be

NUCLEAR GENERATION SCENARIOS

- Low Capacity: Enough investment to yield 25% of the FPC estimate of 140,000 MW of nuclear capacity additions between 1980 and 1985. Total Investment¹: \$7149 million (35 plants)² Yearly Investment: \$1430 million (7 plants)
- High Capacity: Enough investment to yield 100% of the estimated 140,000 MW of nuclear capacity additions between 1980 and 1985 Total Investment: \$28596 million (140 plants)

Yearly Investment: \$5719 million (28 plants)

¹All figures in 1958 dellars.

²Plant sizes are described in Figure 3.6

MAJOR¹ IMPACTS² OF LOW AND HIGH CAPACITY SCENARIOS FOR NUCLEAR GENERATION

	Sector	1980 GPDI (milli	Low <u>Capacity</u> ons of 1958	H <u>Cap</u> dolla	igh acity ars)
5	Ferrous Metal Mining	908	7.7	31	(3.49%)
6	Nonferrous Metal Mining	829	7.3	29	(3.50%)
28	Printing & Publishing	3304	26.8	107	(3.25%)
45	Primary Steel	12092	114.0	456	(3.77%)
46	Iron & Steel Foundries	2197	17.5	70	(3.19%)
47 48	Iron & Steel Forgings Primary Non-ferrous Metal	809 26 7 9	7.3 25.7	$\begin{array}{c} 29\\ 103 \end{array}$	(3.59%) (3.84%)
49	Misc. non-ferrous Metals	9161	75.1	300	(3.28%)
51	Plumbing & Structural Metals	8247	295.5	1182	(14.33%)
54	Other Fab Metal Prods	5416	47.9	192	(3.54%)
55	Engines & Turbines	1844	248.1	993	(53.82%)
60	Special Industry Mach.	4296	35.9	144	(3.35%)
61	General Industry Mach.	6041	55.9	224	(3.70%)
62	Machine Shop Prods.	1454	17.1	68	(4.72%)
68	Elec. Lighting Equip.	2489	22.9	91	(3.69%)
81	Water Transportation	524	$9.1 \\ 45.1 \\ 137.0$	36	(6.95%)
91	Finance & Insurance	4295		181	(4.21%)
94	Business Services	14152		548	(3.87%)

¹Major refers to impacts over 24 million or over 1% of GPDI impact on each sector by High Capacity scenario.

- ²Impacts refer to the total salesof each sector required to sustain the indicated level of investment.
- ³Gross Private Domestic Investment.

very severe unless plans are made to avert it. Hopefully private industry is willing to expand to take care of this expected demand but the risks are quite large.

4.1 Overview of Chapter

This chapter consists of two major sections. The first describes the major economic impacts of operating the new energy technology plants.²¹ Three new technologies are discussed in this chapter:

- 1. High BTU coal gasification (Hygas process)
- 2. Low BTU coal gasification
- Gas turbine topping cycle electricity generation fueled by low BTU gasified coal (this is a combination of the two processes described in Chapter 3).

Conventional nuclear steam electric generation is again used as a reference. The topping cycle and low BTU coal qasification were combined because this combination represents the most likely utilization of both processes.

It will be shown that only a few industries are significantly affected by the operation of such plants and consequently the fewer comparisons will be made. There will be no calculations of High and Low utilization impacts of the new technologies as there were in Chapter 3.

Any discussion of non-economic impacts (such as SO₂ emissions or employment) that result from operating the plants will be put off until the 1985 projections are presented in Chapter 5.

²¹ For definitions of "impacts" and other terms, see Chapter 3

The second section of this chapter describes the major price changes that can be expected to occur over the long run if the prices of various energy sources rise, assuming that no substitution occurs. A firm conclusion that arises is that the price of most non-energy consumer goods²² will not change very significantly (typically 1% price rise for 50% jump in energy process). The major deficiency of the results is that one cannot tell how the various fuel's market shares will change or how competition between basic materials like steel and aluminum will be affected. It is the assumption of no substitution that weakens the results.

4.2 Impacts of New Technology Operations

4.2.1 Perspective

Before discussing the impacts of operating new technology plants, the current operations of the energy industries should be put into perspective. Figure 4.1 presents various capital and operating ratios of the energy industries. Their large capital/output ratios were discussed in Chapter 3. The size of the value-added coefficient which reflects labor and capital contributions to the value of the product are quite high in general, with the possible exception of petroleum refining which has a very high throughput of material. The employee/output ratio indicates that most of the value-added coefficient is made up of capital costs. The energy industries as a whole make up only 4.5% of GNP when measured by valueadded and only 3.5% of GNP when measured by sales to final demand.²³ Despite the fact that the value-added coefficients

22 Consumer goods are things like cars and lampshades that primarily are purchased by Households as opposed to steel indots or raw plastic that are primarily purchased by industry.

23 GNP can be found by summing either total incomes (value added) or total sales to final consumers (final demand). Hence the size of industries in comparison to GNP can be measured in these two ways FIGURE 4.1

SELECTED FIGURES FOR THE ENERGY SUPPLY INDUSTRIES

	Employees/ Output	Capital/ Output	% of GNP by Value	gNP by Final	Value Added	Fuel Inputs	
	Ratios	Ratios	Added	Demand	Coefficient	portation	
Coal Mining	54.0	1.00	.26	60.	.584	1	
Crude Petroleum & Natural Gas	25.3	1.40	1.17	22	.565	E I	
Petroleum Refining	8.4	. 80	. 86	1.75	.232	.470	
Electricity	22.4	5.30	1.55	1.22	.594	.279	
Natural Gas	22.2	2.50	.68	.66	.354	.535	
Totals		1	4.52	3.50	ł	1	
Averages	34.9	. 80	8	£ t	ß	l F	

Sources: Capital/Output ratios - [21] Value Added Coefficient - [49] Fuel Input Coefficients - [49] % of GNP

are so high, fuel inputs to these energy producing and processing industries make up a very significant portion of the remainder of the cost. In fact, when value added and fuel inputs are removed from technological coefficient vectors of the energy industries, less than 25% is usually left to allocate among all of the rest of the industries.

More detail on the electrical industry can be found in Figure 4.2. In this breakdown over 58% of the cost of electricity is made up of fixed costs, primarily capital charges and taxes. Fuel costs make up another 16% of the total costs leaving a mere 26% to be divided among the rest of the operating accounts. Figure 4.3 presents the same graphic picture of capital intensiveness and fuel intensiveness for the gas utility industry. Over 75% of total operating expenses for the gas utilities is made up of the costs of natural gas purchases and total operating expenses make up almost 75% of the cost of gas to the consumer.

4.2.2 Economic Impacts of New Technology Plant Operation

The economic impacts of operating a coal gasification plant are quite different from those of constructing the plant. No capital producing sectors are affected by plant operation. And only the fuel supplying sectors are significantly impacted.

The economic impacts of new technology operations will be illustrated in two ways, similar to those employed in the Chapter 3:

 Iso - dollar impacts - the outputs of each sector required to support the production of \$10 billion worth of energy by each new technology and by nuclear steam electricity generation.

FIGURE 4.2

COST OF ELECTRICITY

1968 Actual

		% OT	% OT
	<u>Mills/Kwhr</u>	<u>Category</u>	<u>Total Cost</u>
Power Production Costs			
Fuel	2.47	33	16
Other Operating & Maintenance	e 1.34	18	9
Fixed Charges	3.71	<u>49</u>	24
Total Production Cost	7.52	100%	49%
Transmission Costs			
Operating & Maintenance	.25	13	1
Fixed Charges	1.66	87	<u>11</u>
Total Transmission	1.91	100%	12%
Distribution Costs			
Operating & Maintenance	1.64	32	11
Fixed Charges	3.56	<u>68</u>	<u>23</u>
Total Distribution	5.20	100%	34%
Administration	.79	100%	<u> </u>
Total Cost of Power	15.42	,	100%
Source: [17], p. I-19-10	<u>.</u>		
Breakdown of Fixed Costs (14.2)	% of Investm	ent or 8.9	3 mills/Kwhr
Cost of Money		8.2%	,
Depreciation	and Replacem	ents 1.2%)
Insurance		.2%	
Income Taxes		2.2%	1
Uther laxes		2.4%	1
Source: [17], p. I-19-6			

FIGURE 4.3 a

CLASSIFICATION OF GAS OPERATING EXPENSES AS PERCENT OF TOTAL, ALL NATURAL GAS COMPANIES, 1970

Note: Includes both straight and combination gas companies

	197	0
Type of Expense	Maintenance	Total Operation & Maintenance
Purchased gas cost	0.0	75.9
Other Production & purch. exp.	0.3	1.6
Production & Purchases, Total	0.3	77.5
Storage	0.2	0.9
Transmission	0.9	4.3
Distribution	2.2	6.3
C usto mer accounts		2.9
Sales		1.8
Administrative & General	0.1	6.3
To tal Operating Expense	3.8	100.0

1 Less than 0.05 percent.

Source: [1], p. 194

FIGURE 4.3 b

COMPOSITE INCOME ACCOUNTS, TOTAL INVESTOR-OWNED GAS UTILITY INDUSTRY, INTERIM BASIS, 1970

(Millions)

	Amount	%
Total Operating Revenues	\$16,380	100.0%
Operating expenses-maintenance Operating expenses-operation Total Operating Expenses	431 11,205 11,636	2.6 68.4 71.0
Depreciation, retirements, depletion, amortization, etc.	1,101	6.7
Federal Income Taxes ¹ All Other Taxes Total taxes	639 930 1,569	3.9 5.6 9.5
Total Operating Expenses	14,306	87.3
Operating income Other income (non-operating) Gross income	2,074 310 2,384	12.6 1.8 14.5
Interest on long-term debt Other income deductions Total income deductions	867 90 957	5.2 .5 5.8
Net income	1,427	8.7

Includes provision for deferred federal income taxes.

Source: [1], p. 172

 Iso-energy impacts - the outputs of each sector required to support the production of 5 trillion BTU/day (or 25 billion Kwhr/year) by each new technology and by nuclear steam electricity generation.

Before proceeding, it is important to state that the \$10 billion of energy were assumed to be purchased at the average consumer price levels for the different fuels that include transportation, distribution, and administration costs. The impacts that will be presented are caused <u>only</u> by that portion of this \$10 billion that is used for generation. The generation cost of each new energy source is compared in Figure 4.4 with the average customer cost (average revenue per MMBTU) for fuel. The total energy purchased by \$10 billion from each source is indicated in Figure 4.5.

The actual impacts of the \$10 billion energy purchases are depicted in Figure 4.6. The first column contains the projected 1980 total output of each sector for comparison. The most obvious impact occurs in coal mining where the coal requirements for the various processes represent 50-75% of the total projected 1980 coal usage.

This impact on coal mining will not mean reonening many old mines and greatly expanded business for other miners however. Since the coal requirements of the gasification schemes are so great, they must be sited near large coal fields. Possible locations of these fields were discussed in Chapter 3 but the gasification plants will most likely require the development of <u>new</u> mines, not the expansion of old mines. Thus the coal mining industry will be forced to expand but it will be a very localized expansion. Other impacts are not nearly as significant as coal with the possible exception of limestone purchase (for SO_2 scrubbing) by the high BTU gas plants.

²⁴ Because of the difference in costs between strip and underground mining, these coal fields must most likely be strip mineable.

141

FIGURE 4.4

GENERATION COST vs. AVERAGE CUSTOMER COST FOR EACH NEW TECHNOLOGY

		Average 1
Technology	Generation Cost	Customer Revenue
	1970 Dollars	1970 Dollars
High BTU Coal Gasification	72.6¢/MMBTU	101.7¢/MMBTU (84.8¢/MMBTU) ²
Low BTU Coal Gasification	37.1¢/MMBTU	66.3¢/MMBTU (55.3¢/MMBTU)
Gas Turbine Topping Cycle	5.5 mills/kwhr	15.4 mills/kwhr (16.1 mills/kwhr)

1 Calculated by assuming any additional generation costs (over the average 1970 generation costs for gas or electricity) were passed on to the customers on a dollar for dollar basis.

2 Numbers in parentheses are deflated to 1958 dollars.

FIGURE 4.5

\$10 BILLION ENERGY PURCHASES (AT AVERAGE CUSTOMER COST)

<u>Technology</u>	Generation Portion ¹ 	Energ	gy Purc	<u>chased</u>
High BTU Coal Gasification	\$7.1	15.0	(10 ¹⁵	BTU)
Low BTU Coal Gasification	\$5.6	18.1	(10 ¹⁵	BTU)
Gas Turbine Topping Cycle	\$3.6	6.2	(10 ¹⁴	kwhr)

1 Impacts are assumed to be caused only by that portion of the \$10 billion actually used to generate gas or electricity with new technology. No transportation, distribution, administration changes or profits are included.

1 L'JLAL DUTPJF	Z HIGH BTU GAS	3 Lrw rtu gas	4 Gas turbine cycle	5 Nuclear Steam	
44765.242	12.400	11.230	5.900	13.830	
4U234.406	14.700	15.130	6.800	13.900	
U54.8662	005.1	4°6)	000-0	1 - 200	
2028.351	4.300	5.300	2 • 2 00	19.300	
3,196.648	4 • 30)	6.133	2.500	29.900	
4128.605	23C3+800	3436.699	953.799		
620.552.623 4430.570	1 82 500	8, 700	5,200	12.200	
22.04.724	4.900	5.400	2.000	89.700	
((0.12/11	0.0	C • C	0.0	C. (
501 36. 7C3	234.500	305.800	335 800	475.600	
8330.141	G. 500	C.600	0.300	0.700 34 500	
14706.305	((c • 02	19.400	2-100	8.600	
yu66.117	1-400	((1,1))	1.5.00	1.3))	
20215.530	000*5	11.200	4.000	5.900	
0102.750	5.900	7.000	2 • 500	3.400	
2228.635	2-300	2.775	1.100	2.200	
0C0-020C		1.400	00000	1.1.2	
C12+21211	0054.0	00 E 00	008 07	0.4.00	
		0.500	002.0	0.300	
+d62.805	0.400	0.500	0.400	0.533	
554°R617	3 200	3.500	1.600	6.500	
20438.598	39. 400	39.200	17.600	48.900	
1)182.64L	5 • 8U J	11.500	5.5)3	21.000	
31614.461 14 10 205	61.000	000 001	20.5.02	008 LEVE	
570 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50	2.300	2-500	000-1	19-300	
7.02.125	009*5	30.000	10.200	32.900	
299.63262	29-600	39.1))	17.233	118.833	
22211.935	7.400	25.600	23.000	68.400	
4758.531	14.700	19-300	18.300	28.900	
10182.453 7.457	52.10)	66.9)) 2.200	24.900	165.900	
175 454	000 - 2		2 010		
21365.262	68-800	38,300	29-500	32.900	
782.647	1.000	0.5.0	0.100	0.200	
+157.785	3.530	1.51)	0.233	0.4.0	
5766.835	4. 400	5.500	3.600	10.200	
205/.411	5.600	4.000	2.900	4.500	
4000044	24 200	1.000	005*0	002.5	
31440.578	51.100	66.111	11 7 11		
2321.504	5.500	11-100	4 • 500	5.600	
223.343	4.300	5.400	1.900	3.200	
614.6610	(06-11	18.4))	((1,1))	47.930	1
23341.687 4157 512	007 2	010.00	26.900	51.200	•4
14/51.953	CC2 • 21	16.200	13-800	006-01	٢.
2411.82L	3.500	4.603	4.600	6.600	
J77C.930	17.500	24.8))	9.4.13	6.2))	
	44465.242 44265.242 24268.833 24268.833 24268.833 24268.833 24462.893 24462.802 24462.802 24462.805 24462.805 24464.605.305 24464.605.305 24464.605.305 24464.605.305 24464.605.305 24464.605.305 24464.605.305 24464.605.805.805 24464.605.805.805 24464.605.805.805.805 2455.805.805.805.805.805.805.805.805.805.8	444 95.242 12.400 42.34.406 21.66.831 2.466.831 1.300 2.466.831 1.300 2.466.831 1.300 2.466.831 1.300 2.466.831 1.300 2.466.831 1.300 2.466.831 1.300 2.466.831 1.300 2.466.831 2.303 2.400 2.4.300 2.4.300 2.4.300 2.4.300 2.4.300 2.4.300 2.4.300 2.4.300 2.4.300 2.4.300 2.4.300 2.4.300 2.4.300 2.4.300 2.4.300 2.4.300 2.4.300 2.4.300 2.4.300 2.4.300 2.4.300 2.4.300 2.4.300 2.4.45 1.1.400 2.4.300 2.4.300 2.4.45 2.4.300 2.4.45 2.4.300 2.4.45 2.4.300 2.4.45 2.4.300 2.4.45 2.4.300 2.4.460 2.4.400 2.	***65.242 12.400 11.700 **28.513 1.4100 1.400 2166.831 4.300 5.100 2428.451 4.300 5.100 5428.451 4.300 5.100 5428.451 4.300 5.100 5439.502 1.300 5.100 5439.512 232.900 3.5600 5430.121 1.200 5.100 5430.121 2.2900 3.5600 5430.121 2.2900 3.5600 5430.121 2.24.900 5.400 54400 1.1.200 5.400 54400 2.4.300 5.400 54400 2.4.300 5.400 54400 2.4.100 1.1.200 54400 2.4.100 1.1.200 54400 2.4.00 5.400 54400 2.4.100 1.1.200 54400 2.4.100 1.1.200 54411 2.4.100 1.1.200 54411 2.4.100 1.1.200 54411<	************************************	************************************

4.6 FIGURE

FOR NEW TECHNOLOGIES OUTPUT REQUIRED TO SUPPORT \$10 BILLION OF ENERGY PURCHASES (AT AVERAGE CONSUMER PRICES)¹

142

See Figure 4.5 and text for details.

FIGURE 4.6 (continued)

	1				
	TUTAL JUTPUT	FIGE 010 GAS	LCW RTU GAS	GAS TURBINE CYCLE	NUCLEAR SIER
54 OTHER FAN METAL PR.L.	1 74 30 - 105	28.400	35.900	18,900	C06*6E
55 ENCINES & TURNINES	570-734c	5-000	5.600	2.000	2.00
SA FARM WATTINEXY & FLUID	2007 - 54 Sec	2015-2	006-2	1.000	006 * 0
	1708.460	56.200	123-400	34.900	6.100
58 MATERIAL HAUDI - MALT	750,1453	19-600	24-61)	CC2-7	3.4))
SQ METAL MURKING MACH		14-800	20-500	6.600	5.300
60 SPECIAL INNISIRY MALE	740-7041	3- 500	4-100	1.600	45.600
61 GENERAL INUUSTRY MACH	1922-773	19.303	24.87)	8 200	9.400
62 MACHINE SHUP PRUJULIS	JU36.242	6. 000	7.500	2.900	4.600
63 OFFICE LUMP MACH	1947.691	16.200	15.300	5.733	11.8.77
64 SERVICE INUUSIKY MAL4	2162.651	1.900	1.900	3.200	1.300
65 REFRIG MACHINERY	192.910	2.100	2.800	2.400	3.300
66 ELECTRICAL INUUSTRY	160 91.199	28.303	38.7))	13.7)	14.5))
67 HOUSEPOLU APPLIANCES	42585.C78	3.000	3.700	3.100	4.500
68 FLEC LIUNING EQUIP	o794.C98	8.600	11.600	5.900	6.600
69 RADIG, TV & CUMM EUJIP	\$266.]23	5.933	6.200	3.200	5.700
70 ELEC COMP & ACLESS	24212.547	9.300	9.800	4.400	8.500
71 ELEC PACH ENP & SUPPLIES	181.83.781	3 • 300	3.4.))	1.6))	2.1))
72 MOTOR VEHICLES & LJULP	d2255.188	19.900	23.700	8.400	7.500
73 AIRCRAFT & PAKIS	22727.223	2.700	2.900	1.400	2.430
74 OTHER TKANSPUKT EWULP	10049.742	13.403	14.57)	4.4.00	2.000
75 SCIENTIFIC & CUNIKJE 145	10984.273	3.100	4.100	3.700	13.400
76 OPTICAL & PHUTU EQUIP	11096.168	7.600	1.000	3.600	8.333
77 MI SC MANUFACTURING	18596.335	13.200	14.530	6.400	9.200
78 RAILRUAD IKANSPURIALIJA	2282°105	54.800	34.600	42,300	73.700
79 LOCAL PASSENGER INANSPUR	8395.UJO	1.900	4.2))	3 • 2 39	((1.1
BJ TRUCK THANSPURIATIUN	20435.793	45.900	24.800	12.600	39.100
BI WATER TKANSPURTALIUN	d>63.441	4.600	5.000	2 • 2 00	13 . 800
82 AIR TRANSPURIATION	0746.148	13.200	7.310	5.233	12.600
B3 MISC TRANSPURIATION	JL 74.175	3.900	3.400	1.600	7.800
84 CCMMUNICATIONS EXC KAUGI	42004.512	47.100	48.700	26.700	52.130
UNICADIO & IV BRUAUCASIIN	2134.529	8.230	7.400	2.600	3.930
86 ELECTRIC UTILITIES	42955.723	174.200	226.300	70.000	101-600
87 GAS UTILITIES	26091.543	39.900	39.91)	15.7))	144.8))
88 WATER & SANITARY SERV	6928.310	145.200	86.000	37.200	15.400
89 WHOLESALE TKADE	864.480101	143.300	252.400	143.500	001-121
90 KEIAIL IKADE		(//°///	83.1))	56.500	11.300
91 FINANCE AND INSURANCE	10030-003	001-100	146./00	41.500	001.64
52 KEAL ESTATE & KENTAL 03 HOTEL - BLUC K VENALE	103063.313 41738 130	13-200	147°147	11. T.U.U	11.31)
DA RICINESE SERVICES	x 74 5 7 . 6 3 H	278.500	250-000	00.9.70	002 21
45 RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT	2 4 9 4 5 U	2 100	2261)		
96 AUTO REPAIR & SERVICE	20441-254	20-900	18-000	8.500	13.900
57 AMUSEMENIS	12098.379	6. 900	5.800	2.400	4.100
98 MEDICAL & EUUCATIUN SLAV	73478.753	13.430	0.00.11	4.200	6.000
99 FED GCVT ENTERPRISES	1425.173	17.500	16.500	6.300	10-500
100 STATESLUCAL GUVT ENTERPR	10440.035	55+600	58.8))	25.3))	[((1.9]
LJI IMPURTS	-3053.488	£ 7.100	67.300	27.800	191.500
102 RUSINESS TRAVEL, GIFLS	1407C.516	6C.300	31.700	23.900	59.030
LGS UPFILE SUPPLIES	470°14°0	13-800	((3.4	6.4 JJ	19.000
104 SCRAFT SECUNUMANU GUIDS		U.U 5741 152	0.0	0.0	
105 TUTAL UNITUR	2410 rs.000	761 *1 376	6153.504	2616.086	666.0206

Next, the impacts of purchases of 5 trillion BTU/day $(16.4 \times 10^{14} \text{ BTU/yr. at }90\%$ load factor) of gas or 25 billion kwhr. of electricity (which requires $16.4 \times 10^{14} \text{ BTU/yr. input}$) Figure 4.7. This comparison provides a good example of some problems with an input-output table at this level of aggregation using dollars to measure product flow. The dollar amounts of coal purchases for high and low BTU gas are about equal but, since the high BTU gas plant is purchasing lignite at approximately $12\ell/10^6$ BTU while the low BTU plant is using bituminous at $20\ell/10^6$ BTU, the coal purchases in terms of BTU's are quite different. This can be a problem whenever products are not homogeneous.

An example of a problem caused by the aggregation level (indeed even the 365 order table is not fine enough to solve this problem) is that the \$58 million worth of purchases of Crude Oil and Natural Gas (sector 8) by the nuclear generating plants is caused largely by purchases of fuel reprocessing services from Industrial Chemicals (sector 29). Since many industrial chemicals require a petroleum feedstock, the technical coefficients for the aggregate Industrial Chemicals sector show a significant input from Petroleum Refining (sector 35) which causes the demand on Crude Oil. Fuel reprocessing cannot be purchased alone because it is not a separate sector. Perhaps in 10 to 15 years when it grows in size, it may become one. This growth of new industries within old sectors is a natural result of standard industrial classification schemes. Such schemes cannot be expected to foresee all new industries. Carter has noted both of these problems previously in Reference 6, p. 8 and p. 12.

Because of the limited economic impacts of operating the new technology plants, further discussion of the operations will be put off until the 1985 projections are presented in Chapter 5. Non-economic impacts will also be described there. FIGURE 4.7

OUTPUTS REQUIRED TO SUPPORT PURCHASES OF 5 TRILLION BTU/DAY FROM NEW TECHNOLOGIES

		2	3	4	5
	INTRUC JAINI	HIGH BIU 645	LOW HTU GAS	GAS TURBINE LYCLE	NULLEAK SIERM
I LIVESTOLK & PRUDUCIS	44365.242	1.729	1.220	2.391	5.591
2 OTHER FARM PRUDUCIS	+J < 34 • + J Ó	2.350	1.645	2.755	5.632
3 FURESTRY & FISHERY PRUJ	255.530	0.418	0.501	0.810	2.066
4 FARM, FUKESI, FISH JLKV	Z166.331	0.181	0.185	0.365	3.486
5 FEPROUS METAL MININU	2028.351	C.600	0.577	0.891	7.820
6 NGNFERRUUS METAL MINING	3096.043	0.600	0.664	1.013	12.115
7 COAL PINING	4.228.605	321.219	374.346	386.456	9.481
8 CRUDE DIL ANU NALUKAL UN	<2352.J23	4.537	4.346	6.078	42.827
9 STONE & CLAY MINING	503-505 be	25.446	C. 948	2.107	4 • 943
D MINERAL MINING	2234.724	J.683	0.588	0.810	36.344
II NEW CONSTRUCTION	1174 16.303	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
Z MAINT & KEPAIR CUNSI	20136.703	32.696	33.31)	136.)58	102.71
<pre>13 ORDNANCE, ACCESSUNTES</pre>	141.0668	0.070	0.065	0.122	0.234
<pre>[4 FCOD & KINUKEU PKUJULIS</pre>	112436.125	3.667	2.113	5.065	13.979
5 GRAIN MILLING	1+1 36.335	0.60.0	1.447	0.851	3.495
6 TUPACCG MANUFACIUKES	4066.117	0.195	0.076	0.2.03	0.527
T FARRIC,YAKN,IHKU MILLS	265 15.930	1.255	1.220	1.621	2.391
19 MISC. TEXFILE GUUUS	u1)2.75)	0.823	0.762	1.013	1.378
9 APPAREL	200.83211	C.321	0.294	J • 4 46	0.891
O MISC FAB IEATILE PRODUCI	5a26.656	0.209). 152	0.243	0.638
21 LUMBER & WUGD PRULS	1,1.12.375	4.782	5.435	9.238	9.603
22 WOODEN CLNTAINERS	485.043	0.056	C. 054	0.122	0.243
23 HOUSEFELD FURNITURE	9145.969	1.156	1.754	1.0.181	0.122
24 OTHER FURN 5 FIXIUKLS	4062.305	0.056	0.054	0.162	0.203
25 PULP WILLS	د 798.455	0.446	0.391	3.648	2.634
26 PAPER & ALLIEU PRUJS	25938.598	5.494	4.270	7.131	19.813
27 PAPER CUNIAINERS, JUAES	10082.641	1.366	1.253	2.228	8.509
B PRINTING & FUBLISHING	21014.461	Ŗ.5J5	5.599	5.3)6	16.936
29 INDUSTRIAL CHEMICALS	34030.285	15.602	13.071	17 - 544	984.737
10 FERIILIZERS	242.2966	0.321	0.272	0.405	7.820
31 AGR & MISC CHEMICALS	71)2.125	1.339	3.268	4.133	13.330
12 PLASTICS & SYNTH MIKL	236 53 . 332	4.127	4.150	6.969	48.135
13 DRUGS, LENU, TUILET PREP	938.11 442	1.032	2.789	9.319	27.714
14 PAINTS & PRUJULTS	4758.531	2.050	2.102	7.415	11.710
35 PETROLEUM KEFINING	20082-453	7.348	7.287	10.089	67.219
16 PAVING MIXTURES	047.847	0.376).251	1.013	1.459
37 ASPHALT FLLIS, CUATINGS	126.454	0.307	0.294	1.175	2.026
א RUPBER & PLASTIC PRUUS	502.69.coc	9.593	9.618	11.953	13.330
39 LEATHER IANNING PRJU	432.347	0.139	1.133	0.041	0.081
O FUTHEAR & LEATHER FROM	4257.785	C • 07 C	0.054	180.0	0.162
PL GLASS & GLASS PRUIS	068.0070	0.613	0.599	I.459	4.133
2 CEMENI, HYUKAULIC	114.1007	0.181	0.436	1.175	1.823
1			0.109	0.203	2.107
A STURE CLAIPROUS	060°47467		5. 1 C C	406 40	176.6
PRIMARY SIECL		271 • 1	. 200	11.102	20. 340
A TOON & STEEL FOUNDALES		625 T		1.623	697 7
A TACH & STEEL FUNCTION S DOTMADY NUMBER METAL	2 2 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3	1 4 6 0			167-1
TO ME CONTRACTOR DE AL		1.007 1.007		071-6	51 - 51 C
NY MUSCHONTEN MELALA Ny metalananana	4157.517	344 0	1.240	1 1.899	C+1•17
ST PLUMBTAGESTRUCTURAL META	14/51.953	102.1	245	010-0	7. 458
2 HEATING EQUIP EXC LLEU	2411.821	J • 488	1.511	1-864	2.674
3 SCREWS & METAL STANFINGS	o/7C.53J	2.440	2.701	3 • 403	2.512

FIGURE 4.7 (continued)

5 NJCLEAR STEAM 1.337 5.632 5.632 1.661 2.431 4.254 6.756 77.591 77.591 23.905 3.839 1.864 1.864 1.857 1.337 5.875 5.875 5.875 1.823 1.823 2.674 2.339 3.444 0.851 41.166 58.669 6.240 49.310 28.833 21.515 28.839 23.969 53.969 7.698 0.0 2279.786 16.166 0.810 J.365 21.110 5.1.35 3.127 15.842 3.160 29.86 4 GAS TURNINE CYCLE 1.297 5.105 0.891 2.107 3 LGW HTU GAS 3.91) 2.6510 2.6510 2.6510 2.6531 3.453 1.))2 0.0 40.010 2 HIGH 97U GAS 3.96) 3.96) 13.413 2.733 2.733 2.733 2.733 3.413 1.2413 3.414 1.259 3.259 3.259 3.259 1.101 L 1JIAL JUTPUL 44430.1)5 54457.673 7428.469 7257.673 7257.673 7257.673 7257.673 7257.673 7257.673 7257.673 7257.673 7257.673 7257.673 7257.673 7257.673 7257.673 7257.673 7257.673 7257.673 745.7737 745.7 1466.030 241078-000 6 GTHER FAL METAL PRJJJS 5 FNUINES & JUNGINES 6 FARM PAUNIGENY NELU 7 CONSTRUCTION MACH 8 MATERIAL INULU MACH 9 METALWCININU MACH 9 METALWCININU MACH 9 MATERIAL INUUSTRY MACH 1 GENERAL INUUSTRY MACH 9 SEFUIC LUMP MACH 8 REFRIG MACHTNERY 9 RADION VLILLE & CUMP WACH 9 RADION VLILLE & EWULP 9 RADION VLILLES & EWULP 9 RADION VLILLES 1 MISC MANUFACINKINU 9 REFRILLUNNUM 9 RADION VLILLILES 9 RADION CUTILITES 9 RADION ETALUS 9 RADION CUTILITES 9 RADION CUTILITES 9 RADION CUTILITES 9 RADION ETALUS 9 RADION CUTILITES 9 REFRILLUNNUM 9 REFRILL MEDICAL & EUUCATION SERV FED GUVT ENTERPAISES STATEELULAL GUVT ENTERPA RFFICF SUPPLIES SCRAP, SECENDHAND JULUS TUTAL CUTPUT UNPORTS BUSINESS INAVEL, WILLS AMUSEMENIS I MPC, RTS

4.3 Price Changes

Price changes caused by a rise in the real cost of energy, for example, are quite simple to calculate within the inputoutput framework, given the assumptions that are made. The basic assumption made is that price changes are passed on to the buyer of each industry's goods. Since the input-output table already embodies the interactions between all the sectors of the economy, tracing the effects of a rise in the price of electricity to the steel industry and the effects of both these price changes on automobile manufacturers is quite simple.

The basic formula that relates prices to value-added (the labor and capital components of each price) is easily derived. Using the previously defined symbols, the price of each good i is equal to the value added for that good plus the costs of all purchased goods and services that make up that good, or

$$\mathbf{p}_{i} = \mathbf{v}_{i} + \mathbf{c}_{i} \tag{4.1}$$

but the cost of materials, c_i , equals the sum of the unit price of each material used times the quantity used or

$$c_{i} = \sum_{j=1}^{n} a_{ji} p_{j} \qquad (4.2)$$

where a_{ji} = the amount of good j used per unit of good i (the technological coefficients). Substituting this in the above equation

$$p_{i} = v_{i} + \sum_{j=1}^{N} a_{ji} p_{j} \qquad (4.3)$$

Rewriting in matrix notation yields

$$\underline{\mathbf{P}} = \underline{\mathbf{V}} + \underline{\mathbf{A}}^{\mathsf{T}}\underline{\mathbf{P}} \tag{4.4}$$

Solving for P results in the familiar equation

$$\underline{P} = (\underline{I} - \underline{A}^{\mathsf{T}})^{-1} \underline{V} \qquad (4.5)$$

This equation can be used to calculate price changes. Once these price changes are calculated, it is possible to measure the effect of these price changes on personal consumption expenditures for that good. This effect is calculated using the price elasticity for that good.

Price elasticity has a deceptively simple definition, i.e., the percentage change in the quantity of a good sold in response to a one percent change in price of that good, other things being equal. The problem with such a definition is that time is not mentioned, i.e., over what time period does the change in quantity occur. Once time is introduced the "otherthings-being-equal" assumption goes out the window. The world just does not cooperate in changing only one variable at a time.

Economists have traditionally resorted to multiple regression analysis to sort out the various factors. This technique has resulted in quite a bit of success when the data contains enough variation to allow identification of the various parameters of the demand equation. This is very analogous to the system identification problem in electrical engineering except that in the case of economic problems, one is not allowed to apply any external excitations to the system. Also, in a dynamic situation, the concept of price elasticity begins to lose some of its clarity because now one has to specify the time behavior of the change in sales. At the very least one can distinguish two forms of price elastic behavior, the very short run changes and the very long run changes. The medium term effects presumably are some blend of the short and long run effects. Of course, for the purposes of a true dynamic model of this changing situation one must specify how rapidly the price change effects take hold, i.e., the time constants involved in changing behavior.

In addition, there are many other parameters that affect the elasticity of the good. For example, the price elasticity of the good will probably change with the quantity of the good used (as a luxury good becomes a "necessity"), with the price of any substitutes for that good, with the foibles of a fashion conscious public, etc. A sophisticated analysis of the demand for a product will include as many of the quantifiable variables as are needed to explain the past behavior.

Despite these difficulties, many people have estimated price elasticities for various components of personal consumption expenditures. Unfortunately while consumers make up about 65 percent of final demand for most goods, they purchase less than 31% of total energy. Industrial and commercial usage represents a very high percentage of total energy use. Since no elasticities are available for other final demand components or for any industrial uses of energy, the resulting price effects calculated for final demand represent the minimum possible effect that would result from a price change. Without elasticities for the industrial and commercial sectors one can draw very few conclusions about total price effects. The actual pricing calculations and energy use decisions that go on in the economy and especially in the industrial and commercial sector are quite subtle. For example, an electric utility contemplating whether or not it can switch from coal to oil as its primary fuel must consider such things as the transportation cost involved in getting the fuel to the electric utility, the price of possible fuel substitutes, the capital costs associated with changing fuels (for new burners and storage facilities, etc.), how stable such prices will be over the long run, whether there are any availability constraints, etc.

Price rises and long-term declines in Household purchases (PCE), caused by the effects of price elasticities, were calculated for six separate cases. Five of the cases were generated by doubling the value-added component of each of the five energy supplying sectors separately. The sixth case involved doubling the value-added components of all energy supplying sectors simultaneously. All material inputs were assumed to remain constant.

Doubling value-added corresponds to doubling the labor, depreciation, and profits of a sector. This form of price change was used because both pollution abatement and scarcer resources tend to have their greatest impacts on the capital (depreciation) and labor costs (value-added) of a particular sector. A 1964 estimate by International Research and Technology ([25], p. V-6) stated that these two items accounted for over 67% of the annual costs associated with air pollution control. Whether limestone scrubbing will change this estimate appreciably is not clear, but our assumption of changes only in the value-added component of energy prices should be a reasonable approximation. The calculations assume that twice as much capital and labor must be used by the energy industries to produce the same output as presently.

The results of the price change calculations are presented in Figures 4.8 through 4.13. Some conclusions that can be drawn from these figures are:

SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DOUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF COAL 4.8 ш GUR н ц

	Sector	Percentage ₂ Price Rise ²	Long-term Change in Household ³ (PCE) Purchases	Household (PCE) Purchases as % of Total4
42 45 86	Coal Mining Cement, Hydraulic Primary Steel Electric Utilities	71.3% 1.1 2.8	-15.8% -1.9 -0.5 -0.6	2.3% 0.0 1.3 .5

1	See text for definition of value-added and the calculation procedure
2	If x_i is the % price rise and p_i is the old price then the new price $P_i^1 = (X_i/100+1)P_i$.
ო	Calculated using the University of Maryland's [] long-term residential price elasticities. See text for discussion
4	This column indicates what percentage Household (PCE) purchases of each sector's

goods are of the total output (sales) at that sector.

| ADDED OF CRUPE OIL | Household (PCE)
Purchases as4%
of Total | 9.5% | 0.0 | 6.2 | 9.5 | 0.7 | 1.8 | 4.3 | 0.1 | 1.1 | 40.2 | 0.0 | 0.0 | 0.0 | 0.0

 | 0.0

 | 66.7 | 22.3 | 37.5
 | 29.5
 | 25.3 | 39.7 | | 6.9 |
 |
|---|--|--|---|---|---|--|--|---|--|---|--|--|---|--
--
--
--
--|--|--
--
--|--
---|--|--|---|---|
| POUBLING THE VALUE | Long-term Change
in Household 3
(PCE) Purchases ³ | -0.4% | 0.0 | 0.0 | -0.2 | 0.0 | -0.2 | -0.0 | -0.4 | -0.5 | -2.6 | 0.0 | 0.0 | -2.3 | -0.4

 | -0.1

 | -0.1 | -0.6 | -0.8
 | -0.2
 | 0.0 | 0.0 | | 0.0 |
 |
| CE RISES CAUSED BY
D NATURAL GAS | Percentage
Price Rise ² | 1.1% | 57.1 | 1.1 | 1.0 | 2.6 | 1.4 | 2.2 | 1.6 | 1.2 | 17.5 | 7.1 | 5.1 | 1.3 | 1.1

 | 1.2

 | 1.4 | 1.1 | 2.2
 | 1.0
 | 13.1 | 1.2 | | 1.2 |
 |
| SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRIC
AND | Sector | 2 Other Farm Products | 8 Crude Oil and Natural Gas | <pre>17 Fabric, Yarn, Thread Mills</pre> | 26 Paper & Allied Products | 29 Industrial Chemicals | 30 Fertilizers | 31 Agriculture & Misc. Chemicals | 32 Plastics & Synthetic Material | 34 Paints and Products | 35 Petroleum Refining | 36 Paving Mixtures | 37 Asphalt Felts, Coatings | 42 Cement, Hydraulic | 47 Iron & Steel Forgings

 | 48 Primary Non-Ferrous Metal

 | 79 Local Passenger Transportation | 80 Truck Transportation | 82 Air Transportation
 | 86 Electric Utilities
 | 87 Gas Utilities | 88 Water & Sanitary Services | 00 State & Local Government | Enterprises |
 |
| | SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DOUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUPE OIL
AND NATURAL GAS | SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DOUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUPE OIL
AND NATURAL GAS
Long-term Change Household (PCE)
Percentage in Household 3
Price Rise ² (PCE) Purchases as 4 [%]
Of Total | SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DOUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUPE OIL
AND NATURAL GAS
AND NATURAL GAS
Long-term Change Household (PCE)
Percentage
in Household 3
Purchases as 4
(PCE) Purchases 3
0.4% 9.5% | SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DOUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUPE OILAND NATURAL GASLong-term ChangeHousehold (PCE)AND NATURAL GASLong-term ChangeHousehold (PCE)AND NATURAL GASIn HouseholdPercentageSectorPercentagein HouseholdPurchases as 4*Cude Oil and Natural Gas57.10.00.0 | SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DOUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUPE OILAND NATURAL GASLong-term ChangeHousehold (PCE)AND NATURAL GASLong-term ChangeHousehold (PCE)AND NATURAL GASLong-term ChangeHousehold (PCE)SectorPercentagein Household 3of Total 42Other Farm Products1.1%-0.4%9.5%8Crude Oil and Natural Gas57.10.00.017Fabric, Yarn, Thread Mills1.10.06.2 | SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DOUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUPE OILAND NATURAL GASLong-term ChangeHousehold (PCE)AND NATURAL GASLong-term ChangeHousehold (PCE)AND NATURAL GASLong-term ChangeHousehold (PCE)SectorPercentagein Household 3Of Total4Cude Oil and Natural Gas57.10.00.017Fabric, Yarn, Thread Mills1.10.06.226Paper & Allied Products1.0-0.29.5 | SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DOUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUPE OILAND NATURAL GASLong-term ChangeHousehold (PCE)AND NATURAL GASLong-term ChangeHousehold (PCE)SectorSectorPercentagein Household2Other Farm Products1.1%-0.4%9.5%17Fabric, Yarn, Thread Mills1.1%0.06.226Paper & Allied Products1.00.06.226Paper & Allied Products2.60.00.7 | SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DOUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUNE OIL
AND NATURAL GAS
AND NATURAL GAS
Long-term Change Household (PCE)
Percentage
Sector
Sector
2 Other Farm Products
2 Other Farm Products
3 Crude Oil and Natural Gas
17 Fabric, Yarn, Thread Mills
17 Fabric, Yarn, Thread Mills
20 Industrial Chemicals
20 Fertilizers
20 | SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DOUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUPE OILAND NATURAL GASLong-term ChangeHousehold (PCE)AND NATURAL GASLong-term ChangeHousehold (PCE)AND NATURAL GASLong-term ChangeHousehold (PCE)SectorPercentagein HouseholdPurchases as 4*2Other Farm Products1.11%-0.4%9.5%2Other Farm Products1.11%0.06.22Paper & Allied Products1.11%0.06.226Paper & Allied Products1.10.06.229Industrial Chemicals2.60.00.730Fertilizers1.4-0.29.531Agriculture & Misc. Chemicals2.20.04.3 | SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DOUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUPE OILAND NATURAL GASLong-term ChangeHouseholdOF CRUPE OILSectorSectorPercentagein HouseholdPurchases as 4%2Other Farm Products1.1%-0.4%9.5%2Other Farm Products1.1%-0.4%9.5%17Fabric, Yarn, Thread Mills1.10.00.017Fabric, Yarn, Thread Mills1.10.00.026Paper & Allied Products1.10.00.029Industrial Chemicals2.60.00.731Agriculture & Misc. Chemicals2.20.00.132Plastics & Synthetic Material1.60.04.3 | SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DOUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUPE OIL
AND NATURAL GASNOUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUPE OIL
AND NATURAL GASSIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES
And natural GasLong-term Change Household (PCE)
Purchases as 4° 2Other Farm Products
Crude Oil and Natural GasPercentage
Price Rise2Long-term Change Household (PCE)
Purchases as 4° 2Other Farm Products
Crude Oil and Natural Gas1.11%
57.11-0.4%
0.09.5%
0.02Other Farm Products
Paper & Allied Products
30 Fertilizers0.0
0.00.0
0.00.0
0.031Agriculture & Misc. Chemicals
Plastics & Synthetic Material
1.21.2
0.04.3
0.132Plastics & Synthetic Material
1.20.5
0.04.3
0.1 | SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DOUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUPE OIL
AND NATURAL GASDOUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUPE OILSIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DOUBLING THE VALUEAND NATURAL GAS
AND NATURAL GASLong-term Change Household (PCE)
of Total 42Other Farm ProductsPercentage
Price Rise2Long-term Change Household (PCE)
of Total 4Purchases as 42Other Farm Products1.1%-0.4%9.5%2Paper & Allied Products1.1%0.00.017Fabric, Yarn, Thread Mills1.10.00.029Industrial Chemicals1.1%0.00.030Fertilizers1.00.00.731Agriculture & Misc. Chemicals2.20.00.332Paints and Products1.4-0.24.334Paints and Products1.5-0.60.135Petroleum Refining1.7.5-2.60.136Petroleum Refining1.7.5-2.60.1 | SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DOUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUTE OIL
AND NATURAL GAS
AND NATURAL GAS
Long-term Change Household (PCE)
Percentage
$\frac{Sector}{Sector}$
2 Other Farm Products
B Crude Oil and Natural Gas
Crude Oil and Natural Gas
Soft Total A
Dove Total A
Dove Oil Oil Oil C
CO
Soft Total A
Dove Oil Oil Oil Oil Oil
CO
Soft Total A
Dove Oil Oil Oil Oil Oil
CO
Soft Total A
Dove Oil Oil Oil Oil
CO
Soft Oil Oil Oil Oil
CO
Soft Oil Oil Oil Oil
CO
Soft Oil Oil Oil Oil
CO
Soft Oil Oil Oil Oil Oil Oil Oil
CO
Soft Oil Oil Oil Oil Oil Oil Oil
CO
Soft Oil Oil Oil Oil Oil Oil Oil Oil
CO
Soft Oil | SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DOUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUPE OILAND NATURAL GASLong-term ChangeHousehold (PCE)AND NATURAL GASLong-term ChangeHousehold (PCE)SectorSectorPercentagein Household2Other Farm Products1.1%-0.4%9.5%17Fabric, Yarn, Thread Mills1.10.00.00.017Fabric, Yarn, Thread Mills1.1-0.4%9.5%17Fabric, Yarn, Thread Mills1.10.00.00.029Industrial Chemicals2.60.00.00.730Fertilizers1.4-0.20.00.731Agriculture & Misc. Chemicals2.20.00.04.332Plastics & Synthetic Material1.6-0.41.136Paving Mixtures1.75-0.20.00.036Paving Mixtures7.10.00.00.037Asphalt Felts, Coatings5.10.00.0 | SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DOUBLING THE VALUEADDED OF CRUPE OILAND NATURAL GASLong-term ChangeHousehold (PCE)SectorSectorPercentage(PCE) Purchases as 4° SectorSectorPrice Rise2(PCE) Purchases as 4° 2Other Farm Products1.1% 0.0 0.0 8Crude Oil and Natural Gas1.1% 0.0 0.0 17Fabric, Yarn, Thread Mills1.1% 0.0 0.0 17Paper & Allied Products1.1% 0.0 0.0 26Industrial Chemicals1.4 0.0 0.0 30Fertilizers2.6 0.0 0.0 31Agriculture & Misc. Chemicals2.2 0.0 0.0 32Plastics & Synthetic Material1.2 -0.2 0.0 33Paints and Products1.4 -0.2 0.0 34Paints and Products1.7 -0.2 0.0 35Paints and Products1.7 -0.2 0.0 36Petroleum Refining1.7 -0.2 0.0 37Ashult Felts, Coatings5.1 0.0 0.0 38Painte Felts, Coatings5.1 0.0 0.0 39 <t< td=""><td>SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUPE OIL
AND NATURAL GASLong-term Change
Household (PCE)3GectorSectorLong-term Change
PercentageHousehold (PCE)2Crude OilDther Farm Products1.1%
Price Rise2$0.09 \text{ Cotal}4$
$0.00$$9.5\%$
$0.00$$2 \text{Crude Oil}$Date Antural Gas$1.1\%$
$0.00$$0.00$
$0.00$$0.00$
$0.00$$2 \text{Crude Oil}$Dater & Allied Products$1.1\%$
$0.00$$0.00$
$0.00$$0.00$
$0.00$$2 \text{Crude Oil}$Dater & Allied Products$1.1\%$
$0.00$$0.00$
$0.00$$0.00$$3 \text{Crude Oil}$Dater & Allied Products$1.1\%$
$0.00$$0.00$
$0.00$$0.00$$3 \text{Crude Oil}$Dater & Allied Products$1.1\%$
$0.00$$0.00$$0.00$$3 \text{Crude Oil}$Dater & Allie$1.1\%$
$0.00$$0.00$$3 \text{Crude Oil}$Dater & Allie$0.00$$0.00$$3 \text{Crude Oil}$Dater & Allie$0.00$$0.00$$3 \text{Crude Oil}$Dater & Allie$0.00$$0.00$<t< td=""><td>SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DUURLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUPE OILAND NATURAL GASLong-term ChangeHousehold (PCE)AND NATURAL GASLong-term ChangeHousehold (PCE)SectorSectorPercentage(PCE) Purchases 32Other Farm Products$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$17Fabric: Yarn, Thread Mills$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$17Fabric: Yarn, Thread Mills$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$26Paper & Allied Products$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$27Paper & Allied Products$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$28Crude Oil and Natural Gas$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$29Fabric: Yarn, Thread Mills$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$217Fabric: Yarn, Thread Mills$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$28Partiliters$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$29Feducisticals$2.6$$0.0$$0.0$31Agriculture & Misc. Chemicals$2.2$$-0.4$$0.1$32Plastics & Synthetic Material$1.2$$-0.2$$0.0$33Agricultures$7.1$$0.0$$0.0$34Paving Mixtures$7.1$$0.0$$0.0$37Asphalt Felts. Coatings$1.1$$0.0$37Paving Mixtures$0.0$$0.0$37Paving Mixtures$0.0$$0.0$37Paving Mixtures$0.0$$0.0$37Paving Non-Ferrous Metal$1.2$48</td></t<><td>SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUFE OIL
AND NATURAL GASLong-term Change
Household (PCE)SectorSectorLong-term Change
PercentageHousehold (PCE)2Other Farm Products$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$17Fabric, Yarn, Thread Mills$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$17Fabric, Yarn, Thread Mills$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$26Patric, Yarn, Thread Mills$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$27Dater & Allied Products$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$29Fabric, Yarn, Thread Mills$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$29Industrial Chemicals$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$29Industrial Chemicals$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$31Agriculture & Misc. Chemicals$1.44$$-0.2$$0.0$32Plastics & Synthetic Material$1.5$$-0.44$$0.1$33Plastics & Synthetic Material$1.5$$-0.2$$4.3$33Plastics & Synthetic Material$1.5$$-0.2$$0.0$34Paints and Products$1.4$$0.0$$0.0$35Patroleum Refining$1.5$$-0.4$$0.0$36Patroleum Refining$1.5$$-0.4$$0.0$37Asphalt Felts. Coatings$1.1$$-0.4$$0.0$37Sphalt Felts.$0.0$$0.0$$0.0$37Prone & Steel Forgings$1.4$$0.0$$0.0$47Prone & Steel Forgings$0.0$<</td><td>SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DUURLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUPE OILAND NATURAL GASLong-term ChangeHousehold (PCE)SectorSectorPercentageIn HouseholdPurchases as $\frac{4}{3}$SectorSectorPercentage$1.1\%$$0.0$$9.5\%$2Other Farm Products$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$$0.0$17Fabric, Yarn, Thread Mills$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$$0.0$26Dude oil and Natural Gas$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$$0.0$26Industrial Chemicals$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$$0.0$27Industrial Chemicals$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$$0.0$30Fettilizers$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$$0.0$31Agriculture & Misc. Chemicals$1.4$$-0.2$$0.0$$0.0$32Paints and Products$1.4$$-0.2$$0.0$$0.0$33Paints and Products$1.5$$-0.2$$0.0$$0.0$34Paints and Products$1.5$$-0.2$$0.0$$0.0$35Petroleum Refining$1.5$$-0.2$$0.0$$0.0$36Paints for thread$1.16$$-0.2$$0.0$$0.0$37Petroleum Refining$1.5$$-0.2$$0.0$$0.0$38Petroleum Refining$1.5$$-0.2$$0.0$$0.0$37Petroleum Refining$1.5$$-0.2$$0.0$$0.0$38Petroleum Refining$1.2$<!--</td--><td>SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DOUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUNE OIL
AND MATURAL GAS Long-term Change Household (PCE)
$\frac{1}{\text{AND}}$ Matural Gas $\frac{1}{11}$ $\frac{1}{11}$</td><td>SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DUURLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUNE OILSIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DUURLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUNE OILSectorLong-term ChangeSectorSectorSectorSectorSectorOther Farm ProductsSectorDeter Farm ProductsSectorSectorSectorSectorSectorOther Farm ProductsSectorOther FarmSectorOther Farm<!--</td--><td>$\label{eq:relation} \begin{tabular}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$</td><td>$\label{eq:relation} \begin{tabular}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$</td><td>SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DOUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUNE OIL
AND NATURAL GAS Long-term Change Household (PCE)
Sector
2 Other Farm Products
2 Other Farm Products
2 Other Farm Products
2 Other Farm P</br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></td><td>SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DOUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUNE OIL
AND NATURAL GAS
Sector
Sector
2 Other Farm Products
2 Other Farm Pro</td></td></td></td></t<> | SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUPE OIL
AND NATURAL GASLong-term Change
Household (PCE) 3Gector SectorLong-term Change
PercentageHousehold (PCE) 2Crude Oil Dther Farm Products 1.1%
Price Rise2 $0.09 \text{ Cotal}4$
0.00 9.5%
0.00 2Crude Oil Date Antural Gas 1.1%
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 2Crude Oil Dater & Allied Products 1.1%
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 2Crude Oil Dater & Allied Products 1.1%
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 2Crude Oil Dater & Allied Products 1.1%
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 2Crude Oil Dater & Allied Products 1.1%
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 2Crude Oil Dater & Allied Products 1.1%
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 2Crude Oil Dater & Allied Products 1.1%
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 3Crude Oil Dater & Allied Products 1.1%
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 3Crude Oil Dater & Allied Products 1.1%
0.00 0.00 0.00 3Crude Oil Dater & Allie 1.1%
0.00 0.00 3Crude Oil Dater & Allie 0.00 0.00 3Crude Oil Dater & Allie 0.00 0.00 3Crude Oil Dater & Allie 0.00 0.00 <t< td=""><td>SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DUURLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUPE OILAND NATURAL GASLong-term ChangeHousehold (PCE)AND NATURAL GASLong-term ChangeHousehold (PCE)SectorSectorPercentage(PCE) Purchases 32Other Farm Products$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$17Fabric: Yarn, Thread Mills$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$17Fabric: Yarn, Thread Mills$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$26Paper & Allied Products$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$27Paper & Allied Products$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$28Crude Oil and Natural Gas$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$29Fabric: Yarn, Thread Mills$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$217Fabric: Yarn, Thread Mills$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$28Partiliters$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$29Feducisticals$2.6$$0.0$$0.0$31Agriculture & Misc. Chemicals$2.2$$-0.4$$0.1$32Plastics & Synthetic Material$1.2$$-0.2$$0.0$33Agricultures$7.1$$0.0$$0.0$34Paving Mixtures$7.1$$0.0$$0.0$37Asphalt Felts. Coatings$1.1$$0.0$37Paving Mixtures$0.0$$0.0$37Paving Mixtures$0.0$$0.0$37Paving Mixtures$0.0$$0.0$37Paving Non-Ferrous Metal$1.2$48</td></t<> <td>SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUFE OIL
AND NATURAL GASLong-term Change
Household (PCE)SectorSectorLong-term Change
PercentageHousehold (PCE)2Other Farm Products$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$17Fabric, Yarn, Thread Mills$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$17Fabric, Yarn, Thread Mills$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$26Patric, Yarn, Thread Mills$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$27Dater & Allied Products$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$29Fabric, Yarn, Thread Mills$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$29Industrial Chemicals$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$29Industrial Chemicals$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$31Agriculture & Misc. Chemicals$1.44$$-0.2$$0.0$32Plastics & Synthetic Material$1.5$$-0.44$$0.1$33Plastics & Synthetic Material$1.5$$-0.2$$4.3$33Plastics & Synthetic Material$1.5$$-0.2$$0.0$34Paints and Products$1.4$$0.0$$0.0$35Patroleum Refining$1.5$$-0.4$$0.0$36Patroleum Refining$1.5$$-0.4$$0.0$37Asphalt Felts. Coatings$1.1$$-0.4$$0.0$37Sphalt Felts.$0.0$$0.0$$0.0$37Prone & Steel Forgings$1.4$$0.0$$0.0$47Prone & Steel Forgings$0.0$<</td> <td>SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DUURLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUPE OILAND NATURAL GASLong-term ChangeHousehold (PCE)SectorSectorPercentageIn HouseholdPurchases as $\frac{4}{3}$SectorSectorPercentage$1.1\%$$0.0$$9.5\%$2Other Farm Products$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$$0.0$17Fabric, Yarn, Thread Mills$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$$0.0$26Dude oil and Natural Gas$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$$0.0$26Industrial Chemicals$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$$0.0$27Industrial Chemicals$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$$0.0$30Fettilizers$1.1\%$$0.0$$0.0$$0.0$31Agriculture & Misc. Chemicals$1.4$$-0.2$$0.0$$0.0$32Paints and Products$1.4$$-0.2$$0.0$$0.0$33Paints and Products$1.5$$-0.2$$0.0$$0.0$34Paints and Products$1.5$$-0.2$$0.0$$0.0$35Petroleum Refining$1.5$$-0.2$$0.0$$0.0$36Paints for thread$1.16$$-0.2$$0.0$$0.0$37Petroleum Refining$1.5$$-0.2$$0.0$$0.0$38Petroleum Refining$1.5$$-0.2$$0.0$$0.0$37Petroleum Refining$1.5$$-0.2$$0.0$$0.0$38Petroleum Refining$1.2$<!--</td--><td>SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DOUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUNE OIL
AND MATURAL GAS Long-term Change Household (PCE)
$\frac{1}{\text{AND}}$ Matural Gas $\frac{1}{11}$ $\frac{1}{11}$</td><td>SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DUURLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUNE OILSIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DUURLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUNE OILSectorLong-term ChangeSectorSectorSectorSectorSectorOther Farm ProductsSectorDeter Farm ProductsSectorSectorSectorSectorSectorOther Farm ProductsSectorOther FarmSectorOther Farm<!--</td--><td>$\label{eq:relation} \begin{tabular}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$</td><td>$\label{eq:relation} \begin{tabular}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$</td><td>SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DOUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUNE OIL
AND NATURAL GAS Long-term Change Household (PCE)
Sector
2 Other Farm Products
2 Other Farm Products
2 Other Farm Products
2 Other Farm P</br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></td><td>SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DOUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUNE OIL
AND NATURAL GAS
Sector
Sector
2 Other Farm Products
2 Other Farm Pro</td></td></td> | SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DUURLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUPE OILAND NATURAL GASLong-term ChangeHousehold (PCE)AND NATURAL GASLong-term ChangeHousehold (PCE)SectorSectorPercentage(PCE) Purchases 32Other Farm Products 1.1% 0.0 0.0 17Fabric: Yarn, Thread Mills 1.1% 0.0 0.0 17Fabric: Yarn, Thread Mills 1.1% 0.0 0.0 26Paper & Allied Products 1.1% 0.0 0.0 27Paper & Allied Products 1.1% 0.0 0.0 28Crude Oil and Natural Gas 1.1% 0.0 0.0 29Fabric: Yarn, Thread Mills 1.1% 0.0 0.0 217Fabric: Yarn, Thread Mills 1.1% 0.0 0.0 28Partiliters 1.1% 0.0 0.0 29Feducisticals 2.6 0.0 0.0 31Agriculture & Misc. Chemicals 2.2 -0.4 0.1 32Plastics & Synthetic Material 1.2 -0.2 0.0 33Agricultures 7.1 0.0 0.0 34Paving Mixtures 7.1 0.0 0.0 37Asphalt Felts. Coatings 1.1 0.0 37Paving Mixtures 0.0 0.0 37Paving Mixtures 0.0 0.0 37Paving Mixtures 0.0 0.0 37Paving Non-Ferrous Metal 1.2 48 | SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUFE OIL
AND NATURAL GASLong-term Change
Household (PCE)SectorSectorLong-term Change
PercentageHousehold (PCE)2Other Farm Products 1.1% 0.0 0.0 17Fabric, Yarn, Thread Mills 1.1% 0.0 0.0 17Fabric, Yarn, Thread Mills 1.1% 0.0 0.0 26Patric, Yarn, Thread Mills 1.1% 0.0 0.0 27Dater & Allied Products 1.1% 0.0 0.0 29Fabric, Yarn, Thread Mills 1.1% 0.0 0.0 29Industrial Chemicals 1.1% 0.0 0.0 29Industrial Chemicals 1.1% 0.0 0.0 31Agriculture & Misc. Chemicals 1.44 -0.2 0.0 32Plastics & Synthetic Material 1.5 -0.44 0.1 33Plastics & Synthetic Material 1.5 -0.2 4.3 33Plastics & Synthetic Material 1.5 -0.2 0.0 34Paints and Products 1.4 0.0 0.0 35Patroleum Refining 1.5 -0.4 0.0 36Patroleum Refining 1.5 -0.4 0.0 37Asphalt Felts. Coatings 1.1 -0.4 0.0 37Sphalt Felts. 0.0 0.0 0.0 37Prone & Steel Forgings 1.4 0.0 0.0 47Prone & Steel Forgings 0.0 < | SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DUURLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUPE OILAND NATURAL GASLong-term ChangeHousehold (PCE)SectorSectorPercentageIn HouseholdPurchases as $\frac{4}{3}$ SectorSectorPercentage 1.1% 0.0 9.5% 2Other Farm Products 1.1% 0.0 0.0 0.0 17Fabric, Yarn, Thread Mills 1.1% 0.0 0.0 0.0 26Dude oil and Natural Gas 1.1% 0.0 0.0 0.0 26Industrial Chemicals 1.1% 0.0 0.0 0.0 27Industrial Chemicals 1.1% 0.0 0.0 0.0 30Fettilizers 1.1% 0.0 0.0 0.0 31Agriculture & Misc. Chemicals 1.4 -0.2 0.0 0.0 32Paints and Products 1.4 -0.2 0.0 0.0 33Paints and Products 1.5 -0.2 0.0 0.0 34Paints and Products 1.5 -0.2 0.0 0.0 35Petroleum Refining 1.5 -0.2 0.0 0.0 36Paints for thread 1.16 -0.2 0.0 0.0 37Petroleum Refining 1.5 -0.2 0.0 0.0 38Petroleum Refining 1.5 -0.2 0.0 0.0 37Petroleum Refining 1.5 -0.2 0.0 0.0 38Petroleum Refining 1.2 </td <td>SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DOUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUNE OIL
AND MATURAL GAS Long-term Change Household (PCE)
$\frac{1}{\text{AND}}$ Matural Gas $\frac{1}{11}$ $\frac{1}{11}$</td> <td>SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DUURLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUNE OILSIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DUURLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUNE OILSectorLong-term ChangeSectorSectorSectorSectorSectorOther Farm ProductsSectorDeter Farm ProductsSectorSectorSectorSectorSectorOther Farm ProductsSectorOther FarmSectorOther Farm<!--</td--><td>$\label{eq:relation} \begin{tabular}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$</td><td>$\label{eq:relation} \begin{tabular}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$</td><td>SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DOUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUNE OIL
AND NATURAL GAS Long-term Change Household (PCE)
Sector
2 Other Farm Products
2 Other Farm Products
2 Other Farm Products
2 Other Farm P</br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></td><td>SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DOUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUNE OIL
AND NATURAL GAS
Sector
Sector
2 Other Farm Products
2 Other Farm Pro</td></td> | SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DOUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUNE OIL
AND MATURAL GAS Long-term Change Household (PCE)
$\frac{1}{\text{AND}}$ Matural Gas $\frac{1}{11}$ | SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DUURLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUNE OILSIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DUURLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUNE OILSectorLong-term ChangeSectorSectorSectorSectorSectorOther Farm ProductsSectorDeter Farm ProductsSectorSectorSectorSectorSectorOther Farm ProductsSectorOther FarmSectorOther Farm </td <td>$\label{eq:relation} \begin{tabular}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$</td> <td>$\label{eq:relation} \begin{tabular}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$</td> <td>SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DOUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUNE OIL
AND NATURAL GAS Long-term Change Household (PCE)
Sector
2 Other Farm Products
2 Other Farm Products
2 Other Farm Products
2 Other Farm P</br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></br></td> <td>SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DOUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUNE OIL
AND NATURAL GAS
Sector
Sector
2 Other Farm Products
2 Other Farm Pro</td> | $\label{eq:relation} \begin{tabular}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$ | $\label{eq:relation} \begin{tabular}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$ | SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DOUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUNE OIL
AND NATURAL GAS Long-term Change Household (PCE)
Sector
2 Other Farm Products
2 Other Farm Products
 | SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DOUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF CRUNE OIL
AND NATURAL GAS
Sector
Sector
2 Other Farm Products
2 Other Farm Pro |

See Figure 4.14 for all footnotes

l

	SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE	RISES CAUSED BY	DOUBLING THE VALUE	ADDED OF OIL
	Sector	Percentage ₂ Price Rise	Long-term Change in Household 3 (PCE) Purchases	Household (PCE) Purchases as % of Total4
200	Other Farm Products Inductrial Chemicals	1.1%	-0.2%	5.0% 0.6
30	Fertilizers	• • •	-0.2	1.8
31	Agriculture & Misc. Chemicals	1.7	-0.0	4.3
32	Plastics & Synthetic Materials	1.3	-0.3	0.1
34	Paints & Products	1.0	-0.4	1.0
35	Petroleum Refining	28.9	-2.7	40.1
35	Paving Mixtures	7.2	0.0	0.0
37	Asphalt Felts, Coatings	5.1	0.0	0.0
79	Local Passenger Transportation	1.4	-0.1	66.7
80	Truck Transportation	1.0	-0.6	22.3
82	Air Transportation	2.3	-0.8	37.5

4.10

FIGURE

See Figure 4.14 for all footnotes

.

•
4
LL I
Ω.
D
ഗ
-
LL.

SIGNIFICANT (1% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DOUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF NATURAL GAS

Sector	Percentage ₂ Price Rise	Long-term Change in Household ₃ (PCE) Purchases	Household (PCE) Purchases as % of Total4
Non-Ferrous Metal Mining	1.1%	0.0%	0.0%
Stone & Clay Mining	1.0	-0.3	1.2
Mineral Mining	2.0	-0.5	0.0
Fabric, Yarn, Thread Mills	1.0	0.0	6.2
Pulp Mills	1.8	-0.9	0.0
Paper & Allied Products	1.6	-0.3	9.5
Industrial Chemicals	2.5	0.0	0.6
Fertilizers	1.7	-0.3	1.8
Agriculture & Misc. Chemicals	1.4	-0.0	4.3
Plastics & Synthetic Material	1.5	-0.4	0.1
Paints & Products	1.0	-0.4	1.1
Petroleum Refining	1.2	-0.1	40.1
Paving Mixtures	1.3	0.0	0.0
Asphalt Felts, Coatings	1.3	0.0	0.0
Glass & Glass Products	2.3	0.0	5.1
Cement, Hydraulic	4.6	-8.0	0.0
Lime	2.8	-4.9	0.0
Stone & Clay Products	2.1	-1.3	3.1
Primary Steel	2.5	-0.8	0.1
Iron & Steel Foundries	1.6	-0.5	0.0
Iron & Steel Forgings	2.8	-0.9	0.0
Primary Non-Ferrous Metal	2.0	-0.2	0.0
Metal Containers	1.2	0.0	0.0
Electric Utilities	2.2	-0.5	29.5
Gas Utilities	60.7	0.0	25.3
Water & Sanitary Services	1.9	0.0	39.7
State & Local Government Enter			
Prises	2.0	0.0	6.6

See Figure 4.14 for all footnotes

4.12
R E
G U
-

LL.,

SIGNIFICANT (4% OR GREATER) PRICE RISES CAUSED BY DOUBLING THE VALUE ADDED OF ELECTRICITY

	Sector	Percentage ₂ Price Rise ²	Long-term Change in Household 3 (PCE) Purchases ³	Household (PCE) Purchases as % of Total4
044440 0000000000000000000000000000000	Ferrous Metal Mining Non-Ferrous Metal Mining Coal Mining Stone & Clay Mining Paper & Allied Products Primary Steel Iron & Steel Foundries Iron & Steel Forgings Primary Non-Ferrous Metal	004444440 0-1004244000	001101100 0011000 0010804000	00000000000000000000000000000000000000
00				

See Figure 4.14 for all footnotes

<pre>(5% 0R GR s Meta s Meta b Meta c Ctor c Clarva c Cla</pre>	H H H H H H H H H H H H H H
--	--

2. Price rises for electricity cause larger price changes in more sectors than any other single fuel source.

1.

- 3. Doubling the value-added component of all energy sectors will cause less than a 5% price rise in most other sectors.
- 4. Those sectors that do experience significant price rises, other than energy sectors, sell only a small percentage of their total output to Households (PCE). These are the sectors for which long-term residential (PCE) price elasticities provide little information.

These calculations also indicate which fuels are most sensitive to labor and capital charges. Electricity is the clear leader with almost a 79% price rise resulting from a doubling of value added. Coal is not far behind with 71%, followed at a distance by natural gas with 61%, and crude petroleum and natural gas mining with 57%. Refined netroleum is the lowest of the group with a 29% price rise. This is slightly higher than the price rise associated with refined petroleum caused by doubling the value added of crude oil.

On the assumption that high BTU gasified coal will be used to supplement other sources initially and that some sort of average pricing will be followed, the impact of this high cost gas can be found by examining the response of natural gas prices to doubling the value added of crude oil and natural gas mining (whose price rises by 60.7%). A 60% price rise corresponds to about 20% use of 72¢/MCF high BTU gas and 80%use of 17¢/MCF gas (19¢/MCF is the current average price paid for gas). This results in a price rise to consumers of 13%

The price changes required of most industrial products to compensate for energy price increases are quite low, simply because energy is still guite cheap relative to other commodities. Even aluminum would need only a 6% price rise to compensate for doubling the real price of electricity. What really matters is how relative prices increase and here the non-ferrous metals (including aluminum) are clearly more sensitive than the ferrous metals to the price of energy. This is the primary usefulness of the input-output approach to price changes. Government leaders and businessmen in the affected industries are quite concerned about the price of U.S. goods relative to foreign competition and relative to each other. The tables presented in this chapter, while they do not provide much information on the magnitude of the price elestic effects of energy cost increases, do lay out quite clearly the relative price sensitivities of various industrial products to energy price increases.

To be able to assess the impact on the energy supplying industries of price rises is much more difficult than calculating price changes. At the present time there is not enough data to calculate more than the minimum effect.

Chapter 5 1985 Projections 5.1 Scope

This chapter describes a series of 1985 projections that illustrate various economic impacts of different energy use growth rates and the additional impacts that might result from the introduction of coal gasification or the gas turbine topping cycle. These projections must be considered illustrative only since they were made using relatively crude assumptions. However, the conclusions that are drawn from these projections are based on a differential analysis that is quite insensitive to the exact assumptions employed. Hence the conclusions are fairly reliable.

5.2 Procedure

Three basic projections were made corresponding to high, medium, and low energy growth rates from 1980 to 1985. Medium energy use growth rate refers to a continuation of the projected 1970-80 growth rates. High and low are defined accordingly.

The starting basis for the projections was the 1980 technical coefficient matrix of the BLS (as modified to 104 order) and their 1980 final demand vector. Figure 5.1 describes the modifications to each for the high, medium and low projections. In all cases, the Istvan [27] electric utility technical coefficient vector was substituted for that of the BLS. This was done so that the relative weights of different generation processes (e.g. fossil vs. nuclear) could be varied. The BLS vector does not allow this variation. Figure 5.2 summarizes Istvan's electric utility process information. This is the only modification to the technical coefficients of the medium projection.

1980-1985 MODIFICATIONS

High Fnergy Standard 1980 (BLS) coefficients used except (1) 1980 electric utility vector of Istvan [27] sub- stituted for 68.01 column (2) Industrial electric and gas usage increased 6.75%3 (3) Industrial usage of [32] increased 4.5%	Projection of 1980 final demand at 1970-80 growth rate of individual ele- ments except (1) consumption of oil. gas and electricity increased 4^{α} Investment recalculated (see text)
Medium Energy Standard 1980 (BLS) coefficients used except (1) 1980 electric utility vector of Istvan [27] sub- stituted for 68.01 column	Projection of 1980 final demand at 1970-80 growth rate of individual ele- ments Investment recalculated (see text)
Low Energy Standard 1980 (BLS) coefficients used except (1) 1980 electric utility vector of Istvan [27] sub- stituted for 68.01 (2) Electric conversion efficiency increased by 1.4% for all fuels (3) Conversion efficiency of buses, trolleys, and taxis (65.02) increased by 1% for oil2	Projection of 1980 final demand (1-4 order with 5 components) at 1970-80 growth rate of individual elements, except (1) consumption of oil, elec- tricity, and gas reduced 6%5 Investment recalculated (see text)
Technical Coefficients	Initial Final Demand (GNP = \$1.34 trillion in 1958 dol- lars)

 1 Dollar based coefficients reduced by 4%.

 $^2\mbox{Dollar}$ based coefficients reduced by 4% .

 $^3\mathrm{Technical}$ coefficients (dollar based) of all industries increased by 6.75° for electricity.

⁴Technical coefficients (dollar based) of all industries increased by 4.5° for plastics and rubber. ⁵Dollar based final demand for electricity, gas and oil reduced by 6°.

ISTVAN'S ELECTRIC UTILITY

TECHNICAL AND CAPITAL COEFFICIENT INFORMATION¹

Seven Technological Processes

•

Fossil Steam Generation

Nuclear Steam Generation

Hydro Generation

Other Generation

Transmission

Distribution

Administration

1980 Technical Coefficients for Each Process

1980 Capital Coefficients for Each Process

1980 Suggested Relative Process Weights

¹Taken from [27]

The high projection increases the industrial usage of electricity, natural gas, plastics, and rubber at one half the rate of increase that BLS used for 1970-80. This was done by increasing the input coefficients of these commodities for all industries. Mathematically the rows corresponding to these supply industries in the technical coefficient matrix were multiplied by the growth factor. The low projection involved merely increasing the conversion efficiency of electric generation and of car and bus engines. The increased electric conversion efficiency corresponds to the introduction of more efficient plants (such as gas turbine topping cycles, HTGR's and other modern baseload plants) and the retirement of older plants. It represents a continuation of historical trends. The increased efficiency of auto engines, etc., represents a break with past trends. This would require either a spontaneous taxi fleet owner shift toward smaller, less gas-consuming cars or a government regulation requiring a certain minimum mileage performance on cars and buses.

The initial medium final demand projection was achieved by allowing each non-investment item of the 1980 final demand to grow by its projected 1970-80 growth rate. Figure 5.3 summarizes the final demand projection process. The investment component was then recalculated to correspond to the actual 1980-85 growth rates in total output. This was done as follows:

> Let \underline{X}_1 = total output in 1985 \underline{X}_0 = total output in 1980 \underline{Y}_F = Y - Y_I = 1985 final demand less investment \underline{Y}_I = 1985 investment \underline{B} = (I - A)⁻¹ = 1985 inverse coefficient matrix \underline{C} = 1980-85 capital/output matrix



1985 INITIAL FINAL DEMAND PROJECTION

Then $\underline{X}_{1} = (\underline{I} - \underline{A})^{-1} \underline{Y} = \underline{B} \underline{Y} = B(Y_{F} + Y_{I})$ (5.1)

$$= \underline{B} \left[\underline{Y}_{F} + \underline{C} \left(\underline{X}_{1} - \underline{X}_{0} \right) \right]$$
 (5.2)

Solving for \underline{X}_1 and \underline{Y}_1

$$\underline{X}_{1} = [\underline{I} - \underline{A} - \underline{C}]^{-1} (\underline{Y}_{F} - \underline{C} \underline{X}_{0})$$
 (5.3)

$$\underline{\ell}_{\mathrm{I}} = \underline{\mathrm{C}} \left(\underline{\mathrm{X}}_{\mathrm{I}} - \underline{\mathrm{X}}_{\mathrm{O}} \right) \tag{5.4}$$

This procedure was followed for all of the 1985 final demand projections. The capital matrix <u>C</u> used in the calculations was the projected 1975 Battelle matrix [21] modified by the substitution of the Istvan [27] 1980 electric utility vector. Since the investment component of the BLS final demand contains items other than producers durable equipment (PDE) and since the Battelle matrix <u>C</u> represents only PDE purchases, all other items (such as residential housing and inventory change) of investment were transferred to $\frac{Y}{F}$ for the calculation procedure. See Figure 5.4 for the overall model.

The low energy growth final demand was projected the same as the medium demand case except that electricity, gas and oil consumption was reduced by 6%. This represents the effect of such changes as more efficient air conditioners and automobile engines (or smaller cars and mass transit), the use of heat pumps, and better thermal insulation. The high energy growth case was similarly projected except that electricity, oil, and gas consumption are increased by 4% over the medium case.

The first new technology modification of the high demand case involved substituting gasified coal for 5% of the total BTU production of natural gas (approximately 10% in dollar terms) and summing the weighted capital/output vectors for natural gas utilities and coal gasification. This latter convention is equivalent to the assumption that coal gasification expenditures are over and above any expenditures for



- Scalar Multiplication
- ⊗ Matri× Multiplication ➡ Equals

5.4 نبا с С П В -

 $\Sigma_i Y_i = 1.34$ trillion. 1 Scaling factor is chosen so that $GNP = |\underline{Y}| =$

pipelines, pumps, and other equipment associated with gas transmission. There is also a small amount of duplication involved but this is not expected to result in serious bias because gas wells themselves are included in a different sector. It also assumes that 25% of future gas production will come from coal gasification.

The second new technology modification involved both the above coal gasification substitution and the use of the gas turbine topping cycle (with low BTU coal gasification). Approximately 38% of the 1985 fossil generation (23% of total generation) was assumed to be the gas turbine cycle and approximately 50% of the new fossil capacity additions (or 15% of total capacity additions). Figure 5.5 summarizes these modifications.

When new capital investment requirements were calculated for each of the alternative projections and substituted for the final demand investment components, the resulting GNP did not in general equal the desired \$1.34 trillion. To correct this and develop a balanced set of 1985 projections that had the proper GNP and relationship between investment and consumption, a three part procedure was used. This procedure is described in Figure 5.6 and summarized below:

> 1. The initial set of final demand projections was scaled to the right GNP. This scaling was done by multiplying all components of final demand by a constant factor. There was no allowance made for differing income elasticities of various sectors of PCE, such as between food and recreation. Purchases from all sectors were treated alike.

1985 NEW TECHNOLOGY MODIFICATIONS

Operating 25% of new capacity 5% of natural gas demand Hygas (qas) will be in (Coal supplied by coal gasifi-1 Gasification) form of coal gasification cation 38% of fossil generation 50% of fossil gener-Gas Turbine (23% of total generation) Topping Cycle ation (15% of total (combined with generation) capacity will be added by gas tur-Low BTU coal will be added in form bine topping cycle. gasification)² of gas turbine topping cycle.

-High + Hygas Future: High energy growth future is modified 1 by the indicated addition of high BTU coal gasification.

Capital

High + Hygas + GT (Gas Turbine) Future: High energy growth 2 future is modified by the addition of both new technologies indicated above. Note that low BTU coal gasification is used in conjunction with the gas turbine (COGAS) plant.



BALANCED 1985 PROJECTION PROCEDURE

FIGURE 5.6

- 2. New capital investment requirements were calculated for the scaled final demand projections of step one and substituted for its investment component. These scaled projections now had GNP's that were not equal to \$1.34 trillion.²⁵
- 3. A linear combination of the initial and the scaled projections of final demands was chosen so that, when the required capital investment was recalculated and substituted, the resulting GNP would equal \$1.34 trillion. This third step can be viewed as performing interactions around the loop of the projection model indicated in Figure 5.4 until convergence is obtained. An analytical procedure accomplishes the same result with much less computer time. This procedure is discussed in the Appendices.

5.3 Issues

There are a number of issues involving capital matrices raised by the above projection procedures, other than questions of accuracy and data reliability. This section will not give definitive answers to these problems but merely indicate how they were handled in this model.

The Battelle capital matrix [21] is derived under the assumption of balanced expansion, i.e., if capacity of a particular industry must be doubled, then the expansion occurs by increasing the number of buildings, machines, parking lots, etc., uniformly, rather than just buying more machines. There are many problems associated with defining and measuring capital stocks or capital flows. These issues are avoided in the Battelle matrix by using, essentially, an engineering approach and computing what purchases are necessary to double an 25 \$1.34 trillion represents 4.4% per year growth from 1950. industry's capacity using the newest technology and ignoring what year the purchases occur in. Thus in our model, all purchases for new capacity are assumed to occur in one year. Given that the model assumes a continuation of past growth rates, such that new capacity must be added each year in larger amounts, the assumption may result in understanding actual capital investment in any one year.

The model assumes that industry always operates at 100% of capacity so that if output increases, new capacity must be added. There is no provision for reserve capacity except as it is treated in the Battelle capital/output ratios and there is no provision for changes in the average transmission distance of pipelines, etc. Because this assumption is constant over all projections and because the conclusions are based on differential effects, this is not expected to bias the answers.

Another problem which is inadequately handled by the capital matrix is depreciation and equipment replacement. Depreciation is related to the size of the capital stock, its average age, the useful lifetime of the capital items, etc. Since most of this data was unavailable, the outputs of the new capacity calculations were scaled upward by "two-thirds" to represent depreciation and replacement purchases. However, new technology purchases were not scaled upward. Thus, if the typical industry grows 4% per year, an additional 8/3% were added to its total capital purchases to represent replacement purchases. The percentage was selected because it gave approximately the same gross investment as a percentage of GNP that has occurred over the years.

A major issue that the projections deal with very crudely involves the determination of the split between consumption, investment, and government spending. The model projects consumption and government spending and then calculates the

investment required to meet this demand and scales the total final demand to some constant GNP. This is not a bad procedure unless total investment is too large a percentage of GNP. When investment becomes large, consumers or government must forego spending in order to direct resources to satisfying investment demand. But the very act of foregoing spending reduces demand for goods which was the major reason for increased investment in the first place. The projections ignore changes in interest rates, fiscal policy, and the income elasticity of consumer goods. They also ignore price increases or rationing as a means of limiting demand to a given supply. With much more work than was justified for our purposes, better estimates could be made of these effects. It is hoped the economists will look at this problem in more detail in the future.

5.4 Projections

The major results of these projections will be summarized in three figures in this section. Figure 5.7 describes the basic unscaled projections that started from the same 1985 final demand with only the three energy components modified. The resulting differences in GNP are due entirely to differences in the investment required to meet the various energy growth rates. The introduction of coal gasification worsens the investment situation while the introduction of the gas turbine topping cycle helps slightly.

Figure 5.8 describes the scaled projections before investment was recalculated. All five alternative futures now result in a constant GNP of \$1.34 trillion (1958 dollars). Also the differences in energy use are much less significant now. The differences have been reduced so much that the large variations in investment are no longer justified.

	Basic	Unscaled	Projection	High Plus	High+ Hygas +
	Low	Medium	High	Hygas	Gas lurbine
GNP (10 ⁹ \$ 1958) PCE (% of GNP) Investment (%)	\$1296.3 72.5% 14.3	\$1321.1 71.1% 15.7	\$1394.9 67.3% 20.2	\$1421.4 66.1% 21.5	\$1404.8 66.8% 20.5
Government (%)	14.2	13.9	13.2	13.0	13.1
Total Output (10 ⁹ \$ 1958)					
Coal Mining	\$ 4.8	5.0	5.4	6.8	6.8
Plumbing, Structural Metals Engines & Turbines	16.5 7.0	17.7 7.3	21.5	23.2 8.8	22.3 8.7
Construction Equip- ment	7.7	9.8	16.9	19.2	17.6
Private Employment (106)	96.0	97.6	103.1	104.8	103.6
Energy Use (10 ¹⁵ BTU) Coal Oil	20.3 28.8	20.9 29.4	22.9 31.1	27.6	27.3 31.2
bas Flectricity	44./	40.0	24.1	51.2 24.5	22.3
	1		1		1

FIGURE 5.7 SUMMARY OF ALTERNATIVE 1985 FUTURES

.

FIGURE 5.8

SUMMAR	Scaled P	rojection	J High +	High + Hygas +	
	Low	Medium	High	Hygas	Gas Turbine
GNP (10 ⁹ \$ 1958) PCE (% of GNP) Investment (%) Government (%)	\$1340.0 72.5% 14.3 14.2	\$1340.0 71.1% 15.7 13.9	\$1340.0 67.3% 20.2 13.2	\$1340.0 66.1% 21.5 13.0	\$1340.0 66.8% 20.5 13.1
Total Output (10 ⁹ \$ 1958) Coal Mining Plumbing, Structural Metals Engines & Turbines Construction Equip- ment	\$ 5.0 17.1 7.2 7.9	\$ 5.1 17.9 7.5 9.9	\$5.2 20.6 8.1 16.2	\$ 6.5 21.9 8.3 18.1	\$ 6.5 21.2 8.3 16.8
Private Equipment (10 ⁶) Energy Use (10 ¹⁵ BTU) Coal Oil	99.3 21.0 29.8	99.0 21.2 29.8	99.0 22.0 29.9	98.8 24.4 29.8	98.8 24.4 29.8
Gas Electricity	46.2 22.4	46.6	48.3	23.1	23.1

CUMMARY OF ALTERNATIVE 1005 ENTHRES

Figure 5.9 summarizes the result of recalculating the investment for the high BTU scaled future. As can be seen total investment drops considerably. This process of scaling and recalculating investment would converge to a balanced final demand eventually in which investment would have the proper relationship to energy demand and a given GNP level. Alternatively it could be calculated analytically. These iterations are not necessary because it is clear that investment is very sensitive to energy demand growth and to changes in the capital-output ratios that may be caused by new technology such as coal gasification. However it may be enlightening to see how a slight scaling of overall PCE with its attendant small change in energy consumption can result in a balanced GNP of \$1.34 trillion. Figure 5.10 summarizes these balanced projections.

The actual total outputs and final demands by sector for all five alternative futures (both the initial projection and balanced projection) are included in the Appendices.

5.5 Sensitivity of Investment

To give some idea of the sensitivity of total output to changes in final demand, Figure 5.11 presents the column sums of $(I - A - C)^{-1}$. These column sums indicate by how much aggregate total output (i.e. the sum of all total outputs) is affected by a given dollar change in any final demand component.

Figure 5.12 weights these column sums by the projected high energy growth final demand values (scaled so that final demand sums to 100). These numbers then represent the relative effects on aggregate total output of equal percentage changes in each final demand component or alternatively of a change in the growth rate of any component.

REQUIRED INVESTMENT

1985 HIGH ENERGY USE GROWTH ALTERNATIVE

PROJECTION TYPE	<u>TOTAL INVESTMENT (GPDI)</u>
	(Billions of 1958\$)
Initial	281.7 (20.2%) ¹
Scaled	270.5 (20.2%)
Recalculated Scaled	45.8 (4.1%)
Balanced	234.5 (17.5%)

¹Number in parentheses indicate total investment as a percentage of total GNP

•

SUMMARY OF ALTERNATIVE 1985 FUTURES

	Balanced	1 1985 Pro	jections		High +
	Low	Modium	High	High +	Hygas + Gac Turbing
aug. (109 a 1000)	LUW	neurum	nign	nygas	
GNP (10 ⁻ \$ 1958)	\$1340.8	\$1340.0	\$1339.0	\$1340.9	\$1341.0
PCE (% OF GNP)	70.2%	70.0%	69.6%	69.3%	69.4%
Investment (%)	16.6	16.8	17.5	17.7	17.5
Government (%) 7	13.8	13.8	13.5	13.6	13.6
lotal Output (10'\$					
1958)					
Coal Mining	\$ 5.0	\$ 5.1	\$ 5.2	\$ 6.5	\$ 6.6
Plumbing, Structural					
Metals	18.2	18.5	19.3	20.0	19.7
Engines & Turbines	7.5	7.6	7.9	8.0	8.0
Construction Equip-					
ment	11.1	11.5	12.5	12.9	12.6
<u>Private Employment</u>					
(10°)	99.2	99.2	99.2	99.2 [.]	99.2
<u>Air Pollution</u> (10° tons	5)				
Particulates	48.6	49.0	50.0	50.2	50.1
Hydrocarbons	91.7	92.2	92.3	92.3	92.1
S02	75.2	76.1	78.2	78.2	78.2
CO	122.7	123.9	124.8	124.8	124.2
NO	30.4	31.8	32.6	32.6	32.5
<u>Steel Usage</u> (10 ⁶ tons)	194.0	195.0	198.1	199.6	198.6
Water Usage (10 ¹² gals))				
Gross	278.1	280.6	286.7	290.2	266 5
Cooling	126.0	128.3	134.3	137.8	117 8
Energy Use (10 ¹⁵ BTU)					
Total					4
Coal	24.9	25.3	26,0	28.5	28.5
011	43.0	43.9	44,5	44.4	44.4
Gas	46.1	46.7	48.5	48.5	48.2
Electricity	33.0	33.8	34.9	34.8	34.8
-					

SENSITIVITY OF TOTAL OUTPUTS TO UNIT CHANGES IN FINAL DEMAND Column Sums of $(\underline{I} - \underline{A} - \underline{S})^{-1}$

1	Livestock and products	18.65840
2	Other Farm Products	14.85533
3	Forestry & Fishery Prod.	12.19288
4	Farm. Forest. Fish Services	13.51105
5	Ferrous Metal Mining	15,70643
6	Nonferrous Metal Mining	18,20599
7	Coal Mining	11 47688
à	Crude Oil and Natural Gas	14 00945
0	Stope and Clay Mining	13 06/55
10	Minonal Mining	12 67214
10	New Construction	
11	New Construction	17.72350
12	maint & Repair Construction	9.13093
13	Urdnance, Accessories	13.4618/
14	Food & Kindred Products	15.93/98
15	Grain Milling	16.74574
16	Tobacco Manufactures	8.81227
17	Fabric, Yarn, Thread Mills	23.81117
18	Misc. Textile Goods	19.64737
19	Appare 1	14.26675
20	Misc. Fab Textile Products	19.74478
21	Lumber and Wood Products	13.52460
22	Wooden Containers	13,43886
23	Household Furniture	13,22536
24	Ather Furn and Fixtures	12 90964
25	Puln Mille	16 03960
25	Panon and Allind Products	21 975 37
20	Papan Containang Boyag	16 00166
21	Printing and Dublishing	14 59542
20	rrincing and rubiisning	17 44373
29	Industrial chemicals	10 56574
30	Fertilizers	18.306/4
31	Agr. & Misc. Chemicals	23.41426
32	Plastics and Synthetic Material	24.00975
33	Drugs, Clng, Toilet Preps.	12.16224
34	Paints and Products	17.93840
35	P etroleu m Refining	16. 91321
36	Paving Mixtures	18.78841
37	Asphalt Felts, Coatings	19.01521
38	Rubber and Plastic Prods.	19.41870
39	Leather Tanning Prod.	7.98675
40	Footwear & Leather Prod.	10.65441
41	Glass & Glass Prods.	12.09027
42	Cement, Hydraulic	13.24632
43	lime	11.80795
<u>A</u> A	Stone and Clay Prods	14 94532
45	Primary Stopl	18 23187
чJ	* 1 1 M 4 J 7 0 6 6 6 1	10160101

SENSITIVITY OF TOTAL OUTPUTS TO UNIT CHANGES IN FINAL DEMAND Column Sums of $(\underline{I}-\underline{A}-\underline{S})^{-1}$

46	Iron and Steel Foundries	16.56320
47	Iron and Steel Forgings	21.54393
48	Primary Non-ferrous Metals	19.99780
49	Misc. Non-ferrous Metals	12.20046
50	Metal Containers	13.80157
51	Plumbing & Structural Metals	12.19877
52	Heating Equipment Exc. Elec.	13.03160
53	Screws & Metal Stampings	11.92606
54	Other Fab. Metal Prods.	12.54787
55	Engines and Turbines	10.71254
56	Farm Machinery & Equipment	11.99155
57	Construction & Mining Equipment	11.66178
58	Material Handling Machinery	13.11768
59	Metalworking Machinery	12.45534
60	Special Industry Machinery	13.14226
61	General Industry Mach.	12.50017
62	Machine Shop Products	11.33579
63	Office Comp Mach.	13.19545
64	Service Industry Mach.	12.38284
65	Refrig. Machinery	11.50376
66	Electrical Industry	14.08364
67	Household Appliances	12.92294
68	Elec. Lighting Equip,	10.83581
69	Radio, TV and Comm. Equipment	12.57507
70	Elec. Comp & Access.	13.67235
71	Elec. Mach. EQP & Supplies	12.12055
72	Motor Vehicles & Equipment	12.51066
73	Aircraft and Parts	9.49392
74	Other Transport Equipment	13.04907
75	Scientific & Control Ins.	11.57233
76	Optical and Photo Equipment	11.45626
77	Misc. Manufacturing	13.18522
78	Railroad Transportation	22.625/5
79	Local Passenger Transportation	9.8/313
80	Truck Transportation	10.06053
81	Water Transportation	14.17960
82	Air Transportation	10.94290
83	Misc. Transportation	34,235/5
84	Communications Exc. RAD&T	24,65044
85	Radio and TV Broadcasting	15.04803
86	Electric Utilities	15.99566
87	Gas Utilities	32./291/
88	Water & Sanitary Serv.	18.084/2
89	Wholesale Irade	13.0/4/1
90	KETAII IRADE	11.48821

Manager and the second s

178

FIGURE 5.11

.

.

SENSITIVITY OF TOTAL OUTPUTS TO UNIT CHANGES IN FINAL DEMAND Column Sums of $(\underline{I}-\underline{A}-\underline{S})^{-1}$

91	Finance and Insurance	9.24389
92	Real Estate and Rental	4.80630
93	Hotel, Pers & Repair Serv.	16.45775
94	Business Services	13.45441
95	Research and Development	2,72724
96	Auto Repair and Service	27,04779
97	Amusements	14.15501
98	Medical and Education Serv.	16.22133
99	Fed. Government Enterprises	9.59608
100	State & Local Govt. Enterprises	7.54229
101	Imports	1.00000
102	Business Travel, Gifts	13.99725
103	Office Supplies	16.64554
104	Scrap, Secondhand Goods	1.00000
FIGURE 5.12

SENSITIVITY OF TOTAL OUTPUTS TO PERCENTAGE CHANGES IN FINAL DEMANDS-WEIGHTED COLUMN SUMS OF $(\underline{I}-\underline{A}-\underline{C})^{-1}$

1	livestock and Products	1 21016
2	Athan Farm Broducts	1.4.4524
2	Fonestry & Fishery Bred	14.44524
л Л	Famm Famaet Fich Samu	0.23320
	Formous Motol Mining	-0.50441
2	Nonformous Motol Mining	0.50301
7	Nonierrous metal mining	0.04827
/	Coal mining	0.80682
8	Crude UII and Natural Gas	0.08/03
9	Stone and Clay Mining	0.26611
10	Mineral Mining	0.25417
11	New Construction	68.52844
12	Maint. & Repair Const.	8.81534
13	Ordnance, Accessories	9.39001
14	Food & Kindred Products	112.24187
15	Grain Milling	6.48835
16	Tobacco Manufacturers	5.27951
17	Fabric, Yarn, Thread Mills	4.38415
18	Misc. Textile Goods	5.06492
19	Appare 1	32.42346
20	Misc. Fab. Textile Products	5.79106
21	Lumber and Wood Prods.	1.20031
22	Wooden Containers	0.05730
23	Household Furniture	8.42636
24	Other Furn & Fixtures	1.77864
25	Pulp Mills	1,42266
26	Paper & Allied Prods.	8,47561
27	Paper Containers, Boxes	0.46497
28	Printing & Publishing	10,69535
29	Industrial Chemicals	7,59621
รัก	Fertilizers	1 08858
31	Aar & Misc Chemicals	3 77434
32	Plactice & Synthetic Material	5 27936
32	Druge Cing Toilet Pren	18 38030
37	Painte and Producte	0 25631
25	Potnoloum Pofining	27 57567
30	Paving Mixtung	0 01050
20	Acphalt Folte Coatings	0.01039
3/	Aspirait Feris, Cualings	0.01564
30	Rubber & Plastic Prods.	9.49042
39	Leather lanning prods.	0.04246
40	rootwear & Leather Prods.	3.04//5
41	GIASS & GIASS Prods.	0.78309
42	cement, Hydraulic	0.01018
43		0.00298
44	Stone & Clay Prods.	1.40699

FIGURE 5.12

SENSITIVITY OF TOTAL OUTPUTS TO PERCENTAGE CHANGES IN FINAL DEMANDS-WEIGHTED COLUMN SUMS OF $(\underline{I}-\underline{A}-\underline{C})^{-1}$

45	Primary Steel	1.78862
46	Iron and Steel Foundries	0.14493
47	Iron and Steel Forgings	0.06218
48	Primary Non-ferrous Metal	1.13659
49	Misc. Non-ferrous Metals	0.5 877 5
50	Metal Containers	0.04848
51	Plumbing & Structural Metal	0.70032
52	Heating Equipment Exc. Elec.	0.28390
53	Screws & Metal Stampings	1.73025
54	Other Fab Metal Prods	2.51447
55	Engines & Turbines	2.53056
56.	Farm Machinery & Equipment	1.37445
57	Construction & Mining Equipment	2.43193
58	Material Handling Machinery	0.72524
59	Metalworking Mach.	1.07645
60	Special Industry Mach.	1.17531
61	General Industry Mach.	1.19933
62	Machine Shop Products	0.34495
63	Office Comp Mach.	5.72519
64	Service Industry Mach.	0.4/415
65	Refrig. Machinery	1.28910
66	Electrical Industry	2.35941
67	Household Appliances	10.23641
68	Electric Lighting Equipment	1.31911
69 70	Radio, IV & Comm. Equipment	22.13908
70	Electric. Lomp & Access.	3.82029
/1	Liec. Mach Equip. & Supplies	
12	Motor vehicles & Equip	40.01441
13	Alrerali a Paris Othon Thanchont Equin	5 22102
/4 75	Scientific & Control Inc	1 23972
75	Optical & Photo Equip	3 5///10
70	Mice Manufactuming	1/ /5073
// 70	Pailroad Transportation	14.43573
70	Local Passanger Transportation	5 87717
80	Truck Transportation	7 55813
81	Water Transportation	7.09230
82	Air Transportation	5,11922
83	Misc. Transportation	2.88323
84	Communications Exc. RAD&T	45.59076
85	Radio & TV Broadcasting	0.21022
86	Electric Utilities	22.63258
87	Gas Utilities	22.95432
8 8	Water & Sanitary Serv.	4.18774
89	Wholesale Trade	58.75487
90	Retail Trade	112.48943
91	Finance and Insurance	26.96211

FIGURE 5-12

SENSITIVITY OF TOTAL OUTPUTS TO PERCENTAGE CHANGES IN FINAL DEMANDS-WEIGHTED COLUMN SUMS OF $(\underline{I} - \underline{A} - \underline{C})^{-1}$

92	Real Estate and Rental	61.56100
93	Hotel, Pers & Repair Ser.	37.64803
94	Business Services	10.67370
95	Research and Development	0.18202
96	Auto Repair and Service	23.53889
97	Amusements	8.80626
98	Medical & Education Serv.	102.43959
99	Federal Govt. Enterprises	2.43741
100	State and Local Govt. Enterprises	1.40059
101	Imports	-5.26911
102	Business Travel, Gifts	0.0
103	Office Supplies	2.00924
104	Scrap, Secondhand Goods	-0.00215

The unweighted components vary from a low of 4.8 for Real Estate (ignoring summary industries) to a high of 34.2 for Miscellaneous Transportation (primarily pipelines). Gas utilities have about twice the impact of petroleum refining or electric utility on a dollar per dollar growth basis. The variation of weighted sums is much greater than that of the unweighted sums. The negative sum for Forestry and Fishery Products is simply explained by the fact that the government sells these products and hence the final demand entry is negative. New Construction is seen to have the fourth highest value on a weighted basis. This is the key to the high sensitivity of investment to changes in capital intensive industries. Capital purchases by such industries have a high percentage of construction in them and a high dollar value. The resulting large change in construction activity has a very large effect on aggregate total output. This in turn requires more expansion and more construction etc.

Figure 5.13 summarizes the investment sensitivity of the Medium BTU projection to 4% changes in the final demand consumption of the three energy sources. Each change was computed separately. Note that a 4% change corresponds to different dollar amounts for the three cases.

FIGURE 5.13

INVESTMENT SENSITIVITY TO CHANGES IN FINAL ENERGY DEMAND¹ (1985 Medium Projection)

_	<u>Δ Investment</u>	<u> </u>
	∆ Energy Demand ²	∆ Energy Demand
Electricity ⁴ (4%)	6.7	16.6
Natural Gas (4%)	11.5	28.2
Petroleum	6.7	17.8

 $\Delta \quad \text{Total Output} = | \underline{X} | = | [I - A - C]^{-1} | Y |$ $\Delta \quad \text{Investment} = \Delta | \underline{Y}_1 | = | \underline{C} | \Delta | \underline{X}_1 |$

¹See text for explanation. ²Change in final demand component of indicated energy sector ³Change in the sum of total outputs of all sectors $(\Delta \Sigma X_i = \Delta | X |)$ ⁴ ⁱCalculated by using a 4% increase in final demand of each fuel separately. Chapter 6: Conclusions and Recommendations

6.1 Conclusions

Capital expenditures for new energy technology are going to have their greatest effect on the makers of boilers and pressure vessels (BEA sector 40.06) since all of the technologies that have been discussed require either high pressure vessels or boilers or both. Engines and Turbines (BEA sector 43.0) will also get a significant boast from the increasing number of turbo-generator units that must be installed. Depending upon whether the gas turbines used in the topping cycle are purchased from the Engines and Turbine sector of the economy or from the Aircraft Parts, either or both of these sectors will receive an extra spurt of investment from the combined cycle plants that may be built.

All of the new technologies require significant amounts of steel, but the major crunch will occur in the manufacturing sectors that must transform the steel into other components such as pressure vessles. Pollution effects and employment changes caused by these capital expenditures are comparatively minor although the regional impact of the construction of these plants may be significant.

The major operating impacts of these plants are on the coal mining industry and, in the case of the electric generation plants that burn char, on the limestone and lime producing industries (if this form of SO_2 control is chosen). These particular effects are likely to be much more pronounced on the regional level because both the coals and the limestone are comparatively high-volume, low-value materials and hence cannot be shipped long distances. Water usage for the various coal gasification processes represents very heavy consumptive

use of this water. This again could have some regional impact but not a significant national impact. The major problem here of course is that coal gasification represents an actual consumptive use of water; it is not merely heated and returned to the stream--the water is actually changed chemically and becomes part of the methane output of the gas plants. Energy usage will increase a bit more rapidly as the conversion losses of coal gasification come into play. Air pollution will increase as a result of the operation of the coal gasification plants, decrease as a result of the use of coal gasification to feed electric generation plants instead of coal and will increase relative to the emissions of natural gas wells themselves.

The procedure illustrated in Chapter 2 to derive capital and operating coefficients for new technologies is perhaps deceptively simple. Appendices C through H hopefully dispell the notion of simplicity from this derivation. Conceptually it is quite clear what needs to be done, but the practical implementation of the scheme is much more difficult.

Perhaps the most important results of this study are:

- Total capital investment is very sensitive to changes in the energy use growth rate and to the introduction of new energy technology:
- It is also sensitive to very slight changes in the growth rate of total personal consumption expenditures and government spending; and
- 3. Another feedback mechanism between the demand for investment funds and the interest rate has been identified. The traditional mechanism views an increase in interest rate as causing marginally profitable projects to become unprofitable and hence total investment falls. The new mechanism notes that an increase in interest rate will induce people to

save more money with the result that consumption cannot grow as rapidly. Hence capacity does not have to expand as fast and total investment slackens.

The introduction of high BTU coal gasification will aggravate the demand for investment funds over what it would be if natural gas were available domestically. However it may not require more investment than other available processes such as liquified natural gas or pipelines to Alaska. These processes were not investigated nor was the possibility of oil or electricity taking over part of the natural gas market. Thus the absolute numbers for the size of the impacts may not be correct, but the sensitivity statements are true.

The introduction of the gas turbine topping cycle as part of a combined gas and steam cycle for electricity generation will lessen the demand for investment funds. This will be true whether or not low BTU coal gasification is used with it. However this conclusion is sensitive to the actual efficiencies and costs that can be obtained on the second generation turbines and gas production process, and to any unforeseen problem of integrating the gas and steam cycles. Since these costs (in real dollars) are unlikely to go down and may go up, it is important to recognize that rising costs may actually reverse this conclusion.

To summarize the three major points of this study, we have demonstrated:

- a. that new technology can be explicitly included within the input-output framework and this framework used for projection of future impacts
- b. that input-output analysis can be used to study energy use, air pollution, employment and other variables in which we may be interested, and

c. that the major new technology economic impacts will be on investment spending.

6.2 Implications for Energy Policy

It has been shown that the major impacts of introducing coal gasification and combined gas and steam cycle plants will be on Boiler Makers and Turbogenerator Manufacturers and Coal Mining. All of these sectors will have to significantly expand their capacities over the projected 1980 levels to be able to meet the 1985 demands if new technology grows as expected. Only very slight reductions in the rate of growth of Household purchases (PCE) and/or government spending is needed to satisfy the huge investment demands of these technologies. There are many possible mechanisms, such as interest rates and taxes, that can achieve the balance between consumption, investment, and government spending.

It is therefore recommended that to insure that the expansion of manufacturing and mining capacity and the siting of the new technology plants takes place in an orderly and non-damaging (to the environment or the economy) manner. Such incentives and regulations can range from manpower training progress to ensure a sufficient supply of skilled heavy construction labor to requiring minimum standards of strip mine restoration to providing separate money markets for home construction financing which might be hurt by high interest rates.

6.3 Further Research Suggestions

The limitations of the present generalized input-output model have been discussed in Chapter 2. For example, the model

does not include regional representations, industrial price elasticities or consumer demand functions. The suggestions for further research are designed to overcome these limitations.

Figure 6.1 summarizes the types of development that should be undertaken. Regional and state I/O tables have become available [35, 36]. These can be used to construct a small energy oriented multiregional (e.g. 9 regions) model of the U.S. In addition, more detailed models of a particular state might be useful for certain energy and environmental impact studies. The problem with regional models is that either the number of regions or the number of sectors must be severely restricted to keep the model manageable (in terms of both costs of computation and understanding).

Better representation of consumer (PCE) behavior is badly needed. If I/O is to be useful, one must be able to predict the response of consumer spending to changes in air-conditioner efficiencies, to higher interest rates, and to other policy variables (i.e. variables that can be changed by industrv or government regulations or action). Capital Stock models of energy demand may be very fruitful here.

At the national level, more disaggregation of energyrelated industries (like Boiler-Makers) is needed. In some cases, this may require a study to determine the technological and capital coefficients of new industries like Nuclear Fuel Reprocessing. More new technologies should be studied such as other high BTU coal gasification processes, the high temperature gas-cooled reactor (HTGR), or shale oil extraction schemes. It should also be easy to incorporate more noneconomic variables, such as water pollution, into the database.



It is also extremely important to begin introducing industrial price elasticities into the I/O framework. Tf fuel prices change, not only will the technological coefficients for these fuels change but also those for competing materials like steel and aluminum will change. Since fuel prices are expected to rise and since gas supplies are not meeting demand, some mechanism for modifying the technological coefficients must be used. This can be done either with price elasticities or with engineering studies. Certainly engineering studies will be needed to predict the impacts of various pollution control technologies. Figure 6.2 illustrates one possible form of such a dynamic input-output model. Pure changes must be able to affect both industrial and personal consumption and there must be explicit policy variables, besides government spending.

To summarize, econometric and engineering techniques must be brought to bear on the input-output framework to enable it to cope with price changes, new technologies, and policy regulation. Above all, policy-makers must be encouraged and educated in the use of generalized input-output analysis. Toward this end, the next section describes several important studies that could be undertaken now.

6.4 Suggestions for Policy Studies

Generalized input-output analysis can be used as either a forecasting tool or an assessment tool. As a forecasting tool it can predict detailed electricity-usage, total sales, SO_2 emissions, etc. As an assessment tool, it can predict the economic and environmental impacts (on a large scale) of various new technologies, government spending programs, policy decisions, etc.





Three specific areas have been identified that both are important from a policy decision point of view and are areas where input-output analysis can contribute uniquely. Obviously more techniques than just input-output would be needed to answer the whole question, but input-output will play the central integrating role in these studies. These areas are:

- (1) Impacts of Capital Expenditures for Environmental Quality. There is a guestion of whether the 1975 air quality standards could be met (especially by the electric utilities) even if the technology were now available because of capacity constraints on the production of such equipment. What is the best that can be done environmentally at reasonable cost? This study would require knowledge of the production capacity of the many sectors of the economy, and the various options (like fuel switching or SO₂ control) available to meet the different levels of emissions standards. This study could be performed at the national level but regional studies would be more useful. This would entail obtaining all of the above information in regional form and the use of regional I/O tables which are now available [36].
- (2) Impacts of Multiple Investment Programs (e.g. Energy and Pollution Controls). Both the government and industry have goals which entail large investment programs as in the industries attempts to meet energy demand and the government attempts to control pollution. Generalized input-output analysis is valuable for examining the combined impacts of these various programs on different sectors of the economy. This is another form of bottleneck analysis and requires information similar to that described above.

(3) Impacts of Alternative Methods of Meeting Oil and Gas Demand. Two extreme cases are possible: (a) the U.S. can rely on a massive oil and gas import program to meet its growing energy needs or (b) the U.S. can stimulate oil and gas development internally. The economy, in terms of employment and sizes of various industries, will be quite different in these two cases. A first approximation to answering these questions could be obtained by ignoring the effects of any price changes in oil or gas products and focusing on the different final demands and industrial structures that might result.

These are important questions and the techniques developed in this study can help to answer parts of them. More research is needed to expand the applications of generalized inputoutput analysis, but hopefully this report has shown that there is a value to such research.

REFERENCES*

- 1. American Gas Association, Department of Statistics, <u>1971 Gas Facts: A Statistical Record of the Gas</u> <u>Utility Industry, 1970 Data</u>. Arlington, Virginia: American Gas Association Inc., 1972.
- 2. Almon, C., <u>The American Economy to 1975</u>. New York: Harper & Row, 1966.
- 3. Almon, C., <u>The Maryland Interindustry Forecasting</u> Model. University of Maryland, January, 1972.
- 4. Anderson, K.P. <u>Residential Demand for Electricity</u>: <u>Econometric Estimates for California and the United</u> States, Draft R-905-NSF. Santa Monica: California.
- 5. Bechtel Corporation, "Input-Output Data for the Electric Power Industry". Bechtel contract number 10015, June, 1972 (unpublished).
- 6. Carter, A.P. <u>Structural Change in the American</u> <u>Economy</u>, Cambridge, Mass.: Harvard University Press, 1970.
- 7. "Change of Heart", <u>Wall Street Journal</u>, June 23, 1972, p. 1.
- 8. Chapman, D., Mount, T., and Tyrell, T. <u>Electricity</u> <u>Demand Growth: Implications for Research and Develop-</u> <u>ment</u>, Testimony before the Subcommittee on Science, <u>Research and Development of the Committee of Science</u> and Aeronautics of the U.S. House of Representatives, June, 1972.
- 9. Commission on Population Growth and the American Future. <u>Population, Resources and the Environment</u>. (Pesources for the Future), GPO, 1972
- Council of Economic Advisors. "Economic Report of the President: Transmitted to the Congress, February 1971". GPO, 1971.

^{*} GPO is used as the abbreviation for U.S. Government Printing Office, Washington, D.C.

- 11. Council on Environmental Quality. Environmental Quality: The First Annual Report of the Council On Environmental Quality, transmitted to the Congress, GPO, August 1970
- 12. Council on Environmental Quality. <u>Environmental</u> <u>Quality: The Second Annual Report of the Council on</u> <u>Environmental Quality</u>, transmitted to the Congress August, 1971. GPO.
- 13. Culberson, Oran L. <u>The Consumption of Electricity</u> <u>in the United States</u>. Oak Pidge National Laboratories, ORNL-NSF-EP-5, June, 1971.
- 14. Edison Electric Institute. Statistical Year Book of the Electric Utility Industry for 1970, #38, Publication No. 71-25. New York: Edison Electric Institute, September, 1971.
- 15. "Energy Crisis: Are We Running Out?", <u>Time</u>, June 12, 1972, pp. 49-55.
- 16. Executive Office of the President, Office of Science and Technology, <u>Patterns of Energy Consumption in the</u> <u>United States</u>. GPO, January, 1972.
- 17. Federal Power Commission. <u>The 1970 National Power</u> <u>Survey</u>, VOL. 1-4. GPO, 1971.
- 18. Federal Power Commission. <u>National Gas Supply and</u> Demand: 1971 - 1990. GPO, February, 1972.
- 19. Federal Power Commission. <u>Statistics of Privately</u> <u>Owned Electric Utilities in the U.S.: 1970</u> GPO, Dec. 1971.
- 20. Federal Power Commission. <u>Statistics of Publicly</u> <u>Owned Electric Utilities in the U.S.: 1970 GP0, 1971.</u>
- 21. Fisher, W. Halder and Chilton, Cecil H. "Final Report on An <u>Ax Ante</u> Capital Matrix for the U.S., 1970-1975" tp "<u>Scientific American</u>", March 31, 1971. Batelle Memorial Institute, Columbus, Ohio.
- 22. Halvorsen, R. "Residential Electricity: Demand and Supply". Harvard University, December 1971 (unpublished).

- 23. Hottel, H.C., and Howard, D. B. <u>New Energy Technology</u> <u>Some Facts and Assessments</u>. Cambridge; <u>Mass.</u>: MIT Press, 1971.
- 24 Houthakker, H., and Taylor, L. <u>Consumer Demand in the</u> United States, 1929-1970. Cambridge, Mass.
- 25. International Research and Technology. Effects of Technologies, Change on and of Environmental Implications and Input-Output Analysis: For the United States 1967-2020, Washington D.C. IRT-266-R, December, 1971.
- 26. Istvan, Rudyard. <u>1980</u> Inputs for Private Electric Utilities. Prepared for the Interagency Growth Project, Bureau of Labor Statistics, August, 1972. (Harvard Economic Research Project).
- 27. Istvan, Rudyard, <u>Outputs and Growth in the Flectric</u> <u>Utilities</u>. Unpublished undergraduate thesis, Harvard University, 1972.
- 28. Just, James. <u>Changes in Energy Consumption, 1963-1980</u>. Unpublished Masters thesis, Cambridge, Mass.; MIT, January, 1973.
- 29. Just, James. <u>Guide to the Generalized Input-Output Model</u> <u>Database</u>, MIT Energy Planning and Analysis Group, MIT, Cambridge, Mass. Forthcoming.
- 30. <u>Keystone Coal Industry Manual, 1970</u>. New York: Mining Informational Services.
- 31. Leontief, W. "Environmental Repercussions and the Economic Structure: An Input-Output Approach", <u>Review of Economics</u> and Statistics, Vol. LII, August, 1970, pp. 262-271.
- 32. Leontief, W., and Ford, D. "Air Pollution and the Economic Structure: Empirical Results of Input-Output Coefficients", Harvard Research Project Economic unpublished.
- 33. McGraw-Hill Publications Co. 25th Annual McGraw-Hill Survey: Business' Plans for New Plants & Equipment, 1972-1975. McGraw Hill, 1971
- 34. Mow, C. C. et al. <u>Residential Electrical Energy Consump-</u> <u>tion--A Conceptual Forecasting Model</u>, draft, P-995-NSF/ CSRA, Rand Corporation.
- 35. Polenske, K. R. <u>A Multiregional Input-Output Model for</u> the United States. EDA Report No. 21 (Harvard Fconomic Research Project), December, 1971.

- 36. Polenske, K.R., et al. <u>A Guide for Users of the United</u> <u>States Multiregional Input-Output Model</u>. Prepared for the Office of Systems Analysis and Information, U.S. Department of Transportation, June, 1972.
- 37. Reardan, W. <u>An Input-Output Analysis of Energy Use</u> <u>Changes from 1947 to 1958 to 1963</u>. Pacific Northwest Laboratories of Battelle Memorial Institute, Richland, Washington, June, 1972.
- 38. Resources for the future, <u>Energy Research Needs</u>, October, 1971, Washington, D.C., PB 207516.
- 39. Robson, F. L. et al. <u>Technological and Economic</u> <u>Feasibility of Advanced Power Cycles and Methods of</u> <u>Producing Non-Polluting Fuels for Utility Power Stations</u>, United Aircraft Research Laboratories, December, 1970.
- 40. Shell Oil Company, "The National Energy Position", February, 1972.
- 41. Strout, Alam M. <u>Technological Change and United States</u> <u>Energy Consumption, 1939-1954</u>. Unpublished PhD dissertation, University of Chicago, 1967.
- 42. Tsaros, C. L. et. al., <u>Cost Estimate of a 500 Billion</u> <u>BTU/Day Pipeline Gas Plant Via Hydrogasification and</u> <u>Electrothermal Gasification of Lignite</u>, Institute of Gas Technology for Office of Coal Research. August, 1968.
- 43. Tsaros, C. L., and Subramanian, T. K. <u>Electrothermal</u> <u>Hygas Process. Escalated Costs</u>, Institute of Gas Technology, for office of Coal Pesearch, February, 1971.
- 44. U. S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of the Census of Manufacturers, 1963. <u>Subject Statistics: Selected</u> Materials Consumed MC 63 (1) -8
- 45. U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of the Census, Census of Manufacturers, 1963 <u>Subject Statistics:</u> <u>Fuels and Electric Energy Consumed in Manufacturing</u> Industries: 1962. MC63(1)-7 U.S. GPO 1965.
- 46. U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of the Census, Census of Manufacturers, 1963. <u>Subject Statistics:</u> Water Use in Manufacturing. MC63(1)-10 GPO, 1966

- 47. U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of the Census, Census of Mineral Industries, 1963 <u>Summary and Industry</u> <u>Statistics: Fuels, Electric Energy, and Selected</u> <u>Supplies Used, MIC(1)-6 GP0, 1967.</u>
- 48. U.S. Department of Commerce, Office of Business Economics Input-Output Structure of the U.S. Economy: 1963 Survey of Current Business vol. 49, no. 11 (November 1969), pp. 16-47.
- 49. U.S. Department of Commerce, Office of Business Economics <u>Input-Output Structure of the U.S. Economy: 1963</u> vol. 1-3, GPO, 1969.
- 50. U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, <u>Capital Flow Matrix, 1958</u>, GPO, BLS Bulletin 1601 (1968)
- 51. U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics "Patterns of the U.S. Economic-Growth", GPO, BLS Bulletin 1672 (1970).
- 52. U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, Projections 1970, GPO, BLS Bulletin 1536 (1966).
- 53. U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, <u>Projections of the Post-Vietnam Economy, 1975</u>, GPO, BLS Bulletin 1733 (1972).
- 54. Water Resources Council, <u>The Nations' Water Resources</u>, GPO, 1968.
- 55. Yan, Chiou-Shuang, <u>Introduction to Input-Output</u> Economics. Holt, Rinehart & Winston, 1969.

APPENDICES

.

199

.

Appendix A Data Sources

The estimated 1980 input-output coefficients and final demands were obtained from the Bureau of Labor Statistics (see [51]). These numbers were published at 86 order. Various manipulations on this data, which are described in Reference 29, were performed to disaggregate the data to 104 order. Reference 51 describes the exact procedure used to perform the 1980 projections. Basically GNP was projected by using labor force and labor force productivity. Then the 1958 input-output table was projected to 1980 using 1965 as an intermediate reference year. Readers are referred to [51] for more information.

The air pollution coefficients for 1967 and the improved 1980 coefficients were obtained from International Research and Technology (see Reference 25). These coefficients were derived as part of a two-step process. The first step estimated air pollution coefficients from heat and power generation within the particular industry. The second stage estimated pollution coefficients from industrial processes within each particular These coefficients were usually derived by looking sector. at the major process used within the industry and assuming that all sectors or all sub-industries of that industry used that process. Therefore these coefficients may not be completely representative of the actual pollution of each sector: however, they should be reasonably close. Unless an extremely detailed industry by industry method is used, it is unlikely that any of these coefficients will be closer than perhaps a factor of 2 of the real number. In addition, the study mentioned did not consider any air pollution from mining sectors other than that of coal refuse fires, nor any pollution resulting from service sectors. These were not judged to be serious deficiencies.

Energy use coefficients were derived in a multi-step process. First, 1963 actual energy flows in BTU's for coal, crude oil, refined petroleum, natural gas and electricity were obtained from a Battelle Memorial Institute report (see Reference 37). Next, the BTU flows within each individual sector were compared to the dollar flows in the 1963 input-output table to yield a BTU per dollar coefficient. These coefficients were then applied to the projected constant dollar 1980 input-output table. By applying these conversion coefficients directly to the 1980 technical coefficient matrix one was able to obtain a BTU per dollar of output coefficient. In the near future it should be possible to do an even better job of projecting energy flows because Oak Ridge National Laboratories is preparing 365 order energy flows for the 1963 matrix. Battelle's work was done at 40 order.

An analagous procedure was used to derive steel use coefficients. First, the steel usage by the various sectors was obtained from the Census of Manufacturers and Census of Mining for 1963. This was supplemented by information from the <u>Annual Statistical Report</u> of the American Iron and Steel Institute. Reference 29 describes in more detail the derivation of these coefficients and provides similar information for the derivation of gross water usage and cooling water usage coefficients. Gross water usage is in this case defined as the total water required if no re-circulation were used. Thus it does not correspond to water intake figures. The consumptive use of this water is usually a few percent of the gross figure.

Employment coefficients were derived from the Bureau of Labor Statistics projections that went along with their 1980 input-output projections. Reference 51 provides more information on these coefficients. The price elasticities of consumer demand for various products was obtained from the University of Maryland Inter-Industry Forecasting Project. This work is documented in References 1, 2 and 3. Appendix B Some New Energy Technologies²⁶

B-1 Gas from Coal

Gaseous fuels have many desirable properties and the market for such fuels seems quite large in the future, even at prices significantly above their current costs (natural gas at the wellhead sells for about 26 c/MMBTU average transport costs, and to customers for 36c to \$1.00/MMBUT while liquified natrual gas will cost in the neighborhood of \$1.00/MMBTU at the ports). However natural gas is in short supply at the moment. Even the vast reserves of the North Slope of Alaska will probably amount to less than two year's total domestic consumption of natural gas ([18], p. 3). While some of the problems associated with the lack of discoveries of natural gas can be laid at the foot of its artificially maintained low price, there are many who doubt that much more natural gas will be found even at higher prices. However, geological evidence indicates that there are still substantial quantities to be found in the contiguous U.S. Alaska may ultimately yield a ten to twenty supply, but that will not be available for some time. Where is the additional gas to come from in the short term.

One obvious source is to import it, whether by pipeline from Canada or Mexico or by LNG tanker from the Middle East, where it is just flared for lack of a market, or even from the U.S.S.R. Figure B.1 summarizes the world's production and reserves in map-format. It also indicates the location of the world's giant gas fields by rank. To what extent it

²⁶ Much of the material for this chapter is drawn from two excellent publications, <u>Energy Research Needs</u> [38] and <u>New Energy Technology</u> [23].



В.1 LL. ۲ ∍ Ŀ ш

will be national policy to depend on overseas sources for much of our energy supplies is uncertain. Much of Europe and certainly Japan does already depend on foreign supplies almost completely. There is an economic choice to be made. How much is the U.S. willing to pay to remain domestically self-sufficient for natural gas or oil? Figure B.2 summarizes the FPC's estimates of natural gas imports.

The alternative strategy is to gasify other fossil fuels, in particular coal or oil. Coal gasification seems most likely to arrive first although naptha is being gasified now. Technology for producing a low-BTU gas (about 450 BTU/ft³) exists now. By catalytically methanating it (not commercially proven yet), one can achieve a pipeline quality gas. On August 19, 1971 El Paso Natural Gas Company announced its plans to construct such a facility in New Mexico, near 900 million tons of recoverable coal that El Paso acquired. First deliveries from this plant are expected in 1976 at a cost of \$0.85 to \$1.10 per thousand cubic feet. (Mcf)

There are many technologies being developed for the production of both low BTU and high BTU gas from coal. Two of these technologies will be discussed next.

B.2 Hygas-Electrothermal

The Institute of Gas Technology (IGT) has been developing a process known as the Hygas Electrothermal process. This is illustrated in Figure B.3. The main units are a two stage, fluidized bed hydrogasifier and an electrothermal, fluidized bed synthesis gas generator. Caking coal is pretreated by partial devolatilization in another fluidized bed reactor to solve the caking problem (if lignite is used, this step is not needed). This coal is then mixed with a light oil (e.g. benzene) and pumped as a slurry to the drying bed, (also fluidized).

FPC NATURAL GAS ESTIMATES

UNITED STATES GAS SUPPLY-DEMAND BALANCE Actual 1966-1970; Projected 1971-1990 (All Volumes in Trillions of Cubic Feet @ 14.73 Psis and 60⁰ Fahrenheit)

Year	Annual <u>Demand</u> 1/	Net Pipeline Imports	LNG Imports	Gas From <u>Coal</u>	Gas From Alaska	Gas From Liquid Hy- drocarbons	Domestic Production	Annual <u>Consumption</u>	Un- Satisfied Demand	Reserve Additions	Year-end Reserves	R/P <u>Ratio</u>
1966	17.9	0.4	-	-	-	-	17.5	17.9	0.0	19.2	286.4	16.4
1967	18.8	0.5	•	-	-	-	18.4	18.8	0.0	21.1	289.3	15.8
1968	19.9	0.6	*	-	-	-	19.3	19.9	0.0	12.0	282.1	14.6
1969	21.3	0.7	*	-	-	-	20.6	21.3	0.0	8.3	269.9	13.1
1970	22.6	0.8	*	-	-	-	21.8	22.6	0.0	11.1	259.6	11.9
1971	24.6	0.9	*	-	-	-	22.8	23.7	0.9	12.0	248.8	10.9
1972	26.1	1.0	*	-	-	**	23.8	24.8	1.3	13.0	238.0	10.0
1973	27.7	1.1	*	-	-	**	24.7	25.8	1.9	14.0	227.3	9.2
1974	28.8	1.1	*	-	-	**	24.8	25.9	2.9	15.0	217.4	8.8
1975	29.8	1.2	0.3	-	-	**	24.7	26.2	3.6	16.0	208.7	8.4
1980	34.5	1.6	2.0	0.3	0.7	**	20.4	25.0	9.5	17.0	186.1	9.1
1985	39.8	1.9	3.0	1.4	1.3	**	18.5	26.1	13.7	17.0	175.4	9.5
1990	46.4	1.9	4.0	3.3	2.3	**	17.8	29.3	17.1	17.0	170.4	9.6
1971-1990 Totals	707.6	31.1	38.0	17.3	20.6	**	414.2	521.2	186.4	325.0	-	-

÷.

Very small volumes Insufficient data for quantitative projection: unsatisfied demand will be reduced by the amount of SNG actually produced. Contiguous 48 states.

1/



UNITED STATES GAS SUPPLY-DEMAND BALANCE

*U.S. Natural Gas Reserve Additions (1971-1990) Total 325 Trillion Cubic Feet. Source: [18] p, 3.

.



Hygas-Electrothermal Process for Making Pipeline Gas from Coal

Source: [23] p. 111.

The problem of feeding solids into a high pressure vessel is usually solved with a slurry or with pressurized lock hoppers. The slurry method is preferred but there are durability problems with the slurry pumps.

"Hydrogasification is carried out in two stages, with gases and solids passing countercurrent to each other between stages. In the first stage, a low-temperature reactor acts as a concurrent transport reactor in which fresh lignite reacts with the hot effluent from the second-stage hydro-gasifier. The latter is a fluidized bed in which char from the first stage reacts with steam and 1900° F raw synthesis gas, which is produced in the electrogasifier fueled by spent hydrogasifier char.

The electrogasifier is also a fluidized-bed reactor, with steam as the gasifying medium for the spent char. Resistance heating is supplied by electric current passing through the fluidized bed. The hot, spent char is transferred into this vessel, and the synthesis gas goes directly to the hydrogasifier. The use of synthesis instead of hydrogen for hydrogasification of lignite has been successfully demonstrated in the pilot plant.

In the hydrogasifier 53% of the carbon in the lignite feed is gasified. In the electrogasifier 18.3% is converted to synthesis gas. The electrogasifier residue, containing 82.7% of the feed carbon, together with all the ash, is used as fuel for power and high-pressure process steam in the MHDsteam power section." ([42], p. 2)

It should be added that the electrogasifier residue will contain about 25 - 50% of the sulfur in the original coal (essentially all of the non-organic sulfur and none of the organic sulfur). The residue will be burned at the power station. Low sulfur lignite will not present much of an emissions problem, but high sulfur bituminous coals may require extensive stack gas cleaning equipment at the power station. In fact the major problem with the published Hygas reports is that little or no provision is made for stack gas cleaning equipment, waste water treatment, or even sulfur recovery. The report contains the somewhat glib statement that revenues from the sale of sulfur will cover the cost of equipment needed for sulfur recovery. The other problems are not addressed at all. Since the Hygas process is the one selected for use in this report, some correction had to be made for this oversight. This correction is discussed in Appendices C and D. It basically consisted of adding SO_2 scrubbers, cooling towers, and water pollution control facilities.

To give some idea of the size of the proposed 500 million cubic feet per day plant, it consumes as much coal as four 1000 MW electric generation plants. It processes as much energy per day as a very large 120,000 barrel per day refinery. (The largest oil refinery in the U.S., Humble Oil's Baytown, Texas refinery, has a 345,000 barrel per day capacity and consists of four crackers.) The electric generation plant needed to heat the gasifier produces 750 MW, 90% of which is consumed by the gasifier above.

The Hygas process is the most advanced of all the processes. A 1.5 million cubic feet/day pilot plant is operating in Chicago. This project, which is supported by the Office of Coal Research and the American Gas Association (AGA) uses both Montana lignite and Illinois high volatility bituminous coal. In addition, the AGA is supporting both a preliminary engineering study for a one-third to one-sixth commercial size demonstration plant and a study to identify potential coal gasification sites in the U.S.

A variant of the Hygas-Electrothermal process is known as the Hygas-Oxygen process. It replaces the electrothermal hydrogen source with a fluidized-bed synthesis gas generator. The synthesis gas is then passed through a hydrogen purification system. This process is illustrated in Figure B.4. IGT is quite interested in this process as the economics look slightly better than those for the Hygas-Electrothermal process. The possible difficulties include the fact that a 750 MW generation plant is well with the state of the art of construction techniques, but an oxygen plant of the proper size may not be.

FIGURE B.4

HYGAS-OXYGEN PROCESS FOR MAKING PIPELINE GAS FROM COAL



Source: [23], p. 115

.

In this case the Hygas-Oxygen process is not as bad off as some of the other gasification processes (e.g. Bigas) because it adds oxygen in a separate reactor and hence requires less.

B.3 Low BTU Coal Gasification

The first question to be answered is why anyone would be interested in a low BTU gas anyway. The answer lies in the combined economics of production, transportation, and utilization technology for gas. Low BTU gas can be produced more cheaply per BTU than high BTU gas, but it costs more per BTU to transport. In addition, extensive modifications must be made to burners that are designed for natural gas (high BTU content) if they are to burn low BTU gas efficiently. Thus if the gas can be used at or near the point of gasification (e.g., in large industrial plants), low BTU gas may have an economic advantage. However, if it must be shipped long distances to small consumers, then high BTU gas is a necessity.

Note that if the large user happens to be an electric utility, then the cost of electrical transmission to the load centers must be weighted against the costs of shipping a higher cost high BTU gas to the load center. Two other factors weigh very heavily on the economics of large scale electric utility use of low BTU gas at minemouth. The first of these is the 1975 air quality standards. The Federal government set up sulfur emission standards for new generation plants and required the states to devise implementation plans (including emission standards for old generation plants) to achieve certain specified ambient air quality standards. Many states responded by setting the same emission standards for old generation plants as the Federal government had specified for new ones.

Since it is much easier to remove concentrated H_2S from gasified coal (either with high or low BTU gas) than to

remove dilute SO₂ from stack gases, the coal gasification industry had a foot in the door. In fact, desperate utility executives have taken it upon themselves to push low BTU coal gasification. Commonwealth Edison is reported to be building a pilot plant now for such a process.

The second factor giving impetus to low BTU coal gasification is the possibility of using a gas turbine topping cycle before the conventional steam cycle. This combined cycle is capable of an efficiency of 47% [39] using current technology, as opposed to the current best figures of 39%. Part of the reason for these high efficiencies is that the gas turbine topping cycle benefits greatly from having a large volume of hot, high pressure gas as a fuel and that is exactly what a low BTU coal gasification plant puts out.

Since the dominant costs in the first generation Lurgi low BTU gasification process are the gasifiers (a large number of which are required because of low reaction rates), the second generation plant reduces the gasifier cost by using high temperature, high pressure, entrained flow, slagging gasifiers that yield higher reaction rates per unit volume. The major savings results from the higher temperatures. Since 2500° F. is above the ash-fusion temperature of the coal, a fluidized bed scheme is necessary.

The United Aircraft report [39] states that the costs of second generation equipment for most processes is almost identical and they choose for illustration the Texaco partial oxidation process with a moving pebble bed heat recovery system and hot carbonate sulfur scrubbing system. This is the process used in the calculations in this report. Investment comparisons between this second generation process and the Lurgi process are given in Appendices E and F. Figure B.5 illustrates

FIGURE B.5

CLEAN FUEL GAS FROM COAL USING TEXACO PARTIAL OXIDATION GASIFIER, HOT-GAS HEAT EXCHANGER, AND GAS PURIFICATION SYSTEM (ROBSON, GIRAMONTI, LEWIS AND GRUBER, 1970)



Source: [23], p. 154

.

pictorially what the Texaco process will be like. Figure B.6 compares the cost per million BTU of the two processes.

The Texaco process operates by preparing a coal-water slurry and using pressure and heat to form a steam-coal mix-This mixture is preheated and injected along with preture. heated air into the gasifier. Approximately 95% of the coal is gasified during the 3-second residence, and about 85% of the ash trapped as slag on the walls. Because of the high temperatures, the slag will flow out of the bottom of the reactor into a pool of water. Satisfactory refractory life under these harsh conditions has yet to be demonstrated. Another technical hurdle is the use of pebble bed heat exchangers with an ash bearing gas. The principle reason for using a pebble bed heat exchanger is to avoid using a special alloy metal (which would be required at these high temperatures) for the heat exchanger. However, the high temperatures will fuse the ash and cause problems in the pebble bed. Perhaps in 10 years this problem will be overcome.

There are, of course, many other possible low BTU gas processes. In particular, most of the high BTU coal gasification schemes could be adapted to such use by eliminating the catalytic methanation, using air for oxygen, operating at lower pressures, or making other modification. Some thought has been given to modifications of both the Bigas and Hygas processes for this purpose.

B.4 The Gas Turbine Topping Cycle

The United Aircraft report [39] discusses five variations of combined gas steam cycle electricity generation. These are:
FIGURE B.6

COST OF ONE MILLION BTU OF CLEAN SYNTHESIS GAS

(Cents/Million BTU)

	Lurgi First Generation Process	Texaco Partial Oxidation Process ²
Coal cost	26.0 ¹	23.0 ³
Gasification & cleaning cost	31.7	17.6
Total cost without sulfur credit	57.7	40.6
Credit for sulfur at \$25 long ton	3.0	3.0
Total cost with sulfur credit	54.7	37.6

1 Represents 1.30×10^6 BTU coal input. Only 1.0 x 10⁶ Btu of the input energy in the coal is contained in the final product. The other 0.30×10^6 Btu represents the heat loss of the system. The cost of this loss is 6.0 cents/ million Btu at the assumed coal cost of 20 cents/million Bt. (The above figures are based on gasification efficiency of 77 percent).

2 Since this is a second-generation process, perhaps ten years in the future, costs will undoubtedly have changed by the time it is in operation. Coal costs are likely to be higher and sulfur value less. Costs are presented here on a basis consistent with those shown for the first-generation process for comparative purposes.

3 Represents 1.149×10^6 Btu coal input.

Source: [39], p. V-37, V-42.

- exhaust fired, where the turbine exhaust is funneled into a steam boiler to burn more fuel.
- waste heat recovery, in which the steam boiler runs off the turbine exhaust alone,
- 3) conventional supercharged,
- 4) gas generator supercharged, and

5) two-pressure supercharged.

These five were examined in differing degrees of detail, but enough to establish superiority of the waste heat recovery scheme as technology improves (in particular, as allowable turbine inlet temperatures increase). The waste heat recovery system is diagrammed in Figure B.7. The major characteristics of the three generations of combined cycle systems is illustrated in Figure B.8.

The astounding efficiencies are due in part to the high volume of hot high-pressure low BTU gas delivered by the gas plant. The pressurization cost shows up in the fuel price but the advantage shows up in the generator efficiency. If natural gas, or other high BTU fuel, were substituted for the low BTU, the efficiency would <u>drop</u> 2.0 to 2.5%. But raising the fuel temperature 100° F. would increase the efficiency by almost 1%. ([38], p. V-66.)

Part load operation was not studied, but Hottel [23] estimates the drop in efficiency at 80% of its full load value for half load operation. This is becoming increasingly important, since the more efficient a plant becomes, the less useful it usually becomes for part-load operation. In trying for the utmost in performance, more and more parameters must be kept constant. Unfortunately, some utilities are discovering that lots of cheap baseload capacity is fine, but they still have to meet the peak load. In the future, of course, this may

•

WASTE HEAT RECOVERY COGAS SYSTEM



.

Source: [39] p. 333

FIGURE B.8

PROPOSED COGAS POWER SYSTEMS

Generation	(1970) I	(1980) II	(1990) III
Number of gas turbines	. 3	2	2
Turbine inlet temperature	. 2,200 ⁰ F	2,800 ⁰ F	3,100 ⁰ F
Compressor pressure ratio	. 8	12	20
Precent airflow bled for cooling	. 4.7%	8.5%	9.0%
Turbine exhaust temperature	. 1,297 ⁰ F	1,514 ⁰ F	1,485 ⁰ F
Compressor-turbine overall length.	. 33 ft.	27 ft.	26 ft.
Single steam turbine, of size	. 431 mw	381 mw	312 mw
Stack temperature	. 314 ⁰ F	219 ⁰ F	241 ⁰ F
System efficiency ¹	. 47.0	54.5	57.7
Total capital cost (millions)	.\$109.3	\$94.0	\$89.3

¹Electric generator losses and auxiliary power requirements not included. Multiply by 0.96 for net efficiency.

Source: [23], p. 281

be done with pumped storage facilities, especially since the "discovery" of underground pumped storage possibilities.

Figure B.9 summarizes the capital and operating costs of an integrated gas plant-electric generation station and compares these with conventional first and second generation steam plants. Costs for a base-load gas turbine plant are also included for comparison. The major savings result from a smaller boiler, less accessory electric equipment and shorter construction time (less escalation and interest).

		First-Gene	ration	S.	cond-Gener:	ation
	Steam ¹	Gas Turbine	COGAS	Steam ¹	Gas Turbine	COGAS
Net Power Station Output Mw	1,012	891	918	1,012	010	945
Capital Investment, \$1000 Power System Fuel Processing System Total Station	176,953 176,953	$\begin{array}{c} 77,514\\ 51,500\\ 129,014 \end{array}$	109,261 44,500 153,761	162,674 <u>162,674</u>	60,874 32,000 92,874	$\frac{94,005}{26,300}$ 1 $\frac{20,305}{0}$
Net Capital Cost, \$/Kw	174.8	144.8	167.5	160.7	102.0	127.3
Annual Owning and Oper- ation Cost mills/kwhr						
Capital Charges ² Operation, Supplies, and	3.990	3.306	3.824	3.668	2.330	2.906

FOR FIRST-GENERATION AND SECOND-GENERATION, COAL FIRED POWER STATIONS

COST SUMMARY

Does not include sulfur oxide emission control equipment

0.626 0.270 1.440

> 0.3401.990

> > 1.768 5.758

0.623 0.700 2.170

0.786 0.900 2.990

0.372

1.865 6.227

system³ Btu

Power System Fuel Processing Fuel @ 20¢/million

maintenance

Busbar Power Cost

7.317

7.982

0.767

0.322

5.242

5.427

²Capital charges @ 14¢ per annum @ 70% load factor.

³Includes credit for sulfur.

Source: [39], p. 415, 416

FIGURE B.9

Appendix C Derivation of HIGAS Capital Investment Coefficients

221

The primary sources of data for this derivation the <u>Cost Estimate of a 500 Billion BTU/Day Pipeline Gas Plant</u> <u>Via Hydrogasification and Electrothermal Gasification of</u> <u>Lignite [42] and Electrothermal Hygas Process Escalated Costs</u> [43]. These books contain detailed equipment lists and costs estimates for an actual Hygas plant. They are still relatively crude engineering studies in that many equipment items are left out and only rough plant layouts are given. The costs are also calculated assuming that the process is actually feasible as planned.

The IGT Hygas process was chosen because it is the furthest along of any of the high BTU processes and is actually at a pilot plant stage. The pilot plant has not run for more than one week continuously at the present time (July 1972). There are still many engineering problems to be solved. However a one-sixth scale demonstration plant is currently undergoing preliminary engineering design by Procon Inc. for IGT. The results of this study are not publicly available now. It is not certain when, or if, it will be available. Consequently some estimation had to be used on the unknown factors in the construction of this plant.

The two major unknowns involved the electrical generation part of the Hygas plant and the air and water pollution control sections of the plant. The reason the former is an unknown is that the original report [42] proposed to use an MHD power system that will just not be available for many years. The second report [43] updated the costs from 1968 to 1971 prices and replaced the MHD system with a conventional steam electric system, fired by the spent char from the gasification part of the plant. However, it did not give a detailed equipment list for the new electrical generation section of the plant. A report by Bechtel [5] for coal fired steam electric generation plants was used to correct this.

The second major uncertainty, pollution control, exists because there is no provision for it, at all, in either of the two reports. Informal communications with the IGT staff and some rough rules of thumb were used to close this gap somewhat.

Figure C.1 illustrates the original IGT estimate. Figure C.2 shows the new estimates. These new estimates were arrived at by multiplying the original gas-plant equipment investment by 1.09 and adding to that the cost of the new power system. The inflation factor of 1.09 is derived from the Nelson "true cost" index and <u>Chemical Engineering</u> magazine's monthly plant cost index. Both of these inflation factors take into account increases in productivity, otherwise the inflation factors would be much higher (6.9% inflation per year instead of 4.4% per year). The problem was now to get all estimates in the same 1970 dollars. Figure C.3 illustrates the on-site conventional steam generation plan.

First the actual 1968 equipment lists for all sections of the plant except the MHD generator were used to derive dollar amounts for each I/O category for this part of the plant. Figures C.4 through C.11 describe this equipment and show what standard BEA 86 order category it was assigned to. Note that the sector numbers are in BEA categories, not in sector numbers that correspond to the model used in the report. Catalyst and packing costs were subtracted from the total equipment costs and allocated separately.

500 Billion Btu/Day Pipelin	JUMMARI 1e Gas from Lignite	
Section	Process Equipment, \$	Bare Cost, Installed, \$
Lignite Storage and Reclaiming	1,710,000	3,420,000
Lignite Grinding and Drying Slurvy Prenaration	5,864,000 1,652,700	11,728,000 A 958 000
y ur y reparation Hydrogasification	35,681,700,	68,887,000
Prepurification I CO Shift	$4,767,200^{1}$ 1.913.5002	8,340,000 3.587,000
Prepurification II	$4,130,100^{3}$	7,888,000
Methanation, Drying Offsite Equipment	$4,117,500^{-1}$	6,706,000 86,144,000
Subtotal, Bare Cost		201,658,000
Contractor's Overhead and Profit		15,588,000
Subtotal		217,246,000
Interest During Construction, 5% of Subtotal		10,862,000
Total Fixed Investment		228,108,000
Working Capital		7,085,000
Total Capital Investment		235,193,000
$\frac{1}{2}$ Includes \$121,500 tower parallel \$240,000 initial $\frac{2}{3}$ Includes \$240,000 tower parallel \$372,000 tower parallel \$1ncludes \$1,811,000 initial	cking catalyst charge. cking plus initial : l catalyst charge.	zinc oxide and carbon.
Source: [42], p. 64		223

INVESTMENT SUMMARY ģ • C 5 223

c.1

ш ∝

ഗ ----

L

RS
2
-Y2
Ē
E
9
Z
ΥE
RI
0
Ň
Ē
ST
1
IAI
6
I
Z
N
NO
ပ
ш
NS
0
9
E I
NS
S
ŝ
S
RO
۵.
St
GA
HΥ
æ
0
<u>u</u> _
TS
Z
Σ
S1
ΥE
N
~
ш
AT
AL
S C
ц,

Coal	- N. Dakota	ı Lignite -
Plant Capacity, 10 ⁹ Btu/day	2(00
Electric Power Source	-Onsite-	-Purchased-
Installed Cost, \$10 ⁶		
Gas Plant	136.07	152.0*
Power Plant	117.52	r
Subtotal	253.59	152.0
Total Investment, Base, Case, \$10 ⁶	304.8	186.5
\$/10 ⁶ Btu per day	610	373

*Includes boiler for process steam.

Source: [43], p. 9.

FIGURE C.2



PLANT UTILITY SUPPLY FOR 500 BILLION Btu/DAY PIPELINE GAS FROM LIGNITE BY ELECTROTHERMAL HYGAS PROCESS

Source: [43], p. 6.

FIGURE C.3

SECTION 100 - LIGNITE STORAGE AND HANDLING EQUIPMENT SUMMARY

Equipment	Equipment No.	Description	No. Required	Cost/Unit, \$	Total Equipment Cost \$	BEA Sector Number
Feed Hopper	B-101	30-min supply (1159 tons) 40 ft long x 40 ft wide x 30 ft high, 1/2 in. thick, 60° slope of bottom cone	2	55,000	110,000	40
Feed Conveyor	G-101	60-in. belt conveyor, 2318 tons/hr, 600 ft/min, 300 hp, 250 ft c to c, 110 ft rise	2	100,000	200,000	46
Distributor Conveyor	G-102	60-in. belt conveyor 2318 tons/hr, 600 ft/min. 375 hp, 1850 ft c to c horizontal with tripper	7	400,000	800,000	46
Recovery Conveyor	G-103	48-in. belt conveyor, 1159 tons/hr, 500 ft/min, 150 hp, 2000 ft c to c 40 ft rise, 375 hp	2	270,000	540,000	46
Recovery Feeder	G-104	Rotary plow, 1159 tons/hr, 2000-ft track	2	30,000	60,000	45
				Total	\$ 1,710,000	

Source: [42] 1, p. 15.

с.5 ш 2 D G ----LL.

	Totel
SUMMARY	
QUIPMENT	
D DRYING E	
RINDING AN	
LIGNITE G	
ECTION 200 -	
S	

	SECTION 200	0 – LIGNITE GRINDING AND DRYING E	QUIPMEN	T SUMMAR	Х	BEA
Equipment	Equipment No.	Description	No. Required	Cost/Unit, \$	Total Equipment Cost. \$	Sector Number
Crusher Feed Hopper	B-201	600-ton capacity hopper, 1/2-hr residence time, 35 ft x 35 ft x 20 ft x 1/2 in thick: 60° slope of bottom cone	7	39,000	78,000	40
Grinder-Dryer Feed Hopper	B-202	600-ton capacity feed hopper, 1/2-hr residence time, 35 ft x 35 ft x 20 ft x 1/2 in.with 6-60° cones	~	45,000	90,000	40
Crushe:	D-201	Precrusher hammer mill to crush 5 in x 0 mined lignite to 1-1/2 in.size, 1159 tons per hour capacity, 500 hp motor	~)	50,000	100,000	45
Grinder-Dryer	D-202	Williams 100-in.roller mill dryer to grind and dry 1.5 in lignite at 354 moisture to -10 + 100 size at 134 moisture, 189 tons per hour of feed to give 135 tons per hour of product	12	433,000	5, 196, 000	45
Crushed Lignite Conveyor	G-201	Tube conveyor, 30-in.tube, 43-in.belt, 500 ft/min, 100 hp motor-driven, 1135 tons per hour feeds G-202	2	50,000	100,000	46
Grinder-Dryer Distribution Conveyoı	G-202	43-in.belt, 300 ft c-c, 450 ft/min with 6 tripping stations, 100 hp motor-driven, includes tripper	2	90,000	140,000	46
Ground Lignite Conveyor	G-203	Tube conveyor, 16-in.tube, 24-in.belt, 500 ft/min, 40 ft rise 100 ft c-c, 50-hp motor driven, 269 tons per hour	Q	20,000 Total §	120,000 \$ 5,364,000	46

Source: [42], p. 18

ι,	c	>
•		; ;
ι		L
(2	<
		2
¢		3
•	-	4
ł	1	-

SECTION 300 - SLURRY MAKEUP AND FEEDING EQUIPMENT SUMMARY

BEA Sector Number	45	40	40	40	45	45	49	49	49	49	~ ~ 0
Total Equipment Cost, \$	55,800	51,000	72,000	46,000	150,000	50,000	41,300	82,600	701,000	403,000	1,652,700
Cost/ Unit, \$	4,650	8,500	12,000	23,000	25,000	25,000	5,900	5,900	70,100	80,600	Total
No. Required	12	Ŷ	6	~7	6	2	6 +l spare	l2 + 2 spares	8 + 2 spares	4 + 1 spare	
Description	18 in. x 36 in. rotary air lock feeder with gear motor 1-1/2 hp, 2 required for	each feed hopper Feed hopper, 50 tons capacity each, 15 ft x 15 ft x 10 ft , 1/4 in. thick	15 ft ID x 20 ft high baffled tank,10 psig, 415 tons/hr, 15 min residence time	25ft ID × 30ft high, baffled tank,10 psig, 1245 tons/hr, 30 min residence time	Turbine agitator & hyckraulic driver, 150 hp. mixer from Pfaudler	Turbine agitator with hydraulic driver 150 hp, mixer from Pfaudler	Centrifugal slurry pump with motor drive: 200 hp, 1280 gpm or 415 tons/hr Allis-Chalmers 16 x 14 x 21 in.	Centrifugal slurry pumps with motor drive. 200 hp. 1280 gpm or 415 tons/hr Allis-Chalmers 16 x 14 x 21 in.	Constant speed reciprocating slurry pumps with motor driver, 640 gpm , 7 to 1300 psig, Wilson Snyder single- acting triple x plunger surge pump, 700 hp, motor drive	Variable speed, reciprocating slurry pumps, with driver 640 gpm, 7 to 1300 psig, Wilson Snyder single-acting triple x plunger surge pump, 700 - hp motor drive	
quipment No.	B-301		B-302	B-303	D-301	D-302	H-301	H-302	Н-303	H-304	
E guipment	Lignite Feeder and Feed Hopper		Slurry Makeup Tank	Slurry Holdup Tank	Slurry Makeup Mixers	Holdup Suspension Mixers	Slurry Transfer Pump	Slurry Recirculation Pump	Slurry Feed Pumps	Slurry Feed Pumps	

Source: [42] , p. 20

SECTION 400 – HYDROGASIFICATION INCLUDING ELECTRO-THERMAL GASIFIER, QUENCH TOWER, AND LIGHT OIL RECOVERY EQUIPMENT SUMMARY

Sector Total Equipment No. No. Costi Equipment Cost, \$ Number Required Unit, S Equipment Description Fluidized bed contactor, 22.17 ft shell ID \times 24 ft OD x 54 ft tan to tan, 3-in. lightweight insulation plus 4-in. hardface refractory lining, 21 ft refractory ID, 1500⁸- 625°F, 1100 psig --**.** . Light Oil Vaporizer A-401 4 Cocurrent lift reactor: 10 ft shell ID x 11 ft OD overall dimensions with 4-ft lift line, internal paths plus fill insulation, 1500° - 1700°F, 1105 psig. Hydrogasifier (Low-Temperature Reactor) A-402 4 - ---Fluidized bed zone, 25.5-ft shell ID x 27.5-ft OD 4 x 454t tantotan, 8-in. lightweight insulation plus 4-in. hardface refractory lining, 23.5 ft refractory ID, 1700* - 1900*F, 110 psig ----Hydrogasifier (High-Temperature Reactor) A-403 40 17,680,000 Combined cost of vessels A-401, A-402, A-403 4.420.000 4 Free fall section, 24 ft shell ID x 26-ft A-403 Free fall section, 24 ft shell ID x 26-ft OD x 50-ft ant to tan, 8 in. light weight insulation plus 4 in. hardface refractory lining, 22 ft refractory ID, 1900°F, 1115 psig, cost includes electrodes immersed in fluidised bed for heat input at \$\$50,000 40 11, 360,000 2.840.000 Electrogasifier A-404 4 53∫ **40** 14-ft 4-in. ID x 77-ft tan to tan x 7-in, thick wall containing 63-ft packed bed of 3-1/2-in. plastic pall rings, 2,985,000 lb/hr water flow rate, 1090 prig, gas cooled down from 625° to 100°F, water heated from 90° to 250°F. 887,000 (vessel) 3,660,000* Quench Tower A-405 4 36 30-ft OD x 52-ft tan to tan wide x 1-in. wall thickness, 25-ft liquid space, 5-ft gas dome, 1/2-hr. residence time, 250°F, 1085 psig 227,000 908,000 40 Tar-Oil-Water Separator 4 A-406 8 ft-OD x 15-ft tan to tan wide x 3/8-in. wall thickness, 15-min residence time, 115°F, 0 psig **Oil Settling Tank** B-401 40 6.000 6.000 1 15 ft OD x 48 ft tan to tan wide x 3/4-in. thick, 10-min residence time, 250°F, 15 psig Recycle Water Settling Tank 40 B-402 33,000 132,000 4 Quench Water Cooling Tower Cools 23,882 gpm of quench tower water from 250° to 90°F, wet bulb temp 75°F 40 500,000 D-401 1 500.000 Light oil 250° to 115°F, 50 paig, cooling water 85° to 115°F, 50 paig, total duty 71.188 X 10° Btu /hr area/unit = 7000 sq ft 40 Light Oil Cooler E-401 25,300 25 300 1 High-Pressure Boiler Feed water Makeup Pump 3125-gpm, 0 to 25 psig 60°F, 60-hp motor-driven centrifugal pump 49 H-401 1+1 spare 2,500 5.000 1150 gpm deaerated high-pre-sure boiler feed water 0 to 1300 psig, 215°F, 1200-bp motor-driven centrifugal pump 49 High-Pressure Boiler Feed water Pump H-402 265.000 4 +1 spare 53,000 49 High-Pressure Booster 463-gpm methanation knockout, 100°F, 1000 to 1300 psig, 150-hp motor-driven centrifugal pump H-403 1+1 spare 6,200 12.400 49 235-gpm quench water at 100°F, 0 to 1110 psig to 1 + 1 spare 20,500 low-temp reactors of hydrogasifier,275-hp motor-driven centrifugal pump Low-Temperature Reactor QuenchWaterFeed Pump H-404 41,000 990 gpm of light oil at 115°F, 40 to 100 psig, 50-hp motor-driven centrifugal pump Light Oil Recycle Pump H-405 11,000 49 4 +1 spare 2,200 10,000 gpm water,0 to \$0 psig, 90°F, 920 hp, recycle mixes with 250°F quench water to give 150°F cooling tower feed. motor-driven centrilugal pump QuenchWater Cooling Tower RecyclePump H-406 4 + 1 spare 17.200 86.000 49 2980-gpm quench water, 0 to 1100 psig, 90⁶F multistage centrifugal pump, 2500 hp, driven by hydraulic turbine generating 1420 hp at full load plus electric motor sized for full pumping load-2600 hp. 49 Quench Tower Cooling Water Feed Pump H-407 8 + 2 spares 73,500 735.000 Quench water cooling tower feed pump 6000 gpm of water, 15 to 50 psig, 200°F, 175 hp, 4 ~1 spare 10,500 motor-driven centrifugal pump 49 H-408 52.500 Quench tower make-up water pump 910 gpm water,0 to 1150 psig,90°F,850-hp, motor-4-l spare 40,500 driven centrifugal pump H-409 49 202.500 * Includes \$112,000 for packing. Total 35.681,700

Sector 53 includes 850,000 for Electrodes

Source: [42] , p. 25

229

BEA

	Fautomost		No	Coat /	Total	Secto
Equipment	No.	Description	Required	Unit, \$	Cost, \$	Number
Absorber	A-501	11.5-ft ID X 46-ft tan X 5-3/d-in, thick- wall containing 36-ft packed bed of 3-1/2- in, plastic pall rings,1115 peia, 240°F	5	15d,000 (Vessel)	841,400 [*]	40
Regenerator	A-502	9.5 ft-ID X 46-ft tan X 1/4 in., 25 psia. 240°F 36-ft packed bed with 3-1/2-in. pall rings	10	14,900 (Vessel)	219, 100*	40 36
Hot Carbonate Circulation Pump I	H- 501	4470 gpm, 30 ⁴ K ₂ CO, solution. 10 to 1100 psig.240°F, multistage centrifugal pump. stainless steel, 3700 hp; driven by hy- draulic turbine generating 2010 hp at full load plus electric motor sized for full pumping.load, 3700 hp	10 + 2 spares	119,000	1,428,000	49
Regenerator Condenser	E- 501	Stripped acid gas 224° to 100°F, 25 psia, cooling water d5° to 115°F, 50 psig, total duty d67 X 10° Btu/hr, area/ unit = 7600 sq ft	20	32,400	643,000	40
Kneckout Drum (Before Condenser)	B-502	9-ft ID X 27-ft tan X 1/4 in., 25 psia, 230°)	F 10	7 , 40 0	74,000	40
Knockout Drum (After Condenser)	B-503	5. 5-ft ID X 16. 5 ft tan X 1/4 in. , 25 psia, 100°F	10	3, 800	39,000	40
Regenerator Reboiler	E- 502	30% K2CO3 solution, 240°F, 25 psis saturated steam, 115 psis, total duty 137, 25 X 10° Btu/hr, ares/unit = d40 sq ft	10	d, 900	96,000	40
Absorber Knockout Drum	13-501	4 ft-ID X 12-ft tan X 2 in., 1105 paia, 240	°F 5	10, 300	51,500	40
Regeneration Steam Feed Water Pump	H- 502	300 gpm, 0 to 200 psig, 21d*F, 60 hp	l + 1 spare	2, 500	5,000	49 .
Regeneration Steam Makeup Water Pump	H-503	898 gpm, 0 to 25 paig, 60°F, 25 hp, motor-driven cantrifugal	1 + 1 spare	1, 700	3, 400	49
Regeneration Steam Condensate Pump I	H- 504	143d gpm, d to 25 psig, 100°F, 25 hp, motor-driven centrifugal] + l spare	2,000	4,000	49
Regeneration Steam Waste Heat Boiler	E-503	I ow-pressure steam feedwater at 338°F to steam at 100 psig 338°F, methanation effluent 440° to 363°F, 1030 psig, total duty 30¢ K ₂ CO, solution, 719.15 X 10 ⁶ Btu/hr, grea/unit = 6500 so ft	12	61,700	740,400	40
Regeneration Steam Waste Heat Boiler	E-504	LP steam feed water at 33d°F to steam at 33d°F, 100 paig, light oil vaporizer effluent from 625° to 425°F, 1095 paig. total duty 54d. 543 X 10 ⁶ Btu/hr, area/ unit = 6600 sq ft	8	67,000	536,000	40
Deaerator	B-504	Deaerates all plant low pressure steam feedwater	1	Cost inclu all feedwa	ided with iter treatment	
Steam Drum	B-505	9.5-ft ID X 28.5 ft X 3/4 in., 100 peig. 338°F	3	29, <i>8</i> 00	d9, 400	40
				Total	4,767,200	

Source: [42] ... p. 29.

.

с.9 ы М 0 9 ------

SECTION 600 - CO SHIFT CONVERSION EQUIPMENT SUMMARY

	Equipment		No.	Cost/	Total Fourioment	BEA Sector
Equipment	No.	Description	Required	Unit, \$	Cost, \$	Number
CO Shift Reactor	A - 601	l2-ft ID x 25-ft tan x 5-3/4 in., 1070 psig, 770° F, 21.3-ft packed bed with Girdlers G3A 1/4-in. 1/4-in. catalyst pellets	ŝ	76,000 (vessel)	620,000 *	40,27 27
CO Shift Feed Pre- heater	Е-601	CO shift feed from 345° to 625°F, 1080 psig, CO shift effluent from 770° to 475°F, 1070 psig, total duty 400.677 X 10 ⁶ Btu/hr, area/unit =7000 sq ft	10	53,200.	532,000	40
High-Pressure Feed- water Preheater	Е-602	CO shift effluent from 475° to 340° F, 1067 psig, high-pressure boiler feedwater from 215° to 425°F, 1300 psig, total duty 533 X 10° Btu/hr, area/unit =7300 sq ft	16	40,200	643,200	40
High-Pressure Feed- water Preheater	E-603	CO shift effluent from 340° to 265° F, 1064 psig, high pressure boiler feedwater from 110° to 215° F, 25 psig, total duty 231.962 10 ⁶ Btu/hr, area/unit = 6000 sq ft	7	22,500	45,000	40
High-Pressure Boiler Feedwater Preheater	E-604	CO shift effluent from 265° to 256°F, 1061 psig, high pressure boiler feedwater from 100° to 215°F, 1300 psig, total duty 26.662 X 10 ⁶ Btu/hr, area/unit = 2000 sq ft	I	11,200	11,200	40
CO Shift Effluent Cooler	E-605	CO shift effluent from 256° to 240°F, 1058 psig, cooling water from 85° to 115°F, 50 psig, total duty 50.304 X 10^6 Btu/hr, area/unit = 2200 sq ft	-	10,600	10,600	40
Knockout Drum	B-601	4-ft ID x 12 ft x 2 in., 1055 psig, 240°F	£	10,300	51,500	40
* Includes \$240,000 ca	italyst. Sec	ctor 27		Total	1, 91 3, 5 00	

udes \$240,000 catalyst.

, p. 32 Source: [42]

	Faulterret		Ne	Cont	Total	Sector
Equipment	No.	Description	Required	Unit, \$	Cost, \$	Number
lbsorber	A-701	12-ft ID X 47. 5-ft tan X 5-1/2-in. thick- wall containing 39. 5-ft packed bed of 3-1/2-in. plastic pall rings, 1075 psia, 240°F	5	174, 800 (Vessel)	934,900 ⁸	40 } 36 }
egenerator	A-702	10.5-ft ID X 3d-ft tan X 1/4 in., 25 peia, 240°F 30-ft packed bed with 3-1/2-in. pal rings	5 1	14,400 (Vessel)	107, 300 ^b	40) 36)
ot Carbonate irculation Pump II	H-701	2392 gpm, $304 \text{ K}_2\text{CO}_3$ solution, 10 to 1070 psig, 240°F, multistage centrifugal pump stainless steel, 1900 hp; driven by hy- draulic turbine generating 990 hp at full load plus electric motor sized for full load-2000 hp	10 + 2 spares ,	s1, 500	978,000	49
egenerator Condenser	E-701	Stripped acid gas 229° to 100°F, 25 psia, cooling water 85° to 115°F, 50 psig, total duty 507.2 X 10° Btu/hr, area/unit = 6250 sq ft	15	26,600	399,000	40
nockout Drum Before Condenser)	H - 702	d. 5-ft ID X 25. 5-ft tan X 1/4 in. , 25 psia, 230°F	5	6, 300	34,000	40
nockout Drum Vter Condenser)	B-703	5. 5 ft-ID X 16. 5-ft tan X 1/4 in., 25 psia, 100°F	5	3, 800	19,000	40
bsorber Knockout rum	B-701	4-ft ID X 12-ft X 2 in., 1070 psia, 240°F	5	10, 300	51,500	40
inc Oxide Tower	A-704	11.5-ft1D X 16.25-ft X 5-1/4-in., 1065 psia, 100°F	2	79.500 (Vessel)	260,600 ^c	402
egeneration Steam ondensate Pump II	H-702	55 gpm, d to 25 psig, 100°F, 10 hp, motor-driven centrifugal	l + l spare	1,250	2,500	49
egenerator Reflux Pump	H-703	439 gpm, d to 25 psig, 100°F, 7.5 hp, motor-driven centrifugal	l + 1 spare	1,000	2,000	49
ot Carbonate II ffluent Gooler	E- 702	Gas stream from 240° to 100°F, 1055 psig, cooling water from d5° to 115°F, 50 psig, total duty 150.11 X 10° Btu/hr, area/unit = 7000 sq ft	3	25, 200	75,600	40
utivated Carbon Towers	A-703	10-ft ID X 34-ft tan X 4-3/4-in., 1065 psia, 100°F, 30-ft packed bed, 4 X 10 mesh	6	109,100	828,600 ^d	40 } 27 }
pndenser	E-702	Benzene-rich stripping steam, 285° to 100°F, 50 psig, cooling water 85°F to 115°F, 50 psig, total duty 132.696 X 10 ⁶ Btu/hr, area/unit = 7,750 sq ft	2	33,000	66.000	40
enzene Separator	B-705	6-ft ID X ld-ft tan X 3/8 in., 50 psig, 100°F, 10-min settling time	2	2, 700	5,400	40
nockout Drum for soorber Condenser	B - 704	4-ft ID X 12-ft X 2 in., 1070 psia, 100°F	5	10, 300	51,500	40
enzene Pump	H-704	67 gpm, 0 to 25 psig. 100°F, 2.5 hp	l + spare	600	1.200	49
ram Desuperheating ater Pump	H- 705	201 gpm, 0 to 1300 psig, 100°F, 270 hp	l + spare	14, 200	28, 400	49
biler Feedwater Imp	H-706	41 gpm, 0 to 100 psig. 100°F, 6 hp	l + spare	909	1,600	49
ctivated Carbon Recycle as Compressor	H- 707	103 lb/min, 0 to 1050 paig, three stages, with coolers after each stage, 2055 hp, centrifugal	1	220,000	220,000	49
irge Drum	B-706	66-ft ID X 3/8 in., spherical, 0 psig,	1	63,000	63,000	40

SECTION 700 - PREPUBLEICATION IL FOUIPMENT SUMMARY

^dPrice includes 5 174,000 for 14,130 cuft of activated carbon packing. } Sector 27

Source: [42] , p. 36

Equipment	Equipment No.	Description	No. Required	Cost / Unit, \$	Total Equipment Cost, \$	Number
Methanation Reactors						40]
Stage 1	A-801	8.25-ft ID X 25 ft tan X 4 in., 1045 psig, 900°F, J-in. internal insulation, two ll-ft catalyst beds	ı	59,000 (Vessel)	194,000*	40 27
Stage 2	A-802	ll.25-ft ID X 25-ft tan X 5 1/4 in., 1040 psig, 895°F, 3-in. internal insulation, two 11-ft catalyst beds	ì	104,700	362,700*	40 27
Stage 3	A-803	ll-ft ID X 25-ft tan X 5 1/4 in., 1035 psig, 895°F, 3-in. internal insulation. two ll-ft catalyst beds	2	100,600 (Vessel)	691,200 °	402
Stage 4	A - 804	10.75-ft ID X 23-ft tan X 5 in., 1030 psig, 895°F, 3-in. internal insulation. two 10-ft catalyst beds	4	79,600 (Vessel)	1,246,400	40]
Recycle Compressor	C-801	5,780 CF/min, 1015 psia, 100 ⁸ F, compressed to 1065 psia, 1250 hp, motor dríve	2+i spare	158,000	474,000	273
Methanation Knockout Dr	um B-801	11-7 t ID X 33-ft tan X 5 1/4 in., 1005 psig, 100°F	1	103,000	103,000	40
Feed Preheater	E - 801	Methanation first-stage feed 100° to 550°F, 1050 psig, 4th stage effluent 890° to 840°F, 1030 psig, duty 100.8 X 10° Btu/hr. a rea/unit 5200 sq ft	I	49,500	49,500	40
Low-Pressure Steam Water Preheater	E-802	Low-pressure steam feedwater from 218 ⁶ to 338 ⁶ F, 100 psig, methanation effluent from 363 ⁹ to 280 ⁶ F, 1020 psig, duty 177.0 x 10 ⁶ Btu/hr, area/ unit = 6000 sq ft	12	30,400	364,800	40
Low-Pressure Steam Water Preheater	E-803	Low-pressure steam (eedwater from 87° to 218°F, methanation effluent fro 280° to 200°F, 1015 peig, duty 189.581 X 10° Btu/hr, area/unit = 8000 sq ft	n 2 om I	27,940	55,900	40
Methanation Effluent Cooler	E-804	Methanation effluent 200° to 100°F, 1010 psig, cooling water 85° to 115° F, 50 psig, total duty 213.311 X 10° Bhulhu ware (usit #6400 cc fr	٠	31, 500	126,000	40
		Diu/nr, ares/unit = yevo se it				40

*Catalyst Costs Included in Above: Stage 1, \$135,000, Stage 2, \$258,000; Stage 3, \$490,000; and Stage 4, \$928,000 } See Sector 27

Source: [42] , p. 41

The dollar flows thus generated were inflated by 1.09 to be on a comparable basis with the electric generation part of the plant. Next the construction costs associated with building the gas part of the plant (essentially the sum of the differences between the equipment costs and the base installed costs in Figure C.1 (\$55,667,600)) was multiplied by 1.09 and allocated to Sector 11. Because the escalated cost of equipment comes out to less than their stated total for gas plant equipment the amount allocated to the electric utility portion of the plant was increased accordingly to \$127.68 million. From this was deducted the estimated \$15.93 million additional for a larger boiler to provide process steam for the gas plant. This figure (\$15.93) was obtained by subtracting the purchased electric gas plant cost from the on-site gas plant cost, since the additional amount represents the cost of a process steam boiler. The result of this subtraction (\$111.75 million) was allocated to the electric plant. This is a mere \$155/Kw since the gas plant required 755 MW. This number may be on the low side.

Figure C.12 aggregates the coal fired electric generation plant capital cost breakdown from the Bechtel report, (Bechtel-1) prepared for the Harvard Economic Research Project, into a single, capital vector. No trade or transportation margins are included yet. These will be removed when the final capital dollar flows for Hygas are obtained. This capital vector for coal fired plants was used to disaggregate the \$111.75 million into sectual flows. The \$15.93 million for additional boiler facilities was disaggregated according to the breakdown of account 312 - Boiler Plant Equipment in the Bechtel report. These two dollar flows then were added to the previously calculated flows.

COAL-FIRED STEAM ELECTRIC GENERATION

PLANT CAPITAL VECTOR (BEFORE REMOVAL OF MARGINS)

BEA Sector Number	Industry	<u>Fraction</u> ¹
11	New Construction	. 391 39
40	Heating, Plumbing & Structural Metal Products	.26730
42	Other Fabricated Metal Products	.07107
43	Engines and Turbines	.09474
46	Materials Handling Machinery	.00741
47	Metal Working Machinery	.00200
49	General Industrial Machinery	.07030
53	Electric Industrial Equipment	.08607
55	Electric Lighting Equipment	.00572
71	Real Estate and Rental	.00050
73	Business Services	.00350
	Total	1.00000

1 Fraction calculated with labor margins assigned to 11. Source: [5].

.

Pollution control costs were a major uncertainty. Informal conversations with IGT personnel indicated the total costs for pollution control on a 250 billion BTU/day could be as high as \$25 million. Doubling this for a 500 billion BTU/day plant gives \$50 million. To check out this number, some rules of thumb applicable to electric utilities were used. For example, Reference 26 quotes figures of \$1759/MW for precipitator costs and \$11/Kw for natural draft wet cooling towers. If one assumes that the small amount of residual sulfur contained in the lignite char (or worse yet that the plant burns high sulfur bituminous coal) constitutes a potential air emission problem when burned in the electric generation plant, then one is forced to install scrubbers. Estimates of limestone scrubbing costs go as high as \$40/KW for capital equipment, but \$25/KW was used. This leaves \$21.6 million to handle the water pollution associated with the gas process plant itself. To illustrate that this is a reasonable number, Figure C.13 lists the capital expenditures for air and water pollution for different industries. Electric utilities are predominantly air polluters, while refineries are predominantly water polluters. From these figures, it is clear that \$21.6 million for water pollution abatement equipment is quite reasonable.

To disaggregate these dollars amount, Figure C.14 lists the air and water pollution equipment purchase breakdowns found in the most recent Bureau of Labor Statistics bulletin [53]. These fractions were used to disaggregate the air and water pollution dollar figures. It should be mentioned that there is still no provision in these figures for the removal and recovery of H_2S from the raw gasified coal. The IGT report makes the glib statement that the cost of sulfur recovery is covered by the funds received from

1970 CAPITAL EXPENDITURES FOR POLLUTION CONTROL EQUIPMENT

Industry	Water Pollution	Air Pollution	Water % of Total
P e troleum Refining	185	59	.75819
Chemicals Manufacturing	06	79	.53254
Electric Utilities	149	331	.31041

Source: Environmental Quality 1971, Tables A-2, A-4 [12]

V	۲
-	4
	•
C	2
-	
α	2
1)
G	5
	I
L	

PERCENTAGE OF POLLUTION CONTROL EQUIPMENT BY PRODUCING INDUSTRY

1 New Construction	Water (%)	Air (%)
3 Stone & Clay Products	 //////////////////////////////////	6.9 (7.709)*
O Heating, Plumbing & Fabricated Structural Metal Products	36.0 (40.323)	 10.7 (11.955)
8 Special Industry Machine & Equipment	.6 (0.677)	
3 General Industrial Machinery & Equip.	28.2 (31.678)	71 9 (80 336)
<pre>Service Industry Machines</pre>	14.5 (16.237)	
? Professional, scientific, & cont. instruments & supplies	9.5 (10.638)	
i Transportation & Warehousing	1.7	у с С
Wholesale & retail trade	0.6	6.9
TOTAL	100.0% (100.0%)	100.0% (100.0%)

¹ Numbers in parentheses are fractions before trade and transportation margins. Source: [53]

,

sulfur sales. This is a highly dubious statement on many grounds: (1) sulfur prices are quite volatile to begin with, (2) if sulfur were recovered from all stack gas, it would more than satisfy the current U.S. sulfur requirements, (3) if low sulfur lignite is converted, the H_2S concentrations are low enough to present difficulty to a recovery process, (4) if a high sulfur coal is used, the residual sulfur in the char will be costly to remove from the stack gases of the electric plant. All of which says, these are conservative figures. Figure C.15 provides the disaggregation scheme for precipitator and cooling towers.

Contractors overhead and profit was recalculated on the basis of the new capital cost of the gas plant by scaling the old profit and overhead figure to the new total. The difference between a 10% profit and the actual figure was allocated to 73 for consultants fees, design, supervision, etc. Interest was then assessed at 7.5% (this assumes a two year construction time with an average of half the money outstanding).

Working capital was then recalculated by using 12¢/lb. lignite rather than the original 8¢/lb., inflating other materials by the average price change of 13.6% (6.6% compounded), and accounts receivable by the roughly doubled price of gas. Figure C.16 lists these changes and their sectoral allocations.

The final IGT high BTU coal gasification vector was calculated by summing all the previously described flows removing trade and transportation margins and dividing by the total cost of the plant (\$354.8 million). Thus what we have is a capital cost per plant breakdown, not a capital/ output vector. For our purposes where the actual cost of the plant and selling price of the gas are not determined,

.

COST ALLOCATION FOR VARIOUS EQUIPMENT

<u>Item</u>	BEA Sector No.	Sector Name	Fraction
Precipitators	49	General Industrial Equipment	1.0
Natural Draft Wet Cooling Towers	11 42 49	New Construction Other Fab Met Prods Gen Ind. Equip.	.81818 .090911 .090911

Source: [27], Appendix D

•

REVISED INVESTMENT SUMMARY

	+ + 	Bare Cost	BGA Sartor Number
	• • • • • • • • • • • •	TIS LATIEU, 4	
Gas Plant	65,221,700	125,910,000	D ¹
Pollution Control	t 1	50,000,000	Q
Electric Plant		127,680,000	σ
Subtotal, Bare Cost		303,590,000	
Contractor's Overhead and Profit (on gas plant only)		9,732,000	11,73
Subtotal		313,322,800	¢
Interest During Constructic	u	23,499,200	VA ^Z
Total Fixed Investment		336,822,000	
Working Capital			
Raw Materials	2,983,500		7
Other Materials	101,400		27
Accounts Receivable	10,031,000	13,115,900	٨A
Total Capital Investmer	lt	349,937,900	

¹D stands for distributed among various sectors. This breakdown is given elsewhere. ²VA stands for Value Added sector.

the capital cost per plant is a more useful vector. Figure C.17 lists the non-zero components of the final percentage capital vector. 27

²⁷ The percentage capital vector must be multiplied by the capital/output ratio before it becomes the standard capital vector. However, it is easier to manipulate before such multiplication.

FIGURE C.17

Non-Zero HYGAS CAPITAL EXPENDITURE COEFFICIENTS¹ (Percentage)

104		
Order Sector		
Number	Industry	Coefficient
7	Coal Mining	0.005310
11	New Construction	0.342777
29	Industrial Chemicals	0.007110
44	Stone and Clay Products	0.001087
51	Plumbing & Structural Meta	0.253008
54	Other Fab Metal Prods	0.024998
55	Engines & Turbines	0.026814
57	Construction & Mining Equipment	0.015146
58	Material Handling Machinery	0.007270
59	Metal Working Machinery	0.000580
60	Special Industry Machinery	0.000379
61	General Industry Machinery	0.090903
64	Service Industry Machinery	0.016520
66	Electrical Industry	0.027165
68	Elec. Lighting Equipment	0.001587
75	Scientific & Control Ins.	0.005595
78	Railroad Transportation	0.000119
80	Truck Transportation	0.004351
81	Water Transportation	0.006045
82	Air Transportation	0.000250
89	Wholesale Trade	0.027106
06	Retail Trade	0.009035
91	Finance and Insurance	0.010000
92	Real Estate & Rental	0.000154
94	Business Services	0.017595

See footnote 27 for definition of percentage capital coefficients -

Appendix D Derivation of Hygas Technical Coefficients

The same sources were used in deriving the technical coefficients as in deriving the capital coefficients [42,43]. Figure D.1 lists the escalated operating costs for the 500 billion BTU/day plant, together with my modifications to it. Most of these modifications came about as a result of the changes in capital costs described in Appendix C. Limestone costs were added on the basis of scaled up demonstration plant costs. \$350,000 was added to labor costs to reflect limestone handling costs. Here the same proportion of labor to raw material was used as for coal. Figure D.2 lists the estimated labor requirements.

By-product credits were not subtracted from the total revenue requirement because, by definition, a technical coefficient is calculated by using the total output for an industry, which includes the sale of by-products. Figure D.3 lists these by-products. Annual material requirements are further broken down in [43]. Figure D.4 reproduces this break-Note that the costs of these materials are not escalated down. by any inflation factor from the original 1968 study. This is probably an error, however the additional \$130,000 does not make a very large difference. Figure D.5 lists the process and feedwater requirements for the plant. Figure D.6 lists the cooling water requirements. Only process and feedwater is assumed to be purchased. The original study, [42] includes \$2.3 million for a water purification plant as part of the off-site costs that includes the MHD plant. Whether this purification plant is included in the new costs was not certain but since process water typically costs 30¢/thousand gallons and since the plant uses 7.3 billion gallons per year, the estimated \$2.2 million water cost could scarcely be served by a \$2.3 million water plant. The demonstration plant is expected to use considerably less water than is projected here, but since the demonstration plant study was not available, the figures in [42] were used.

ANNUAL OPERATING EXPENSE AND REVENUE REQUIREMENTS: PIPELINE GAS FROM LIGNITE BY HYGAS PROCESS

	Modified	Original	BEA Sector Number
Raw Material = Coal (at 12¢/MMBTU) Limestone	33,651,200 4,400,000	33,651,200 	r 6
other Materials	1,007,000	1,007,000	27,45
Direct Labor Maintenance (3% of bare cost)	2,956,100 5,790,000	2,606,100 4.082.200	12.VA
Supplies (15% of Main.) Supplies (10% of labow)	295,600	612,300	D V D
Supervision (10% of labor and supervision) Bayroll Overhead (10% of labor and supervision) General Overhead (50% of labor. supervision. mainten-	325,200 4,963,000	286,600 3,780,600	00
ance, supplies) Power Generation (Oper. & Main.) Depreciation (5% straight line) Tayes (Local & State = 2% of invest)	4,985,000 20,620,300 7,096,000	4,985,000 14,684,500	D V A V
Insurance (1% of investment)	3,548,000	8,810,700	70
Total operating Expense By-Product Credit Contingencies (2% at Operating) Gross Return (9% of rate base, 20 year average) Federal Income Tax (48%, 20 year average)	90,507,800 1,816,200 18,965,800 7,413,600	74,766,800 (9,789,100) 1,495,200 13,554,900 5,298,500	4 A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A
Total Revenue Requirement Average Gas Price (no	118,703,400 72.6¢/MMBTU by-product cre	85,326,300 52.0¢/MMBTU ¢dit)	
AGA Conventions Used: 20 year straight line depreciati 7.5% interest on debt; 9% return	on: 65/35 debt/ on rate base.	/equity:	

245

FIGURE D.1

Source: [42] p, 72.

	PU FET SHITE
Lignite Storage, Reclaiming	m
Lignite Grinding and Drying	4
Slurry Feed Preparation	4
Hydrogasification, Electrogasification, Char Combustor	16
Quench System and Light Oil Recovery	4
Prepurification I and II	21
CO Shift	e
Methanation, Drying	5
Offsites	10
	70
At \$3.75 per man-hour 70 x \$3.75 x 24 = \$6300/day Annual Cost = \$2,299,500	
*Labor and maintenance calculated from unit cost per MW. cycle with producer gas feed annual costs for operating amount to \$2,673,000	For the MHD steam , maintenance and seed

D.2 FIGURE

ESTIMATED OPERATING LABOR FOR PIPELINE GAS SECTION (Exclusion of MHD Unit*) 3.770 c **2**46

Source: [42], p. 70.

BY-PRODUCTS OF HYGAS PROCESS

By-product	Amount/Year	Unit Value	Annual Value, \$	¢/10 ⁶ Btu Pipeline Gas
Benzene	30,712,800 gal	15¢/gal	4,607,000	2.84
011	20,727,800 million Btu	25¢/10 ⁶ Btu	5,181,900	3.18
Electric	998.1144 × 10 ⁶ Kwhr	3 mils/kwhr	2,994,500	1.84
			12,783,400	7.86

Source: [42], p. 69

SUMMARY OF ANNUAL MATERIAL REQUIREMENTS 90 PERCENT PLANT OPERATING FACTOR

Item	Annual foct ¢
<u></u> Lignite at 8¢/10 ⁶ Btu (\$1.17/ton)	21,478,500
Catalysts and Chemicals	
Potassium Carbonate System Losses	171,000
Activated Carbon	27,000
Zinc Oxide	182,700
CO Conversion Catalyst	54,000
Methanation Catalyst	407,700
Hammers and Grinding Rolls	000'66
Water Treatment Chemicals Subtotal	65,700 1,007,100
Total Annual Material Cost	22,485,600

Source: [42], p. 71

PROCESS AND FEEDWATER REQUIREMENTS

Total process and boiler feed rate requirements give a total plant makeup of 15,562 gpm. This is summarized as follows:

	gpm	
Reaction Steam Feedwater	3,117	
Hot Carbonate Regeneration Steam	890	
Hydrogasifier CTR Quench	235	
Quench Tower Makeup	3,640	
Cooling Water Makeup	7,680	
Total	15,562	= 7361 10 ⁶ gal/yr.

.

Source: [42], p. 61

COOLING WATER SUMMARY

Process Cooling Water 85⁰ - 115⁰F

Service

gpm
4,746
57,800
39,146
7,162
14,220
3,152
4,420
335
130,981
88,400
219,381

Source: [42], p. 59

_
With these data sources, all well defined numbers were assigned to BEA categories as illustrated in Figure D.1. The residual 9.5% was distributed on the basis of comparison with the electrical utility, chemicals, and petroleum refining industries. In general an average of coefficients for BEA sectors 27,28.31, and 68 was used, supplemented by the author's judgements. Figure D.7 summarizes the non-zero technical coefficients for Hygas process.

Trade and transportation were removed from all commodities except coal, since the plant was assumed to be at minemouth. This is contrary to the standard BEA practice of removing a uniform margin for all commodities but it is probably more correct. D.7 FIGURE

HYGAS TECHNICAL COEFFICIENTS (\$1.017/MCF) (NON-ZERO)

	Coefficient	0.202000	0.017429	0.017357	0.000071	0.000050	0.006521	0.000071	0.000143	0.000071	0.000729	0.000007	0.000286	0.000643	0.000057	0.000007	0.000007	0.000021	0.000057	0.000021	0.000007	0.006214	0.002071	0.013529	0.004000	0.021929	0.004371	0.015357	0.000571	0.000214	0.003286	0.000357
				ction				р.	ts	S		etals	Products	quipment	nery		t	Supplies	ent	ment				es						vices		
	Industry	Coal Mining	Stone & Clay Mining	Maint. & Repair Constru	Apparel	Printing and Publishing	Industrial Chemicals	Drugs, Clng, Toilet Pre	Rubber & Plastic Produc	Leather Tanning Product	Stone and Clay Products	Plumbing & Structural M	Other Fabricated Metal	Construction & Mining E	Material Handling Machi	Machine Shop Products	Elec. Lighting Equipmen	Elec. Mach. Equipment 8	Motor Vehicles & Equipm	Optical and Photo Equip	Misc. Manufacturing	Railroad Transportation	Truck Transportation	Water & Sanitary Servic	Retail Trade	Finance and Insurance	Real Estate & Rental	Business Services	Auto Repair & Service	Medical & Education Ser	Business Travel, Gifts	Office Supplies
104 Order Sector	Number	7	6	12	19	28	29	33	38	39	44	51	54	57	58	62	68	71	72	76	77	78	80	88	06	91	92	94	96	98	102	103

Appendix E Derivation of Capital Coefficients for Second Generation Texaco Low BTU Coal Gasification Process

The United Aircraft report [39] which served as the reference work for both low BTU coal gasification and the gas turbine topping cycle, was not nearly as well done as the IGT report [42,43]. This may be caused by the fact that the United Aircraft report was a joint production of three different organizations: United Aircraft, (gas-turbines): FMC (fuel desulfurization processes); and Burns and Roe (steam systems and power systems economics). FMC, who prepared the gasification parts of the report, did not appear to do as detailed a job as United Aircraft did on the gas turbine section of the report.

Figure E.1 illustrates the add-on procedure used to go from purchased equipment cost to total installed cost. Sector assignments are also provided there. Figure E.2 reproduces the purchased equipment list for the second generation Texaco process using hot carbonate scrubbing. Sector numbers (at 83 order) are also included here. Figure E.3 compares the Texaco process to the first generation Lurgi technology.

The costs of general process equipment (e.g. pumps or heat exchangers) were taken from standard lists. Costs of towers and other cylindrical vessels were estimated at 45¢/lb. for fabricated steel. The costs of any linings were added to derive the final estimated cost.

Because of the unusual way of presenting this cost information, we resorted to an unusual method of deriving capital coefficients. All items of equipment plus interest (@ 7.5% per year), engineering (6% of plant cost), instruments (one half of the figure shown in Figure E.1). insurance

FIGURE E.1

"ADD-ON" ESTIMATION TECHNIQUE ILLUSTRATION

Item		<u>Amount</u>
Equipment Purchased (Initial Estimate)		\$1000
Commodities		
Excavation @ 6.4% equipment	\$64	
Concrete @ 14.5% equipment	145	
Structural Steel @ 13.1% equip.	131	
Buildings @ 5% equipment	50	
Piping @ 40% equipment	400	
Electrical @ 32% equipment	320	
Instruments @ 25% equipment	250	
Insulation @ 6% equipment	60	
Painting @ 2% equipment	20	
Subtotal		1440
Total Direct Cost		1440
Indirect Costs @ 35% of Total Direct Co	st	854
Engineering, supervision = 6% of	total	
Interest = 7.5% of total		
Insurance = 1% of total		
Subtotal		3294
Contingency @ 10% of Total Direct-plus- Indirect Costs		329
Total Installed Costs (Final Es	timates)	\$3623

FIGURAE E.2

SECOND-GENERATION PARTIAL-OXIDATION HOT-CARBONATE PROCESS

	Equipment List		
		Equipment	DEA
No.		Purchased	Sector
Reg'd.	Description	Cost-Dollars	Number
2	Underfeed Conveyors 115 TPH, w SS Honner and Vibrating Feeder	s 35.000	45
2	Boy Coal Conveyors Helt 30 in x 2000 ft long - 400 ft/min	5,000	
Ŧ	310 TPH	175,000	46
.4	Belt Conveyor, 80 TPH, 220 ft long CS-24 in.	20,000	46
4	Primary Coal Crusher, 180 TPH, 70 hp	20,000	45
L L	Hammer Mill, 80 TPH, 150 hp	105,000	45
4	Crushed Coal Elevators, 80 TPH	130,000	46
1	Surge Hopper, 100 T. 20 ft x 20 ft x 10 ft	50,000	10
հ	Distributing Conveyor - Piggy Back Belt Type, 18 in. x 50 ft.		40
-	70 TPH	30,000	46
1,	Slummy Tank 14 000 gal SS clad 2/agitation	98,000	40
4	Slumm Rumn centrifuge] 450 gab 85 hn	35,000	49
4	Verorizon 117 million Btu/hn SS/CS 7600 ft2	171,000	40
4	Cool Steem Separator 17 000 actm	11,000	άň
4	Coal-Steam Separator, 47,000 acim	14,000	40
4	Texaco Partial Oxidation Gasiliers, 14.(5 it $D \times 35.5$	700 000	36+40
1.	it n, 10 in. reiractory lining	700,000	40
4	Steam Coal Preneater, 64 million Btu/nr, 55/55 21,000 it	310,000	40
4	Peddle Elevator, 140 TPH, 00 It H	51,000	40
4	Air Preheater, 17.75 It D x 55 It H, 13 in. refractor lining,		40126
,	140 million Btu/hr pebble bed	1,300,000	40+30
4	Waste Heat Boiler, CS/CS, 60 million Btu/hr, 7300 ft ²	165,000	40
2	Air Compressor, 3-stage, intercooled, 280,000 scfm		40
,	e 256 psia, 34,000 hp	1,800,000	49
4	Multiclone Banks, 20,000 acfm	130,000	40
4	Venturi Scrubbers, 14,000 acim	36,000	40
4	Water Scrubbing Towers, 12.3 ft D x 24 ft H, 1450 ft ³		10+26
,	drip-grind packing	228,000	40+30
4	Ash Separator Tanks, CS, 13,000 gal	11,000	40
8	Water Circulation Pumps	40,000	49
4	Hot-Carbonate Absorption Towers, 67 ft D x 27 ft H,		
,	CS, 15 turbogrid trays	90,000	40
4	Hot-Carbonate Stripping Towers, 6.7 ft D x 52 ft H, CS 28		40
,	turbogrid trays	160,000	40
4	Condensers, air cooled, 22,000 ft ² of fin tube	58,000	40
L:	Separators 6 ft D x 20 ft L, CS Horizontal	25,000	40
4	Demisters 6 ft D, CS	10,000	40
4	Liquor Pumps, 2000 gph, 200 psi head, SS internals	200,000	49
1.	Waste Water Stripping Tower, 10.5 ft D x 30 ft H, 20 trays	54,000	40
1	Air Blower for Waste Water Stripping, 200,000 cfm @ 5 ft H ₂ 0	75,000	49
1	Cooling Tower System, forced draft, 500,000 gph, 25 F range,	150 000	1 1 ±
,	10 r approach	170,000*	11*
1	process Water Treatment Plant, 60,000 gph 6,	$\frac{200,000*}{676,000}$	11*

* Total installed cost including commodities, indirect costs, and contingency.

F I G U R E E.3 COMPARISON OF FIRST AND SECOND GENERATION LOW BTU COAL GASIFICATION PROCESSES

1000-Mw Nominal Size

	Second Generation Texaco Process	n First Generation Lurgi Dry Ash
	(Thousa	nd Dollars)
Coal Handling	2,000	4,700
Coal Feeding	1,200	20,000
Gasification	1,800	•
Air Compression	6,900	8,900
Heat Recovery	6,300	2,500
Dust Rem o val	1,200	an an
Acid Gas Removal	3,300	2,500
Sulfur Recovery	1,800	1,900
	14,500	40,500
General Facilities	1,900	4,000
Total Fixed Capital	26,400	44,500
\$/kw	28.3	46.1
Working Capital	1,100	1,800
Total Investment	27,500	46,300
\$/kw	29.5	48.0

Source: [39], p. 87, 118

(1% of total direct cost) were allocated directly to sectors. These allocations amounted to $\frac{1778}{3294}$ of the plant cost before contingencies. The remaining $\frac{1513}{3294}$ of the plant cost was allocated to 11.03. The 11.03 coefficient vector was modified to exclude all boiler purchases (40.06), all 43.01, all 49.01, and all 73.03. These sectors had been allocated under the direct equipment purchases. The 11.03 vector was then rescaled to sum to 1.0 and used to allocate the construction component of the plant cost.

The capital equipment purchases had trade and transportation margins removed before they were combined with the construction components. To disaggregate the total transportation margin into rail, truck, water, etc. components, the breakdown for the electrical utility capital purchases was used. The source for this information was Battelle Institute's <u>Ex Ante Capital Matrix</u> [21]. Figure E.4 reproduces the actual transportation margins and the relative percentages for each. Trade and transportation margins themselves were obtained from the <u>Survey of Current Business</u> November 1969 article "The Input Output Structure of the U.S. Economy 1963." [48]:

The result of this tortuous procedure is an estimated second generation low BTU coal gasification capital vector. It is set up like the Hygas capital vector to sum to 1.0 (when value added is included). When multiplied by the cost of the gas plant it will disaggregate the investment into purchases from individual sectors of the economy. Figure E.5 contains the final percentage capital vector. (See footnote 27).

MODAL ALLOCATION OF TOTAL TRANSPORTATION COSTS FOR ELECTRIC UTILITIES

Mode	Fraction
Rail (65.01)	0.011
Motor Freight (65.03)	0.401
Water Transport (65.04)	0.557
Air Transport (65.05)	0.023
Misc. Transport (65.07) (Pipeline and Services)	0.008
Total	1.000

Source: [21], p. 92

FIGURE E.S

LOW BTU GAS (TEXACO FROCESS) CAPITAL EXPENCITURE CCEFFICIENTS (PERCENTAGES)

CURRELC IENT

COEFFICIENT

<pre>March 12 Transformer 1 100 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10</pre>	VESTUCK & FRCCUCTS Mer Earning		54 CTHEK FAB WETAL PRCCS 55 Enginës & Tlrbines
6. VERT WAYNER 0.0	FARM FRJDLCTS Fry & Fishery Prod	0.00145 7.0	DO FAKM MACHINERY & ECUIP
3. VETLA "INNG 9.0 AGUS FFIL "INNG 9.0 AGUS FFICTICA 9.0 AGUS FFIL FILL 9.0 AGUS FFIL FILL 9.0 AGUS FFIL 9.0 <	FCREST. FISH SERV	0.0	57 CLNSTRUTTICHEMINING FCUI Le Material Machin Mach
INDUC 0.002236 0.	IS WETAL WINING	2°0	59 METALWERKING PACH
CIL M.C. MUURL CA 0.00 CIL M.C. MUURL CA 0.002336 C. M. MILLOC 0.000388 C. M. MULLOC 0.0 C. M. MULLOC 0.000388 C. M. M.M. CLUER M.C. M.C. M.C. M.C. M.C. M.C. M.C. M.C	INING TELEL TAING		O SPECIAL INDUSTRY PACH
L CLAY WINNE L CLAY WINNE L CLAY WINNE L REFRUTTE L REFRUTTE R FLUE ACT L REFRUTTE R FLUE R FL	CIL ANE NETURAL GA	0.0	61 GENERAL INCLETRY MACH 52 Bachige Shir Derrigts
ASTRUTTION ASTRUTTION ASTRUTTION ASTRUTTION ASTRUTTION ASTRUTTION ASTRUTTION ASTRUTTION AT CONSTRUCTION AT CONSTRUCT	6 CLAY MINING Mintre	0.002236	63 UFFICE COMP PACH
6 FERMIC 0.00008 0.0 0.	ASTRUCTICN		64 SERVICE INCLUTRY MACH
CG: ACCESSCRIES 0.0 WILING PRCLUTY 6 WILING PRCLUTY 6 WILING 0.0 WILING 0.0 WILING 0.0 WANNTHE TURE 0.0 WANNTHE TURE 0.0 WANNTHE TURE 0.00008 TEXTLE GCCS 0.0000187 TEXTLE GCCS 0.0000187 TEXTLE GCCS 0.000187 TEXTLE FORCE 0.000436 CONDATANDE 0.000436 TEXTLE FORCE	& REPAIR CONST	0.00038	65 REFRIG PACHINERY 4. LULTUILAI INCUSTON
WILLING 0.0 <	CE. ACCESSCRIES	0.0	60 ELECTRIAL INCUSINT 67 FUISPHGID AFEITANFES
WANUFACTURES 0.0 WANUFACTURES 0.000005 TEXTILE GCCCS 0.000005 TEXTILE GCCS 0.000005 TEXTILE GCCS 0.000005 TEXTILE GCCS 0.000005 TEXTILE GCCS 0.000005 E WCCC PPDC S 0.000005 CUTAINERS 0.000000 CUTAINERS 0.0000000 CUTAINERS 0.0000000 CUTAINERS	KINCREC PRCCLCTS	0-0	68 ELEC LIGHTING ECUTP
TXTLE CO00003 TXTLE CLEC COPP C. TXTLE CCCC CO0003 TXL CLEC COPP C. TXTLE CCCC CC0003 TXL CLEC COPP C. TXTLE CCCC CC0003 TXL CLEC COPP C. TXTLE CCCC CC0013 TXL CLEC COPP C. CUILINES CC000363 CCCC TXL TXL TXL CUILINES CC00137 CCCC TXL TXL TXL TXL CUILINES CC00435 CC00436 TXL TXL<	FILLING (, Manifastyling)		09 RACIJ.TV 6 CCMM ECUIP
TXTILE GCC: 0.000005 TXTILE GCC: 0.000005 CONTRINES: 0.000005 TXTILE GCC: 0.000005 CUTATILE FRECUCI 0.000005 TXTILE GCC: 0.000005 CUTATIONE 0.000005 TXTILE GCC: 0.000005 CUTATIONE 0.000005 TXTILE GCC: TXTILE CUTATIONE 0.000005 TXTILE TXTILE CUTATIONE 0.000005 TXTILE TXTILE TXTILE CUTATIONE 0.000005 0.000005 TXTILE TXTILE CUTATIONE 0.000005 0.000005 TXTILE TXTILE TXTILE CUTATIONE 0.000005 0.000005 0.00005 TXTILE TXTILE </td <td>L PRUTACIONES L'ADR JUDT NILLS</td> <td></td> <td>TU ËLEC COMP & ACCESS</td>	L PRUTACIONES L'ADR JUDT NILLS		TU ËLEC COMP & ACCESS
A FENTLE 7.2 MICHART 7.4 CTHER 7.4 CTHER 7.5 SCIENTIFIC C WIT ALLE 0.000187 7.4 CTHER 7.5 SCIENTIFIC	TEXTLE GUCS	0,000073	71 ELEC MACH ECP & SLPPLIES
AF TENTLE PACCUCT 0.000005 7.4 ALVARTIA & P. CUINTIATE PACCUCT 0.018539 7.1 FLC & P. CUNTATIVER 0.0 0.018539 7.1 FLC & P. CUNTATIVER 0.0 0.0 0.0 CULD FLANTUPE 0.0 0.0 0.0 CLO FLANTUPE 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 CLO FLANTUPE 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 CLO FLANTUPE 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 CLO FLANTUPE 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 CLUD FLENTUPE 0.0		0-000187	72 MUTJR VEHICLES 6 FCUIP
CUNITURE 0.000436 77 74 74 75 74 77	AR TENTILE PRODUCT	0-00005	73 AIRCHAFT & PARTS
CONTAINERS 0.00 0.00 FURN FIXTURES 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.00 0.0 0.00	E WEEE PROES	0.018639	14 CINER IRANSPERT EGUIP
ULD FLANTURE 9.0 ULD FLANTURES 9.0 ULD FLANUESS 0.000436 ULLS 0.000436 0.0 ULLS 0.000436 0.0 ULS 0.000436 0.0 S ALLIED PRCK 0.0 G ALLISPING 0.000436 0.0 G S LUBLISPING 0.00010 81 MATEX TRANSPOR G S LUBLISPING 0.00010 82 AL 14 TRANSPOR MISC CHMILSPING 0.00010 83 MATEX TRANSPOR MISC CHMILSPING 0.00010 84 MALPAC 84 MALPAC MISC CHMILSPING 0.00010 84 MALPAC 84 MALPAC CING: TCLET 82 AL 14 TRANSPOR 85 MALL 87 MALL MISC CCHMILSPING 0.00 0.00 90 MALPSAC 87 MALPAC 87 MALPAC CLNG: TCLET PRECHANCE 0.00 90 MALPSAC 87 MALL 87 MALL CLNG: TCLET PRECHANCE 0.00 90 MALPSAC 87 MALP 87 MALE CLNG: TCLET	CONTAINERS	0.0	13 SCIENTIFIC & CONTROL 140 14 Souther & Burth Forth
FURN & FIXTURES 0.000436 FURN & FIXTURES 0.00436 FULLS 0.00442 CCNTAINERS, ECKES 0.000463 CCNTAINERS, ECKES 0.000363 RISC CHENICALS 0.000363 0.000363 0.000363 RISC CHENICALS 0.000363 0.000364 0.000364 RISC CHENICALS 0.000364 0.000364 0.000364 RISC CHENICALS 0.000364 RISC CHENICALS 0.000344 RISC CHENICALS 0.000344 RISC CHENICAL 0.000344 RISC CHENICAL 0.000344 RISC CHENICALS 0.000344 RISC CHENICALS 0.000344 RISC CHENICALS 0.000344 RISC CHANCALCALS 0.000344 RISC CHANCALCALS 0.000344 RISC CHANCALS 0.000344 RISC CHANCALS 0.000344 RIERTIS, COATINGS 0.0000035 <	ULD FLRNITUPE	0.0	TO UPITCAL & PPCTU EQUIV
11LLS 0.0 0.1 <td< td=""><td>FURN E FIXTURES</td><td>0.000436</td><td>TA RATIEDAD TRANCTATION 78 RATIEDAD TRANCTRANTON</td></td<>	FURN E FIXTURES	0.000436	TA RATIEDAD TRANCTATION 78 RATIEDAD TRANCTRANTON
6 ALLIED PRCGS 0.000462 FRUCK FRUCK FRUSK 7 6 ALLIED PRCGS 0.000364 B B B FRUCK FRUSK	ILLS	0.0	70 LUCAL DACCERCED TRANSLOT
CUNTAINERS 0.0 CUNTAINES 0.000036 RIAL CHALINE RIAL CHALINE RIAL CHALISFING RIAL CHALISFING RIAL CHALISFING RIAL CHALISFING RIAL CHALISFING RISC CHEMICATICI RISC CHEMICATICI RISC CHEMICATICI RISC CHEMICATICI RISC CHEMICATICI RISC CHEMICATICI CLAG CCIENC CLAG CO00346 RISTIC PREDUCTS CLAG CO003416 RISTURES CO001670 RISTURES CO001670 RISTURES CO01670	6 ALLIED PRCDS	0.00452	BU TRUCK TRANSPORTATICA
AIX TXANSPOR AIX CEPTICALS 0.000365 AIX CEPTICALS 0.000366 AIX CEPTICALS 0.000366 AIX CEPTICALS 0.000374 AIX CEPTICALS 0.000374 CLAG FILT 0.0 CLAG FILT 0.0 AIX PARCO 0.0003416 CLAG FILT 0.0 AIX TURES 0.0003416 AIX TURES 0.0003416 AIX TANNG 0.0003416 AIX TANNG 0.000331 AIX TANNG 0.000470 AIX TANNG 0.000470 AIX TANNG 0.000067 AIX TANNG 0.000333 AIX TANNG 0.0000067 AIX TANNG 0.0000067 AIX TANNG 0.0000067 AIX TANNG 0.0000067 AIX TANNG 0.00000067 AIX AIX TANNG	CENTAINERS. ECKES	0.0	81 MATER TRANSPERTATION
IZERS 0.000563 0.0005416 0.0005416 0.0005416 0.0005416 0.0005416 0.0005416 0.0005416 0.0005416 0.000533 0.000533 0.000533 0.000533 0.000533 0.000533 0.000533 0.000533 0.000533 0.000533 0.000533 0.000533 0.000533 0.000533 0.000533 0.000533 0.000533 0.000533 0.0005416 0.0005416 0.0005416 0.0005416 0.0005416 0.0005416 0.0005416 0.0005416 0.0005416 0.000545 0.000545 0.000545 0.0000657 0.0000657 0.0000657 0.0000657 0.0000657 0.0000657 0.0000657 0.0000657 0.0000657 0.0000656 0.0000656 0.0000656 0.0000656 0.0000656 0.0000656 0.0000656 0.0000656 0.0000656 0.0000656 0.0000656 0.0000656 <td>VG & PLBLISHING</td> <td>0. C00010</td> <td>82 AIK TKANSPORTATION</td>	VG & PLBLISHING	0. C00010	82 AIK TKANSPORTATION
45 CEMMUNICATICI 4155 CERMICALS 0.000560 55 SWTH PTPL 0.0 5 SWTH PTPL 0.0 6 PAGUUCTS 0.0 6 PAGUUCTS 0.0 7 GAS UTILITTER 6 PAGUUCTS 0.0 8 PAGUUL 0.0 8 PAGUUL 0.0 8 PAGUUL 0.0 8 PAGUUL 0.0 8 PAGUUCTS 0.0 9 PAGUUCTS 0.0 1 PATURES 0.001231 1 PATURES 0.002231 1 PATURES 0.002231 1 PATURES 0.002231 1 PATURES 0.002231 1 PATURES 0.001670 0 PAUSALE TANING 90 RETALL FACE 0 PAUSALE TANING 90 RETALL FACE 0 PAUSALE TANING 90 RETALL FACE 1 PAUSALE TANING 90 RETALL FACE 1 PAUSALE TANING 90 RETALL FACE 1 PAUSALE TANING 90 PUTEL: PERS 1 PAUSALE TANING 90 PUTEL: PERS 1 PAUSALE 90 PUTEL: PERS 1 PAUSALE 90 PUTEL: PERS 1 PAUSALE	AIAL UPERICALS 17606	0.000363	83 PISC THANSPERTATIEN
5. 5. WITF PTEL 0.000 0.0 <td>, 2012 4167 (Lewital C</td> <td>0.000136</td> <td>84 CCMMUNICATIONS EXC 7ADET</td>	, 2012 4167 (Lewital C	0.000136	84 CCMMUNICATIONS EXC 7ADET
CLN65 TCLLET PREDUCTS 0.0 CLN65 TCLLET PREDUCTS 0.0 E PREDUCTS 0.005416 0.0005416 E PREDUCTS 0.0005416 0.0005416 FELTS 0.0005416 0.0005416 0.001650 FELTS 0.0005416 0.0005416 0.001650 FELTS 0.001670 0.0002331 0.0 FELTS 0.001670 0.0001670 91 FLANCE TANNIG PRCS 0.001670 92 FLAL FRAD FELTS CONTINGS 0.0001670 91 FLANCE 91 FLAL FRAD TANNIG PRCS 0.001670 91 FLAL FRAD 91 FLAL FRAD FLATHER PROS 0.000067 92 FLAL FRAD 91 FLAL FRAD FLATHER PROS 0.000067 91 PLAT 91 PLAT 91 91 FLAL FLANCE 91 91 FLAL FLANCE 91 91 FLAT 91 FLAT	S E SVNTL MTOL		85 RADIU & TV ERDACCASTING
C PRECUCTS 0.0003416 Matex	CINC. TTTIET DRED		B6 ELECTRIC UTILITIES
EVERTING 0.00531 0.00231 0.00231 0.001670 0.002331 0.001670 0.002331 0.001670 0.002331 0.001670 0.002331 0.001670 0.0010677 0.0010677		0- C00314	a7 GAS UTILITIES
#IXTURES 0.002220 00 MELEALE 14 #IXTURES 0.001670 92 METALL 17 ADE # FELTS 0.001670 92 METALL 17 ADE # TANNIG PRCD 0.001670 92 METAL 17 ADE # TANNIG PRCD 0.001670 92 METAL 17 ADE # ADA 94 BLSIMES SER 94 BLSIMES SER 97 ADE # REFAULIC 0.000067 93 MEDSMENTS 97 ADE 97 ADE # REFAULIC 0.000125 0.000125 97 ADE 97 ADE 97 ADE # REFEL FORGES 0.000125 0.000125 97 ADE 97 ADE 97 ADE 97 ADE # REFEL FORGES 0.000125 0.000125 97 ADE 97 ADE 97 ADE 97 ADE 97 ADE # REFEL FORGERS 0.000125 0.000125 97 ADE 97 ADE <t< td=""><td>LIN DEFINING</td><td></td><td>de mater 6 sanitary segu</td></t<>	LIN DEFINING		de mater 6 sanitary segu
I FELTS: COATINGS 0.000670 91 FINANCE ANDE I FELTS: COATING FRES 0.001670 91 FINANCE ANDE I TANNUG FRES 0.001670 92 FLAL ESTATE 91 FINANCE ANDE I TANNUG FRES 0.001670 0 001670 93 FUESTICE 91 FUESTICE 91 FLAL ESTATE I TANNUG FRES 0.000067 0 0 93 FUESTICE 93 FUESTICE 94 BUSINESS SER I HVERAULIC 0.0000835 0.0000835 93 AUSSHENTS 93 AUSSHENTS 94 AUSSHENTS I STEEL 0.0000835 0.0000835 93 AUSSHENTS 93 AUSSHENTS 93 AUSSHENTS I STEEL 0.0001855 0.0001855 0.0001855 93 AUSSHENTS 93 FEITEL 64 FEITEL 64 FEITEL 94 FEITEL FEITEL 94 FEITEL 94 FEITEL 94 FEITEL 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94	PLXTURES	0.002231	09 NHULESALE TRADE
C Plastic Frees 0.001670 92 Real costate IR TANNING FRC 0.0 92 FEAL costate IR CLEATFER FR9C 0.0 93 FCEL, FERS 93 IR CLEATFER FR9C 0.0 000057 94 BLSINESS SEFARCH ARC IS GLASS PROCS 0.0000057 94 BLSINESS SEFARCH ARC IS GLAY PRCS 0.0000125 97 AUGUARF 97 AUGUARF IS STEL 0.000125 0.0044964 94 94 ELICLAL STEL CLAY PRCDS 0.044964 94 94 HEICLAL STEL CLAY PRCDS 0.044964 94 94 HEICLAL STEL FUNCFIES 0.014847 10.0 STATEGLCCAL 94 HEICLAL STEL FOUNFIES 0.014847 10.0 STATEGLCCAL 10.0 STATEGLCCAL STEL FOUNFIES 0.014847 10.0	FELTS, COATINGS	0. CC0239	O RETAIL TRADE OF TREEPARTE
R TANNING PRCD 0.0 R TANNING PRCD 0.0 R LEATFER PROC 0.000005 R R LEATFER PROC 0.000005 R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R	E PLASTIC FRCCS	0.001670	C2 REAL "STATE & DENTAL
R LEATER PROC 0.000067 94 BUSINESS 55H GLASS PROCS 0.000067 95 RESEARCH And GLASS PROCS 0.000067 95 RESEARCH And GLASS PROCS 0.000067 95 RESEARCH And GLASS PROCS 0.000125 94 BUSINESS 55H GLAY PROS 0.000125 97 ANUSHRITS 97 ANUSHRITS STEEL FOUNCFIES 0.001289 94 BUSINESS 56H 97 ANUSHRITS STEEL FOUNCFIES 0.0274847 100 STATELICAL 6UT 6UT 6UT ECI STEEL FOUNCFIES 0.000565 10.0 100 STATELICAL 100 5CFAL 100 5CFAL 100 5CFAL 100 5CFAL 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50	I TANNING PRCD	0.0	93 PUTEL. PERS & REPAIR SEA
GLASS PROCS 0.000067 95 RESEARCH ANC HYCRAULIC 0.0000835 94 44111 878118 HYCRAULIC 0.0000835 97 4445113 878118 I STEEL 0.0000835 97 4445113 878118 87 STEEL FOURTES 0.044964 97 40 811641 817 STEEL FOURTES 0.044964 97 97 60 97 60 STEEL FOURTES 0.027859 0.0144947 100 STATELICAL L 810 STEEL FOURTES 0.014447 100 STATELICAL L 97 810 8101 810116 8101 8101 810116 8101 810116 8101 810116 8101 810116 8101 810116 81011 810116 81011 810116 81011 810116 810116 810116 81011 810116 810116 810116 810116 810116 810116 810116 810116 810116 810116 810116 81011	NP & LEATHER PROC	0.00005	44 BLSINESS SERVICES
HYCFAULIC 0.000835 94 AUTU REPAIR 5 5 0.000125 97 AULSENETS 6 0.0494964 94 HELICAL & FU 7 7 44 44 6 0.0494964 94 44 6 0.0494964 94 44 6 0.0494964 94 44 6 0.0494964 94 44 6 0.0494964 94 44 6 0.0494964 94 44 7 10.0 51 10.0 8 10.0 10.0 51 54 NON-FER 10.0 51 10.0 26 NON-FER 10.0 0.035727 10.0 26 50 CUTAINERS 0.0 0.0 0.0 10.0 50 10.4 50 650110 52 10.0 10.4 50 10.4 50 10.4 50	GLASS PROCS	0.000067	95 RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
CLAY PRCDS 0.000125 97 MUGEMENTS STEEL 0.044964 94 MELICAL & EC STEEL FCURFIES 0.044964 94 MELICAL & EC STEEL FCURFIES 0.027 ENT 94 MELICAL & EC STEEL FCURFIES 0.024847 94 MELICAL & EC STEEL FCURFIES 0.014847 94 MELICAL & EC NDN-FER METAL 0.014847 100 STATEGLCCAL & EC NDN-FER METAL 0.01665 101 MPDRTS NDN-FER METAL 0.035727 102 BLSINESS TRU A-FFR METAL 0.0 0.035727 CUTAINERS 0.0 0.0 103 STATEGLCCAL & SCRAP. ESTRUCTLER VETA 0.0 0.0 0.0 50 TRU ESTRUCTLER VETA 0.0 0.0 0.0 50 TRU	HACHAULIC	0.000835	96 AUTU REPAIR E SERVICE
STEL 0.044904 5 EC 0.5 STEL 0.044904 9 F EU CLAL & EC STEEL FCUNCFIES 0.044847 9 F EU GUYT ENT STEEL FCUNCFIES 0.014847 9 F EU GUYT ENT STEEL FCUNCFIES 0.014847 100 STATELCCAL NDN-FER HETAL 0.00565 101 IMPORTS NDN-FER HETAL 0.00755 101 IMPORTS A-FFR HETAL 0.0 0.0572 103 GFFIC CNTAINERS 0.0 0.0 5774 ESTRUCTLAL VETA 0.0 0.0 500 SCON FAL FER FER FER 0.0 0.000565 0.0		0.000125	97 APUSEMENTS
51EEL 0.012/859 9.9 F.D GUYT ENT 51EEL FCUNCFIES 0.014847 10.0 STATEGLOCAL I 51EEL FCUNCFIES 0.000565 10.1 IMPORTS 10.1 IMPORTS 0.000565 10.1 IMPORTS 10.2 NON-FER METAL 0.0 0.000565 10.4 SIGNED 0.035727 10.3 GFFICE SUPPL 10.4 SCMAP 5ECCNI 10.4 SCMAP 60110 FXC FFC 0.000563 10.4 SCMAP	CLAT PRCUS	0.044964	44 MECICAL & ECUCATION SERV
STEEL FORGINGS 0.000565 100 STATELCCAL (STEEL FORGINGS 0.000565 101 IMPORTS 101 IMPORTS NON-FER METAL 0.0 An-FER METAL 0.0 0.035727 102 UFSILESS TRA A-FER METALS 0.035727 103 UFFILE SUPPL 104 SCHAP, SECCAL GGSTUCLEAL VETA 0.006673 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 50	SIEEL Citer Schutsers	658170°D	94 FCD GUVT ENTERPRISES
NN-FELF LUMBINGS 0.000565 1.1 IMPORTS NN-FER METAL 0.0 0.0 1.1 INDORTS TRA A-FER METAL 0.0 0.35727 1.0 1.0 4.516.5 SUPRI CNTAINERS 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 56407 1.0 56707 1.0 4.57707 1.0 4.577707 1.0 4.57707 1.0 4.57707 1.0 4.57707 1.0 4.577707 1.0 4.57707 1.0 4.57707 1.0 4.577707 1.0 4.57	STEEL TOREFICS		100 STATE&LCCAL CUT ENTERPR
NUTREFIEL 0.035727 102 BUSINESS FRA A-FERMERALS 0.035727 103 GFFICE SUPPL CNTAINERS 0.0 0.0356970 104 SCRAP, SECCH GGSRUCTLRAL WETA 0.066970 FOUTD FAC FIFC 0.000503	VORTE TERGING	U. UUUS65	ICI IMPORTS
THE THE TELE SUPPLY THE TELE SUPPLY THE TELE SUPPLY THE TELE SUPPLY SECOND SCRAP, SECOND SCRAP, SECOND STREET SUTTER THE DAMAGE STREET SUPPLY	ALATER TELEL	0.0	LOZ BLSINESS THAVEL. CIFIS
LUTITATION 104 SURAP. SECTION 104 SURAP. SECTION 66STRUCTURAL VETA 0.166970 Fourte fact 0.1666970			103 GFFICE SUPPLIES
FOULD FALL ACT DAGGY CONCILIANT CONCENTRATION	LN'PINERS Cetalictica al Meta		104 SCRAP. SECCACHANE CCCDS
			-

,

.

Appendix F Derivation of Second Generation Low BTU Coal Gasification Technical Coefficients

The data source for this derivation was, once again, Reference 39, the United Aircraft report on advanced power cycles. Figure F.1 reproduces the operating data on the second generation Texaco process. In the calculations to follow the sulfur credit was ignored, so that the net incremental use is \$2.998 million, and the total cost is \$14,525 million. This results in a gas price of 37.1 ¢/MMBTU. Figure F.1 also compares the second generation process to the current process using Lurgi technology. Figure F.2 provides a similar comparison with the material requirements. Both of these plants are sized to run a 1000 MW gas turbine topping cycle generator (first generation topping cycle efficiency = 47%; second generation efficiency = 54%; overall first generation efficiency = 36.1%, second generation = 47.6%).

With this small amount of information to go on, the standard procedure was followed of allocating the major identifiable items first. These are listed in the appropriate column of Figure F.1. The labor component listed there consists of direct labor, supervision, and overhead. Assuming that the same proportions hold for these labor figures as held for those of the Hygas process, Figure F.3 breaks up labor into its components. Capital related items are all allocated to value added except for 1% of fixed capital which is given to sector 70, (Insurance). 13% of maintenance is allocated to supplies to be distributed and half of the remainder (43.5%) is allocated to 12, with the remainder going to value added. Figure F.4 illustrates this procedure. This procedure assumes 15% of actual maintenance charges are for supplies and that half of all maintenance is contracted out. These are the same proportions that were used in the

ANNUAL OWNING AND OPERATING COSTS FOR PARTIAL OXIDATION-HOT CARBONATE PROCESS

1000 MW Nominal Size Th	COGAS plan housand Dollar	t <u>Mills/Kwhr^l</u>	First Genera Lurgi Dry As Thousand Dollars <u>M</u>	ation sh <u>Mills/kwhr²</u>
Maintenance @ 5% Fixed Capital Labor @ \$60,000/man/shift u+ili+ios:	1,320 1,200	0.23 0.21	2,225 2,280	0.40 0.40
Cooling Water @ 2¢/thousand gal. Cooling Water @ 2¢/thousand gal Process Water @ 30¢/thousand gal Steam @ 50¢/thousand lb/hr Sulfur Credit @ \$25/long ton	$\begin{array}{c} 159\\ 1. & 196\\ 123\\ \underline{(1,174)}_{3}\end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} 0.03\\ 0.03\\ 0.02\\ (0.21)\end{array}$	294 103 358 (<u>1,301</u>)	0.05 0.02 0.06 (0.23)
Net Increment Cost	1,824	0.31	3,959	0.70
Coal @ 20¢/million Btu	7,831 ⁴	1.37	<u>12,217⁵</u>	2.17
Subtotal	9,655	1.68	16,176	2.87
Capital Related @ 14% of Fixed Capital	3,696	0.65	6,230	1.11
Total	13,351 14,525* ³	2.33 ⁶ 2.54	22,406	3.98 ⁷
15.721 x 10^9 kwhr/hr ² 5.64 x 10^9 kwhr/yr ³ Starred figures do not include s ⁴ 0.619 lb coal/kwhr ⁵ 0.85 lb/kwhr ⁶ 34.1 ¢/million Btu ⁷ 42.1 ¢/million Btu	sulfur credit	Source:	[39], p. 119, 87	261

PARTIAL OXIDATION-HOT CARBONATE PROCESS MATERIAL BALANCE 1000-Mw Nominal Size

OUT: IN: Gas -Coal -Temp. - 230 F 1.772 million tons/yr Press - 325 psia Flow: 556,643 ft³/min 9632 1b/min 106.4 million Btu/min 31,497 lb/min HHV - 173.9 Btu/ft³ Electricity - 67 Mw Sensible Heat - 3.2 Btu/ft³ Sulfur - 6.5 g/million/Btu Composition Vol. % $^{\rm H_20}_{\rm H_2}$ 5.5 25.0 СŌ 27.2 3.8 002 0.5 CH4 0.003 H₂S N₂ 38.0 Sulfur: 46,976 long tons/day FIRST GENERATION LURGI GASIFICATION PROCESS MATERIAL BALANCE 1000-Mw Nominal Size OUT: IN: Gas -Coal -Temp. - 230 F 2.405 million ton/year Press. - 315 psia 13,075 lb/min (as rec.) Flow rate - 686, 622 ft³/min 144.5 million Btu/min 41,943 lb/min HHV - 172.7 Btu/ft³ Sensible Heat - 3.3 $Btu/ft^{3(1)}(1)$ Sulfur - 221 - (Electricity - 82 Mw Sulfur - 221 g/million Btu Composition, Vol % 6.6 H_20 ΗĪ 20.9 14.1 C 0 C02 12.5 CH4 5.8 H2S 0.1 0.0 CŌS N₂ 40.0 Sulfūr - 52,067 long tons/year

DISTRIBUTION OF LABOR CHARGES

	%	Dollars (100's)	Sector Number
Direct Labor	55.1	661	VA
Supervision	5.5	66	VA
Payroll Overhead	6.1	73	D^1
General Overhead	33.3	400	D
Total Labor	100.0%	\$1200	

1 D stands for distributed among various sectors, and described elsewhere.

FIGURE F.4

~

BREAKDOWN OF TOTAL MAINTENANCE COSTS

	%	Dollars (100's)	Sector <u>Number</u>
Maintenance	87.0	1148	
Contracted	43.5	574	12
Self-supplied	43.5	574	VA
Supplies	13.0	172	D
Total Maintenance	100.0%	1320	

Hygas operating cost calculations. The residual \$768,000 (5.3% of the total) was distributed according to industry 31 (petroleum refining) and the author's judgment. An additional 1.2% was removed from value-added and allocated to real estate and rental (sector 71) to bring this sector up to a more reasonable level.

Finally trade and transportation margins were removed from all purchases except coal. Again it was assumed that the plant operated at mine-mouth. The final vector is displayed in Figure F.5.

LOW BTU COAL GASIFICATION NON-ZERO TECHNOLOGICAL COEFFICIENTS

104 Order		
Sector		
Number	<u>Industr</u> y	<u>Coefficient</u>
7	Coal Mining	.53913
8	Crude Oil & Natural Gas	.00026
9	Stone & Clay Mining	.00003
12	Maintenance & Repair Construction	.04543
19	Appare 1	.00014
21	Lumber & Wood Products	.00024
29	Industrial Chemicals	.01090
31	Agriculture & Miscellaneous Chemicals	.00338
33	Drugs, Cleaning, Toilet Preparations	.00297
35	Petroleum Refining	.00100
49	Misc. Non-ferrous Metals	.00223
51	Plumbing & Structural Metals	.00006
54	Other Fabricated Metal Products	.00029
58	Material Handling Machinery	.00020
72	Motor Vehicles & Equipment	.00003
75	Scientific & Control Insurance	.00003
84	Communications except Radio & TV	.00108
88	Water & Sanitary Services	.01349
89	Wholesale Trade	.01381
90	Retail Trade	.00161
91	Finance & Insurance	.00964
92	Real Estate & Rental	.01982
94	Business Services	.02260
96	Auto Repair & Service	.00036
98	Medical & Education Service	.00063

Appendix G Derivation of Capital Coefficients for the Second Generation Gas Turbine Topping Cycle

The data source for this derivation was the United Aircraft report, [39], United Aircraft and Burns and Roe collaborated on the section of this report that describes the costs of the combined gas-turbine steam cycle generating plant. The particular system chosen for study is a second generation waste heat boiler combined cycle. A very detailed breakdown of installed equipment costs was provided by FPC account number. These lists are reproduced in Figures G.1-G.8. In addition these lists assign equipment to 86 order sectors.

Figure G.9 summarizes these costs and details the interest, escalation, design fees, etc. Since these numbers all represent installed costs, labor, transportation, and trade margins must be removed from them. Figure G.10 lists the labor margins that were removed from all equipment prices in each account before they were allocated to I/O sectors. These labor margins were taken from Reference 5. Once labor margins were removed, the equipment was assigned to I/O categories and the trade and transportation margins were removed. In the case of equipment falling into two categories, weights were assigned according to Reference 5.

Because of the detail provided in this section of the United Aircraft report, the derivation of capital coefficients was quite straightforward. The major questions that arose had to deal with the classification of piping (it was assigned to sector 42), the classification of instruments and controls (assigned to 53), the treatments of interest, insurance, and construction supervision fees, and, of course, whether the

SECOND GENERATION COGAS PLANT

BREAKDOWN OF FPC ACCOUNT 341 - STRUCTURES AND IMPROVEMENTS

FPC Account Number 341 Structure & Improvements	Sector Number	Cost
Site Improvements		
Site Grading Building Excavation Borings Landscaping Fresh Water Supply Fire Protection Drainage & Sewage Disposal Flagpole Guard House Railroad Roads & Parking Lots Fencing Switchyard	>	\$7,748,500
<u>Structures</u>		
Administration Building Turbine Generator Building Tank Farm Fuel Oil Pump House Gas Meter Area Circulating Water System Stack		
Total Amount 341		\$7,748,500

SECOND GENERATION COGAS PLANT

BREAKDOWN OF FPC ACCOUNT 343 - PRIME MOVERS

FPC Account Number 343	Sector	
<u>Prime Movers (Gas Turbines)</u>	<u>Number</u>	<u>Cost</u>
Gas Turbines	43 or 60	\$12,700,000
Start-up Motors	53	15,000
Torque Converter	49	150,000
Lube Oil Purification & Storage	49	60,000
Lube Oil Fire Protection	49	60,000
Turbine Air Precoolers	40	64.000
Air Compressors, Service & Installation	49	100.000
Breeching Including Lining, Silencers	11	720,000
a insulation Expansion Joints	12	100 000
Inlat Filon Sensons	12	100,000
Turbing Englocume Aim Coolem	42	00,000
Turbine Enclosure Air Cooler Emengeney Cooling Matem Tank Dump & Dining	40	40,000
Emergency cooling water lank, rump & riping	40	8,000
Fuel Oil Heaters and Pumps	49	22.000
Miscellaneous Pumps and Tanks	49	10,000
Control Boards Instruments & Controls	53	100,000
Computer	51	200,000
Piping	42	800,000
Insulation	36	120,000

Total Account 343

\$15,329,000

SECOND GENERATION COGAS PLANT

**

BREAKDOWN OF FPC ACCOUNT 344 - ELECTRIC GENERATORS

FPC Account Number 344 Electric Generators	Sector Number	Cost
Electric Generators (for Gas Turbines)	53	\$5,940,000
H ₂ Seal Oil Coolers	40	20,000
Total Account 344		\$5,960,000

SECOND GENERATION COGAS PLANT

BREAKDOWN OF FPC ACCOUNT 312 - BOILER PLANT EQUIPMENT

FPC Account Number 312	Sector	
<u>Boiler Plant Equipment</u>	Number	<u>Cost</u>
Wasta Haat Doilan	40	¢0 000 000
Maste Heat Duller	40	\$9,800,000
Boiler Feed Pumps	49	4/4,000
Boiler Feed Tank and Deaerator	49	40,000
Water Treatment	40,49	240,000
Condensate Storage Tank	40	25.700
Stack	(Included	in Account 341)
Process Steam Heat Exchanger		
Miscellaneous Pumps	49	100,000
Piping	42	2,900,000
Insulation	36	270,000
Controls (Boiler & Turbine Generator)	53	300,000
Computer (Additive to Gas Turbine)	51	50,000
Total Account 312		\$14,199,700

Source: [39], p. 282

-

SECOND GENERATION COGAS PLANT

BREAKDOWN OF FPC ACCOUNT 314 - STEAM TURBINE GENERATOR UNITS

FPC Account Number 314	Sector	
Steam Turbine Generator Units	Number	Cost
Turbogenerators	43	\$8,942,000
Pedastal	(Included	in Acct. 341)
Condenser & Tubes	` 40	805,000
Condenser Vacuum Pumps with Motor	49	90,000
Condensate Pumps with Motors	49	61,200
Cooling Towers	11	4,000,000
Circulating Water Piping	(Included	in Acct. 341)
Circulating Water Valves & Expansion	•	·
Joints	42	90,000
Circulating Water Pumps	49	310,000
Make-up structure Screen & Pumps	49	250,000
Chlorination Equipment	40, 49	20,000
Lube Oil Purification	(Included	in Turbogener-
	ator Pri	ice)
		والكالا الأجراء الأناسيس منجحه المداميس ويستجه والألاف هذه مسيد بالقائد

Total Account 314

\$14,568,200

SECOND GENERATION COGAS PLANT

BREAKDOWN OF FPC ACCOUNT 345 - ACCESSORY ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT

FPC Account Number 345 Accessory Electrical Equip	ment	Sector <u>Number</u>	Cost
Accessory Electrical Equip Auxiliary Transformers Start-up Transformers 8000 A Isolated Phase Bus 1200 A Isolated Phase Bus Potential Transformer Surge Protection 480 Vole Power Switchgear 480 Volt Motor Control Cen Remote Motor Controls Duplex Relay Switchboard Annunciator Panel Control Console Turbine Control Panel Temperature Detection Pane Equipment Connections Testing 250 V DC Switchboard 250 DC Panelboard Station Battery & Rack Battery Chargers Cable Tray 600 V Instrument Cable Grounding Systems 480 V Valve Control Center Conduit-fittings 600 V Power Cable 1000 V Power Cable 1000 A Isolated Phase Bus 2000 A Segregated Phase Bus	ters	<u>Number</u> 53	<u>Cost</u> \$ 39,000 297,300 432,600 82,800 39,000 19,200 124,300 58,530 5,250 68,000 16,500 34,500 6,000 15,000 15,000 378,300 27,500 3,600 53,000 56,500 82,000 117,660 236,900 370,500 25,600 150,000 76,355 39,580 426,100 348,000 161,200
5 KV Power Cable			35,379

.

Total

\$5,626,254

SECOND GENERATION COGAS PLANT

BREAKDOWN OF FPC ACCOUNT 346 - MISCELLANEOUS POWERPLANT EQUIPMENT

FPC Account Number 346	Sector	
<u>Miscellaneous Powerplant Equipment</u>	Number	Cost
Laboratory and Sampling Equipment	53.62	\$ 20,000
Tools, Shop, Stores & Work Equipment	42,47	125,000
Lockers	23	3,000
Emergency Equipment	49	10,000
Miscellaneous Cranes & Hoists	46	30,000
Portable Fire Extinguishers	64	20,000
Communication Equipment	56	50,000
Lunch Room Equipment	23	20,000
Office Furniture & Machines	23,51	
Total Account 346		\$293,000

SECOND GENERATION COGAS PLANT

BREAKDOWN OF FPC ACCOUNT 353 - MISCELLANEOUS STATION EQUIPMENT

FPC Account Number 353	Sector	
Miscellaneous Station Equipment	Number	Cost
346 KV Main Oil C/B 132 KV Outdoor Switchgear 705 MVA Auto-Transformers 370 MVA Transformer 410 MVA Transformer 400 MVA Transformer 450 MVA Transformer 228 MVA Transformer	53	\$ 990,000 619,000
506 MVA Transformer		
Total Account 353		\$1,609,000

CAPITAL COST SUMMARY FOR SECOND GENERATION ADVANCED COGAS POWER SYSTEMS

Federal Power Commission Acct. No.		Sector <u>Number</u>	Cost
340 341 343	Land & Land Rights Structures & Improvements Prime Movers (Gas Turbines)	VA)	\$225,000 7,742,500 15,329,000
312 314	Turbines) Boiler Plant Equipment Steam Turbine-Generator Units	s \ *	5,960,000 14,199,700 14,568,200
345 346	Accessory Electrical Equip- ment Miscellaneous Powerplant Equi	ip-	5,626,300
353	ment Miscellaneous Station Equip-		293,000
	Sub-total		\$65,552,700
	Other Expenses	VA	1,250,000
	Total Direct@Cost		66,802,700
	Engineering, Design, Constru- tion, Supervision, and Con- tingency	c- - 70,73	10,590,300
	Sub-total		77,393,000
	Escalation		7,449,000
	Sub-total		84,842,000
	Interest During Construction	VA	9,163,000
	Total Estimated Cost		\$94,005,000
*See previous	s tables for breakdown		

.

LABOR MARGINS ON VARIOUS FPC CAPITAL ACCOUNTS

FPC Account	Name	<u>Labor Margins</u> ¹
311, 341	Structures & Improvements	25%
312	Boiler Plant Equipment	25%
343	Prime Movers (Gas Turbines)) 7.5%
344	Electric Generators	6.5%
314	Steam Turbine Generator Units	5.5%
345	Accessory Electrical Equip- ment (Turbine plants)	- 25%
346	Miscellaneous Power Plant Equipment (Turbine Plants	s) 30%
353	Miscellaneous Station Equip ment	25%
315	Accessory Electric Equip- ment (Steam plants)	32.5%
316	Miscellaneous Power Plant Equipment (Steam Plants)	17.5%

1 This amount of the total cost shown in each account is typically labor cost, while the rest is material cost.

Source: [5]

277 cost data presented was even close to being accurate. This latter question is impossible to answer, but the installed capacity figure of \$100/KW seems amazingly low.

Figure G.11 lists the non-zero components of the final percentage capital vector (see footnote 27).

COMBINED GAS AND STEAM CYCLE CAPITAL EXPENDITURE COEFFICIENTS (MON-ZERO PERCENTAGES)1

104		
Order Sector		
Number	Industry	Coefficient
11	New Construction	0.203699
24	Other Furniture and Fixtures	0.000188
44	Stone and Clay Products	0.002821
51	Plumbing and Structural Metals	0.084038
54	Other Fabricated Metal Products	0.027497
55	Engines & Turbines	0.198016
58	Material Handling Machinery	0.000439
61	General Industry Machinery	0.015191
63	Office Comp Machinery	0.001989
66	Electrical Industry	0.111873
69	Radio, TV and Comm. Equipment	0.000355
75	Scientific & Control Ins.	0.000064
77	Miscellaneous Manufacturing	0.000103
78	Railroad Transportation	0.000079
80	Truck Transportation	0.002890
81	Water Transportation	0.004015
82	Air Transportation	0.000166
89	Wholesale Trade	0.024417
06	Retail Trade	0.008139
91	Finance and Insurance	0.007106
94	Business Services	0.034487

278

See footnote 27 for definition of percentage capital coefficient

Appendix H Derivation of Technical Coefficients for the Second Generation Gas Turbine Topping Cycle

The data source for this derivation was again the United Aircraft report [39]. In contrast to the other nicely executed capital cost estimates provided in this report, there is no <u>detailed</u> summary anywhere in the book of what operating costs will be. Instead they are estimated simply as: .2 mills/Kwh and .5 mills/Kwhr for operation and maintenance of the steam and gas portions of the plant respectively; 0.2 mills for supplies and materials; and 2.35 mills for low BTU gas fuel. Using a 14% capital charge and a 70% load factor results in a 5.3 mills/Kwhr busbar cost for electricity. This compares to 7.3 mills/Kwhr for a first generation plant and 6.3 mills for a current steam plant (with no stack gas cleaning or cooling tower).

Faced with a problem like this, we allocated the capital charges to value added and the fuel costs to 68.02 which served as the temporary home for low BTU gas. When this derivation is finished, the low BTU gas technical coefficients will be combined with these technical coefficients to form one set of coefficients for a new coal-using electric generation process vector that will be combined with the four others described in Reference 26 to form an augmented I/O matrix.

After these two allocations, the residual was .11845. This residual was allocated according to the gas turbine generation vector described in the Istvan reports [26,27] after the fuel and value added components were removed. The results of this simple scaling procedure was illustrated in Figure H.1 where non-zero technical coefficients for the COGAS plant are displayed. These coefficients are based on a unit Kwhr cost. They must be divided by the average consumers cost per Kwhr before they can be used in the input-output model. This is explained more fully in Reference 27.

FIGURE H.1

TECHNOLOGICAL COEFFICIENTS FOR COGAS CYCLE (Non-Zero)

104 Order Sector Number	<u>Industry</u>	<u>Coefficient¹</u>
8	Crude Oil & Natural Gas	.462659 ²
12	Maintenance & Repair Service	.072820
33	Drugs, Cleaning, Toilet Preparations	.004074
54	Other Fabricated Metal Products	.001631
64	Service Industry Machinery	.000726
75	Scientific & Control Ins.	.000408
78	Railroad Transportation	.007878
80	Truck Transportation	• • • • • • •
81	Water Transportation	
82	Air Transportation	
84	Communications except Radio & TV	.002040
88	Water & Sanitary Services	.003632
89	Wholesale Trade	.016008
90	Retail Trade	.005000
92	Real Estate & Rental	.000115
102	Business Travel & Gifts	.003265
103	Office Supplies	.000816

1 Residual (.11845) after removal of fuel and value-added was prorated on the basis of "Other power" technological coefficients from [26].

2 This entry represents purchases of low BTU gas.

Figure H.2 combines the low BTU gas and COGAS technological coefficients into one process vector. This is done in the following way:

 \underline{A}_{c} = COGAS technological coefficient vector

Then
$$\underline{A}_{1c} = h \underline{A}_{e} + \underline{A}_{c}'$$

FIGURE H.2

NON-ZERO TECHNOLOGICAL COEFFICIENTS FOR COGAS PLANT COMBINED WITH LOW BTU COAL GASIFICATION

104 Order Sector Coefficient Number Industry .203699 New Construction 11 24 **Other Furniture & Fixtures** .000188 .002821 44 Stone & Clay Products .084038 51 Plumbing & Structural Metals 54 Other Fabricated Metal Products .027497 55 Engines and Turbines .198016 58 Material Handling Machinery .000199 .000439 59 Metal Working Machinery General Industry Machinery .015191 61 .001989 Office Comp Machinery 63 .111873 66 Electrical Industry Radio, TV & Communication Equipment .000355 69 Scientific & Control Insurance .000064 75 .000103 77 Misc. Manufacturing Railroad Transportation .000079 78 Truck Transportation .002890 80 Water Transportation .004015 81 .000166 Air Transportation 82 .024417 89 Wholesale Trade .008139 Retail Trade 90 .007106 Finance and Insurance 91 .034487 94 **Business Services**

Appendix I Analytical Convergence Procedure for 1985 Projections

I.1 Iso-Income Elastic Case

The problem is: given the system structure defined in Chapter 2

$$\underline{X}_{1} = (\underline{I} - \underline{A} - \underline{C})^{-1} (\underline{Y} - \underline{C} \underline{X}_{0})$$
 (I.1)

(where \underline{Y} equals the \underline{Y}^{F} of Chapter 2) and

$$\underline{Z} = \underline{C} \left(\underline{X}_{1} - \underline{X}_{0} \right)$$
(where Z equals Y^I of Chapter 2) (I.2)

and given an initial projection of final demand $(\underline{Y} + \underline{Z})$, find a new final demand $(\underline{Y'} + \underline{Z'})$ such that $|\underline{Y'} + \underline{Z'}| = GNP_0$ and $\underline{Y'} = (1 + \delta) \underline{Y}$. This last constraint assumes all noninvestment components of final demand (\underline{y}_i) have the same income elasticity, i.e. as GNP changes, all non-investment final demand purchases change by the same percentage.

This is easily solved.

Let
$$\underline{B} = (\underline{I} - \underline{A} - \underline{C})^{-1}$$
 (I.3)
and $\underline{M} = (\underline{C} \underline{B} \underline{C} + \underline{C}) \underline{X}_{0}$ (I.4)
Then $\underline{Z} = \underline{C}(\underline{X}_{1} - \underline{X}_{0}) = \underline{C} \underline{B} \underline{Y} - \underline{M}$ (I.5)
Also $\underline{Y}' = (1 + \delta) \underline{Y} \rightarrow \underline{Z}' = \underline{C} \underline{B} \underline{Y} - \underline{M}$
and $GNP_{0} = \Sigma y'_{i} + \Sigma z'_{i}$
 $= (1 + \delta) \Sigma y_{i} + \Sigma (1 + \delta) (\underline{CBY})_{i} - \Sigma m_{i}$

Since
$$\underline{CBY} = \underline{Z} + \underline{M}$$
,
 $GNP_0 = (1+\delta) \sum_{i} y_i + (1+\delta) \sum_{i} z_i + \delta \sum_{i} m_i$
 $= GNP + \delta(GNP + \sum_{i} m_i)$ (1.6)

$$us \qquad \delta = \frac{GNP_o - GNP}{GNP + \Sigma m_i} \qquad (1.7)$$

or
$$\lambda = (1+\delta) = \frac{GNP_0 + \Sigma m_i}{GNP + \Sigma m_i}$$
 (1.8)

Thus by calculating the initial projection <u>Y</u> and <u>Z</u> and any multiple of these, $\alpha \underline{Y}$ and \underline{Z}_{α} we can find <u>M</u> by subtracting \underline{Z}_{α} and $\alpha \underline{Z}$ or

$$Z_{\alpha} - \alpha \underline{Z} = \underline{CB} (\alpha \underline{Y}) - M - \alpha \underline{C} \underline{B} \underline{Y} + \underline{M} = (\alpha - 1) M$$
$$\underline{M} = \frac{1}{\alpha - 1} (\underline{Z} - \underline{Z})$$
(1.9)

or

an

Th

d
$$|\underline{M}| = \Sigma m_i = \frac{1}{\alpha - 1} [\Sigma (Z_{\alpha}) - \Sigma (Z)_i]$$
 (1.10)

Since $GNP = \Sigma y_i + \Sigma z_i$

from the initial projection and since GNP_0 is given, λ is easily calculated from 1.8 Then $\underline{Y}' = \lambda \underline{Y}$

1.2 Income Elastic Case

Now if the income elasticities are different, C_i for the ith sector, and if we assume the change in income is equal to the change to GNP, then

 $y'_i - y_i = e_i y_i (\Delta I) = e_i y_i (\Delta GNP)$ For our model we take

$$\underline{Y}' - \underline{Y} = \delta \underline{D} \underline{Y}$$
(1.11)

285

where $\underline{D} = \text{diag} (d_i)$ and d_i is proportional to e_i Thus our actual assumption is that the change in income is proportional (not equal) to the change in GNP.

Then
$$\underline{Y}' = (\underline{I} + \delta \underline{D}) \underline{Y}$$
 (1.12)

$$\underline{Z}' = \underline{C} \underline{B} \underline{Y}' - \underline{M}$$
(1.13)

Solve for δ such that $\Sigma y_i^{\dagger} + \Sigma z_i = GNP_0$

$$GNP_{0} = \Sigma y_{i} + \delta \Sigma d_{i}y_{i} + \Sigma (\underline{CBY})_{i} + \Sigma \delta (\underline{CBDY})_{i} - \Sigma m_{i}$$
$$= \Sigma y_{i} + \delta \Sigma d_{i}y_{i} + \Sigma (z_{i}+m_{i})+\delta \Sigma (\underline{CBDY})_{i} - \Sigma m_{i}$$

$$GNP + \delta \Sigma [(\underline{CB}+\underline{I}) \underline{DY}]_{i}$$

+

Thus
$$\delta = \frac{GNP_{o} - GNP}{\Sigma[(CB+I) \underline{DY}]}$$
 (1.14)

or =
$$\frac{GNP_{o} - GNP(\underline{Y})}{GNP(\underline{DY}) + \Sigma m_{i}}$$
 (1.15)

where GNP (\underline{DY}) is interpreted as the GNP of the product \underline{DY} .

The procedure is basically the same as it was for the iso-elastic case except that these separate final demands must be calculated. These are \underline{Y} , $\alpha \underline{Y}$, and \underline{DY} . Then $\underline{Y}' = (\underline{I} + \delta \underline{D}) \underline{Y}$ where δ can be calculated from 1.15.

Appendix J Detailed Figures

This appendix contains detailed figures that compare both the 1985 unscaled and balanced projections of final demand and total output (Figures J.1 through J.4) for the Low, Medium, High, High plus Hygas, and High plus Hygas plus Gas Turbine cases. Notice how close the unscaled and balanced final demands are.

It also contains in Figures J.5 and J.6 comparisons of the 1980 projected gross private domestic investment (GPDI), GPDI impacts (i.e. total sales caused by GPDI purchases), and total outputs. These comparisons illustrate the dependence (both direct and indirect) of various sectors on capital investment.
F I G U R E J.1 Comparison of Unscaled 1985 total Final Demands

	I	~	e)	4	in I
	LCW	PED ILP	-16	HIGH+FYGAS	HI GH+HYGAS+GT
1 LIVESTCCK & PRLEUCTS	1149.9	2 146 .0	2140.0		
2 CTEER FAKM PRCLUCTS					5°5915
3 FEFETEY & FISHERY DALL	944.9	1031-31	C = 3 T / 2 T	2 9 9 7 J 7 1	C•C1/71
4 FARM FLAFST FISH STAV		1 C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C		202.0	2000
S FERRIS METAL MINING				1 282-	-582.7
F ACAFFERENCE ANTAL	2000		2000	0.003	500.0
7 CCAL PINIAG				45 6° 7	496.7
E CALEF CIT AND NATURAL GA			0 • 3 0 P	C 0066	5.85.0
C STENE E CLAY MINING	245.8			000	86.7
TO MINERAL PINING	24C.8		0000	8 6 6 6 7	250.7
11 NEW CONSTRUCTION	121547.3	196127.4	16407 4	8 45/7	219.8
12 WATAT & GEDAID CLINCT		19/21		10241201	1 56839 • 3
13 TREVANTE ACCESSION				13458.0	13458.1
14 FCCD & KINIKED PRODUCTS	G× 734.7	5 1236 7 C 5334 7	1 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 -	9/29°8	9729.8
15 CPATA NILING	10101			58234.7	98234.7
16 TIFACC MANIEACTURES				5404.7	5404 .7
17 FAPRIC VARA THEN VILLS				0.7258	8357.0
			2004-3	2968•3	2568.3
10 FICCO TEALLE GUUDS 10 Aedadei			3726.0	5°1626	3727.9
LV PFFFFCL So biscie ad texting as (1) bi		51/C1+3	217C1• 3	31701.3	31700.1
20 FISC FED LEALLEE FRUUCH		4 (5 1 • 2	2 • 1 5 0 5	4091.2	4091.2
ZI LUPERY & HULU FRUDS	7°5827	1652.7	1 E 6 4 • 1	1914.3	1883.6
22 MILUEN ULNIAINEKS	5°55		5 6 •5	55° 5	59.5
Z3 PCUSEFCLU FURNITURE	9185.6	9158.5	9230.0	9239.9	9233.1
24 CTPEF FUEN & FIXTURES	4C55.3	4208.3	4721.0	4865.5	6773.6
25 FULP PILLS	1237.2	1227.2	1237.2	1237.2	C-7FC1
26 FAPEF & ALLIEC PRCUS	240E.6	5410.2	5414.6	5415.3	5415-0
27 FAPER CCATAINERS, BUXES	405.3	405.3	405.3	405.3	405.3
28 PRINTING & PUBLISHING	1,1228.7	1C228.7	10228.7	10228.7	10229-6
29 INCLETPIAL CHEMICALS	08C.4	6(EC.8	6CE2•4	6103 . 3	6100-9
20 FERTILIZERS	817.8	£17.8	E17.8	E17.8	817-5
21 AGR & PISC CHEMICALS	2248.9	2248.9	2248.9	2248.9	2245.1
32 FLASTICS & SVATH MTKL	2944°7	2544 . 8	2545°O	2945.0	2945
33 CAUGS, CLNG, TUILET PKEP	21C80.7	21C8C.7	21080.7	21086-7	
34 FAINTS & PRODUCTS	199.3	2 • 5 5 [199.3	195.3	
35 PETRCLEUM MEFINING	20630.2	21868.C	22742.8	22742.8	22706.2
36 PAVING MIXTURES	1.9	1°5	7.9	7.9	2.8
37 ASFHALT FELTS, CCATINGS	11.6	11.6	11.6	11.6	
38 RLPEEK & FLASTIC PRUUS	0916.3	6¢29•5	6572.3	6 6 E E e C	6576-C
29 LEATHER TANNING PRUD	14.2	74.2	74.2	74.2	74.2
4C FCCTNERK 6 LEATHER PRUU	+000+	4((7.8	4011.5	4012.8	4011.9
FI GLASS & GLASS PRUUS	5 5 3 ° 5		963.5	503 5	503.0
42 LEFENIS FILKPULIC	10.1	• IC• 7	1C.7	10.7	10.9
			3.5	3.5	2.9
44 VILNE 8 (LAT PRUD) Ar detriot etcl	12/1.0	1366.1	1434.2	1449 . 8	1445.9
AU TREVEN SIECL	10040	19351	1406.6	1411.2	1414.4
AT INCH & DIRECT FUNDATED	C • 271	12201	123.1	123.3	57.7
44 1113 4 01411 10701100 69 5514854 858-545 85781			2 I 0 I 0 I	41.5	41.5
A MACT MENTER ALANDA			1920 H	152.9	792 . B
FO BETAL FLATARES			1.055	1010.4	1004.0
EI PLLMBINGESIKLCIUKAL META	2.395.2			50°7	60.1
E2 PEATING EGUIP EXC ELEU	203.9	203.9	0,000		5300.1
E3 SCREWS & PETAL STAMPINGS	2023.7	2023-7		50 20 - E	300.5
				2UC3. (2014.0

FIGURE J.1 (continued)

•

.

	-	ĩ	F 1	4	u 1
	17 U 1	NEC IUM	+16	HIGH+HAGAS	HIGH+HYEAS+ET
54 CTFER FAE METAL FRUUS	3465.8	3581.45	39¢C.1	4122.3	4007.0
FF ENCINES & TURBINES	4 1110 4	45E7.3	5207.6	5414.4	5359.1
SE FARM MACHINENY & ENULY	3842.6	3644.5	4026.7	4070.1	4039.J
57 CEASTFLETILNEMINING EJUL	5 lcf . 4	7(61.3	13433.8	154P3.1	14C82.7
59 PATERIAL FNULU PACH	9C91.0	3455.1	4144.8	5154.2	4877.5
59 PETALPEKKING MACH	3245.3	3662.7	5973.0	666C.5	6195.5
EC SPECIAL INCUSTAY MALM	8 CC 5 . B		10690.5	11239.3	10943.3
EL GENEFAL INULSTRY MACH	3665.L	4 267 . 3		6217.0	5 8 6 3 ° 4
CZ MACHINE SHUP PRUDUCIS	2 2 4 6	1.422	5 ° 7 2 5	5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	4.424
C C F L C E L L PF PACH	1.05205	21568.1	Z67FC.0	2825G. 2	27189 . 6
A CERVICE INUCSINT FACH	201262				
A PERTUCT A DELICES		~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~		4010°/	
CT ELELIFICAL INCLURY	1.1000			245261	
A FIFT LIGHTING FOULD	1010111	3 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4		C * C \$UC	6-6202
CC HACIC TV E CLMP ENULP	32576.8	332C6 - 5	26211-2	35547.1	35490-4
TC ELEC COMP & ACCESS	2913.2	3514.1	3917.1	3918.0	3917.1
71 ELEC MACH ELP & SUPPLIES	2661.0	2674.08	2 72 7.0	2735.8	2729.3
72 MOTCP VEHICLES & EQUIP	61236.5	63457.6	70411.7	73215.2	71¤53.3
73 AIPCFAFI & PANIS	lo115.8	16565.6	17864.3	19194.1	17856.4
74 CTFEF 14ANSFURT EQUIP	d185.3	E4E2.4	5401.C	c926.2	9513.4
75 SCIENTIFIC & CUNTRUL LNS	0572.4	7664.2	7460.9	7572.7	7489.4
76 CFTICAL & PHUTL EGULP	10364.4	11(35.8	13255.7	13785.6	13490.2
77 PISC PANLFACTURING	12 E5C•2	15505.6	lecrs.9	16143.6	15100.9
TE FAILFCAL THANSPURTATIUN	5766.5	5 8 6 5 9 5	10344.4	10472.0	10371.3
79 LCCAL FASSENGER TRANSPUR	d 303.4	8303.4	E303. 4	R303.4	8303•4
BC TRLCK TKANSPURIATION	14654.1	11516.0	12367.0	12555.2	12436.6
BL MATER INANSPORTATION	1050.6	1666.2	7050.5	7115.1	7107.7
AJTIALANAAN TATA VA	2 • / 6 5 0 • • • • • • •	6 5 6 4 0 1		6590 . 9	6584°7
CO FISC FRANSPORTALLEN	C • 1 5 7 7		1287.5	1256.3	1289.4
CA CLATCHICFILLO EAC ANDEL	0 701			C • 1 / 2 P /	2814/.4
FARTER A TATALANCESTING	1/ 503 . 4	1 2 2 2 3 1 J 2 2 2 3 1	7°7°7	1974 V	5.0451
		5456.7	C 283.0		
RB WATER & SANITARY SERV	1220.1	1 9 5 5 5	3230-1		
89 HPCLESALE TRALE	70406.5	7121C-4	73913.9	74925.3	74230.0
SC RETAIL THADE	1 **316*0	145120.3	147830.9	148691.2	148687.1
91 FINANCE AND INSURANCE	+0 701.0	40706.7	40723.5	4C754.R	40755.9
52 REAL ESTATE & RENTAL	163230.3	163765.8	165573.3	166118 . 4	195724.1
43 FLIEL, FEAD & KEFAIK VEK	34 4C 5 • 3		21909.6	31909.6	31909-6
SA ELVIRON DERVICES de deseadre art fruendri	0°10111		0 1 2 0 3 0	11368.8	11361.1
THE ALT DEDATE COLOCIES			0 4 1 2 4 F	0.165	0.152
50 PLIC FEFAIN & SERVICE C7 Am (Future)	HE75.1		1 2 1 3 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4	12135.4	12139.6
CANELICATING ATTUN SAKV			58785 F	10110 00131 4	1-9706
SO FFC CLI ENTERPRISES	1 - 2 - 2 - 2			256.3360	18C87.05
100 STATESLLCAL GUVT ENTLAPA	2590.3	2550-3	2 5 5 6 - 3		
IOI IMFCRTS	-73458.9	-13498.5	-13458-9		5 8 8 9 F 2 -
IC2 ELSINESS TRAVEL, GIFTS	0.0	0 • 0	0.0	0.0	
103 OFFICE SLPFLIES	1683 . 7	1683.7	1683.7	1683.7	1683.7
1C4 SCRAP, SECLNUTANU GUUDS	2757.6	1°1512	0.00-	2757.6	2797.6
IC5 TCTAL	1440285.0	1221172°C	1394516 . 0	1421355.0	1404875.0

FIGUREJ.2

COMPARISON OF BALANCED 1985 TOTAL FINAL DEMANDS

Tick and Sector 110.2 114.0 113.1 114.0 114.1 FIRST FIRS SEC 201.1 211.1 </th <th></th> <th>LOW</th> <th>2 Medium</th> <th>з нібн</th> <th>4 Ні бн+нубаs</th> <th>5 HIGH+HYGA S+GT</th>		LOW	2 Medium	з нібн	4 Ні бн+нубаs	5 HIGH+HYGA S+GT
RT FIL	OCK & PRIDUCTS	3191.1	3180.2	3145.0	3134.7	3141.7
Fine Cristics Control	FARM PRODUCTS	12811.3	12757.8	12616.4	12575.1	12602-2
FILE FILE <th< td=""><td>RY & FISHERY PRJD</td><td>269 6</td><td>267.7</td><td>264.7</td><td>263.8</td><td>264.4</td></th<>	RY & FISHERY PRJD	269 6	267.7	264.7	263.8	264.4
S FERT A TURING 501-3 904-1 904-5	DREST. FISH SERV	-586.6	-584 . 6	-578.1	-576.2	-577.5
JULY TAL TAL <td>S METAL MINING</td> <td>503.3</td> <td>501.6</td> <td>4 96 a 1</td> <td>494.5</td> <td>495.6</td>	S METAL MINING	503.3	501.6	4 96 a 1	494.5	495.6
NIMG BT/2 VB2.0 BT/2 PU1.0 BT/2 PU2.0	SUUS METAL MINING	500.0	498 3	492.8	491.2	492.3
Tit, Number Les 2011		987.2	983•89 97 90	6.276	C 116	C 215
STRUE STRUE <th< td=""><td>TI ANU NATURAL GA</td><td>247.6</td><td>266.7 266.7</td><td>263.7</td><td>0.00</td><td>6 ° 6 ° 6 ° 6 ° 6 ° 6 ° 6 ° 6 ° 6 ° 6 °</td></th<>	TI ANU NATURAL GA	247.6	266.7 266.7	263.7	0.00	6 ° 6 ° 6 ° 6 ° 6 ° 6 ° 6 ° 6 ° 6 ° 6 °
FERTIRE 11352-0.2 11352-0.2 11370.0.1 11300.0.1 11370.0.1	MINING	281.6	280.7	277.6	276.7	277.3
F: 1332.1 1332.1 1332.1 1333.2.	IS TRUCTION	134027.8	135240.2	139072.9	139600.1	138700.5
E.P. ACSS SORIES 970.1.5	REPAIR CONST	13547.8	13501.8	13352.1	13308.4	13338.2
KINNEE MARCH MARCH <t< td=""><td>E, ACCESSORIES</td><td>9794.7</td><td>9761.5</td><td>9653.2</td><td>9621.6</td><td>9643.2</td></t<>	E, ACCESSORIES	9794.7	9761.5	9653.2	9621.6	9643.2
MMURACTURE Sector Sec	KINDRED PRODUCTS	98890.3	98554 • 3	97461.6	97142.4	97359.9
WALT HED MILLS STATE	IILLING Manusactures	5440.8 9412 7	5422.43	2.502.5 2.201.2	0.444°0 8244°0	0300.00 0202
FEXTLE CODS 3737.4 372.4.7 376.7.7 368.7	VARNE THRO MILLS	2585.4	2576.7	2548-1	2539.8	2545.4
Image: Section of the sectio	FXTLE GODS	3737.4	3724 7	3682.7	3670.4	3678.7
0.0 0.059.0 0.059.0 0.057.7 0.057.7 0.0 0.001 0.01.7 0.05.7 0.05.7 0.05.7 0.0 0.001 0.01.7 0.05.7 0.05.7 0.05.7 0.0 0.01 0.01.7 0.05.7 0.05.7 0.05.7 0.05.7 0.0 0.01 0.01.7 0.01.7 0.01.7 0.01.7 0.01.7 0.0 0.01 0.01.7 0.01.7 0.01.7 0.01.7 0.01.7 0.0 0.01 0.01.7 0.01.7 0.01.7 0.01.7 0.01.7 0.0 0.00 0.01.0 0.01.2 0.01.7 0.01.7 0.01.7 0.0 0.00 0.01.2 0.01.2 0.01.7 0.01.7 0.01.7 0.0 0.00 0.01.2 0.01.2 0.01.7 0.01.7 0.01.7 0.0 0.00 0.01.2 0.01.7 0.01.7 0.01.7 0.01.7 0.0 0.00 0.01.2 0.01.7 0.01.7 0.01.7 0.01.7 0.01.7 0.0 0.00 0.01.7		31912.9	31804.5	31451.8	31348.9	31417.8
G words L 172.9 L 172.9 L 174.5 S model L 174.5 S model L 174.5 S model L 174.5 L 1221.5 L 1221.5 <thl 1221.5<="" th=""> <thl 1221.5<="" th=""> <thl 12<="" td=""><td>AB TEXTILE PRODUCT</td><td>4114.5</td><td>4104.5</td><td>40 59° J</td><td>4045.7</td><td>4054.7</td></thl></thl></thl>	AB TEXTILE PRODUCT	4114.5	4104.5	40 59° J	4045.7	4054.7
CONTAINERS 59.0 59.1	6 WOOD PRNDS	1684.3	1699.2	1742.9	1740.6	1745.2
Clin De Lavair (KE) 9230-5 9130-6 9099-9 9130-5	CONTAINERS	59.9	59.7	59.0	58.8	58.9
Continues 5470.1 5350	OLD FURNITURE	9272.7	9239.5	9130.6	6 8606	9120.3
LILED PROIS FZETCO FZETCO <thfzetco< th=""> <thfzetco< th=""></thfzetco<></thfzetco<>	URN & FIXTURES	4379.L	5 7 0 0 5 5 F	0-01-04		C.1154
Contraction Contraction <thcontraction< th=""> <thcontraction< th=""></thcontraction<></thcontraction<>	FLLS F ALLED BRADS	5445.8 5445.8	5428.2	5370.7	5353.1	2-0221
(if a full ishind 10296.9 10261.9 10148.2 10114.9 10137.5 (if a full ishind 10201.9 10130.6 6030.5 5235.6 2235.6 2235.6 2225.6 (if a full ishind 128 1295.6 2256.2 2231.6 10230.6 2225.6 (if a full ishind 128 2964.6 2964.6 2956.2 2211.2 2019.0 2019.0 (if a full ishind 2964.6 2964.6 2964.6 2964.6 2964.6 2964.6 2019.0 (if a full ishind 200.6 2917.9 2917.7 2094.6 2019.1 197.1 197.1 (if a full ishind 200.6 21271.3 21149.2 2197.1 20846.3 20892.9 (if a full ishind 200.6 2193.7 2193.1 2094.6 2193.0 2095.0 (if a full ishind 200.6 2193.1 2193.1 211.5 2149.0 2197.0 (if a full ishind 200.6 213.7 2193.2 2094.6 295.0 2016.7 (if a full ishind 200.6 2197.2 2193.1 211.5 2094.6 2005.5 (if a full ishind 200.6 217.7 2094.6 2010.6 216.7 (if a	CONTATINERS. BOXES	C 8C 4	406.6	402.1	400.8	401.7
Ital CHEMICALS 6121.6 6103.8 6133.7 6133.7 6133.6 6033.5 Ital CHEMICALS 6121.6 6120.8 6121.6 6121.6 6121.6 6033.7 6033.7 6033.5 Ital CHEMICALS 255.5 2511.2 2912.0 2912.0 2912.0 2912.0 CLNG 716 714.7 2094.6 21221.3 21149.2 2034.6 2912.0 2912.0 2912.0 2912.0 2912.0 2912.0 2912.0 2912.0 2912.0 2912.0 2913.0 291	VG & PUBL ISHING	10296.9	10261.9	10148.2	10114.9	10137.5
IZERS 823.3 820.5 811.4 808.7 800.7 ATSC CHEMICALS 2255.2 2311.2 2223.0 2225.0 2225.0 ATSC CHEMICALS 2556.2 2311.2 2223.0 2225.0 2918.7 CLNG, TOLLET PREP 21221.3 2149.2 2918.7 2918.2 2918.5 CLNG, TOLLET PREP 21221.3 2197.1 295.0 2918.7 295.0 CLNG, TOLLET PREP 21221.3 2197.1 2919.2 2918.5 2918.5 WIXENES 7.9 2197.7 299.6 297.6 299.5 2918.5 VEXTRES 7.9 211.7 11.7 11.1 22499.9 2259.3 VEXTRES 7.9 2193.1 27.8 27.8 27.8 27.8 A RANING PROD 7.8 7.8 7.8 7.8 7.8 7.8 A RANING PROD 7.9 7.8 7.8 7.8 7.8 7.8 A RELES, CORTIVGS 11.7 7.11.7 7.11.5 7.8<	VIAL CHEMICALS	6121.6	6100.8	6733.7	6.331.6	6043.5
ISC CHEMICALS 2265.9 2231.2 2232.8 2223.8 2223.8 2223.8 2223.8 2232.5 2312.0 2318.5	I Z ER S	823.3	820.5	811.4	808.7	810.3
CLNG, TOLLET PREP 2791.0 2791.0 2791.0 2791.0 297.0 CLNG, TOLLET PREP 2121.3 21149.2 297.1 197.1 197.1 195.0 CLNG, TOLLET PREP 200.6 273.0 279 293.5 279 295.3 UN REFINIG 200.6 200.6 211.7 211.7 197.1 295.0 E PRODUCTS 200.6 210.7 2563.8 22563.8 2293.5 E PLASTIC PRODS 6981.5 6961.3 6893.6 6893.6 99.9 A TANIG 11.7 11.7 11.7 11.7 11.7 78.6 A TANIG 11.7 11.7 11.7 11.7 11.6 73.6 A TANIG 74.7 74.4 73.6 993.6 6894.4 6895.6 A TANIG 11.6 11.6 73.6 3964.2 3954.2 3973.6 A TANIG 11.6 11.6 11.6 11.6 11.6 10.6 10.6 A TANIG 11.9 11.6 11.6 11.6 1397.3 3964.2 3974.8 1496.7	AT SC CHEMICALS	2263.9	2256.2	2231.2	2223.8	2225.0
C FRONGET Z200.0 Z270.0 Z270.0 <thz270.0< th=""> <thz270.0< th=""> <thz270.0<< td=""><td>LO & OTALIT MINE</td><td>21221.2</td><td>C * 4C47</td><td>2711.57</td><td>5,08465 208465</td><td>0 20802</td></thz270.0<<></thz270.0<></thz270.0<>	LO & OTALIT MINE	21221.2	C * 4C47	2711.57	5,08465 208465	0 20802
Image: Control of the second	CLAUF JUILET TAUT	9-002	2.002	197.7	197.1	105.0
WIXTURES 7.9 7.6 7.8	LIM REFINING	20767.9	21939.2	22563.8	22489-9	22503.5
FELTS, CANTINGS 11.7 11.5 11.5 9.9 C PLASTIC PRDNS 091.5 6961.3 6974.0 6893.6 C PLASTIC PRDNS 091.5 6961.3 6974.0 6893.6 C PLASTIC PRDNS 74.7 74.4 73.5 3973.0 6893.6 C PLASTIC PRDNS 74.7 74.4 73.5 3973.0 5973.0 5973.0 C PLASTIC PRDNS 74.7 74.4 3977.2 3964.2 595.0 5973.0 C A ST PRDNS 909.5 906.4 896.4 896.4 895.4 5973.0 HYR RULIC 10.8 10.6 10.6 10.6 10.6 10.6 HYR RULIC 1397.1 1397.3 1397.3 1397.3 1406.7 2.9 F STEE LONNBRIES 123.3 1397.3 1397.3 1397.3 1406.7 2.6 S STEEL FORGINGS 41.1 123.3 1397.3 1397.3 1406.7 2.6 A STEEL FORGINGS 41.1 123.3 1397.3 1397.3 1406.6 10.6 A STEEL FORUNBRIES 123.3 1397.	WIXTURES	1.9	7.9	7.8	7.8	2.7
C PLASTIC RR0D F14.7 F14.4 B93.6 6914.0 6986.7 7 TAUNIG R0D 74.7 74.4 73.5 73.6 <	F FELTS, COATINGS	11.7	11.7	11.5	11.5	6.6
x Tanning Rub 7.4. 895.0 995.0 995.0 995.0 995.0 995.0 995.0 995.0 995.0 995.0 995.0 995.0 995.0 10.6	E PLASTIC PRODS	6981°5	6961.3	6393.6	6874.0	6886 . 7
AF IN LEATHER FX.J. 993.4 993.4 993.4 993.4 995.0 A INDRAULIC 3.5 9.6.4 993.4 893.4 895.0 A INDRAULIC 3.5 9.6.4 10.6 10.6 10.6 10.6 A INDRAULIC 3.5 9.5 9.6.4 893.4 893.4 895.0 A INDRAULIC 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 2.9 A INDRAULIC 13.6 13.97.3 13.97.3 14.06.3 14.06.7 2.9 A STEEL FOUNDRIES 1400.3 13.97.3 13.97.3 13.97.3 14.06.7 96.1 STEEL FOUNDRIES 123.8 123.3 13.97.3 13.97.3 14.06.7 96.1 STEEL FOUNDRIES 123.3 13.97.3 13.97.3 1397.5 96.1 96.1 A TEL FOUNDRIES 123.8 123.3 15.9 1397.5 96.1 1397.6 96.1 A TEL FOUNDRIES 123.3 15.9 1397.5 1397.6 96.1 96.1 A TEL FOUNDRIES 123.5 333.2 94.5.7 96.6 96.1	E TANNING PRUD	14.1	5° 5007	()•0		13.5
INVORAULIC 1).8 1).6 10.6 10.6 INVORAULIC 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 INVORAULIC 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 INVORAULIC 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 INVORAULIC 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 2.9 INVORAULIC 3.5 1400.3 1400.3 1397.3 1406.7 INTON 1398.1 1397.3 1397.3 1397.3 1406.7 INVON 123.8 1397.3 1397.3 1397.3 1496.7 INTON 123.8 123.3 1397.3 1397.3 1496.7 INTON 123.8 123.3 1397.3 1397.3 1496.7 INTON 123.8 123.3 1397.3 1397.3 1496.7 INTER 123.8 123.3 1397.3 1397.6 40.6 INTER 794.0 786.6 786.6 786.6 786.7 INTER 53.5 58.4 57.7 57.8 INTER 53.7 58.4 57.7 57.4 INTER 3540.3 31.6 30.5 57.8 INTINES 356.9 31.5	RA & LEATHER FRJJ Porte Bodde	000 ° E	4071° 406	241165	7.40VC A EOS	5913.0 0.6 0
Image: Clark PRYDS 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 2.9 Image: Clark PRYDS 1400.3 1397.9 1397.9 1397.3 1496.7 Image: Clark PRYDS 1400.3 1397.3 1397.3 1496.7 1397.3 1496.7 Image: Clark PRYDS 120.2 1400.3 1397.3 1397.3 1496.7 1394.8 Image: Clark PRYDS 123.3 1397.3 1397.3 1397.3 1397.3 1496.7 Image: Clark PRYDS 123.3 41.1 123.3 1397.3 1397.3 1496.4 Image: Clark PRYDS 123.3 41.1 795.9 1397.3 140.6 Image: Clark PRYDS 139.4 786.6 786.6 786.6 786.7 Image: Clark PRYDS 333.2 864.0 786.6 786.6 786.6 Image: Clark PRYDS 53.5 58.4 738.3 945.7 57.4 Image: Clark PRYDS 3540.3 201.6 301.5 301.5 57.4 Image: Clark PRYDS 357.9 50.7 50.7 57.4 Image: Clark PRYDS		8-01	1.00	1.000 D	7 °C 1	
I CLAY PR/DS 1400.3 1397.9 1397.9 1397.3 1406.7 Y STEL 1398.1 1397.3 1397.3 1397.3 1406.7 Y STEL 1398.1 1397.3 1397.3 1397.3 1406.7 Y STEL 1398.1 1397.3 1397.3 1397.3 1406.4 S STEL 1398.1 1397.3 1397.3 1397.6 1394.4 S STEL 133.3 1.1 123.3 14.1 40.6 S STEL 133.3 41.1 123.3 14.1 40.6 A NON-FEX METAL 74.1 795.4 786.6 786.6 786.7 A NON-FEX METAL 333.5 867.3 939.9 945.7 945.7 A NON-FEX METAL 333.5 58.4 786.6 786.6 785.4 A NON-FEX METAL 3474.7 3640.3 408.9 945.7 945.7 A NATARIA 357.7 57.0 57.0 57.4 534.4 A NAPINER 357.9 301.5 301.5 403.4 A SATANFING 203.3 203.3 203.5 204.5 294.4		3.5	5.0	3.5		
Y STEEL FOUNDRIES 1398.1 1397.3 1392.0 1387.6 1394.8 557 557 115.9 121.2 96.1 96.1 557 557 557 557 56.1 121.2 96.1 121.2 96.1 121.2 96.1 121.2 96.1 121.2 96.1 121.2 96.1 121.2 96.1 121.2 96.1 121.2 96.1 121.2 96.1 121.2 96.1 121.2 96.1 121.2 96.1 121.2 96.1 121.2 96.1 121.2 96.1 121.2 95.1 121.2	E CLAY PRIDS	1403.3	1400.3	1397.9	1397.3	1406.7
STEEL FOUNDRIES 123.3 115.9 121.2 96.1 STEEL FOUNDRIES 123.3 13.3 40.6 40.6 STEEL FORGINGS 41.3 41.1 40.7 40.6 40.8 STEEL FORGINGS 41.3 41.1 79.4 40.6 40.6 40.8 STEEL FORGINGS 41.3 41.1 79.4 786.6 784.0 785.7 NH-FER METAL 79.1 795.4 786.6 786.6 785.7 757.8 NH-FER METAL 333.2 867.3 934.3 938.3 945.7 57.8 CONTAINER 58.4 57.9 57.9 57.7 57.8 Scantainers 58.4 57.9 57.7 57.8 Scantainers 58.4 301.5 300.5 237.8 Scantainers 331.5 301.5 300.5 237.8 Scantainers 2030.3 203.3 2037.3 1006.5 1006.5	Y STEEL	1398.1	1397.3	1392.3	1387.6	1394.8
STEEL FORGINGS 41.3 41.1 40.6 40.6 40.6 N MON-FRAMETAL 741.3 741.1 795.4 786.6 786.6 785.7 N MON-FRAMETAL 731.2 867.3 793.9 938.3 945.7 N MON-FRAMETAL 731.2 867.3 734.9 786.6 786.5 Solaria 333.2 867.3 734.9 938.3 945.7 CONTAINER 534.5 58.4 57.9 57.7 57.8 Solaria 344.7 3640.3 4.080.9 4736.6 4534.4 Solaria 304.9 301.5 301.5 300.5 294.4	STEEL FOUNDRIES	123.8	123.3	115.9	121.2	96.1
(NER METAL 743.1 793.4 786.6 784.0 785.7 785.7 785.7 785.7 785.7 785.7 785.7 7938.3 945.7 7938.3 945.7 7938.3 945.7 7938.3 945.7 7938.5 7938.3 945.7 7938.5 7938.5 7938.5 7938.5 7938.5 7938.5 7938.5 7938.5 7938.5 7938.5 7938.5 7938.5 7938.5 7939.4 7936.6 7938.5 7001.2 1000.5 20788 7001.2 1000.5 10000.5 1000.5 10000.5 10000.5 10000.5 10000.5 10000.5 10000.5 10000	STEEL FORGINGS	41.3	41.1	7.04	40.6	40.8
M→FER METALS 335.2 867.5 945.7 945.4 945.7 945.4 945.	NON-FERMETAL	1.44	4.661	786.6	784.0	785.7
ONTAINERS 57.7 57.8 51.4 51.4 51.7 57.8 57.8 57.8 57.8 57.8 57.8 55.8 40.551.011 FXC ELEC 3474.1 3540.3 40.3 40.3 40.3 40.5 50.5 4534.4 50.3 500.5 5597.8 300.5 297.8 207.8 207.8 207.8 207.8 207.8 207.8 207.8 200.5 1005	NU-FER METALS	333 2	867.3	6°756	938.3	945.7
S #JULP EXC FLEC 305.9 304.4.9 301.5 300.5 497.4 405.5 405.4 405	CONTAINERS	C.8C	5°25'	51.9	57.7	57.8
5 METAL FLCS JULY 2011 C. 2014 JULY 2014 JULY 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014	SOCOLKOLOKAL MILA	205 0			4/30.0	4°4664
	E METAL CTANDINGS	5.7FDC	F.0E05	8-10C		8-162

289

•

(continued)
J.2 (
ш Ф
D
I G
LL.

	- I -	2 MFDTUM	е Н	4 H1GH+HVGAS	5 HT CH+HYGA S+GT
	÷				
of OTHER FAB METAL PRODS	1641.9	3666.2	3741.0	3797.6	3755.2
55 ENGLINES & TJRHIVES	6.19C4	4681.8	6.1064	4971.0	4999.8
56 FARM MACHINERY & SUUIP	4310.4	3966.7	3321.9	3778.2	3806.5
57 CUNSTRUCTIONEMINING EDJI	8253.0	8572.2	9521.8	9823.8	9592.2
5.5 MATERIAL HNDLG WACH	3735.7	3770.3	3925.6	3973.5	3941.3
59 MFTALWORKING MACH	4323.2	6.191.0	4636.6	4635.6	4630.1
6.) SPECIAL INDUSTRY MACH	9037.0	9055.4	9377.2	9356.5	9348.2
61 GENERAL INDUSTRY MACH	4500.9	4568.9	43)).4	5)51.7	4973.7
62 MACHINE SHIP PRIDUCTS	427.6	426.1	418.4	419.9	420.4
63 DFFICE COMP MACH	23215.5	23282.0	23401.1	23388.6	2333).7
64 SERVICE INDUSTRY AACH	3192.3	3181.)	3133.6	3159.5	3160.1
65 REFRIG MACHINERY	4222.4	4206.4	4144.6	4126.3	4131.8
66 ELECTRICAL INDUSTRY	7569.4	7776.5	8386.3	8464.6	8372.5
6/ H USENULU APPLIANCES	1.01011	114/4.2	11337.0	11297.0	11324.2
63 ELEC LIGHING EQUIP	181.0	1910.9	ر 1958 . م 2011	1957.3	1956.9
OV KAUTUFIV C COMM EQUIV	7,750.4 2016 5	538/1.9	530[4•0	0.21666	5.44455 5.44455
1. TLEV LUMP & AUGESS 1. FLEV MACH SAD C SUBDITSS		6 76 76 6 70 70		3864.0	38/3.8
11 FLEU MAUN DAY & SUPPLICS 12 Mutor Ventrice e foute	2105.1	2070.J	20102	8 • 6 00 7	2669.5
72 AUTUR VEHICLES & REUIR 73 AIDEDAET E D'ADTE	C 07660	1.10000	4 0 0 2 C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	00400	0.00400
13 ALKURATI & PARIS 74 Otturo to Angoadd fanita	616001	2.06901		10194.5	16/85.4
74 ULTER FRANSFURI FAULT 76 SCTENTICIC S CONTROL INS	0.1010		0.1010		8689.0
TO SULFAULTIC & CUNTRELINS TO DEFEN: E DEDEO FOUTD		112.00		C•791/	1103.2
70 NEC MANIEACTIDIAN	0°10011	1 5 0 0 0 0	11/33.9	11/32.0	1.172.11
THE PALLENT TO ANCONDA AT FUN		12035 5	19893.5	8°11861	12836.0
TO FALLETUAU TRANSPORTATION TO FOLAL DASSENCED TUANSDOD		C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	6.1666 1.9550	5155	8.0166
17 LUCAL PASSENGEN IMANSFOR	0 0 0 0 C 0 C 0 0 0 1 1	+ • · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	1.05.38	1.1128	6.6228
RUCK TANSFORMATION	711.1.1	7080 1	11000	C•46411	1 1 9 4 5 • 1
NO ALE TRANSPORTATION	4408 F	45 80 J	1 76 2 7	7 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	5* 5 701
NOT DE LA VENERA TA LON REALEMENTE DE LA VENERA DE LA VEN	1263.7	1261.6	0324•1 1354 k	1.251 4	C • C 1 C O
34 COMMUNICATIONS FXC RADET	27839-8	C.1738.J	27491.8	72612.6	2 7 2 5 8 0
US RADID & TV BROACCASTING	196.2	195.5	193.3	192.7	193.1
86 ELECTRIC UTILITIES	18022.9	19339.4	19581.4	19517.3	19561-1
B7 GAS UTILITIES	8933.5	9437.3	9706.0	9674.2	9695.9
88 WATER & SANITARY SERV	3251.5	3240.6	3204.6	3194.1	3201.3
39 WHOLFSALE TRADE	12326.7	72148.5	71534.6	71400.3	71504.1
90 RETAIL TRADE	146729.0	146299.6	144867.9	144448。6	144708.5
91 FINANCE AND INSURANCE	409/6°5	(°14804	(36804	4 32 90.6	4,0383.4
92 HOTEL FOLATE & NEWLAL 93 HOTEL, DERS & REPAIR SER	5.2212F	32013.2	162458.U	182391.1	182752.1
94 RUSTNESS SERVICES	11261.4	11245.9	11182.4		4 · C 2 O T C
95 RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT	5.769	0.466	923.7	920.4	17234• •
96 AUTO REPAIR & SERVICE	12220.4	12178.9	12343.9	12004-4	2.12021
97 AMUSEMENTS	8736. U	8706.3	8609.8	8581.6	8600.8
98 MEDICAL & EDUCATION SERV	88677.4	88376.1	87396.3	87110.1	87305.1
99 FED GUVT ENTERPRISES	3566.7	3554 • 6	3515.2	3503.7	3511.5
100 STATE&LOCAL GOVT ENTERPR	2607.6	2598.7	2569.9	2561.5	2567.3
101 IMPORTS	-13989.4	- 73737.9	-72920.4	-72681.7	-72844.4
1.2 BUSINESS TRAVEL, GIFIS	0°0	0 0 1	0.0	0.0	0.3
103 UFFICE SUPPLIES 134 SCRAP SECONDHAND CODDS	2816.2	1001.2	10/01	1002.00	1668.8
T)4 OCKAF, DELENUTARU GIUUG 108 tõtat	1340845.0	1 3429 R6 . D	0-42-	C 100.2	2772.7
103 11146				0.0000401	1340959°0

FIGURE J.3

-

COMPARISON OF UNSCALED 1985 TOTAL OUTPUTS

	-	~	"	7	u
	E DW	MEDIUM	нісн	HIGH+HYGAS	HI GH+HYGA S+GT
1 LIVESTACK & PRODUCTS	52823.297	52923.887	53265. 335	53371.191	53297.410
2 DTHER FARM PRODUCTS	48729.555	48890.680	49437.918	49633.773	0 2 3 0 2 3 0 4
3 EORFSTRY & FISHEPY PRJ9	2843.828	2907.715	3109.537	3169-272	3125-218
4 FARM, FUREST, FISH SFRV	2287.006	2303.986	2361.705	2379-329	7367 461
5 FERROUS METAL MINING	3263.226	3375.354	3759.240	3886.951	38.01 - 64.7
6 NONFERROUS METAL MINING	367).878	37)).464	4343.854	4153.387	4080.324
7 CDAL MINING	4834.766	5026.574	5395.922	5847.578	6827.359
8 CRUDE DIL AND NATURAL GA	25864.680	26942.492	28309.453	28795.)98	23100-598
9 STONE & CLAY MINING	4368.461	4547.859	5160.367	5449°473	5297.016
IO MINERAL MINING	2850.823	2882.011	301 4. 765	3047.553	3025.962
II NEW CONSTRUCTION	121543.125	129128.5)3	1549)4.875	162481.563	155841.500
12 MAINT & REPAIR CONST	44863.723	45175.484	46232.473	46597.453	46292.436
13 ORD'NANCE, ACCESSOPIES	12019.754	12059,828	12194.723	12236.012	12236.461
14 FOOD & KINDRED PRODUCTS	13 36 17.938	130810.183	131471.553	131681.125	131539.313
IS GRAIN MILLING	18083.191	13118.897	19243.566	18281.560	19255.473
16 TOBACCO MANUFACTURES	1.0295.234	1)3)3.441	1)331.453	1)34]. 625	10334.598
IT FABRIC, YARN, THRD MILLS	32093.953	32209.723	32668.752	32795 .672	32707.500
IS MISC. TEXTILE GOODS	9841.422	9923.297	10302.359	1 1392.387	1329-637
19 APPAREL	39669.285	39700.438	39915.254	39850 .754	39825.453
20 MISC FAB TEXTILE PPODJCT	7196.242	7228.453	7338.231	7372.609	7348.281
21 LUMBER & WOOP PRODS	19955.359	27731.129	23371.273	24154.441	23595.297
22 WOODEN CONTAINERS	620.018	628.274	656.455	665 • 429	659-156
23 HOUSEHOLD FURNITURE	10846.949	10916.530	11151.547	11223.711	11171-566
24 OTHER FURN & FIXTURES	5756.316	5255.816	5926.273	6138.867	5991 .836
25 PULP MILLS	4110.461	4146.410	4321.172	4360.188	4333.168
26 PAPER & ALLTED PROJS	33235.355	33565 . 563	3516). 386	35617.922	35302.129
27 PAPER CONTAINERS, BOXES	12311.098	12462.223	12998.203	13159.391	13048-066
28 PRINTING & PUBLISHING	38964.816	39363.816	40699.785	41128.961	4 1844 .941
29 INDUSTRIAL CHEMICALS	43955.778	44564.711	47302.335	47940.711	47530.816
30 FERTILIZERS	4553.063	4572.273	4642 . 574	4662.512	+643.316
31 AGR & MI SC CHEMICALS	8931.680	9158.781	9516.512	9645 • 172	9553.242
32 PLASTICS & SYNTH MTRL	28825.148	29172.930	32145.266	32542 • 555	32 264. 086
33 DRUGS, CLNG, TOILET PREP	33053.504	33128.973	33410.000	33486.785	33446.476
34 PAINTS & PRODUCTS	5745. 335	5867.223	6291.387	6423.699	6324.887
35 PETROLEUM REFINING	41910.898	43712.461	46009.711	46400 . 924	45338.285
36 PAVING FIXIURES	C86.C21	761.571	848.322	875。358	851.249
31 ASPHALI TELISI CUATINGS	10/	1/2 008	950° 305	977.713	955.708
30 KURDEN & FLEDILL FRUUD 30 i Eatued tanning donn	2/101/00	*******	40916.017	41629.535	41143.2)3
LO FUTUEAR & LEATHER DRUN	4763 355	202 J111	1159.151	1146.073	1141.538
LI CLASS E GLASS PRINS	714.8467	7110°271 7447 436	8/0°0/18	4803 .141	4 797 .969
42 CEMENT HYDRALLIC	7895.633	C 70 - 1 CL 1		8.022 • 047	111.1201
	576.453	507.201			3539.770
44 STONE & CLAY PRODS	17293.398	18067.441	2011 1 1 1 2 0 0	750°575	676.717
45 PRIMARY STEEL	35318-668	36915-285	601116000 673735630	21222.043	20 950° 89 8
46 IRON & STEEL FOUNDRIES	6011.336	6352.668	7513-680	7880 265	42433•660
47 IRON & STEEL FORGINGS	2558,989	2706-099	3202.926	2345 530	101-01-01
48 PRIMARY NON-FER MFTAL	9605.723	9944°098	11094.648	11467 673	1 14 9026
49 MISC NUN-FER METALS	27288.859	28437.434	32178.605	33383.422	23574 401
50 METAL CONTAINERS	4735.199	4758,922	4842.223	4866.117	16041676 4040 455
51 PLUMBINGESTRUCTURAL META	16508.141	17554.484	21452. 116	23246.859	22250.773
52 HEATING EQUIP EXC ELEC	2713.904	2811.615	3142.659	3247.445	3168.305
53 SCREWS & METAL STAMPINGS	11018.254	11315.348	12323.938	12651.367	12420.516

FIGURE J.3 (continued)

..

		-	~		ۍ	ſ
		LON	MEDIUM	HIGH	HIG4+HYGAS	ні вн+нуба 5+5т
54	OTHER FAB METAL PRODS	20856.617	21591.335	24057.313	24893.413	24302.512
55	ENGINES & TURBINES	6994.305	7346.535	8462.449	8825.73)	9668.422
56	FARM MACHINERY & EQUID	5190.629	5287.242	5613.816	5717.992	5647.148
5	CONSTRUCTION EMINING EQUI	7670.266	9776.379	16857.078	19191.078	17632.375
80	MATERIAL HNDLG MACH	4893.367	5373.578	7)56.98)	76)1.773	7238.066
	APPENDER VALUE AACH	865.0126		15162.723	14158-723	13480.012
32	GENERAL INDUSTRI FACH	CCD • 0+ 001	11219461211	15170 308	17276 AEE	12421 5421 51 31 4 1 1 1 1 2 1 2 1 3 1 3 1 2 1 3 1 3 1 3 1
39	MACHINE SHOP PRODUCTS	4109.234	720 00 64 21	6 6 5 4 5 1 6 1 6 6 6 0 5 6 5 0	7170.348	1 40.00001
6.9	OFFICE COMP MACH	31134.461	32877 219	388 99-966	4) 6 2 6 9 8 4	39322.910
49	SERVICE INDUSTRY MACH	4015.872	4160.918	4644.078	4844.305	4732.516
65	REFRIG MACHINERY	8934.285	9281.941	10455.836	1 317.375	1)553.484
66	ELECTRICAL INDUSTRY	19259.391	20624.813	25211.141	26571.816	25612.316
67	HOUSEHOLD APPLIANCES	15222.066	15370.785	15876.422	16030.973	15917.637
68	ELEC LIGHTING EQUIP	7898.773	8188.078	9151.867	9431.223	9233.672
9	RADIO, TV & COMM EQUIP	43960.660	44850.387	47830.180	48733.379	48085,391
20	ELEC COMP & ACCESS	31192.535	31981.609	34627.316	35437.234	34857.313
21	ELEC WACH EQP & SUPPLIES	6763.609	6901.855	7367.172	7509.047	7406.566
22	MOTOR VEHICLES & EQUIP	95957.938	99310.875	110568.750	114073.500	111557.000
5	AIRCRAFT & PARTS	25632.297	25188.953	28348.723	28616.422	28189.387
*	OTHER TRANSPORT EQUIP	10349.512	10714.629	11940.598	12368.281	11995.668
5	SCIENTIFIC & CONTROL INS	13192.129	13465.023	14389.004	14671.723	14468.234
16	OPTICAL & PHOTO EQUIP	15979.117	16762.500	19390.191	20190.086	19616.230
1	MISC MANUFACTURING	24136.160	24315.504	24925.461	25119.055	24983.930
78	RAILROAD TRANSPORTATION	27843.668	28418.566	31399.815	31721.774	3,397.348
52	LOCAL PASSENGER TRANSPOR	10688.348	10736.012	10898.504	10951.535	10915.844
80	TRUCK TRANSPORTATION	32754.410	33406.723	3564 1. 098	36323.691	35 6 3 7 • 5 1 6
81	WATER TRANSPORTATION	10747.563	10835.266	11096.203	111182.967	11043.211
82	AIR TRANSPORTATION	11134.629	11231.609	11557.344	11658.585	11525.563
80	MISC TRANSPORTATION	3906.926	3997.877	4233.168	4242.922	4157.492
8	COMMUNICATIONS EXC RADGT	54219.617	54835.547	56910.629	57559.406	57102.281
50	RADIO E TV BRDADCASTING	3349.664	3403.468	3580.773	3637.884	36)).419
	ELECIRIC ULILIES	4/223.461	43831.586	53538.875	54212.098	53791.898
	GAS UTILITES	918-14476	33806.867	38814.543	39241.793	38084.379
2020	WALEK & SANLAKY SERV	878-4/28	8353.367	8621.453	8784.)12	8725.504
200	AMULESALE IKAUE	136950.563	1 39 32 1. 875	147418.688	150026.503	148308.750
2	ETNANCE AND INCURANCE	1/4/04.4050	180824•505	186281.188	188)11.750	186816. 763
	DEAL ECTATE & DENTAL	00140.930	800 ° 20 100 ° 20 30 30 ° 20 ° 20 ° 20 ° 20 ° 20 °	618.96C88	89325.313	88926.750
2 6	HOTEL CULAIT GREWAL Hotel, dede e dedald ced	20413 125	2010100542	241296•688	248571.313	247616.563
	RICINESS SERVICES	105176.125	461 44314C	870°017°	4 J 2 2 4 • J 2 3	40146.930
	RECEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT	2531 - 636	2564 632	6 31 4 16 31 1	629*206411	113638.023
10	AITO REPATE & CERVICE	761.74640	260°F062 080°F3662	201102	2112-323	2081.013
.6	AMISEMENTS	15551.098	15600.836	15765,375	15818 043	Z3334.141 18701 053
98	MEDICAL & EDUCATION SERV	92994.625	93357.813	93270.517	007 010/1	12/01 12/02 275
66	FED GOVT ENTERPRISES	13073.992	13206 • 660	13653.762	13791.734	13645.816
100	STATE&LOCAL GOVI FNTERPR	12753.930	12872,992	13281.156	13434-379	13330-622
101	I MP ORT S	-15874.203	-14423.918	-9578.984	-8297.867	-9382.984
102	BUSINESS TRAVEL, GIFTS	17332.480	17693.006	18922.328	19324.586	19063.316
103	OFFICE SUPPLIES	6775.484	6854.387	7119.766	7235.98)	7149.293
104	SCRAP. SECONDHAND GOODS	2797.563	2797.563	-30.000	2797.563	2797.563
105	TOTAL DUTPUT	2698421.000	2754312.000	2938353.000	2997726.000	2956741。)))

F I G U R'E **J.4** Comparison of Balanced 1985 total outputs 5 HIGH+HYGA S+G1

HIG4+HYGAS 52552.441 23740.273 2312.05 2312.05 2312.05 2312.05 2312.250 5214.254 28135.355 2935.233 139374.256 12332.448 130062.448 130062.448 130062.448 13935.233 139372.266 5421.186 5421.186 5421.186 5421.186 10914.656 5421.285 9424.285 9505.285 4570.285 19044.285 38841.785 6759.266 6878.226 1361.391 29789.262 19761.691 19276.918 2927.669 11617.203 3 Н[GH 3471.784 3486.152 5995.483 5995.483 5497.386 2697.386 2697.386 2697.386 13324.1375 13324.60 13324.60 1334.60 1334.60 1334.60 1334.60 3269.619 441 536.754 5451 13375.754 13375.754 13375.754 5451 13375.754 5451 54515.913 34135.233 5451.242 54515.913 34135.233 5451.953 5451.242 5451.953 5451.242 5451.953 5451.242 5451.953 5451.242 5451.953 5451.666 1126.019 31745.6691 1126.019 31745.659 31745.659 31745.659 31745.659 31745.659 31745.659 31745.659 31745.659 11227.331 3145.859 5174.951 11227.331 3145.859 5174.951 11227.331 3145.955 514.951 11227.331 3145.955 3145.955 3145.955 3145.955 3145.955 3145.955 3145.955 3145.955 3145.955 3145.955 3145.955 3145.955 3145.955 3145.955 3145.755 3145.755 3145.755 3145.755 3145.755 3145.755 315.7555 315.7555 31 53171.191 49169.512 296).836 2 MUTCEN 2324.60 53329, 575 65330, 279 775, 811 2329, 294 2329, 294 2329, 294 2975, 811 6473, 180 29131, 194 2917, 641 13258, 521 13258, 547 13258, 547 112, 553, 523 132497, 649 13258, 547 112, 553, 547 112, 553, 547 112, 553, 934 4601, 734 4601, 734 4601, 734 7725, 641 34127, 693 4517, 735 1126, 593 7755, 541 333656, 641 34175, 534 7755, 541 336565, 641 34175, 534 7755, 541 336565, 641 34175, 534 7755, 541 3592, 775 7755, 641 3592, 775 7755, 641 3592, 775 7755, 641 3606, 691 775, 534 7755, 641 3606, 691 775, 534 7755, 641 3606, 691 775, 534 775, 534 775, 634 775, 53 18216.141 2884.037 11577.398 LOW L L LIVESTOCK & PSDDUCTS 2 07HER FAR PROJUCTS 5 FOWEST FISH SEW 5 FOWEST FISH SEW 5 FOWEST FISH SEW 5 FOWEST FISH SEW 6 VULF DIL AVE WILLEG 7 AL WINES 7 CAL WINES 7 CONSTRUCTU 7 SANNTE REAK CONST 7 CONSTRUCTU 7 SANNTE REAK CONST 7 CONSTRUCTU 7 SANNTE REAK CONST 7 CONSTRUCTO 7 SOUTH FIEL 7 SANNTE REAK CONST 7 SOUTH FIEL 8 MISC FIRTLE 300C 8 MISC FIRTLE 300C 1 LUMBER & WOTO PRODUCT 8 MISC FIRTLE 300C 8 MISC FIRTLE 300C 1 LUMBER & WOTO PRODUCT 8 MISC FIRTLE 7 8 PADER CONTAINERS 7 ADPER CONTAINERS 8 PADER & AUSC CHAINERS 8 PADER & AUSC CHAINERS 8 PADER CONTAINERS 8 PADE PLUMBING SSTRUCTURAL META HEATING FOULP EXC ELEC SCREWS & METAL STAMPINGS FTONE & CLAY PRODS FRIMARY STEEL FRONE & STEEL FOUNDRIES IRON & STEEL FOUNDRIES FIRDN & STEEL FOUNDRIES PRIDN & STEEL FOUNDRIES PRISC NON-FEW METAL METAL CONTAINERS ちょうりらおようちゃをえてのねおようちゃをえていらおしからかをどていいがんかをどこしい ドムダウキテン

52601.742
48691.285
48691.285
2307.635
2307.635
2307.635
2307.635
2307.635
2355.379
4851.629
2935.875
12593.875
12593.875
12593.875
12593.875
12593.875
12593.875
12593.875
12593.875
12593.875
12593.826
12593.826
12593.826
12593.826
12593.826
12593.826
12593.826
12593.826
12593.826
12593.826
12593.826
12593.826
12593.826
12593.826
12593.826
12593.826
12593.826
12593.826
12593.826
12593.826
12593.826
12593.826
12593.826
12593.826
12593.826
12593.826
12593.826
12593.826
12593.826
12584.65
12584.65
12588.65
12583.066
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
12388.65
123888.65
123888.65
123888.65
123888.65
123888.65
123888.65
123888.65
12388888.65

293

4757.172 19708.543 2921.870 11613.992 FIGURE J.4 (continued)

5 HIGH+HYGA 5+GT	22487.691	7966.094	5273.078	12638.691	001/100	12203.984	14354.359	6519.012	34564.535	4292.422	9603.191	15436-207	8548-688	45411.109	32611.031	7018.000	132293.438	26 588. 62 9	10997.150		11 2220 11 C	28881.127	10712-273	33888.531	10803.523	11219.891	4028.507	55 197 - 344 2454 - 208	52084.680	36914.336	8478.992	141408.875	181319.125	86952 • 750	676 76906 670 76906	108796.750	2590.763	24643.141	15534.816	92325.813	13 291.887	13008-637	-12294-922	18784.543	6913.172	2772.650
4 HIGH+HYGAS	22587.035	7950.359	5248.098	12892.555	010°2000	12215.875	14488.523	6529.441	34632 • 566	4290.484	9619.953	15412.816	8570.867	45367.773	32608.750	7019.793	102399.875	26599.941	11105.617	13/12•387	1020°16611	29100.754	10695.891	34110.848	10877.867	11271.078	4078.277	22162。313 3454 448	52067.984	37734.379	8473.813	141343.188	181100.438	80840°2000	871 E770E	108807-125	2590.358	24635.617	15538.078	92129.875	13283.566	13017.492	-11978.617	18395.398	6910.086	2766.457
3 HIGH	22471.938	7863.723	5285.918	12538,285	2407025	12233.323	14156.055	6512°973	34542.547	4263, 348	9624.797	15445-03.)	8554.730	45479.703	3252 3. 785	7027.086	1.12461.375	26645.355	11065.617	13124.031	10400011	20167-148	10719-609	34134.828	10885.293	11287.074	4085.502	72451,538U	52045.648	37766.211	8407.563	141387.688	181466.750	242001 0000	39568-617	10874.2.313	2592.484	24673.941	15548, 180	92417.750	13299.609	12991.887	- 12226. 734	19067.773	6913.855	- 29, 764
2 MEDIUM	22204.367	7576.316	5417.219	11455.984	2102-010 10876-855	11865.375	13697.668	161.4749	34497.992	4310.129	9605.723	141012012012	8418.410	45768.367	32749.594	7034.535	102471.438	26737.094	1105.6091	17476 225	24531.555	28935.730	13807.078	34733.574	10918.254	11337.656	4042.332	2453,077	49380.180	34173.742	191.191	141681.313	182722.313 27283 135	570-50510 7408050	39940-035	108636.500	2597.749	24802.004	15687.785	93406.500	13345.328	12985.992	- 13452.180	18324.504	6934.898	2806.663
LOW	22108.492	7463.334	5456.512	11099.129	500.051C	11842.160	13558.762	6461.191	34415,367	4320-828	9595.742	212774270	8369.035	45836.816	32761.773	7034.703	102415.125	20/52.3/9	12720 647	13426 488	0000 CCT1	28900.086	10833.754	33973.672	10917.109	11351.418		3450.907	48337.418	33183.734	8446。168	141759.625	183084.088 ⁻	245278.375	40053.910	108538.188	2599.1J9	24837.930	15729.074	93709.563	13357.410	12984.785	-13892.305	18009.563	6940. U31	2816.230
	54 OTHER FAR METAL PRODS	55 ENGINES & TURBINES	50 FAKM MACHINERY & EQUIP	50 MATEDIAL HUNERINING EUUI	59 METALWORKING MACH	60 SPECIAL INDUSTRY MACH	61 GENERAL INDUSTRY 4ACH	62 MACHINE SHOP PRODUCTS	63 OFFICE COMP MACH	45 SERVICE INUUSIRY MACH	65 KEFKIG MACHINERY 44 Electrical tangetov	67 HOUSEHOLD APPLIANCES	68 ELEC LIGHTING EQUIP	69 RADIO, TV & COMM EQUIP	70 ELEC COMP & ACCESS	71 ELEC MACH EQP & SUPPLIES	72 MOTOR VEHICLES & EQUIP	1.3 AIKUKAFI & PAKIS 74 Divid transfort fonte	75 SCIENTIEIS S CONTROL INS	74 ADTICAL & DUNINUL INS 74 ADTICAL & DHATA EALID	77 MISC MANUFACTIRING	78 RAILROAD TRANSPORTATION	79 LOCAL PASSENGER TPANSPOR	8.3 TRUCK TRANSPORTATION	BI WATER TRANSPORTATION	82 AIR TRANSPORTATION	0.5 MISC IRANSPURIATION 0.4 COmmunications Eve Baret	B5 RADIO 6 TV BRDADCASTING	86 ELECTRIC UTILITIES	87 GAS UTILITIES	88 WATER & SANITARY SERV	89 WHOLESALE TRADE	90 KEIAIL IKAUG 01 Finance and Incheance	92 REAL ESTATE & RENTAL	93 HOTEL. PERS & REPAIR SER	94 BUSINESS SERVICES	95 RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT	96 AUTO REPAIR & SERVICE	97 AMUSEMENTS	98 MEDICAL & EDUCATION SERV	99 FED GOVT ENTERPRISES	OO STATEGLOCAL GOVT FNTERPR	OI IMPORTS	OZ BUSINESS TRAVEL, GIFTS	OB UFFICE SUPPLIES	04 SCRAP, SECONDHAND GITUS

F I G U R E J.5 Comparison of gross investment and total output (1980)

		1	2	Le .)	
		GROSS INVESTMENT	TCTAL CUTPUT	PERCENTAGE	
1	LIVESTUCK & FRECUCTS	258.0	44965•2	C = 5	
\sim	QTHER FARM FRODLCTS	725.0	40234.4	1.8	
~	FORESTRY & FISHERY CROD	13.0	2558.5	2.9	
t	FAMM, FIRESI, FISH SERV	13.0	2166.9	C. F	
n	FERROUS WETAL WINING	53.0	2628.4	2.0	
٥	NENFERROUS VETAL VININS	32.0	3056 6	1.0	
2	CUAL MINING	0.5	4328.5	C•2	
م	CHUNE GIL AND NATURAL 545		22352.0	C • 2	
,	STUNE & CLAY MINING	6 ° 0	3839.5	1.6	
10	PINCKAL VINING	0.0	2204.7	0.0	
3.	NEW CUNSTRUCTION	7+246 C	117216.0	0 0 0	
1	PALNI & KATAIK CONST District Anna Constant		19126° /	0.00	
-	UKUNAKCH, PCCHONCKIHO	T CC C	1.0558	1.2	
* 4 -	FUCU & MININE WAY LOCIN		14764 JG+ 1		
	TIBACCIN MANUFACTURES	12.0	0666.1	• د ن	
	FABALL VARNATHRE WILLS	171-0	26515, C	1 4 C	
20	MISC. TEXTILE GEOCS	336.0	9102.9	4.1	
۲.	APPAKEL	125.0	33298.6	2.2	
07	MISC FAR TEXTILE FREDUCT	410.0	5626.7	α. • •	
ž1	LUMBER & WCCC PRCCS	125.0	17272.4	C.7	
22	WCCDEN CONTAINERS	1 5 0	4 85 C	3.7	
2	HOUSEHULD FURNITURE	351.0	9646.0	3.9	
24	JTHER FURN & FIXTURES	2565.0	4862.8	52.7	
22	PULP MILLS	C • O	2759.5	0.0	
2	PAPER & ALLIED FRCCS	0.0	26538.5	0*0	
27	PAPER CENTAINERS, PEXES	a7.0	10082.5	1.0	
2	FRINTING & PUBLISHING	126.0	31614•5	0.4	
7 C	INDUSTRIAL CHEMICALS	0.0	34030.3	0.00	
2	FERILLIANS Act of Mich of Mich of Act		2.0000	0.0	
	AGK & FISC CPERICALS			0.00	
2 7	PLASILOS S STNIT FIRL		25611 0	1.2	
	PAINTS & PRCFLCTS	15.0		0 " -	
5	PETRULEUM REFINING	0.0	36082.5		
36	FAVING WIXTURES	C* 0	647.8	0.0	
37	ASPHALT FELTS. CCATINGS	0.0	726.5	0.0	
38	RUBBER C PLASTIC PRODS	262.0	30 3 59 3	C • S	
5	LEATHER JANNING FRLL Scotterad & Isatuco Cond	12.0	982° č	1.2	
	CLASS & CHAITER FILL		5 • - 11 n 1	2.6	
	CEMENT HYCRAULIC	0.0	2467.4		
1 m 1		0.0	496.7		
*	STUNE & CLAY PRCCS	0.0	15424.9		
4 5	PRIMARY STEEL	0.0	31440.6	0.0	
0 7	IRUN & STEEL FOUNDRIES	0•0	5321.5	υ•υ υ	
, 4	JAGN & STEEL FORGINGS	0.0	2223+3	0.0	
10 : †	PRIMARY NUN-FER METAL		8155.5	0.0	
5 (7)	MISC NUN-FER METALS	4 7 5 • 0	23541.9	2.0	
2 3	PEIAL CENTRINERS Ditumpt Net State of the Almerts	1/3000	4 157°5	4.2	
. 2	LEATING COLTO SYC FIEL		0 1 2 2 1 1 0		
1 D	SCREWS & METAL STAPPINGS	70.0	5-71-2	ο α • Ο	
				~ • • •	

J.5 (continued) ш R D G -LL_

.

-

	L GROSS INVESTMENT	Z TJTAL OUTPUT	3 Percentage
24 UTHER FAB METAL PRCSS	645°O	17430.1	3.7
52 ENGINES & TURBIAES	548.0	5457 . 1	17.4
36 FAKM MACHINERY & ECLIP	3427.0	5645+0	6C+7
PT CUNSTRUCTIONEMINING EQUI	3294 C	7798.5	42.2
UN FRICKARL HALLS FACT	1120.0	534105	
OU SPECIAL INCLURY WACH	3655.0	7567.0	7 8 2 7
OL GENERAL INCLETRY MACH	2737.0	10522.9	25.1
62 MACHINE SHCP PRCDLCTS	68• 0	5036.2	1.4
6.3 LEFICE COMP MACH	1265.0	24347.7	2.02
04 VERVICE INCLUTRY PACH AR DEEUIC RACHTERY	1611-9	2762.9	50 C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C
OD REFAILS FACHINERT OD ELECTAICAL INCUSTRY	107601 4766.0	19920	25.6
07 HOUSCHOLD APPLIANCES	414.0	12585.1	3.3
ON FLEC LIGHTING EQUIP	258°O	6754.1	3 · 3 · 3
69 KAULU.TV & CCMM FCUIP	7504.0	33266. C	22.6
70 ELEC COMP & ACCESS 71 Elec Mary For S Electros	748.0	24312.5	
TI ELEC MACH EEF 6 SUPPLIES 72 Mailir Vehicles e foito		0.0000 0.000 0.000 0.000	
73 AIKCRAFT E PARTS	3207.0	02727.0	141
74 CTPEN TRANSPCRT EQUIP	4351.0	10645-7	41-2
75 SCIENTIFIC & CONTRCL INS	2110.0	10984.3	15.2
To CPTICAL & PECTO EQUIP	3655.0	11056.2	32.0
77 MISC MANUFACTURING	843.0	18556.3	4 - 5 0
TO POLICIAL INANSPORTATION	1147.4	23382.	5°7
AN LUCAL PROVINCEX INFUNDED AND THE TANDED AND THE TANDED AND THE TANDED AND	1 50 2 1	83470 0 24628 8	
6 I MATER TRANSPORTATION	197671 1979	0 * C # C # C # C # C # C # C # C # C # C	
82 AIK TRANSPCRTATICN	824	8648.1	
U3 MISC TRANSPERTATIEN	0.0	3174.2	0.0
64 CCMMUNICATIONS EXC RADET	1445.0	420C4. 5	4°E
45 RAULU & TV PROACCASTING	0.0	2734.5	C*0
86 ELECTRIC UTILITIES	0.00	42955°7	0.0
BI GAS UTILITIES 49 Lated f cantary cov		28651.5 4628 3	0
de Walen e Janliant Jere 49 MMULESALE TRADE	7265.6	6 * 07 5 C	ם כ עריי עריי
YO RETAIL TRACE	6955.3	153574.3	
91 FINANCE AND INSURANCE	C• O	70030.1	0*0
42 REAL ESTATE & RENTAL	4 C 6 3 . O	195063.3	2.2
9.3 HUTEL, PERS & REPAIF SER	0,00	31236.1	0.0
A4 BUOLREVV VERVICES In thereasts And Shift Shift	0.0	37557.4	0.0
93 NESEARUT ANG GEVELLITAGNI 64 Alti Brodid e sebuite		5 5577 5 57700	
V ANUSCARINTS		12698.4	
54 MEUICAL & ECUCATION SERV	0.0	70478.8	
45 FED GUVT ENTERPRISES	0.0	7925+8	0.0
JUU STATE&LCCAL GCVT ENTERPR	C• O	10440.0	0.0
LUL IMPUKTS	50.0	-3653-5	-1.4
LUZ BUDANGGO INMYELI ULIG 1422 Jeste Shiddi tes		0°01011	200
103 LETAL GOTELES 104 STUAD, SECTARHAND REFOR	0-360-		
A DESCRIPTION OF THE PARTY OF T	2026	2000 F H	n • 2 0 -

.

F I G U R E J.6 Comparison of 1980 investment (GPDI) impacts with total output (1980)

PERCENTAGE	2.8	5.8	23.3	9.1	34.6	26.8	12.9	8.5	45.0	11.4	63.3	5.7	6.2	1 • 4	2.4	0.8	0.0	0.61	* • •		10.0	10.0	40°0	11.6	13.7	14.4	10.5	13.3	6.4	14.7	15.2	0.4	22.1	27.2	23.65	17-2	8.7	4.0	19.4	48.2	1.05	470 F		41.e3	100 100 100	32.08	38.9	8.7	V.00	38.0	21.9
TOTAL CUTPUT	44965.2	40234.4	2558.5	2166.8	2628.4	3096.6	4328.6	22352.0	3835.5	2204.7	117216.0	35136.7	8330.1	112436.1	14706.3	9666.1	26515.9	8102.8	0 93782°C	1.0200	0 387		0.0404	2708.5	26938.6	10382.6	31614.5	34030.3	3385.2	7102.1	23254.0	25511.9	6.158.5 2.555.5	30062.3	726.5	30369.3	982.6	4357.8	5966.8	2657.4	1.044	15424.9		C • 1 2 5 5 5	2223.5	C.CLB	23541.9	4157.5	0 • 2 6 / 6 T	2411-8	8110.4
L INVESTMENT IMPACT	1245.1	2352.3	596.8	196.5	918.5	829.2	557.8	1893.4	1729.5	25.3 . 5	14246.0	2018.5	514.2	1596.4	354 - N	19.5	1752.8	1055.1	1123.3	1.106	6307 C		1 1 2 0 2	1.1505	3679-3	1455.2	3304.1	4525.9	215.5	1044.2	3524.7	1015.7	1081.2	2871-0	243.7	5232.5	65.0	174.5	1156.9	128).7	1/403	1045-8		4°1617	0 14 0	2018.9	9161.4	362.7	0.0428	8-166	2420.4
-	I LIVESTOCK & PRUDUCTS	2 DTHER FARM PRUJUCTS	3 FORESTRY & FISHERY PAJU	4 FARM. FUREST, FISH SEAV	5 FERROUS METAL MINING	6 NONFERRUUS METAL MININS	7 COAL MINING	B CRUDE DIL ANN NATURAL JA	9 STONE & CLAY MINING	I) MINERAL MINING	II NEW CONSTRUCTION	IZ MAINT & REPAIK CUNSI	13 ORDNANCE, ACCESSURIES	14 FOOD & KINDREU PROJUCIS	15 GRAIN MILLING	16 TUBACCO MANUFACTURES	17 FABRIC, YAKN, THKU MILLS	18 MISC. TEXTILE GOUDS	IG APPAREL	20 MISC FAB LEXILLE PRUDULI	21 LUMBER & WUUU PRUUS	22 MUUVEN CUNIALNEKS	23 HUUSEHULU FUKNIJAE	24 UITER FURN & FIAIURES	23 PULF MILLS 26 PAPFR & Allifu Prous	27 PAPER CUNTAINERS. BUXES	28 PRINTING & PUBLISHING	29 INDUSTRIAL CHEMICALS	30 FERTILIZERS	31 AGR & MISC CHEMILALS	32 PLASTICS & SYNTH MIKL	33 DRUGS, CLNG, TUILET PREP	34 PAINTS & PKUUUCTS	35 PETROLEUM KEFINING	30 PAVING MINIUNES 37 ACOUALT FALTY, CHAFLARY	31 ASPIALI FELIST CURITINGS 38 DURRER & PLASTIC PRUUS	39 LEATHER LANNING PRUD	40 FC DTWEAK & LEATHEN PHUN	41 GLASS & GLASS PRUDS	42 CEMENT, HYUKAULIC	43 LIME	44 STONE & CLAY PHUDS	45 PKIMAKY SICEL	46 IRON & STEEL FUUNDRIES	47 IRON & STEEL FUKELYUS	48 PRIMARY NUN-FEK METAL	49 MI SC NDN-FER METALS	5.) METAL CUNIAINERS	51 PLUMBINGESTRUCTURAL HETA	52 HEATING EQUIP EXC ELL	53 SCREWS & MEIAL STAMPAND

FIGURE J.6 (continued)

		2	r n
	INVESTMENT INPACT	TOTAL OUTPUT	PERCENTAGE
54 UTHER FAD METAL PRJUS	5416.9	17430.1	31.1
55 ENGINES & IUKDINES	1844.1	5457.1	33.8
50 FARM MACHINERY & E4JIP	3800.3	5645.0	67.3
57 CONSTRUCTIONEMINING ENJI	4242 ° b	7798.5	54.4
58 MATERIAL HNULU MALT	1963.0	3341.0	58.8
59 METALNOKKING MALH	4998 6	5362.6	53.4
6) SPECIAL INUUSIKY MALA	4295.9	1507.)	51.2
OL GENERAL INUUSIKY MACT	1 - 0 + 0 9	10922-8	50° 5
52 MACHINE SHUP PRODUCTS	1454.1	5036.2	28.9
03 UFFICE CUMP MACH		24341.1	61.0
04 SERVICE INUUSIKY MACH 45 Defeits Baihinery	C • C 8 - T 1 20 7 E ÷	2/62.9	0.40
66 FIFCTRICAL INUUSIRY	4 • C 1 0C	C-19461	51.3
67 HOUSEHOLU APPLIANCES	1729.2	12585.1	13.7
68 ELEC LIGHING LUUP	2489.5	6794.1	36.6
69 RADIO.IV & CUMM EQUIP	9918.2	33266.0	29.8
70 ELEC COMP & ALCESS	8120.9	24312.5	33.5
71 ELEC MACH ENP & SUPPLIES	1263.9	5483.8	23.4
72 MOTOR VEHICLES & EQUIP	<3308.4	82555.2	28.2
73 AIRCRAFT & PARTS	4035.5	22727.2	20.4
14 OTHER TRANSPURI EQUIP	1.957.1	10649.7	46.5
75 SCIENTIFIC & CUNIKUL 1VS	5+5955	10984.3	32.7
27 MICE MANUAL CULL		11096.2	
TO BAT BOAL TRANSPORTATION	1871.	L 2996.3	10.2
TO LOCAL DALLEN EN TO LOCAL DALLEN		1.33622	4.02
PO TOUCH PASSENCEN INANSPUS	010°J	0.5525	
ALLATER TRANSPORTATION	0.1000	0 • C C C D Z	0.12
82 ATR TRANSPORTATION	763.5		
83 MISC TRANSPURTATION	248.8	3174.2	7.8
84 CCMMUNICATIONS EXC HAUEI	49.7.1	42004.5	11.7
85 RADIO & IV BRUADLASTIN.	419.2	2734.5	15.3
86 ELECTRIC UNILITIES	4404.1	42955.7	10.4
87 GAS UTILIILES	2813.0	28691.5	9.8
88 WATER & SANIJARY SERV	625.3	6928.3	0*6
89 WHULESALE IKADE	2 4 2 4 7 4 7 7	*******	19.1
90 REIALL INAUE	4 4 4 3 4 e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e		1°6
92 REAL ESTATE & KENTAL	9513.4	185063.3	1.5
93 HOTEL . PERS & REPAIR SER	907.9	31238.1	
94 BUSINESS SERVICES	14151.5	87557.4	16.2
95 RESEARCH ANU ULVELUPMENT	246.1	2249.5	10.9
96 AUTO REPAIN & SERVILE	1824.0	20441.3	8.9
97 AMUSEMENTS	481.9	12698.4	3.8
98 MEDICAL & EUULATIUN SEAV	455.8	70478.8	0.7
99 FED GOVI ENTERPRISES	1024-7	7925.8	12.9
1)) STATEGLUCAL GUVI ENLERPH	116.1	10440.0	4.1
101 IMPURIS 102 AUCINESS IRAVELS ((FIS)	LU2U0. Z	- 365 3• 5 1 407 0 - 5	-287.6
INT DEFICE SUPPLIES	625.4	5340.3	5 ° ° 7
104 SCRAP, SELUNDHANU JUUS	0*066-	1466.0	-67.5

BIOGRAPHICAL NOTES

James Edward Just was born April 18, 1946 in Johnstown, Pennsylvania. He graduated from New Castle Senior High School in June, 1964 and entered Massachusetts Institute of Technology in the fall of that year. He received both the Masters and Bachelors degrees in Electrical Engineering in June, 1969, and the Electrical Engineer degree in June, 1970.

He received financial support from MIT, the Wolves Club of New Castle, Pennsylvania, the NDEA, and the War Orphans Education Act during his undergraduate years. From September, 1968 to September, 1970, he was supported by an NDEA traineeship and the Pennsylvania Higher Education Act loans. In June, 1969, he joined MITRE Corporation as a part-time employee and received a fellowship from them in September, 1970. A number of classified publications resulted from this association.

In September, 1970, he began work on energy-related research with Prof. David C. White and Prof. Fred C. Schweppe. This resulted in an Electrical Engineering Ph.D thesis and a Masters in Business Administration thesis.

He is a member of Sigma Xi, Eta Kappa Nu, and Tau Beta Pi.